AGENDA

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, July 27, 2021
6:00 PM

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. Please be
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting
location available.

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on
Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81818068814. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the ‘raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 818 1806 8814. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (5610) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified.

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 1


http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81818068814
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional
ceremonial matters.

City Manager Comments: The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to
the City Council in the form of an oral report. The Council will not take action on such items but may
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on
the Council agenda. If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two
minutes each. If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. The
remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end
of the agenda.

Consent Calendar

The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the
“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar for it to move to Action. Items that remain on the
“Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted
upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”.

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar.

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information
Calendar. Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent
Calendar and Information Items. A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment
on Consent Calendar and Information items.

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such,
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops.

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 2



Consent Calendar

Referral Response: General Plan Re-Designation and Zoning Map Amendment
of Parcels Located at 1709 Alcatraz Avenue, 3404 King Street, 3244 Ellis Street,
1717 Alcatraz Avenue, and 2024 Ashby Avenue

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,780-N.S. rezoning five
parcels located at 1709 Alcatraz Avenue (APN 052-1533-001-03), 3404 King Street
(APN 052-1435-001-02), 3244 Ellis Street (APN 052-1533-005-00), 1717 Alcatraz
Avenue (APN 052-1533-006-00) and 2024 Ashby Avenue (APN 053-1592-022-00) to
Commercial — Adeline Corridor District (C-AC).

First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

Amending BMC Section 14.56.070 for 3-Ton Commercial Truck Weight Limit on
Tenth Street, Ninth Street, Eighth Street, and Seventh Street

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,781-N.S. amending
Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 14.56.070 to add 3-ton commercial truck
weight limits on Tenth Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way, Ninth
Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way, Eighth Street between
University Avenue and Dwight Way, and Seventh Street between University Avenue
and Dwight Way.

First Reading Vote: All Ayes

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (610) 981-7120

3. Contract: Downtown Berkeley YMCA for Fitness Center Memberships for City
Employees

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments with the Downtown Berkeley YMCA in the amount not
to exceed $163,008 for fitness center memberships for City employees for the period
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

Financial Implications: Various funds - $163,008

Contact: Rama Murty, Budget Office, (510) 981-7000

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 3



Consent Calendar

Minutes for Approval

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the council meetings of June 1, 2021
(regular), June 3, 2021 (closed), June 10, 2021 (closed), June 15, 2021 (special and
regular), June 17, 2021 (closed), June 25, 2021 (closed) and June 29, 2021
(regular).

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Voting Delegates — League of California Cities Annual Conference

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Designate, by motion, a voting delegate and alternate for the
business meeting of the Annual League of California Cities conference to be held on
Friday, September 24, 2021, in Sacramento.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Contract: Citygate for Fire Department Standards of Coverage Study

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments with Citygate Associates, LLC (Contractor) to provide
a Standards of Response Coverage study for the Berkeley Fire Department
(Department) from August 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022, in an amount not to
exceed $125,000 with an option to extend for an additional two years, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $200,000.

Financial Implications: Measure FF - $200,000

Contact: Abe Roman, Fire, (510) 981-3473

Contract: East Bay Sanctuary Covenant — Trauma Support Services for
Latinx/Latinas/Latinos

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute and amend a contract with the East Bay Sanctuary Covenant,
funded through State of California Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Prevention
and Early Intervention (PEI) monies, for Trauma Support Services for
Latinx/Latinas/Latinos, for an initial contract not to exceed $100,000 through June
30, 2022.

Financial Implications: Mental Health Services Act Fund - $100,000

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 4



Consent Calendar

10.

11.

Contract No. 052129-1 Amendment: Pacific Center for Human Growth

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute an amendment for Contract No. 052129-1 with the Pacific
Center for Human Growth for trauma support services for the Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual, Transgender, Queer/Questioning, Intersex, Agender, Plus (LGBTQIA+)
population, to increase the amount by $100,000 for a total contract amount not to
exceed $415,150, and to extend the contract through June 30, 2022.

Financial Implications: Mental Health Services Act Fund - $100,000

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Contract No. 088999-1 Amendment: Center for Independent Living

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute an amendment for Contract No. 088999-1 with the Center for
Independent Living for trauma support services for older adults, to increase the
amount by $31,846 for a total contract amount not to exceed $320,676, and to
extend the contract through June 30, 2022.

Financial Implications: Mental Health Services Act Fund - $31,846

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Contract No. 8392B Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions (ICS) for claims
administration of the City’s Workers’ Compensation Program

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 8392B with Innovative Claim Solutions (ICS) to provide
third-party claims administrative services, Medicare, Medicaid, and SCHIP Extension
Act (MMSEA) Section 111 Mandatory Reporting to the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS), to increase the amount by an additional $616,819, for a
total contract amount of $7,440,430, and extending the period through June 30,
2022.

Financial Implications: Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Fund - $616,819
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

Contract No. 090741-1 Amendment: Bartel Associates, LLC for Actuarial
Consulting Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 090741-1 with Bartel Associates, LLC for Actuarial
Consulting Services, increasing contract amount by $95,000 for a revised total
contract amount not to exceed $270,000 through December 31, 2023.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $95,000

Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 5



Consent Calendar

12.

13.

14.

15.

Contract: OBS Engineering, Inc. for John Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area
Improvements Project

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1. Approving the plans and specifications for
the John Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area Improvements Project, Specification No. 21-
11426-C; 2. Accepting the bid of the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, OBS
Engineering, Inc.; and 3. Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any
amendments, extensions or other change orders until completion of the project in
accordance with the approved plans and specifications, with OBS Engineering, Inc.
for the John Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area Renovations Project at 41 San Diego
Road, in an amount not to exceed $1,119,580 which includes a contract amount of
$1,017,800 and a 10% contingency in the amount of $101,780.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $1,119,580

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Contract No. 31900178 Amendment: Siegel & Strain Architects for Design and
Construction Administration Services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen
Dormitory Replacement Project

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 31900178 with Siegel & Strain Architects for design and construction
support services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Project,
increasing the contract by $120,000 for a total amount not to exceed $278,000.
Financial Implications: Camps Fund - $120,000

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Contract No. 32100146 Amendment: Bellingham Inc. for Additional Dock
Repairs at the Berkeley Marina

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 32100146 with Bellingham Inc. to repair additional docks at the
Berkeley Marina by increasing the construction contract amount by $40,000 for a
not-to-exceed amount of $280,000.

Financial Implications: Marina Fund - $40,000

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Contract No. 32100102 Amendment: DMR Builders for the 125/127 University
Avenue Tenant Improvement Project

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 32100102 with DMR Builders to complete renovation and facility
upgrade work at the 125/127 University Avenue building, increasing the amount of
the contract by $146,000, for a new amount not to exceed of $439,000.

Financial Implications: Parking Meter Fund - $146,000

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 6



Consent Calendar

16.

17.

18.

Dana Complete Street Pilot Project by AC Transit

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1) approving the Dana Complete Street Pilot
Project, including a conceptual design repurposing an existing traffic lane to install a
two-way cycle track, construction of a boarding island for bus passengers, and
specified changes to parking and loading zones, as necessary, and directing the City
Manager to direct staff to work with Alameda-Contra Costa County Transit District
(AC Transit) in developing the detailed engineering design of the project; 2)
authorizing the City Manager to direct staff to grant permits for construction activities
within City Right-of-Way, contingent on Public Works staff approval of final
construction drawings and specifications from AC Transit, and directing the City
Manager to direct staff to work with AC Transit on the evaluation phase of the project
following construction.

Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Creation of Climate Equity Action Fund

From: Energy Commission

Recommendation: The Energy Commission recommends that City Council create a
Climate Equity Action Fund, designate a process for making funding decisions, and
appropriate $600,000 to create a pilot test.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Billi Romain, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7400

Request for Two Additional Meetings for the Commission

From: Homeless Services Panel of Experts

Recommendation: That Council grant the Homeless Services Panel of Experts two
additional meetings for the calendar year, 2021.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Josh Jacobs, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400

Council Consent Items

19.

Contract No. 32000196 Amendment: Szabo & Associates for Communications
Consulting Services

From: Mayor Arreguin (Author)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 32000196 with Szabo & Associates for communications consulting
services for the Mayor’s Office, in the amount of $78,000, extending the contract to
June 30, 2022.

Financial Implications: Mayor's Office Budget - $78,000

Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 7



Council Consent Items

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

Letter of Support for Senate Bill 379

From: Councilmember Taplin (Author)

Recommendation: Send a letter of support for Senate Bill 379 to State Senator
Scott Wiener (D-SF), State Senator Nancy Skinner (D-Berkeley), Asm. Buffy Wicks
(D-Oakland) and Senate President Pro Tempore Toni Atkins (D-San Diego).
Financial Implications: None

Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (610) 981-7120

Proclamation: Partition Remembrance Day

From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Mayor Arreguin (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: That the Berkeley City Council adopts the Partition
Remembrance Day Proclamation.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130

Accelerating the City of Berkeley’s transition to Plant-Based Foods

From: Councilmember Hahn (Author), Mayor Arreguin (Author)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution establishing a goal to achieve a 50%
decrease in animal-based food products served by the City of Berkeley by 2024, and
refer to the City Manager to report to the City Council on progress towards reaching
this goal by January 31, 2022.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150

Appointment of Beverly Greene to the Board of Library Trustees

From: Councilmember Hahn (Author)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution appointing Beverly Greene to the Board of
Library Trustees (“BOLT”) for a term of four years beginning August 31, 2021.
Financial Implications: None

Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150

Letter to Senators Feinstein and Padilla in Support of the Restaurant
Revitalization Fund Replenishment Act

From: Councilmember Hahn (Author)

Recommendation: Send a letter, attached, to Senators Feinstein and Padilla in
Support of the Restaurant Revitalization Fund Replenishment Act.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 8



Council Consent Items

25. Moving Forward to Contract for Municipal Grant-Writing Services
From: Councilmember Hahn (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Harrison (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Direct the City Manager to move forward to establish needs and
select a firm or firms to supplement the City’s grant writing capacity, and provide a
budget referral in time to be considered for the November 2021 AAO Update, such
that a new firm or firms can be in place by January of 2022.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150

26. Calling on the U.S. Government to Negotiate the Elimination of Nuclear
Weapons
From: Councilmember Wengraf (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution calling on the government of the United
States to implement its obligations under international law to negotiate the
elimination of nuclear weapons. Send a copy of the resolution to President Biden,
Congressmember Barbara Lee, and Senators Dianne Feinstein and Alex Padilla.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160

Action Calendar

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items
moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is
taken up during the Action Calendar.

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to
one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may,
with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to
present their issue.

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council.

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 9



Action Calendar — Public Hearings

Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute
presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing
to speak use the "raise hand" function to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested
in speaking at that time.

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker.
The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue allocate a block
of time to each side to present their issue.

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk.

27. Updated Fees for the Home Occupations Ordinance
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a
Resolution amending Resolution No. 67,985-N.S., the Planning Department Fee
Schedule, to establish fees for new Home Occupation permit categories.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

Action Calendar — Old Business

28. Objective Standards Recommendations for Density, Design and Shadows
From: Joint Subcommittee for the Implementation of State Housing Laws
(Continued from March 23, 2021. Item contains supplemental material.)
Recommendation: Refer to the Planning Commission and Design Review
Committee to review the recommendations from the Joint Subcommittee for the
Implementation of State Housing Laws (JSISHL) for objective standards for density,
design and shadows and draft Zoning Ordinance amendments for City Council
consideration.

Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Alene Pearson, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7400

Action Calendar — New Business

29. City Council Rules of Procedure and Order Revisions (ltem re-agendized by
Council direction on April 20, 2021 to consider whether to extend the temporary rules
in Appendix D.)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution revising the City Council Rules of Procedure
and Order to add temporary rules for the legislative process during the COVID-19
declared emergency; sunset the temporary process to read written comments at
meetings; and rescinding any preceding amendatory resolutions.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 10



Information Reports

30. Referral Response: Facilitate the Local Implementation of Senate Bill 1413 and

31.

Expedite the Development of Teacher and School Employee Housing
From: City Manager
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Annual Report on Landmarks Preservation Commission Actions
From: Landmarks Preservation Commission
Contact: Fatema Crane, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7400

Public Comment - Items Not Listed on the Agenda

Adjournment

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be
barred. 2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
and KPFB Radio 89.3.
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil.
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m.

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names,
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City
Clerk Department for further information.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info.

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:

To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD)
at least three business days before the meeting date.

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 11

11


http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.

| hereby certify that the agenda for this meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther
King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on Thursday, July 15, 2021.

Hosd Mo/

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing through Records Online.

Item #14: Dana Complete Street Pilot Project by AC Transit
1. Charles Siegel, Ben Gerhardstein, Karen Parolek for Walk Bike Berkeley

Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) at BART
9 similarly-worded form letters

Cindy Shamban

Marianne Schulman

D.P. Neyhart

Laura Klein

Larry Orman

David Brandon

ONDO RN

Appeal 1527 Sacramento — AUP# ZP2020-0034
9. Joyce Lewis
10.Michele and Micah Liedeker

Grizzly Peak
11.Joshua Bloom

Homelessness
12.Bob May (2)

Pedestrian Safety
13.David Lerman

Assembly Bill 1238 — Response to Letter Dated May 11, 2021 (ltem 27)
14.State Senator Nancy Skinner

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 12

12


https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/

Public Restrooms
15.Judy Hunt

Defining Ecocide
16.Thomas Lord

Zoning
17.Helen Jones

Privatization of Some Public Spaces
18.Ann Hawkins

East Bay Community Energy (ECBE)
19.ECBE

Community for a Cultural Civic Center
20.Ann Harlow

URL’s Only
21.Russbumper (7)

Supplemental Communications and Reports
Items received by the deadlines for submission will be compiled and distributed as follows. If no items
are received by the deadline, no supplemental packet will be compiled for said deadline.

¢ Supplemental Communications and Reports 1
Available by 5:00 p.m. five days prior to the meeting.

¢ Supplemental Communications and Reports 2
Available by 5:00 p.m. the day before the meeting.

¢ Supplemental Communications and Reports 3
Available by 5:00 p.m. two days following the meeting.

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 AGENDA Page 13

13



14



Page 1 of 3

ORDINANCE NO. 7,780-N.S.

AMENDING THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE (BMC), TITLE 23 (ZONING),
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, TO REZONE ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBERS (APN) 052-
1533-001-03, 052-1435-001-02, 052-1533-005-00, 052-1533-006-00 and 053-1592-022-
00 FROM RESTRICTED MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-2A) AND
SOUTH AREA COMMERCIAL (C-SA) TO THE COMMERCIAL-ADELINE CORRIDOR
(C-AC) ZONING DISTRICT

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. The City Council has certified that the Addendum to the Adeline Corridor
Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (2020 EIR) was prepared in conformance with
the California Environmental Quality Act, and that the potential impacts of the proposed
zoning map amendments are consistent with potential impacts characterized in, and
mitigation measures adopted with, the 2020 EIR, and therefore, no further evaluation of
environmental impacts is required, no Subsequent EIR is necessary per CEQA
Guidelines Section 15162, and that the Addendum is the appropriate level of
environmental analysis and documentation for the proposed project in accordance with
CEQA Guidelines Section 15164.

Section 2. The City Council finds that the proposed zoning map amendment serves the
public interest by encouraging the development of affordable housing, supporting
important cultural institutions, and ensuring consistent land use regulation by
incorporating isolated properties into the Commercial-Adeline Corridor (C-AC) zoning
district.

Section 3. The City Council finds that the proposed zoning map amendments are
compatible with adjacent zoning districts. The proposed zoning map amendments would
only apply to parcels that are immediately adjacent to, or completely surrounded by,
parcels located in the C-AC zoning district. Therefore, adoption of the proposed
amendment would not result in any incompatibilities with adjacent zoning districts.

Section 4. The City Council finds that the proposed zoning map amendment allows uses
that are compatible with adjacent uses. With the adoption of the C-AC zoning district, the
City Council determined that the C-AC zoning district allowed uses that are compatible
with adjacent zoning districts. The proposed zoning map amendments would only apply
to parcels that are immediately adjacent to, or completely surrounded by, parcels located
in the C-AC zoning district. Therefore, adoption of the proposed amendments would not
result in allowable uses that are incompatible with adjacent zoning districts.

Section 5. The City Council finds that the potential effects of the proposed zoning map
amendment will not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare. The
amendment would not result in direct changes to the physical characteristics of the
property or existing structures. New development would be reviewed for compliance with
CEQA and be constructed to comply with the State Building and Safety Code as adopted
by the City of Berkeley.

Ordinance No. 7,780-N.S. Page 1 of 2

01

15


sbunting
Typewritten Text
01


Page 2 of 3

Section 6. The City Council finds that the proposed zoning map amendment does not
result in a change to a less intensive use allowed under the existing General Plan or
zoning pursuant to Gov. Code section 66300(b)(1).

Section 7. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be
filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a
newspaper of general circulation.

At a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Berkeley held on July 13, 2021,
this Ordinance was passed to print and ordered published by posting by the following
vote:

Ayes: Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Kesarwani, Robinson, Taplin, Wengraf, and
Arreguin.

Noes: None.

Absent: Bartlett.

Ordinance No. 7,780-N.S. Page 2 of 2

16



Page 3 of 3

EXHIBIT A

17



18



Page 1 of 3

02

ORDINANCE NO. 7,781-N.S.

AMENDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 14.56.070 TO ADD NEW
SECTIONS OF ROAD IN THE LIST OF LOCATIONS PROHIBITING THE USE OF
CERTAIN STREETS BY COMMERCIAL VEHICLES EXCEEDING 3 TONS GROSS
VEHICLE WEIGHT

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. That Section 14.56.070 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is amended to read
as follows:

14.56.070 Prohibiting the use of certain streets by commercial trucks exceeding
three tons gross vehicle weight.
A. ltis unlawful for any person to operate any commercial vehicle exceeding three

tons gross vehicle weight on the following portions of streets, hereafter referred
to as "restricted streets":

Hearst Avenue between 6th Street and San Pablo Avenue;

Hearst Avenue between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street;
7th Street between University Avenue and Cedar Street;

8th Street between University Avenue and Cedar Street;

9th Street between University Avenue and Cedar Street;

10th Street between University Avenue and Cedar Street;

Delaware Street between San Pablo Avenue and 6th Street;
Delaware Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street;
9. Virginia Street between San Pablo Avenue and 6th Street;
10.Virginia Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street;
11.Francisco Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street;
12.Hopkins Street west of Gilman Street;

13.Blake Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue;
14.Blake Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street;

15. Parker Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue;

16. Carleton Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue;
17.Carleton Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street;
18.Channing Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street;
19.Derby Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue;
20.Ward Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue;
21.Stuart Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue;
22.0regon Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue;
23.Parker Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street;
24 . Russell Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue;
25.Howe Street between Ellsworth Street and Telegraph Avenue;

N>R WD =

Ordinance No. 7,781-N.S. Page 1 of 3 19


sbunting
Typewritten Text
02


Page 2 of 3

26.Fulton Street between Ashby Avenue and Dwight Way;

27.Ellsworth Street between Ashby Avenue and Dwight Way;

28.Dana Street between Ward Street and Dwight Way;

29. Spaulding Avenue between Dwight Way and Addison Street;

30. California Street between Dwight Way and University Avenue;

31. Jefferson Avenue between Dwight Way and University Avenue;

32.McGee Avenue between Dwight Way and University Avenue;

33.Roosevelt Avenue between Dwight Way and Addison Street;

34.McKinley Avenue between Dwight Way and Addison Street;

35.Addison Street between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way;
36. Allston Way between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way;
37.Bancroft Way between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way;
38.Channing Way between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way;
39. Grant Street between Dwight Way and University Avenue;

40.Cedar Street east of 6th Street;

41.Dwight Way between San Pablo Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way;
42.Claremont Avenue between Ashby Avenue and Belrose Avenue;
43.Belrose Avenue between Claremont Avenue and Derby Street;

44 Derby Street between Belrose Avenue and Warring Street;

45.Warring Street between Derby Street and Dwight Way;

46. Piedmont Avenue between Dwight Way and Bancroft Way;

47.Milvia Street between Dwight Way and Hopkins Street;

48.The Uplands between Claremont Avenue and Tunnel Road;

49. Panoramic Way between Canyon Road and Berkeley/Oakland city limits.;
50.Kains Avenue between Virginia Street and Harrison Street;

51.Virginia Street between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way,
52.Francisco Street between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way,
53.Delaware Street between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way,
54.Hearst Avenue between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way,
55.Berkeley Way between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way;.
56.Tenth Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way;

57.Ninth Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way;

58. Eighth Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way;

59. Seventh Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way

B. All inter-city buses and tourist buses will be prohibited on these streets. School
buses, emergency vehicles, and buses converted for use by disabled people will be
allowed to use three-ton commercial truck weight limit routes.

C. The provisions of this section shall not apply to subsections 14.56.050 B and C.

Ordinance No. 7,781-N.S. Page 2 of 3



Page 3 of 3

Section 2. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the
display case located near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther
King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each
branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of
general circulation.

At a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Berkeley held on July 13, 2021,
this Ordinance was passed to print and ordered published by posting by the following
vote:

Ayes: Bartlett, Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Kesarwani, Robinson, Taplin, Wengraf,
and Arreguin.

Noes: None.
Absent: None.
Ordinance No. 7,781-N.S. Page 3 of 3



22



Page 1 of 3

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Rama Murty, Acting Budget Manager
Subject: Contract: Downtown Berkeley YMCA for Fitness Center Memberships for

City Employees

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any
amendments with the Downtown Berkeley YMCA in an amount not to exceed $163,008
for fithess center memberships for City employees for the period July 1, 2021 through
June 30, 2022.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
FY 2022 Contract Cost: $163,008 (283 members @ $48 per month * 12 months)

FY 2021 Contract Cost: $214,848 (373 members @ $48 per month * 12 months)

The FY 2022 contract represents a decrease of $51,840 from the FY 2021 contract.
The decrease is due to the number of memberships decreasing from 373 members to
283 members. Although the contract cost of $163,008 for FY 2022 is based on 283
memberships, this amount is a flat fee for the duration of the fiscal year regardless of
whether memberships increase or decrease during the fiscal year. The FY 2022
Budget includes funding for this contract in fringe benefit accounts in department
budgets that is collected and paid out from the Payroll Deduction Trust Fund (Fund
013). The General Fund will cover approximately $77,370 of the contract cost and the
remaining $85,638 will be covered by other funds.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The current agreement began on July 1, 2020 and ends on June 30, 2021. A new
contract is needed for FY 2022, which will continue the memberships for City
employees and Legislative Assistants at a low cost.

BACKGROUND
Since 1989, the City has had an agreement with the YMCA to provide low cost fitness
memberships for City employees and officials.

The City’s labor contracts require the City to pay 75% of the total membership cost and
employees pay the remaining 25%. Beginning on July 1, 2020, the full membership

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

03

23


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
03


Page 2 of 3

Contract: Downtown Berkeley YMCA for Fitness Center Memberships CONSENT CALENDAR
for City Employees July 27, 2021

cost was $64 per month, which meant the City’s share was $48 per month and the
employee’s share was $16 per month. For FY 2022, the membership cost will remain at
$64 per month.

This benefit is included in all of the collective bargaining agreements and would
terminate at the same time as the longest union contract containing the benefit. The
City would need to hold meet and confer sessions with the unions if it wishes to
eliminate this benefit.

The Downtown Berkeley YMCA contract is a Strategic Plan Priority, advancing our goal
to attract and retain a talented and diverse City government workforce.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY & CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental and climate impacts or opportunities associated
with the subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
City contracts for personal services over $50,000 require authorization from the City
Council before the City Manager can execute the contract.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
Rama Murty, Acting Budget Manager, 981-7000
LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources, 981-6800

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2

24



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT: DOWNTOWN BERKELEY YMCA FOR LOW COST FITNESS CENTER
MEMBERSHIPS FOR CITY EMPLOYEES

WHEREAS, the City has had an agreement with the Downtown Berkeley YMCA to
provide low cost fithess memberships for City employees and legislative assistants; and

WHEREAS, the City’s labor contracts require the City to pay 75 percent of the total
membership cost; and

WHEREAS, the current agreement began on July 1, 2020 and ends on June 30, 2021
and a new contract is proposed for FY 2022; and

WHEREAS, the FY 2022 Budget includes funding for this contract in fringe benefit
accounts in department budgets that is collected and paid out from the Payroll Deduction
Trust Fund (Fund 013).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that that
the City Manager is authorized to execute a contract and any amendments with the
Downtown Berkeley YMCA for low cost fitness center memberships for City of Berkeley
employees and legislative assistants for the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 in the
amount not to exceed $163,008. A record signature copy of said contract and any
amendments to be on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

25



26



Page 1 of 72 O 4

{ CITY ©F

[

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Subject: Minutes for Approval

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the minutes for the council meetings of June 1, 2021 (regular), June 3, 2021
(closed), June 10, 2021 (closed), June 15, 2021 (special and regular), June 17, 2021
(closed), June 25, 2021 (closed) and June 29, 2021 (regular).

CONTACT PERSON
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900

Attachments:

1. June 1, 2021 — Regular City Council Meeting
June 3, 2021 — Closed City Council Meeting
June 10, 2021 — Closed City Council Meeting
June 15, 2021 — Special City Council Meeting
June 15, 2021 — Regular City Council Meeting
June 17, 2021 — Closed City Council Meeting
June 25, 2021 — Closed City Council Meeting
June 29, 2021 — Regular City Council Meeting

PN RA N

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 27
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
04


Page 2 of 72

Attachment 1

MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, June 1, 2021
6:00 PM

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. Please be
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting
location available.

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable
B-TvV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at
http.//www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https.//us02web.zoom.us/j/89868895268. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename"” to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the ‘raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID:
898 6889 5268. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be
recognized by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any member
of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City
Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. Meetings will
adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified.

Preliminary Matters

Roll Call: 6:07 p.m.

Present: Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin
Absent: Droste

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 1

28


http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89868895268
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 3 of 72

Attachment 1

Councilmember Droste present at 8:47 p.m.

Ceremonial Matters:
1. Recognition of Mary Lee Widener, Local Activist
2. Recognition of Carole Kennerly, Former Vice-Mayor and Activist

3. Adjourned in Memory of Dixie Lewis and Ross Schultz, Recent Berkeley High School Graduates
and Members of the Berkeley Community

4. Recognition of the 100 Year Anniversary of the Tulsa Race Massacre

City Manager Comments:

No comments
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 6 speakers.
Consent Calendar

Action: M/S/C (Bartlett/Harrison) to accept an urgency item from Councilmember Bartlett pursuant to
Government Code Section 54954.2(b)(2) entitled Support for Full Funding of CA SB-1079 Residential
Property: Foreclosure. Mayor Arreguin and Councilmember Harrison added as co-sponsors.

Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to accept supplemental material from the City Manager on Item 16.
Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Public Comment on Consent Calendar Iltems Only: 21 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except as indicated.
Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Urgency Item: Support for Full Funding of CA SB-1079 Residential Property: Foreclosure
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-Sponsor), and
Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: Send a Resolution in support of full funding for The Foreclosure Intervention
Housing Preservation Program to Senator Skinner, Senator Caballero, Assemblymember Carrillo,
Assemblymember Wicks, Assemblymember Quirk, Assemblymember Ting, Governor Gavin Newsom,
and the California State Senate’s Standing Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review. Funding this bill
supports SB 1079, intended to mitigate against blight, vacancy, and the transfer of residential property
ownership from owner occupants to corporate landlords in the event that California experiences a
wave of foreclosures.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,906—N.S.

Waiver of Sanctuary City Ordinance for Westlaw Contract

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution waiving the contract prohibition of Berkeley Municipal Code
Chapter 13.105, Sanctuary City Contracting, in order to enter into a contract with Westlaw.
Financial Implications: None

Contact: Farimah Brown, City Attorney, (510) 981-6950

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,907—-N.S.

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 2

29



Page 4 of 72

Consent Calendar

Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible Issuance After
Council Approval on June 1, 2021

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached to staff report)
that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the requesting department or division.
All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold will be returned to Council for final approval.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $2,270,000

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Approved recommendation.

Notice of Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2022

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution providing notice that: 1) Council will adopt an appropriations
limit for Fiscal Year 2022 at its meeting of June 29, 2021; and 2) the amount of the limit and the
background material used in its calculation will be available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office
on or before June 14, 2021.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,908—N.S.

Contract No. 32000228 Amendment: Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc. for Berkeley Rose
Garden Pergola Reconstruction and Site Improvements Project

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an amendment to
Contract No. 32000228 with Ghilotti Construction, Inc. for the Berkeley Rose Garden Pergola
Reconstruction and Site Improvements Project, increasing the amount by $225,000 for an amended
total amount not to exceed $3,716,917.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $225,000

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,909—-N.S. as amended in Supplemental Communications Packet
#1 to modify the increase amount to be $300,000.

Multi-Agency Policing Agreement for Grizzly Peak Boulevard

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) entitled
"Multi-Agency Policing Agreement Among City of Oakland Police Department, Berkeley University of
California Police Department, East Bay Regional Park District, City of Berkeley Police Department,
Contra Costa County Sherriff's Department, East Bay Municipal Utilities District, and City of Orinda" to
provide for enforcement cooperation regarding problematic behavior and fire prevention on Grizzly
Peak Boulevard.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,910-N.S.

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 3



Page 5 of 72

Consent Calendar

Referral Response: Amending Chapter 19.34 of the Berkeley Municipal Code to Expand
Automatic Gas Shut-Off Valve Requirements in Multifamily, Condominium and Commercial
Buildings Undergoing Renovations

From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Recommendation: The proposed ordinance modifications in the referral dated October 29, 2019,
shown in Attachment 2 to the staff report (the Referral), can be briefly summarized as:

» Expand the Gas Shut-Off Valve requirements to remove exceptions for multi-family, condominium,
and commercial buildings

The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC) recommends that changes of the Berkeley
Municipal Code be referred to the City Manager and Planning Department to be modified in
accordance with the Referral as part of the 2022 Code adoption cycle, including the following
changes:

1. Do not allow excess flow valves to substitute for motion-activated shut-off valves as a way to
comply with this ordinance.

2. Clarify requirements for excess flow valves and motion activated (seismic) valves.

3. Include a provision to include gas valves for common areas when required for any individual unit of
a building.

4. Do not include any requirements regarding sale or transfer of the building.

5. Remove the dollar limit on the modifications and replace with a requirement to comply any time a
plumbing or mechanical permit is issued.

In addition, the Commission recommends the inclusion of wording in the Berkeley Emissions Saving
Ordinance (BESO) to require that in any transfer of property, that the property be required to equipped
with a seismic gas shutoff valve.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Keith May, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-3473

Action: Approved recommendation.

Council Consent Items

Oppose — Assembly Bill 1139, Net Energy Metering

From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Harrison (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Hahn
(Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in opposition to AB 1139 (Gonzalez): Net energy metering.
Send a copy of the Resolution to Senator Skinner, Assemblymembers Wicks and Gonzalez, and
Governor Newsom.

Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,911-N.S.

Referral to the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Process: Continuing Anti-Displacement Programs
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Bartlett
(Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Harrison (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: Refer to $900,000 to the FY 2022 Budget Process for continued funding of the
following anti-displacement programs (launched in 2017) with the proposed funding source from
General Fund tax receipts from the Measure U1 gross receipts tax: 1) Housing Retention Program
(administered by the Eviction Defense Center EDC): $250,000 2) Legal Counseling, Services and
Problem Solving for Extremely-Low, Very-Low, Low and Moderate Income Tenants ($275,000 each to
the East Bay Community Law Center and EDC): $550,000 3) Flexible Housing Subsidies for
Homelessness Prevention: $100,000

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

Action: Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 4



Page 6 of 72

Council Consent Items

9. Referral to the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Process: Landlord Incentives for Section 8
Participation
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Harrison (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember
Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Refer to the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Process, $100,000 of General Fund
revenues to replenish and augment funding for the Section 8 Landlord Incentive Program currently
offered by the Berkeley Housing Authority.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $100,000
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: Approved recommendation.

10. Support — Senate Bill 617, the Solar Access Act
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember
Harrison (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in support of SB 617 (Wiener): Residential solar energy
systems: permitting. Send a copy of the Resolution to Senators Wiener and Skinner,
Assemblymember Wicks, and Governor Newsom.
Financial Implications: Staff time
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,912—-N.S.

1. Berkeley Housing Authority Board of Commissioners Re-Appointments
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution re-appointing Dan Rossi, Christine Schildt, and Adolph Moody
to the Berkeley Housing Authority Board of Commissioners.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,913—-N.S.

12. Budget Referral: $200,000 to the Bay Area Community Land Trust for Capacity Building to
Support the Small Sites Program
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Refer to the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget process an allocation of $200,000 to the
Bay Area Community Land Trust (BACLT) for capacity building for the purpose of adding staffing to
complete small property purchases for conversion from rental to deed restricted affordable housing or
limited-equity cooperatives. Funds would be appropriated from Measure U-1 tax receipts with
$165,000 designated for staff capacity building and $40,000 for a consultant to engage in strategic
planning and project management.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: Approved recommendation.

13. Budget Referral: Phase 2 of Civic Center District Visioning
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Harrison (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember
Wengraf (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Refer to the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget process $200,000 in General Fund
revenues for Phase 2 of planning for the Civic Center Visioning Project.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $200,000
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 5

32



Page 7 of 72

Council Consent Items

14.

Berkeley Rep’s OVATION: Imagine Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds to General
Fund and Grant of Such Funds

From: Councilmember Hahn (Author), Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember
Wengraf (Co-Sponsor), Mayor Arreguin (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not to exceed $500
per Councilmember, including $250 from Councilmember Hahn, to the Berkeley Repertory Theatre, a
501(c)(3) non-profit organization, to support OVATION: Imagine, an event to support Berkeley Rep’s
productions and arts education programs, with funds relinquished to the City’s general fund for this
purpose from the discretionary Council office budget of Councilmember Hahn, and any other
Councilmembers who would like to contribute.

Financial Implications: Councilmember’s Discretionary Funds - $250

Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,914—-N.S. revised to include contributions from the following
Councilmembers up to the amounts listed: Councilmember Taplin - $250; Councilmember Wengraf -
$250; Mayor Arreguin - $250; Councilmember Bartlett - $150; Councilmember Kesarwani - $100.

Recess 8:02 p.m. - 8:12 p.m.

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 6

33



Page 8 of 72

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

15. Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed Budget Public Hearing #2
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a second public hearing on the FY 2022 Proposed Biennial Budget.
Financial Implications: See FY 2022 Proposed Biennial Budget
Contact: Rama Murty, Budget Office, (510) 981-7000
Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 22 speakers.
M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to close the public hearing.
Vote: All Ayes.
Action: Discussion held on proposed budget, including the revised and supplemental materials
submitted by the City Manager and Councilmember Bartlett in Supplemental Communications Packet
#2.

16. ZAB Appeal: 2421 Fifth Street, Use Permit #2P2020-0043
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution affirming the
Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) decision and approving Use Permit #2P2020-0043 to demolish a
single-family dwelling and construct two residential buildings: a three-story triplex and a three-story
single-family dwelling, for a total of four new dwellings, and dismiss the appeal.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400
Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 1 speaker.
M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to close the public hearing.
Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Kesarwani) to adopt Resolution No. 69,915-N.S. affirming the Zoning
Adjustments Board (ZAB) decision and approving Use Permit #ZP2020-0043, with the revised
Condition of Approval #11 related to Privacy Screening, to demolish a single-family dwelling and
construct two residential buildings: a three-story triplex and a three-story single-family dwelling, for a
total of four new dwellings, and dismiss the appeal.
Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 7

34



Page 9 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

17.

18a.

18b.

Police Accountability Board — Appointment of Members

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution appointing nine members to the Police Accountability Board
nominated by the Mayor and City Councilmembers, and appointing one alternate member.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Adopted Resolution No. 69,916-N.S. amended to remove the
final resolved clause relating to the Alternate Commissioner. Appointment of the Alternate
Commissioner scheduled for June 29, 2021.

Recommendation that the City Council Pass a Resolution Regarding Procurement, Sales and
Serving of Sugar-Sweetened Beverages.

From: Sugar Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts (Reviewed by the Health, Life
Enrichment, Equity & Community Policy Committee)

Recommendation: The Sugar Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts recommends that the
Berkeley City Council adopt a Resolution that City of Berkeley departments and City food services
contractors shall not: 1) Serve sugar-sweetened beverages at City meetings and events on City
property; 2) Procure sugar-sweetened beverages with City funds; or, 3) Sell sugar-sweetened
beverages on City property, including in vending machines.

Policy Committee Recommendation: M/S/C (Hahn/Bartlett) to move an item to Council recommending
approval of the Sugar Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts Resolution regarding
procurement, sales and serving of sugar-sweetened beverages with the following changes in the
resolved clause and removing the third item:

Therefore be it resolved that the City of Berkeley shall not:

1. Procure sugar-sweetened beverages with City funds; and 2. Serve or sell sugar-sweetened
beverages on City property, including in vending machines.

And be it further resolved that the City discourages sugar-sweetened beverages at events on City
property that receive City of Berkeley funding, and mandate that these events be required to provide
options other than sugar-sweetened beverages.

And be it further resolved that in areas or facilities where employees regularly work beyond the core
business hours of 8 a.m. — 6 p.m., the City of Berkeley shall provide refrigerators in good working
order and of adequate size for the number of employees in that area, to bring and store their own
beverages.

In addition, ask the City Council to make a referral to the Sugar-Sweetened  Beverage Product
Panel of Experts to consider how to regulate sugar sweetened beverages at events held on City of
Berkeley Property hosted by non-City entities who receive City of Berkeley funds.

Vote: All Ayes.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Dechen Tsering, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5300

Companion Report: Recommendation that the City Council Pass a Resolution Regarding
Procurement, Sales, and Serving Sugar-Sweetened Beverages

From: City Manager (Reviewed by the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity & Community Policy
Committee)

Recommendation: Recommend that the City Council adopt an amended resolution that recognizes
the important principles in the Commission recommendation, clarifies the intent of the measure and
provides some flexibility for City programs and staff while still emphasizing availability of healthy
options. This amended resolution would require that the majority of all beverages provided or sold at
any City event or on any City property (including vending machines) be non-sugar sweetened
beverages (as defined in chapter 7.72 of the Berkeley Municipal Code) and education materials be
provided to all COB staff to actively discourage the consumption of sugar-sweetened beverages and
encourage the consumption of water.

Policy Committee Recommendation: M/S/C (Hahn/Bartlett) to move an item to Council recommending
approval of the Sugar Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts Resolution regarding
procurement, sales and serving of sugar-sweetened beverages with the following changes in the
resolved clause and removing the third item: Therefore be it resolved that the City of Berkeley shall
not:

1. Procure sugar-sweetened beverages with City funds; and 2. Serve or sell sugar-sweetened

Tuesdéﬁ‘?@ﬁg.eqs %@)ﬁity property, inClUdfngl\mJi\!@qggg machines.

e it further resolved that the City discourages sugar-sweetened beverages at eF\’/%%?sann City 35
property that receive City of Berkeley funding, and mandate that these events be required to provide
options other than sugar-sweetened beverages.

NAinA hoa i+ frirtbhoar raoan~nh/ad flhat in Aaraonoe Ar familitine wwhoara armnlavanoe rarcviilaviyvys swwavrl hovininA tha AAro



Page 10 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

19.

Adopt a Resolution Updating City of Berkeley Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation Policy
From: Councilmember Harrison (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor) (Reviewed by the Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation,
Environment & Sustainability Committee)

Recommendation: 1. Adopt a Resolution updating the City’s Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Policy dated June 1, 2021.

2. Refer the exploration of potential bonding and funding opportunities for improving the Paving
Condition Index (PCI) of streets and creating a Paving Master Plan back to the Facilities,
Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment & Sustainability (FITES) Committee for further review.
Policy Committee Recommendation: M/S/C (Robinson/Harrison) to move the Public Works
supplemental item “City of Berkeley Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation Policy to Council” with a
positive recommendation including amendments made during the meeting today, and ask Council to
refer the exploration of potential bonding and funding opportunities for improving the PCI of streets
and creating a Paving Master Plan back to the FITES Committee for further review. All Ayes.
Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to continue ltem 19 to July 13, 2021, including supplemental
materials from the Public Works Commission.

Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Councilmember Droste absent at 10:13 p.m.

Public Comment — Iltems Not Listed on the Agenda — 1 speaker.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain
— None; Absent — Droste.

Adjourned at 10:18 p.m.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the regular session meeting held on June 1,

2021.

Mark Numainville
City Clerk

Communications

Cal (UC) Students Are Terrorists

1.

Anne Whyte (2)

2. Jen Loy, on behalf of UC Berkeley

Parking Enforcement While Dropping Off Children at School
3. Dawn Howard

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 9

36



Page 11 of 72

Oppose SB-9
Jennifer Cole
Summer Brenner
Dick Mallory
Renate Crocker
Jana Olson

. Michael Cohn
10. Lisa Goodman
11. Helen Toy

12. Betsy Cohen

©oND> oA

Tenant Opportunity to Purchase Act (TOPA) Legislation
13. Michele Chitson
14. Gr1@

15. Janine Goosen
16. Julie Caskey

17. Chad Andrews

18. Cora Stryker

19. Jennifer Kim

20. Justin Davis

21. Michael Farrell

22. Hope Henderson
23. Jane Henderson
24. Julia Drees

25. David Filippini

26. Sabrina and Markus Leunig
27. Charlotte Stanton
28. Jennifer Formoso
29. Sohee Procek

30. Erin Chalmers

31. Al Hassan Hleieh
32. Mary Canavan

33. John Weiszer

34. Marcia Hutcherson
35. Khalil Bendib

36. Ginny Madsen

Homelessness and Encampment Issues

37. Nathan Scullion

38. Todd Oliver, owner of Shattuck Square

39. Linda Hung (2)

40. Kirstie Bennett, on behalf of the Telegraph-Channing Mall Merchants
41. Diana Bohn

The Jump and Bike Park (Berkeleyside article)
42. Monique Webster
43. David Alter

44. Amy Buege

45. Phorest Bateson
46. Heath Maddox
47. Julian Alcala

48. Ernst Schmidt
49. Youssef Rafatjah
50. Dan Leaverton
51. Sean Williams
52. Sue Reinhold

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 10



53.
54.

Page 12 of 72

Nico Tripcevich
Victoria Hritonenko

55. Bruce Perens (2)

56.

Svetlana Livdan

Electrification of Existing Buildings

57.

Phoebe Sorgen

58. Thomas Lord

Zoning Rules for Housing
59. Marissa Moss

LRDP and Housing Project #1 and #2

60.

Robert Breuer Family

American Rescue Plan Act Monies

61.

Richard Rollins

Berkeley Police Department Audit Report

62.

Jane Martin

Traffic at Grizzly Peak/Marin/Summit Drive

63.

Joshua Bloom

URL’s Only

64.
65.

phcanin@
russbumper (3)

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

Item #4: Contract No. 32000228 Amendment: Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc. for Berkeley
Rose Garden Pergola Reconstruction and Site Improvements Project

66.

Revised material, submitted by Parks, Recreation and Waterfront

Item #15: Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed Budget Public Hearing #2

67.

Parks and Waterfront Commission

Item #19: Adopt a Resolution Updating City of Berkeley Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Policy

68.
69.

Supplemental material, submitted by the Public Works Commission
Naomi Marks

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2
Item #15: Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed Budget Public Hearing #2

70.
71.
72.
73.
74.
75.
76.
77.
78.
79.
80.

Revised material, submitted by the Budget Office
Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Bartlett
lan Winters

Tine Munson

Naomi Janowitz

Patrick Dooley

Erin Mei-Ling Stuart

El Beh

Patrick Krause

Kevin Clarke

Tamara White

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 11

38



Page 13 of 72

81. Don Reed

82. Ipsheeta Furtado
83. Sharon Shao

84. Jon Tracy

85. Ragesh Tangri

86. Carol Lashof

87. Katja Rivera

88. Donald Wood

89. Brian Shillinglaw
90. Katzenstein Family
91. Jo Golub

92. Amy Bruhmuller
93. Diana Bohn

94. Holly Scheider

95. Sylvia

96. Mike Roberts

97. Lisa Ferguson

98. Greg Rosen

99. Ben Paulos

100.  Elana Auerbach
101.  Daniel Epifani
102.  Mary Ann Furda
103. Linda Currie

Item #19: Adopt a Resolution Updating City of Berkeley Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Policy

104. Carol Cho

105. Paku Khan

Support for Full Funding of CA SB-1079 Residential Property
106.  Urgent item, submitted by Councilmember Bartlett

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #5: Multi-Agency Policing Agreement for Grizzly Peak Boulevard
107.  Audrey Burnam (2)

Item #7: Oppose — Assembly Bill 1139, Net Energy Metering
108. Igor Tregub

Item #15: Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed Budget Public Hearing #2
109. Liz Lisle

110. Ted Obbard

111.  Meaveen O’Conner

112.  Diana Bohn (2)

113.  Chrise de Tournay Birkhahn
114.  Audrey Burnam

115. Tom Lent

116.  Bill Press

117.  Glenn Turner

118.  Romeo Channer

119.  Jessica Rattner

Item #16: ZAB Appeal: 2421 Fifth Street, Use Permit #2P2020-0043

120.  Supplemental material, submitted by Planning Department
121.  Amber Baker, on behalf of Gunkel Architecture (2)

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 12



Page 14 of 72

Item #18: Recommendation that the City Council Pass a Resolution Regarding Procurement, Sales
and Serving of Sugar-Sweetened Beverages
122.  Holly Scheider

Item #19: Adopt a Resolution Updating City of Berkeley Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Policy
123.  Janet Stromberg

Urgent Item
Support for Full Funding of CA SB-1079 Residential Property: Foreclosure
124.  Northern California Land Trust

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 MINUTES Page 13

40



Page 15 of 72

Attachment 2
MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
SPECIAL MEETING
THURSDAY, JUNE 3, 2021
3:00 P.M.
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR

Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this
closed session meeting of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom
videoconference. Please be advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order,
and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-
19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this
URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82185996634. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen,
then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to
speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free); enter Meeting ID: 821 8599 6634. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized
by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other
rules of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or
videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record,
email council@cityofberkeley.info.

Thursday, June 3, 2021 MINUTES Page 1


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82185996634
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 16 of 72

Attachment 2
Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  3:06 p.m.
Present: Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin
Absent: Kesarwani, Harrison, Wengraf
Councilmember Wengraf present at 3:21 p.m.

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only — 2 speakers

CLOSED SESSION:

The City Council will convene in closed session to meet concerning the following:

1. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8
Property address: 199 Seawall Drive, Berkeley, CA 94710
Agency Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager; Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy
City Manager; Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation and
Waterfront; Christina Erickson, Deputy Director, Parks,
Recreation, and Waterfront

Negotiating parties: City of Berkeley and Innovation Properties Group (IPG)
Property owner: City of Berkeley
Under negotiation: Price and terms

Action: No reportable action taken.

2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS; GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6

Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy City Manager,
David White, Deputy City Manager, LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources Director, Dania
Torres-Wong, Chief Labor Negotiator, Burke Dunphy, Labor Negotiator, Jen Louis, Interim
Chief of Police, Abe Roman, Interim Fire Chief.

Employee Organizations: International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW), Local
1245, SEIU 1021 Community Services and Part-time Recreation Activity Leaders, Berkeley
Fire Fighters Association Local 1227, Berkeley Police Association, Service Employees
International Union, Local 1021 Maintenance and Clerical Chapters, Berkeley Fire Fighters
Association, Local 1227 |.A.F.F./Berkeley Chief Fire Officers Association, Public Employees
Union Local 1.

Action: No reportable action taken.

OPEN SESSION:

No reportable action taken.

Thursday, June 3, 2021 MINUTES Page 2

42



Page 17 of 72

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Kesarwani, Harrison, Wengraf.

Councilmember Wengraf absent at 5:47 p.m.
Adjourned at 6:19 p.m.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the closed session
meeting held on June 3, 2021.

Mark Numainville
City Clerk

Thursday, June 3, 2021 MINUTES

Page 3



Page 18 of 72

Attachment 3
MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
SPECIAL MEETING
THURSDAY, JUNE 10, 2021
3:00 P.M.
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR

Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this
closed session meeting of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom
videoconference. Please be advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order,
and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-
19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this
URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84838540769. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen,
then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to
speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free); enter Meeting ID: 848 3854 0769. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized
by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other
rules of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or
videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record,
email council@cityofberkeley.info.

Thursday, June 10, 2021 MINUTES Page 1


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84838540769
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 19 of 72

Attachment 3
Preliminary Matters

Roll Call: 3:03 p.m.

Present: Droste, Hahn, Kesarwani, Robinson, Taplin, Wengraf, Arreguin
Absent: Bartlett, Harrison

Councilmember Bartlett present at 3:15 p.m.

Councilmember Harrison present at 3:16 p.m.

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only — 1 Speaker

CLOSED SESSION:

The City Council will convene in closed session to meet concerning the following:

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — PENDING LITIGATION PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 54956.9(a) AND 54956.9(d)(1):

a. City of Berkeley v. Regents of the University of California, Alameda Superior Court Case
No. RG19023058

b. Save Berkeley’s Neighborhoods, et al. v. The Regents of the University of California, et
al., Alameda Superior Court, Case No. RG19006256

Action: No reportable action taken.
2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS; GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6

Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy City Manager,
David White, Deputy City Manager, LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources Director, Dania
Torres-Wong, Chief Labor Negotiator, Burke Dunphy, Labor Negotiator, Jon Holtzman,
Labor Negotiator, Jen Louis, Interim Chief of Police, Abe Roman, Interim Fire Chief.

Employee Organizations: International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW), Local
1245, SEIU 1021 Community Services and Part-time Recreation Activity Leaders, Berkeley
Fire Fighters Association Local 1227, Berkeley Police Association, Service Employees
International Union, Local 1021 Maintenance and Clerical Chapters, Berkeley Fire Fighters
Association, Local 1227 |.A.F.F./Berkeley Chief Fire Officers Association, Public Employees
Union Local 1.

Action: No reportable action taken.

OPEN SESSION:

Public Reports of actions taken pursuant to Government Code section 54957 .1.

No reportable action taken.

Thursday, June 10, 2021 MINUTES Page 2 45



Page 20 of 72

Adjournment

Adjourned at 6:07 p.m.

| hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct record of the special closed
session meeting of June 10, 2021 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Mark Numainville
City Clerk

Communications

e None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1
e None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2
e None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

e None

Thursday, June 10, 2021 MINUTES

Page 3

46



Page 21 of 72

Attachment 4
MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
Tuesday, June 15, 2021
4:00 PM
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. Please be
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting
location available.

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on
Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at
http.//www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename"” to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the ‘“raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 879 0868 1987. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (5610) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 1

47


http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 22 of 72

Attachment 4

Preliminary Matters

Roll Call:  4:04 p.m.

Present: Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin
Absent: Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett

Councilmember Kesarwani present at 4:05 p.m.

Councilmember Taplin present at 4:11 p.m.

Councilmember Bartlett present at 4:15 p.m.

Action Calendar — Old Business

1.

Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery

From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor), Mayor Arreguin (Co-
Sponsor) (Reviewed by the Agenda & Rules Committee) (Continued from May 25,
2021)

Recommendation:

1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the enabling
legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a phased
approach. Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless
Services Panel of Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond
Oversight Committee first, and request that the City Manager bring back changes to
the enabling legislation to implement these consolidated commissions. Phase 2: All
other Commissions as proposed in the report. As staff is able to make
recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those recommendations forward
one by one.

2. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated
commissions and the effective date of the changes.

3. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment
Commission and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of
the merged commissions.

4. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be composed of only
Mayor and Council appointees.

5. Refer to City Manager and Commissions the following additional considerations:

- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine
how to handle. - Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter,
and by what means they might be merged/adjusted. - What elements of each
Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant topics/issues not currently
covered that might be added to a more comprehensive and/or relevant merged
Commission’s charter. - Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a
greater number of members. - The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for
appointment to the merged Commission. - The possibility of recommended or
required Standing Committees of the Merged Commission. - Volunteer workload and

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 2

48



Page 23 of 72

Action Calendar — Old Business

capacity given scope of Commission’s charter
Policy Committee Recommendation: Make a Qualified Positive Recommendation to

City Council to: 1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes
to the enabling legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in
a phased approach. Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless
Commission/Homeless Services Panel of Experts and Housing Advisory
Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight Committee first, and request that the City
Manager bring back changes to the enabling legislation to implement these
consolidated commissions. Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed in the
report. As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring
those recommendations forward one by one. 2. Refer to the Commissions impacted
a process to determine the charge/responsibilities of the newly merged commissions,
and bring Commission input to the appropriate Policy Committees (as proposed by
Vice-Mayor Droste in 4/5/21 submittal) for further recommendations to the City
Manager on revised charge/responsibilities of merged commissions. 3. Refer to staff
to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated commissions and
the effective date of the changes. 4. Consider establishing 18 members on the new
Climate and Environment Commission and establishing specific subcommittees
focused on the policy areas of the merged commissions.5. The Peace, Justice and
Human Welfare Commission will be comprised of only Mayor and Council
appointees. 6. Refer Councilmember Hahn questions to City Manager and
Commissions: “Commissions to Combine/Merge - Suggested Considerations”

- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine
how to handle. - Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter,
and by what means they might be merged/adjusted. - What elements of each
Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant topics/issues not currently
covered that might be added to a more comprehensive and/or relevant merged
Commission’s charter. - Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a
greater number of members. - The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for
appointment to the merged Commission. - The possibility of recommended or
required Standing Committees of the Merged Commission - Volunteer workload and
capacity given scope of Commission’s charter.

Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180

Action: 14 speakers. M/S/C (Droste/Robinson) to adopt the item as passed by the
Agenda & Rules Committee with the additions noted below.
- Recommend that the Environmental Commission should be nine members,
not 18.
- Retain the Representatives of the Poor on the new Peace, Justice, and
Human Welfare Commission.
- Transition the Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Panel and Community Health
Commission to a single 18-member commission.
- Consolidate the Animal Care Commission with the Parks and Waterfront
Commission.
- Zero Waste issues related to facilities are consolidated with Public Works
Commission and issues related to policy are consolidated with the

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 3



Page 24 of 72

Action Calendar — Old Business

Environmental Commission.
- Refer to the City Manager and the affected commissions to explore the

consolidation of the Commission on Disability and the Commission on Aging.

Vote: All Ayes.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Droste/Robinson) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: All Ayes.

Adjourned at 5:37 p.m.

| hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct record of the special session
meeting of June 15, 2021 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Mark Numainville
City Clerk

Communications

Item #1: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery
1. Holly Scheider

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

e None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #1: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID 19 Budget Recovery
Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Harrison

Kelly Hammargren

Holly Scheider

Bob Meola

Jim McGrath

Diana Bohn

Josh Jacobs, on behalf of the Homeless Commission

NG RWN

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #1: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID 19 Budget Recovery
9. Zaira Rodriguez

10.1gor Tregub

11.George Lippman

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 4

50



Page 25 of 72

12.Pauline Bondonno
13.Camillo Cipolla
14.Remi Omodele
15. Carol Denney

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES

Page 5

51



Page 26 of 72

Attachment 5

MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, June 15, 2021
6:00 PM

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. Please be
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting
location available.

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable
B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at
http.//www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 879 0868 1987. If you
wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any member
of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City
Clerk, (5610) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. Meetings will
adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 1

52


http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 27 of 72

Attachment 5

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  6:04 p.m.

Present: Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin

Absent: None

Ceremonial Matters:
1. Recognition of Arnie Passman, Local Writer and Artist
2. Recognition of Outgoing Members of the Police Review Commission

3. Adjourn in Memory of Barry Biddulph and Eric Cumby, Recent Victims of Overdose in Civic
Center Park

4. Recognition of Juneteenth on June 19, 2021
City Manager Comments: None

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 10 speakers.

Consent Calendar

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to accept supplemental material from Councilmember
Harrison and Councilmember Hahn on Item 3 and supplemental from the City Manager
on ltem 37.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Wengraf.

Councilmember Wengraf absent 6:37 p.m. — 6:41 p.m.
Recess 8:13 p.m. — 8:23 p.m.
Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Iltems Only: 67 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Kesarwani) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except
as indicated.

Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — Harrison; Wengraf.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 2

53



Page 28 of 72

Consent Calendar

Lease Agreement: 2010 Addison Street at Center Street Garage with Vito
Loconte and Alexie LeCount DBA Lexie’s Frozen Custard

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,763-N.S. authorizing
the City Manager to execute a lease agreement for 2010 Addison Street at the
Center Street Garage with Vito Loconte and Alexie LeCount DBA Lexie’s Frozen
Custard, a sole proprietorship, for an initial term of ten (10) years with one optional
five-year lease extension AND approve payment of a commission of $9,331.23 to
Colliers International for commercial brokerage fees for locating a tenant for the
premises.

First Reading Vote: All Ayes

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,763—N.S.

Amend BMC 14.72.105

From: Councilmember Wengraf (Author)

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,764-N.S. amending
BMC 14.72.105 Neighborhood-Serving Community Facility Permits, to allow a
broader range of community facilities to be eligible for parking permits.

First Reading Vote: All Ayes

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,764—N.S.

Systems Alignment Proposal (Continued from May 18, 2021. Item Contains
Supplemental Material.)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Review the proposal for systems alignment and provide edits and
suggestions in order to compile Council feedback for the purpose of drafting a revised
proposal for adoption.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Dave White, City Manager’s Office, (610) 981-7000

Action: Approved recommendation including supplemental material submitted by
Councilmember Hahn and Councilmember Harrison.

Temporary Appropriations FY 2022

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing a temporary appropriation in the
sum of $50,000,000 to cover payroll and other expenses from July 1, 2021, until the
effective date of the FY 2022 Annual Appropriations Ordinance.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,918—-N.S.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 3



Page 29 of 72

Consent Calendar

FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Debt Service on Neighborhood Branch Library
Improvements Project General Obligation Bonds (Measure FF, November 2008
Election)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
for funding the debt service on the Neighborhood Branch Library Improvements
Project General Obligation Bonds (Measure FF, November 2008 Election) at
0.0059%.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,765-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Debt Service on 2015 Refunding General Obligation
Bonds (Measures G, S &)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
funding the debt service on the 2015 consolidation of Measures G, S and | (General
Obligation Bonds - Elections of 1992, 1996 and 2002) at 0.0135%.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,766-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Affordable Housing General
Obligation Bonds (Measure O, November 2018 Election)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
funding the debt service on the Affordable Housing General Obligation Bonds
(Measure O, November 2018) at 0.0088%.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,767-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

FY 2022 Tax Rate: Business License Tax on Large Non-Profits

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
for Business License Tax on large non-profits at $0.7041 (70.41 cents) per square
foot of improvements.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,768-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 4



Page 30 of 72

Consent Calendar

9. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Firefighting, Emergency Medical Response and
Wildfire Prevention (Measure FF)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
for funding Firefighting, Emergency Medical Response and Wildfire Prevention
(Measure FF) in the City of Berkeley at an annual rate of $0.1047 (10.47 cents) per
square foot of improvements and $0.15705 (15.705 cents) for the 18-month period
from January 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300, Abe Roman, Fire, (510) 981-
3473
Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,769-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

10. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Maintenance of Parks, City Trees and Landscaping
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
for funding all improvements for the maintenance of parks, City trees, and
landscaping in the City of Berkeley at $0.1896 (18.96 cents) per square foot of
improvements.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,770-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

11. FY 2022 Special Tax Rate: Fund the Provision of Library Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
for funding the provision of Library Services in the City of Berkeley at $0.2402 (24.02
cents) per square foot for dwelling units and $0.3632 (36.32 cents) per square foot
for industrial, commercial, and institutional buildings.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300, Tess Mayer, Director of Library
Services, (510) 981-6195
Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,771-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 5

56



Page 31 of 72

Consent Calendar

12. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Emergency Services for the Severely Disabled

(Measure E)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
for funding the provision of emergency services for the disabled at $0.02378 (2.378
cents) per square foot of improvements.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,772-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

13. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Infrastructure and Facilities

General Obligation Bonds (Measure T1, November 2016 Election)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
funding the debt service on the Infrastructure and Facilities Improvements General
Obligation Bonds (Measure T1, November 2016) at 0.0170%.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,773-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

14. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Street and Watershed
Improvements General Obligation Bonds (Measure M, November 2012 Election)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
funding the debt service on the Street and Integrated Watershed Improvements
General Obligation Bonds (Measure M, November 2012) at 0.0077%.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,774-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

15. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Fire Protection and Emergency Response and

Preparedness (Measure GG)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
for funding Fire Protection and Emergency Response and Preparedness in the City
of Berkeley at the rate of $0.05818 (5.818 cents) per square foot of improvements for
dwelling units and setting the rate for all other property at $0.08804 (8.804 cents) per
square foot of improvements.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300, Abe Roman, Interim Fire Chief,
(510) 981-5500
Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,775-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 6

o7



Page 32 of 72

Consent Calendar

16. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Provision of Emergency Medical Services
(Paramedic Tax)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2022 tax rate
for funding the provision of emergency medical services to Berkeley residents at
$0.0412 (4.12 cents) per square foot of improvements.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,776-N.S. Second reading scheduled
for June 29, 2021.

17. Designate the Line of Succession for the Director of Emergency Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the designated line of succession
to the position of Director of Emergency Services in the event of an officially declared
disaster, and rescinding Resolution No. 69,245-N.S.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Abe Roman, Fire, (510) 981-3473
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,919-N.S.

18. Revenue Grant: Funding Support from Alameda County to Public Health
Infrastructure Program
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to submit grant agreements to Alameda County, to accept the grant, and
execute any resultant revenue agreements and amendments to conduct public
health promotion, protection, and prevention services for the Public Health
Infrastructure Program in the projected amount of $32,080 for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,920-N.S.

19. Housing Trust Fund Predevelopment Loan Advance for Maudelle Miller Shirek
Community (2001 Ashby Avenue)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1. Authorizing an advance of $1.5 million in
Measure O funds to Maudelle Shirek L.P. for costs related to predevelopment of the
Maudelle Miller Shirek Community, located at 2001 Ashby Avenue. 2. Clarifying that
the City may execute the development contract for Maudelle Miller Shirek
Community for the remaining Measure O funds prior to the second issuance of the
bond. 3. Authorizing the City Manager to execute all original or amended documents
or agreements to effectuate this action.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,921-N.S.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 7

58



Page 33 of 72

Consent Calendar

20.

21,

22,

23.

***I1tem Removed by City Manager*** Contract No. 31900254 Amendment: Easy
Does It to Provide Emergency Disability Services and Audit Recommendation
Update for Fiscal Year 2022 — 2023

From: City Manager

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Revenue Grant Agreement: Funding Support from the State of California for
the Tuberculosis Program

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to submit grant agreements to the State of California, to accept the grant,
and execute any resultant revenue agreements and amendments to conduct public
health promotion, protection, and prevention services for the Tuberculosis Control
Program in the projected amount of $14,000 for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,922—-N.S.

Revenue Contract: Community Services Block Grant Discretionary Funding for
Contract Number 21F-4403 to Provide Services for Low-Income People

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to: 1. Accept the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Contract
Number 21F-4403 for the amount of $28,250 to provide services for low-income
people for the period June 1, 2021 through May 31, 2022, and 2. Execute one or
more expenditure contracts totaling $28,250 assistance and services for homeless
households, including flexible funding for rental assistance, move-in costs for clients
assisted with rental assistance, hygiene services and supports such as portable
toilets and handwashing stations or shower and laundry services, supplies for
unhoused residents distributed by outreach teams, and/or other COVID-19-related
services for low-income individuals as needed.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,923-N.S.

Contract No. 32100044 Amendment: Renne Public Law Group LLP for Chief
Labor Negotiator Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 32100044 increasing contract amount by $100,000 with
Renne Public Law Group LLP for Chief Labor Negotiator services, for a revised total
contract amount not to exceed $150,000.

Financial Implications: General Fund - $100,000

Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,924—-N.S.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 8

59



Page 34 of 72

Consent Calendar

24. Contract No. 10851 Amendment: Bryce Consulting, Inc. for Professional
Classification Studies, Compensation Surveys and Desk Audits
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 10851 increasing the contract amount by $53,000 with
Bryce Consulting, Inc. for Professional Classification Studies, Compensation Surveys
and Desk Audit services, for a revised total contract amount not to exceed $102,999
through December 31, 2023.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $53,000
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,925-N.S.

25. Contract No. 9649D Amendment: Sloan Sakai, LLP for Chief Labor Negotiator
Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 9649D increasing the contract amount by $215,000 with
Sloan Sakai, LLP for Chief Labor Negotiator services, for a revised total contract
amount not to exceed $665,000.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $215,000
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,926—-N.S.

26. Memorandum Agreement: International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
Local 1245
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt one Resolution approving a new two-year Memorandum
Agreement with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1245
(hereinafter referred to as the “Union”) with a term of June 28, 2020 through June 30,
2022, authorizing the City Manager to execute and implement the terms and
conditions of employment set forth in the Memorandum Agreement.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,927-N.S.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 9

60



Page 35 of 72

Consent Calendar

27.

28.

29.

Adopt Tentative Agreement with SEIU Local 1021 Community Services Unit
And Part-Time Recreation Leaders Association related to the Inclusion of the
Legislative Assistants into the Unit

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the terms and conditions related
to the Legislative Assistant classification’s inclusion into the existing Memorandum of
Understanding (hereafter referred to as “MOU”) with SEIU Local 1021 Community
Services Unit And Part-Time Recreation Leaders Association (hereafter referred to
as the “Union”), and authorizing the City Manager to direct staff to execute and
implement the terms and conditions of employment set forth in the Tentative
Agreement dated May 18, 2021. Also, authorize the City Manager to make edits to
the format and language of the Memorandum of Understanding in alignment with the
Tentative Agreement, and conforming to legal requirements, when the parties
ultimately reach agreement regarding the successor MOU currently under
negotiation with the larger CSU bargaining unit.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,928—-N.S.

Contract: Get IT Tech for a New Electronic Gate System at the Waterfront
From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute a contract with Get IT Tech to provide a new electronic gate
system at the Waterfront in an amount not-to-exceed of $73,458, which includes a
contract amount of $61,215 and a 20% contingency in the amount of $12,243.
Financial Implications: Marina Fund - $73,458

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,929-N.S.

Contract: Community Conservation Centers, Inc. for Processing and Marketing
Services of Recyclable Materials

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
new Contract with Community Conservation Centers, Inc. (CCC) for the sorting and
marketing of residential and commercial curbside collected recyclables, and the
recycling drop-off and buyback centers. The contract term is five (5) years,
commencing July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026, with an option to extend by mutual
agreement for another five (5) years, commencing July 1, 2026 through June 30,
2031, for a total contract amount not to exceed $30,080,793 for a ten year period.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,930-N.S.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 10

61



Page 36 of 72

Consent Calendar

30.

31.

32.

Contract: Ecology Center, Inc. for the Residential Curbside Recycling
Collection

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
new contract with Ecology Center, Inc. for the collection of residential curbside
recycling and delivery of these recyclable materials to Berkeley Recycling for
processing and marketing. The contract term is five (5) years, commencing July 1,
2021 through June 30, 2026, with an option to extend by mutual agreement for
another five (5) years, commencing July 1, 2026 through June 30, 2031, for a total
contract not to exceed amount of $54,518,752 for the ten year period.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,931-N.S.

Contract No. 111976-1 Amendment: HF&H Consultants, LLC for the Study of
the City Providing Commercial Collection Services and Development and
Update of Rate Model

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 111976-1 with HF&H Consultants, LLC to increase the
current contract by $50,000 for a total not to exceed amount of $250,000 and to
extend the contract term to June 30, 2023 for the Development and Update of a Zero
Waste Rate Model.

Financial Implications: Zero Waste Fund - $50,000

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,932—-N.S.

Contract No. 120470-1 Amendment: Fairbanks Scales, Inc. for Preventative
Maintenance and Repairs at the City’s Solid Waste Management and Transfer
Station

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No.120470-1 with Fairbanks Scales, Inc. for preventative
maintenance and repairs on the various scales at the City’s Solid Waste
Management and Transfer Station, extending the contract term by two years to June
30, 2025, and increasing the contract amount by $150,000 for a total contract
amount not to exceed $340,000.

Financial Implications: Zero Waste Fund - $150,000

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,933-N.S.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 11

62



Page 37 of 72

Consent Calendar

33.

Support of Assembly Bills 881, 1454 & 1276

From: Zero Waste Commission

Recommendation:

1. Support Assembly Bill 881 (Plastic Waste Exports) which closes an existing
loophole in California law that allows mixed plastic exports to be counted as recycling
regardless of their ultimate destination, which is often overseas landfills, incinerators,
or waterways, and send a letter expressing the City Council’s support to
Assemblymember Gonzalez.

2. Support Assembly Bill 1454 (Bottle Bill Modernization) which helps keep recycling
centers open and provides much-needed support for new centers to open in areas
where there are not enough centers to serve consumers, including rural and urban
areas, and send a letter expressing the City Council’s support to Assemblymember
Bloom.

3. Support Assembly Bill 1276 (Unnecessary Food Serviceware) which expands
plastic straws upon-request law to include other single-use food accessories, other
food facilities, and third-party delivery platforms — including food that is taken away,
delivered, or served on-site - and send a letter expressing the City Council’s support
to Assembly Member Carrillo.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Heidi Obermeit, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6300

Action: Approved recommendation as amended in Supplemental Communications
Packet #2 by Councilmember Hahn to add Senator Allen and Senator Bates to letter
recipients list.

Council Consent Items

34. Support for AB-279 (Muratsuchi) Intermediate Care Facilities and Skilled

Nursing Facilities: COVID-19
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Councilmember Harrison (Co-
Sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in support of AB-279 (Muratsuchi)
Intermediate Care Facilities and Skilled Nursing Facilities: COVID-19 and send
copies of the Resolution letters supporting AB-279 to the Senate Health Committee,
Senator Skinner, Assemblymembers Muratsuchi, Santiago, Wicks, and Governor
Newsom.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,934-N.S.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 12

63



Page 38 of 72

Council Consent Items

35.

Letter of Opposition Unless Amended on SB 9

From: Councilmember Wengraf (Author), Councilmember Harrison (Author),
Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: Pass a resolution and send a letter to Senators Atkins,
Caballero, Rubio, Wiener and Skinner, Assemblymember Wicks and Governor
Newsom, expressing the Berkeley City Council's concerns about SB 9: Housing
development: Approvals (Atkins) as drafted, and state our opposition to the bill
unless it is amended to address these specific concerns.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160

Action: No action taken.

Vote: Ayes — Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf; Noes — Kesarwani, Robinson, Droste;
Abstain — Taplin, Bartlett, Arreguin.

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

36.

Levy and Collection of Fiscal Year 2022 Street Lighting Assessments

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion adopt two
Resolutions confirming the assessment for the Berkeley Street Lighting Assessments
District No. 1982-1 and the Street Lighting Assessment District 2018, approving the
Engineer’s Reports, and authorizing the levying and collection of assessments in
Fiscal Year 2022.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 1 speaker.

M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to close the public hearing.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Taplin.

Councilmember Taplin absent 9:24 p.m. — 9:27 p.m.

Action: M/S/C (Harrison/Hahn) to adopt Resolution No. 69,935—-N.S. (District No.
1982-1) and Resolution No. 69,936—N.S. (District 2018).
Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 13

64



Page 39 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

37. City Council Comments on the FY 2022 Proposed Biennial Budget

From: City Manager
Recommendation: Provide comments on the FY 2022 Proposed Biennial Budget.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Rama Murty, Budget Office, (510) 981-7000
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to 11:30
p.m.
Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Wengraf.
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to
11:45 p.m.
Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.
Councilmember Droste absent 11:21 p.m. — 11:50 p.m.
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to 11:50
p.m.
Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.
Action: 23 speakers. Presentation made by City Manager. Discussion held.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 14

65



Page 40 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

38.

Referral Response: Path to Permanence: Outdoor Dining and Commerce in the
Public Right-of-Way

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Take the following actions to allow for increased outdoor dining
and commerce to be permitted permanently in the public right-of-way:

1. Adopt first reading of an Ordinance revising BMC Section 14.48.190 Parklets and
BMC Section 16.18 Right of Way Encroachments and Encroachment Permits to
simplify the permitting process for the conversion of temporary parklets and outdoor
commerce installations after a declared local emergency; and

2. Adopt first reading of an Ordinance revising BMC Section 14.48.150 Sidewalk
Seating to expand the areas and scope of activities that may be permitted via a
sidewalk seating permit (a type of engineering permit) after a declared local health
emergency, implement a new fee for the use of parking spaces for commercial
activity; and

3. Adopt a Resolution empowering the City Manager to implement a fee schedule for
structures and activities permitted in the public right of way permitted under BMC
Sections 14.48.190 Parklets, 14.48.150 Sidewalk Seating after the declaration of a
local emergency lapses or is revoked. The resolution extends the current fee waivers
for application, review, and use fees for structures and activities permitted in the
public right of way permitted under BMC Sections 14.48.190 Parklets, 14.48.150
Sidewalk Seating and 13.44 Street Events and Block Parties from June 30, 2021, to
instead coincide with the cessation of the declared local health emergency.
Financial Implications: See Report

Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar.

1. Adopted first reading of Ordinance No. 7,777-N.S. Second reading scheduled for
June 29, 2021.

2. Adopted first reading of Ordinance No. 7,778-N.S. Second reading scheduled for
June 29, 2021.

3. Adopted Resolution No. 69,937—-N.S.

Information Reports

39. City Council Short Term Referral Process — Quarterly Update
From: City Manager
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900
Action: Received and filed.

40. Update on the Implementation of FIP Task Force Recommendations
From: City Manager
Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900
Action: Received and filed.

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 15

66



Page 41 of 72

Information Reports

41. Animal Care Commission 2021/2022 Work Plan
From: Animal Care Commission
Contact: Amelia Funghi, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6600
Action: Received and filed.

42. Planning Commission Work Plan 2021-2022
From: Planning Commission
Contact: Alene Pearson, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7400
Action: Received and filed.

Public Comment — Items Not Listed on the Agenda - 0 speakers.
Adjournment

Adjourned at 11:50 p.m.

| hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct record of the regular session
meeting of June 15, 2021 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Mark Numainville
City Clerk

Communications

Item #15: FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Fire Protection and Emergency Response and
Preparedness (Measure GG)
1. Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Item #35: Letter of Opposition Unless Amended on SB 9
Sally Nelson

Sandra Bernard
Judy Bebelaar
Summer Brenner
Lisa Bruce (2)

Tony Corman

John Harris

. Sara Hartley

10. Laura Klein

11. Thomas Luce

12. Michelle Pasternack

©CoONOORWN

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 16

67



Page 42 of 72

13. Elaine Chan

14. Paul Newacheck
15. Dawn Thomas
16. Barbara Fisher
17. Lynda Caesara
18. Doris Nassiry

19. Greysonne Coomes
20. Pamela Ormsby
21. John Rice

22. Theresa Gensler
23. Tobey Wiebe

24. Janice Schroeder
25. Andrew Reichart
26. Mukta Vie

27. Juliet Lamont

28. Gianna Ranuzzi

Item #37: City Council Comments on the FY 2022 Proposed Biennial Budget
29. Hayley Currier, on behalf of TransForm

Hiring a Police Chief
30. Jack Kurzwell
31.13 similarly-worded form letter

Electrification Plan
32. Phoebe Sorgen

Homelessness and Crime

33. Alex Know, Executive Director of the Telegraph Business Improvement District
34. Rohini Haar

35. Wende Williams Micco

36. Katya Hancock

37. Christopher Riess

Bike Park

38. Steve Matous

39. Tetsu Tokunaga
Zoning

40. Christiine Simon

41. Madeleine Shearer (2)

Certificate of Service
42. Judy Hunt

Town Halls Broadcasts on Facebook

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 17



Page 43 of 72

43. David Lerman (2)

Palestine
44. Russbumper (2)

People’s Park
45. Russbumper

BART Housing

46. Lee Bishop

47. Matthew Lewis

48. Reynaldo Santa Cruz
49. Jason Warriner

50. Marla and Rick Faszholz
51. Carol Hirth

52. Walter Wood

Security Cameras
53. Elana Auerbach

Meeting Procedures
54. Christopher Kohler

Communications
55. Barbara Gilbert

AB 537 and SB 556 Bills
56. Sue Johnson

Minimum Wage — High Rental Cost and Homelessness
57. Christopher La Combe

Mobile Crisis Response Teams
58. John Caner, on behalf of Downtown Berkeley Association

Reimbursement of COVID Expenditures to Measure GG
59. Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Pathway STAIR Center and 746 Grayson Accessibility
60. Homeless Commission

Tulsa Riots of 1921
61. Carol Wyatt

Lack of Park Maintenance
62. Bob Flasher

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES

Page 18

69



Page 44 of 72

Rights of Nature
63. Amy Berlin

Mayor’s Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing
64. Ismail Ramsey, Kitty Calavita, Mansour |d-Deen, Hector Malvido, Nathan Mizell, Jim
Chanin, Elliot Halpern, Moni Law

TOPA (Tenants Opportunity to Purchase Act)
65. Janice Stockwell

66. Sharon Robinson

67. @bhghome.com

68. Foresta Sieck-Hill

69. Daniel Rollingher

70. Debbie Sanderson
71. Akilah Browne

72. Mark Bell

73. Betsy Thagard

74. Tom Athanasiou and Rachel Sommerville
75. llona Clark

76. LZ Zephyr

77. Nancy Pakter

78. Linda Lipscomb

79. Leah Simon-Weisberg
80. Jack Lebeau

81. Brittney Goodman (2)
82. Brian Ort

83. Debra Ballinger

84. Zoe Polk

85. Greg San Martin

86. Rahel Smith

87. Tuan Ngo

88. Michelle Bergtraun, Alex Bergtraun, Piera Segre
89. Joann Sullivan

90. Catherine Stern

91. Alice Armstrong

92. Kathy Snowden

93. Kevin Rose-Williams
94. Francis Mcllveen

95. Wendi Lelke-Wallway
96. Alan Block (2)

97. Cecilia Lunaparra

98. Edward Lau

99. Peter Muzio

100. Taptango

101. Sheila Goldmacher

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 19



102.
103.
104.
105.
106.
107.
108.
109.
110.
111.
112.
113.
114.
115.
116.
117.
118.
119.
120.
121.
122.
123.

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1
Item #35: Letter of Opposition Unless Amended on SB 9

Page 45 of 72

Jeremy Ehrlich

Cameron Hess

Maureen Kildee

Marc Janowitz

Linda Lipscomb

Barbara Henry

Linda Keilch

Mary Lai

Evita Chavez

Kiran Shenoy (2)

Riya Master

Alfred Twu

Sylvia

Gail Mandella

M. Waitling

Ted Stroll

Erin Le

Joaquin Pochat

8 similarly-worded form letters
71 similarly-worded form letters
77 similarly-worded form letters
84 similarly-worded form letters

124. 13 similarly-worded form letters
125. Jane Martin

126. Sheila Goldmacher

127. Walter Dominquez

128. Christopher Kroll

129. Charlene Woodcock

130. Madeleine Shearer (2)

131. Zipporah Collins

132. Donna Mickleson

133. Susie Bluestone

134. Larry Bensky

135. Pat and Vern Phillips

136. Kathryn Freistadt and Fernando Agudelo-Silva
137. Elisabeth Lamoureaux

138. Dona Bretherick

139. Melissa Mangini

140. Janet Byron

141. Phyllis Orrick

142. Jeannette MacMillan

143. Gary Miguel

144. Eric Johnson

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES

Page 20

71



Page 46 of 72

145. Teresa Clarke

146. Cecile Leneman

147. Barbara Thompson

148. Brian Gilbane

149. Sara Hartley

150. Leah and John Rosenthal
151. Jeanne Marguerite Brenna
152. Mary Spence

153. Emily Blossom

154. Peter Jan Honigsberg
155. Sara Hartley

156. Carol Hirth

157. Steven Medbery

158. Ann May

159. Eli Gilad

160. Holly Scheider

161. Berkeley Citizens Action
162. Roger Marquis

163. Carla Woodworth

164. Rebecca Dahlberg

165. Amber Turley

166. Greysonne Coomes

167. Rob Wrenn

168. Patrick Sheahan

169. Mary Lee Noonan

170. Deborah O’Grady

171. Berkeley Neighborhoods Council
172. Patricia Adler

Item #37: City Council Comments on the FY 2022 Proposed Biennial Budget
173. Julia Cato, on behalf of the Berkeley Tenants Union Steering Committee
174. Wendy Alfsen

175. Barbara Gilbert

176. Racial and Criminal Justice Reform Group

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #3: Systems Alignment Proposal
177. Kelly Hammargren

Item #33: Support of Assembly bills 881, 1454 & 1276
178. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Hahn

Item #35: Letter of Opposition Unless Amended on SB 9
179. 10 similarly-worded form letters

180. Michelle Pasternack

181. Robinson Brown (2)

182. Rachel Bradley

183. Lee Ann Weber

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 21
72



Page 47 of 72

184. John Blaustein

185. Martin Schiffenbauer
186. Karen Folger Jacobs
187. Oren Cheyette

188. Eva Herzer

189. M. Haas

190. Steven Frank

191. Elizabeth Powell
192. William Bogert

193. Bernard Marszalek
194. Travis Close

195. Judith Daar

196. Hans Jones

197. Christine Rosen

198. Harald Leventhal
199. Kelly Hammargren
200. Mary Louise Zernicke
201. Ceara Brencic

202. Andrew Johnson
203. Margaretta Mitchell
204. Michael Barnes

205. Cece Littlepage

206. Todd Andrew

207. Jeffrey Kaplan

208. Ben Gerhardstein
209. Anne Boersma

210. Lesley Emmington
211. Linda Olivenbaun
212. Diana Bohn

213. Seymour Warkov
214. Christopher Kroll
215. Friends of Adeline
216. Gary Dahl

217. Mara and Richard Garman
218. Nenelle Bunnin

219. Cindy Shamban

220. Stephanie Manning
221. Lisa Bruce

222. Berkeley Tenants Union
223. Ellen Woods

224. Todd Darling

225. Phil Allen

226. Michael Katz

227. Judy Simmons

228. Madeleine Shearer
229. Theo Posselt
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES

Page 22

73



Page 48 of 72

230. Anthony Bruce

Item #37: City Council Comments on the FY 2022 Proposed Biennial Budget
231. Bob Flasher

232. Russbumper (2)

233. Veena Channon

234. Ray Yep

235. Moni Law

236. Associated Students University of California, Berkeley

237. Julia Chambers

238. Cal Berkeley Democrats

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #3: Systems Alignment Proposal
239. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Hahn
240. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Harrison

Item #25: Contract No. 9649D Amendment: Sloan Sakai, LLP for Chief Labor
Negotiator Services

241. Davie Peattie

242. Luis Cazares

243. Barbara Gilbert (2)

Item #35: Letter of Opposition Unless Amended on SB 9
244, 4 similarly-worded form letters
245. Elaine Magree

246. Lynn Glaser

247. Alfred Twu

248. Ellen Newman

249. Susanne Tilney

250. S. Entwistle

251. Leni Siegel

252. Sue Martin

253. Kerna Trottier

254. Igor Tregub

255. Constance Rivemale
256. Kathleen Giustino
257. Nancy Carleton

258. Anirvan Chatterjee
259. Deborah Kropp

260. Eileen Joyce

261. Miranda Ewell

262. Jeannette McNeill
263. John Holzrichter
264. Anne-Lise

265. David Koo

Item #37: City Council Comments on the FY 2022 Proposed Biennial Budget

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 MINUTES Page 23



266.
267.
268.
269.
270.
271.
272.
273.
274.
275.

Supplemental material, submitted by Budget

Greg Dyer

Diana Bohn

Sam Kang

Carol Lashof
Miranda Ewell
Richard Thomason
Bruce Riordan
Julia Yarak
Richard West

Page 49 of 72

Item #38: Referral Response: Path to Permanence: Outdoor Dining and
Commerce in the Public Right-of-Way

276.
277.

Denny Abrams
Charles Kahn

Tuesday, June 15, 2021

MINUTES

Page 24

75



Page 50 of 72

Attachment 6
MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
SPECIAL MEETING
THURSDAY, JUNE 17, 2021
1:00 P.M.
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR

Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this
closed session meeting of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom
videoconference. Please be advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order,
and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-
19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this
URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83742766668. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen,
then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to
speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free); enter Meeting ID: 837 4276 6668. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized
by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other
rules of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or
videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record,
email council@cityofberkeley.info.

Thursday, June 17, 2021 MINUTES Page 1


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83742766668
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 51 of 72

Attachment 6

Preliminary Matters

Roll Call: 1:03 p.m.

Present: Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin

Absent: Kesarwani, Bartlett, Droste

Councilmember Bartlett present at 1:23 p.m.

Councilmember Kesarwani present at 1:44 p.m.

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only — 6 speakers

CLOSED SESSION:

The City Council will convene in closed session to meet concerning the following:

1.

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS; GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6

Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy City Manager,
David White, Deputy City Manager, LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources Director, Dania
Torres-Wong, Chief Labor Negotiator, Burke Dunphy, Labor Negotiator, Jon Holtzman,
Labor Negotiator, Jen Louis, Interim Chief of Police, Abe Roman, Interim Fire Chief.

Employee Organizations: International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW), Local
1245, SEIU 1021 Community Services and Part-time Recreation Activity Leaders, Berkeley
Fire Fighters Association Local 1227, Berkeley Police Association, Service Employees
International Union, Local 1021 Maintenance and Clerical Chapters, Berkeley Fire Fighters
Association, Local 1227 I.A.F.F./Berkeley Chief Fire Officers Association, Public Employees
Union Local 1, Unrepresented Employees.

Action: No reportable action taken.

OPEN SESSION:

No reportable action taken.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — None; Absent — Kesarwani, Droste.

Adjourned at 4:09 p.m.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the closed session
meeting held on June 17, 2021.

Mark Numainville
City Clerk

Thursday, June 17, 2021 MINUTES Page 2



Page 52 of 72

Attachment 7
MINUTES

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
FRIDAY, JUNE 25, 2021
2:30 P.M.

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DiSTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this
closed session meeting of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom
videoconference. Please be advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order,
and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-
19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this
URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/856365395565. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen,
then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to
speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free); enter Meeting ID: 853 6539 5565. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized
by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other
rules of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or
videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record,
email council@cityofberkeley.info.

Friday, June 25, 2021 MINUTES Page 1


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85365395565
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 53 of 72

Attachment 7

Preliminary Matters

Roll Call:  2:31 p.m.

Present: Hahn, Kesarwani, Robinson, Taplin, Wengraf, Arreguin

Absent: Bartlett, Harrison, Droste

Councilmember Harrison present at 2:36 p.m.

Councilmember Droste present at 2:36 p.m.

Councilmember Bartlett present at 2:47 p.m.

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only — 15 speakers.

CLOSED SESSION:

The City Council will convene in closed session to meet concerning the following:

1.

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS; GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6

Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy City Manager,
David White, Deputy City Manager, LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources Director, Dania
Torres-Wong, Chief Labor Negotiator, Burke Dunphy, Labor Negotiator, Jon Holtzman,
Labor Negotiator, Jen Louis, Interim Chief of Police, Abe Roman, Interim Fire Chief.

Employee Organizations: International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW), Local
1245, SEIU 1021 Community Services and Part-time Recreation Activity Leaders, Berkeley
Fire Fighters Association Local 1227, Berkeley Police Association, Service Employees
International Union, Local 1021 Maintenance and Clerical Chapters, Berkeley Fire Fighters
Association, Local 1227 |.A.F.F./Berkeley Chief Fire Officers Association, Public Employees
Union Local 1, Unrepresented Employees.

Action: No reportable action taken.

OPEN SESSION:

Public Reports of actions taken pursuant to Government Code section 54957.1.

No reportable action taken.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Hahn.

Adjourned at 5:34 p.m.
Councilmember Hahn absent at 5:15 p.m. — 5:34 p.m.

Friday, June 25, 2021 MINUTES Page 2



Page 54 of 72

| hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct record of the special closed
meeting of June 25, 2021 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Rose Thomsen, Deputy City Clerk

Friday, June 25, 2021 MINUTES

Page 3



Page 55 of 72

Attachment 8
MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, June 29, 2021
6:00 PM
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. Please be
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting
location available.

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on
Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at
http.//www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83147858591. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 831 4785 8591. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (610) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 1

81


http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83147858591
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 56 of 72

Attachment 8
Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  6:03 p.m.
Present: Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin

Absent: Taplin
Councilmember Taplin present at 6:09 p.m.

Ceremonial Matters:
1. Recognition of Franklin Bros. Market
2. Adjourned in Memory of Regina Minudri, Former Director of the Berkeley Public Library

3. Adjourned in Memory of Patricia Bulitt, Local Dancer, Artist, and Community Activist

City Auditor Comments:
The City Auditor presented the findings of the Fleet Replacement Fund Audit (Item 25).

City Manager Comments:

The City Manager provided an update on the hiring of the Police Chief and the status of labor
negotiations.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 10 speakers.

Consent Calendar

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: 18 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Robinson) to accept supplemental and revised materials from
the City Manager on Items 29 and 30, and from Mayor Arreguin on Item 29.
Vote: All Ayes.

Action: M/S/C (Taplin/Harrison) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except as

indicated.
Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 2



Page 57 of 72

Consent Calendar

1. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Debt Service on Neighborhood Branch Library
Improvements Project General Obligation Bonds (Measure FF, November 2008
Election)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,765-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate for funding the debt service on the Neighborhood Branch Library
Improvements Project General Obligation Bonds (Measure FF, November 2008
Election) at 0.0059%.

First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,765—-N.S.

2. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Debt Service on 2015 Refunding General Obligation
Bonds (Measures G, S &)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,766-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate funding the debt service on the 2015 consolidation of Measures G,
S and | (General Obligation Bonds - Elections of 1992, 1996 and 2002) at 0.0135%.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,766—N.S.

3. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Affordable Housing General
Obligation Bonds (Measure O, November 2018 Election)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,767-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate funding the debt service on the Affordable Housing General
Obligation Bonds (Measure O, November 2018) at 0.0088%.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,767—N.S.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 3



Page 58 of 72

Consent Calendar

4. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Business License Tax on Large Non-Profits
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,768-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate for Business License Tax on large non-profits at $0.7041 (70.41
cents) per square foot of improvements.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,768—N.S.

5. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Firefighting, Emergency Medical Response and
Wildfire Prevention (Measure FF)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,769-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate for funding Firefighting, Emergency Medical Response and Wildfire
Prevention (Measure FF) in the City of Berkeley at an annual rate of $0.1047 (10.47
cents) per square foot of improvements and $0.15705 (15.705 cents) for the 18-
month period from January 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300, Abe Roman, Fire, (510) 981-
3473
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,769—-N.S.

6. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Maintenance of Parks, City Trees and Landscaping
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,770-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate for funding all improvements for the maintenance of parks, City
trees, and landscaping in the City of Berkeley at $0.1896 (18.96 cents) per square
foot of improvements.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,770-N.S.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 4



Page 59 of 72

Consent Calendar

7. FY 2022 Special Tax Rate: Fund the Provision of Library Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,771-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate for funding the provision of Library Services in the City of Berkeley
at $0.2402 (24.02 cents) per square foot for dwelling units and $0.3632 (36.32 cents)
per square foot for industrial, commercial, and institutional buildings.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300, Tess Mayer, Director of Library
Services, (510) 981-6195
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,771-N.S.

8. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Emergency Services for the Severely Disabled
(Measure E)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,772-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate for funding the provision of emergency services for the disabled at
$0.02378 (2.378 cents) per square foot of improvements.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Tax rate revised to $0.01796. Adopted new first reading of Ordinance No.
7,772-N.S. Second reading scheduled for July 13, 2021.

9. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Infrastructure and Facilities
General Obligation Bonds (Measure T1, November 2016 Election)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,773-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate funding the debt service on the Infrastructure and Facilities
Improvements General Obligation Bonds (Measure T1, November 2016) at 0.0170%.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,773—N.S.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 5



Page 60 of 72

Consent Calendar

10. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Street and Watershed
Improvements General Obligation Bonds (Measure M, November 2012 Election)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,774-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate funding the debt service on the Street and Integrated Watershed
Improvements General Obligation Bonds (Measure M, November 2012) at 0.0077%.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.

Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,774—-N.S.

11. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund Fire Protection and Emergency Response and

Preparedness (Measure GG)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,775-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate for funding Fire Protection and Emergency Response and
Preparedness in the City of Berkeley at the rate of $0.05818 (5.818 cents) per
square foot of improvements for dwelling units and setting the rate for all other
property at $0.08804 (8.804 cents) per square foot of improvements.

First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300, Abe Roman, Interim Fire Chief,
(510) 981-5500

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,775-N.S.

12. FY 2022 Tax Rate: Fund the Provision of Emergency Medical Services

(Paramedic Tax)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,776-N.S. setting the
FY 2022 tax rate for funding the provision of emergency medical services to Berkeley
residents at $0.0412 (4.12 cents) per square foot of improvements.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,776—N.S.
Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 6

86



Page 61 of 72

Consent Calendar

13. Referral Response: Path to Permanence: Outdoor Dining and Commerce in the
Public Right-of-Way
From: City Manager
Recommendation:
1. Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,777-N.S. revising BMC Section
14.48.190 Parklets and BMC Section 16.18 Right of Way Encroachments and
Encroachment Permits to simplify the permitting process for the conversion of
temporary parklets and outdoor commerce installations after a declared local
emergency.
2. Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,778-N.S. revising BMC Section
14.48.150 Sidewalk Seating to expand the areas and scope of activities that may be
permitted via a sidewalk seating permit (a type of engineering permit) after a
declared local health emergency, implement a new fee for the use of parking spaces
for commercial activity.
First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — Harrison, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See Report
Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,777-N.S. and Ordinance No.
7,778-N.S.

14. Minutes for Approval
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the council meetings of May 11, 2021
(regular), May 13, 2021 (closed), May 18, 2021 (closed and special), May 20, 2021
(closed) and May 25, 2021 (closed and regular).
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900
Action: Approved the minutes as submitted.

15. Contract No. 099148-1 Amendment: Code Publishing Company for Berkeley
Municipal Code Publishing Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 099148-1 (FUND$ Contract No. 9541A) with Code Publishing Company
for online and printed code publishing services for the Berkeley Municipal Code,
increasing the contract by $40,000 for a total not to exceed amount of $139,000, and
extending the contract to December 21, 2024.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $40,000
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,938-N.S.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 7

87



Page 62 of 72

Consent Calendar

16.

17.

18.

19.

Appointment of Interim Director of Police Accountability
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution confirming the appointment of Katherine J.
Lee to be Interim Director of Police Accountability and approving an employment
contract to be effective July 1, 2021 at an annual salary of $182,260.65.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Dave White, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,939-N.S.
Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on June 29, 2021
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the
requesting department or division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold
will be returned to Council for final approval.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Approved recommendation.
Appropriations Limit for FY 2022
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution establishing the appropriations limit at
$311,493,168 for FY 2022 pursuant to Article XIlIB of the Constitution of the State of
California based on the calculations for the appropriations limit.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,940-N.S.
FY 2022 Revision to the Investment Policy and Designation of Investment
Authority
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the changes to the Investment
Policy and to confirm the delegation of investment authority to the Director of
Finance to make investments for FY 2022.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,941-N.S.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 8

88



Page 63 of 72

Consent Calendar

20.

21.

22,

Request for Proposal for Project Homekey

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing City Manager to: 1. Release a
Request for Proposals (RFP) for a Homekey Project; and 2. Allocate HOME-ARP
funding and General Fund collected pursuant to Measure P Measure P, and/or other
funding source, to support a future Homekey project.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,942—N.S.

Fiscal Year 2022 Community Development Block Grant Public Facility
Improvement Program Funds for the West Berkeley Service Center

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to: 1. Allocate all available Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 Community Development
Block Grant funding (estimated at $1,145,251) for one public facility improvement
project at the City’s West Berkeley Service Center; and 2. Allocate any additional FY
2021 CDBG program income to the West Berkeley Service Center renovation
project, if needed, and in accordance with Resolution 69,830 —N.S.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,943—-N.S.

Contract No. 31900254 Amendment: Easy Does It to Provide Emergency
Disability Services and Audit Recommendation Update for Fiscal Year 2022-
2023

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving an amendment to Contract No.
31900254 to continue funding for Easy Does It (EDI) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 and
FY 2023 in the amount of $1,432,011 using Measure E funds to provide emergency
disability services, as long as EDI continues to demonstrate progress towards
resolving the audit findings.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,944—N.S.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 9

89



Page 64 of 72

Consent Calendar

23. Fiscal Year 2022 and Fiscal Year 2023 Housing Retention Program Contract
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to: 1. Allocate the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 and FY 2023 City of Berkeley
Housing Retention Program (HRP) contract to the Eviction Defense Center (EDC),
which operates the COVID-19 HRP; and 2. Amend Contract No. 32100023 with EDC
to use General Fund U1 HRP funds for utility arrears or other expenses that would
enable applicants to retain or obtain housing and/or employment.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,945-N.S.

24. Adopt a Resolution to Upgrade Residential and Commercial Customers to East
Bay Community Energy (EBCE) Renewable 100 Plan
From: Energy Commission
Recommendation: Adopt a time-sensitive Resolution to upgrade all current and new
Berkeley residential and commercial customer accounts from Bright Choice - 86%
Green House Gas (GHG)-free including substantial hydroelectric and nuclear - to
Renewable 100 (100% renewable energy from California solar and wind) for their
default electricity service plan, excluding residential customers in low-income
assistance programs. The Berkeley Energy Commission (Commission) recommends
that the City Council adopt the resolution now to meet East Bay Community Energy’s
(EBCE) schedule of requiring an extensive lead time needed for the transition to be
effective April 1, 2022 for residential customers and October 1, 2022 for commercial
customers.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Billi Romain, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,946—N.S.

25. Berkeley’s Fleet Replacement: Fund Short by Millions
From: Auditor
Recommendation: We recommend City Council request that the City Manager
report back by the first City Council meeting in January 2022, and every six months
thereafter, regarding the status of our audit recommendations until reported fully
implemented by the Public Works Department.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jenny Wong, Auditor, (510) 981-6750
Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Communications
Packet #2 from City Auditor.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 10

90



Page 65 of 72

Council Consent Items

26.

27.

Resolution Supporting Freedom for Nasrin Sotoudeh

From: Councilmember Taplin (Author)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in Support of Freedom for Nasrin Sotoudeh
and All Other Political Prisoners and Prisoners of Conscience in the Islamic Republic
of Iran.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 69,947—-N.S.

Resolution Urging the Metropolitan Transportation Commission to Program
and Prioritize American Rescue Plan Act Funds

From: Councilmember Harrison (Author)

Recommendation:

1. Adopt a resolution directing the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) to
program $1.67 billion in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds immediately and
prioritize them for immediate use to support Bay Area Transit riders and an equitable
pandemic recovery.

2. Send a copy of the Resolution and an accompanying letter to the MTC
Commissioners.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140

Action: Councilmembers Hahn and Taplin added as co-sponsors. 1. Adopted
Resolution No. 69,948-N.S.; and 2. Approved recommendation as revised in
Supplemental Communications Packet #1.

Action Calendar — Old Business

28.

Police Accountability Board — Appointment of Members (Continued from June 1,
2021)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution appointing nine members to the Police
Accountability Board nominated by the Mayor and City Councilmembers, and
appointing one alternate member. (Note: Appointment of the alternate member is
continued from the June 1, 2021 meeting.)
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900
Action: ltem 28 continued to July 13, 2021.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 11

91



Page 66 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

29. FY 2022 Budget Adoption
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution:
1. Adopting the FY 2022 Budget as contained in the City Manager’'s FY 2022
Proposed Budget that includes the Proposed Capital Budget, presented to Council
on May 25, 2021, and as amended by subsequent Council action.
2. Authorizing the City Manager to provide applicable advances to selected
community agencies receiving City funds in FY 2022, as reflected in Attachment 2 to
the report, and as amended by subsequent Council action.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Rama Murty, Budget Office, (5610) 981-7000
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to adopt temporary rule to allow one minute per
speaker.
Vote: All Ayes.
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to
11:15 p.m.
Vote: All Ayes.
Action: 76 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to:
1. Adopt Resolution No. 69,949-N.S. adopting the FY 2022 Budget as contained in
the City Manager’'s FY 2022 Proposed Budget that includes the Proposed Capital
Budget, presented to Council on May 25, 2021, and as amended by subsequent
Council action including revised allocations submitted by the Mayor and the City
Manager based on the recommendations of the Budget & Finance Committee,
including $300,000 for EV Charging in the June budget and $850,000 deferred to
November.
2. Authorizing the City Manager to provide applicable advances to selected
community agencies receiving City funds in FY 2022, as reflected in Attachment 2 to
the report, and as amended by subsequent Council action.
Vote: All Ayes.

30. FY 2022 Annual Appropriations Ordinance
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance adopting the FY 2022
Annual Appropriations Ordinance (AAO) in the amount of $668,825,973 (gross
appropriations) and $581,303,702 (net appropriations).
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Rama Murty, Budget Office, (510) 981-7000
Action: 0 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Droste) to adopt first reading of Ordinance No.
7,779-N.S as revised in Supplemental Communications Packet #3 from the Budget
Office for appropriations in the amount of $673,601,287 (gross appropriations) and
$552,265,708 (net appropriations). Second reading scheduled for July 13, 2021.
Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 12

92



Page 67 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

31.

Borrowing of Funds and the Sale and Issuance of FY 2021-22 Tax and Revenue
Anticipation Notes

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the borrowing of $45,000,000 and
the sale and issuance of Fiscal Year 2021-22 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: 0 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to adopt Resolution No. 69,950—-N.S.

Vote: All Ayes.

Information Reports

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Voluntary Time Off Program for FY 2022

From: City Manager

Contact: Rama Murty, Budget Office, (510) 981-7000
Action: Received and filed.

FY 2022 Civic Arts Grant Awards

From: Civic Arts Commission

Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530
Action: Received and filed.

FY 2021 Second Quarter Investment Report: Ended December 31, 2020
From: City Manager

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Received and filed.

FY 2021 Third Quarter Investment Report: Ended March 31, 2021
From: City Manager

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Received and filed.

2021 Commission on Aging Work Plan

From: Commission on Aging

Contact: Richard Castrillon, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5190
Action: Received and filed.

Public Comment — Iltems Not Listed on the Agenda - 5 speakers.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: All Ayes.

Adjourned at 11:07 p.m.

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 13

93



Page 68 of 72

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the regular session meeting

held on June 29, 2021.

Mark Numainville
City Clerk

Communications

Item #26: Resolution Supporting Freedom for Nasrin Sotoudeh
Nazila Tobaei

Riya Master

Kianna Imani

Anonymous

hwh =

Berkeley Marina (BMASP) and Pier/Ferry Project from Marina Users
5. Camille Antinori and David Fielder, on behalf of the marina users

Tenants Opportunity to Purchase Act (TOPA)
6. Andrew Godar
7. Carol Wyatt

8. Sam Weng

9. Julie Saxe-Taller
10. Timothy Kim
11.Peter Schiller
12.Hayley Currier
13.Bethany Kaylor
14.Mary Telling

15. Cheryl Davila (2)
16.Alex Werth
17.Ann Harvey

Climate Equity Action

18.Cate Leger, Berkeley Energy Commission
19. Ariella Granett

20.Lily Cohen

21.Janet Stromberg

22.Natalie Nussbaum

23.Mary Ann Furday

24 Margot Smith

25.Christie Keith

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES

Page 14

94



Page 69 of 72

26.Susan Kirsch
27.Andrea Mullarkey

Electrification
28.Janet Stromberg

Berkeley Housing Authority (BHA) Negative Experiences
29.BHA staff

Grizzly Peak Problems
30.Joshua Bloom (2)

BART Housing
31.The-Anh Cao
32.Reynaldo Santa Cruz

Zoning Reform on Property Values
33.Margot Smith

Housing
34.Madeleine Shearer (2)

Affordable Housing Overlay Support
35.Planning Students Association of Cal

People’s Park
36. Russbumper

Outdoor Shelter and Enforce No Sidewalk Camping
37.Claudia Eyzaguirre

Evictions
38.Cadance Malone

Measure FF: Update from the Fire Department

39.David Peattie, on behalf of the Berkeley Disaster Prep Neighborhood Network

Library Issues
40.Barbara Gilbert

Parking Meters
41.Barbara Gilbert

Berkeley’s New Police Chief
42.Friends of Adeline

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES

Page 15

95



Page 70 of 72

Employment Development Department
43.Rodak Goa

Skateboard Park
44 . Alex Gomez-Pendleton

Daniel Hale Whistleblower
45. Russbumper

Speech to VTA
46.Blair Beekman

Live Music Is Back in Downtown Berkeley Plaza
47.Downtown Berkeley Association

Traffic Control Measures at Cragmont Elementary School
48.Edward and Noelle Long

CalPERS Response Letter to Resolution No. 69,829-N.S. of 4/27/2021
49. California Public Employees’ Retirement System

URL’s Only
50.Vivian Warkentin (2)
51.Russbumper (4)

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

Item #26: Resolution Supporting Freedom for Nasrin Sotoudeh
52.John Lang
53.Mohammad Samini
54.Sepideh Asgari
55.Bijan Jorjani

56.Bev Hoffman

57.Cyrus Khojasteh
58.Kaveh Niazi

59. Esfandiar Imani

60. Amin Miraftab
61.Parisa Imani
62.Dorothy Lubliner
63.Mansour and Fay Niazi
64.Linda Durston

65. Taylor Young
66.Austin Le

67.Partow Imani

Item #27: Resolution Urging the Metropolitan Transportation Commission to
Program and Prioritize American Rescue Plan Act Funds
68. Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Harrison

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 16

96



Page 71 of 72

Item #29: FY 2022 Budget Adoption
69. Erika Shore

70.Diana Bohn

71.Anna Tseselsky

72.Russbumper

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #24: Adopt a Resolution to Upgrade Residential and Commercial Customers
to East Bay Community Energy (EBCE) Renewable 100 Plan

73.Jessica Tover, on behalf of East Bay Clean Power Alliance

74.350 East Bay — Berkeley Hub

Item #25: Berkeley’s Fleet Replacement: Fund Short by Millions
75. Supplemental materials, submitted by City Auditor

Item #26: Resolution Supporting Freedom for Nasrin Sotoudeh
76.Nora Bayani

77.Gretchen Lemke-Santangelo

78. Anthony Santagelo

79.Parrirokh Abedi

80. Allison Murray

Item #29: FY 2022 Budget Adoption

81.Supplemental material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin
82.Berkeley Friends Meeting of the Religious Society of Friends
83.Maria Yates

84.Jan Ruchlis

85.Romeo Channer

86.Emma Gobler

87.Shellie Wharton

88.Rahmat Balogun

89. Civic Arts Commission

90. Eric Friedman

91.Danielle Sciocchetti

92.Sue Campbell

93.David Bohn

94.Naomi Rubalcava

95. Alion Lafferty

96. 24 similarly-worded form letters

Adopt a Resolution Updating Guidelines and Procedures for City Council Office
Budget Expenditure Accounts and Refer to the Budget Process Pursuant to
Resolution No. 69,928-N.S.

97.Urgent item, submitted by Councilmember Harrison

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #24: Adopt a Resolution to Upgrade Residential and Commercial Customers
to East Bay Community Energy (EBCE) Renewable 100 Plan

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES Page 17
97



Page 72 of 72

98.Igor Tregub, on behalf of the Sierra Club
99. David McCoard
100. Blair Beekman

Item #26: Resolution Supporting Freedom for Nasrin Sotoudeh
101. Grace Becker
102. Jaleh Niazi

Item #29: FY 2022 Budget Adoption

103. Revised material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin
104. Revised material, submitted by Budget
105. Shellie Wharton

106. Tetsu Tokunaga

107. Igor Tregub, on behalf of the Sierra Club
108. Abbey Kletz

109. outlook@

110. Rebecca Franke

111. Julia Cato

112. Sheila Jordan

113. Carol Denney

114. Tony Sirna

115. Holly Mines

116. Geraldine Clifford

117. Juli Dickey

118. Alice Freda

119. Kaela Plank

120. Elyce Klein

121.  Phil Allen

122. Donald Rothberg

123. David Ginsburg

124. dfgassman@

125. Tom Graly

126. Elizabeth Grubb

127. Ana Vasudeo

128. Blair Beekman

Item #30: FY 2022 Annual Appropriations Ordinance
129. Revised material, submitted by Budget

Tuesday, June 29, 2021 MINUTES

Page 18

98



Page 1 of 5 05

( CITY °F

-

o
o
7
)
AL

=

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted By: Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Subject: Voting Delegates — League of California Cities Annual Conference

RECOMMENDATION

Designate, by motion, a voting delegate and alternate for the business meeting of the
Annual League of California Cities conference to be held on Friday, September 24,
2021, in Sacramento.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Conference fees of approximately $550 for the full conference or $325 for a one-day
pass.

BACKGROUND

The League laws allow for any official of a member city, with the approval of the city
council, to be designated the city’s voting delegate or alternate at the annual business
meeting.

As designated in Resolution No. 69,645-N.S. Councilmember Hahn is the City’s
representative for the League and Councilmember Taplin is the alternate.

This year’s conference is being held in Sacramento from Wednesday, September 22
through Friday, September 24, 2021. Each city is allowed to cast one vote on matters
pertaining to League policy. The voting delegate or alternate must be registered for the
conference.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects or climate impacts associated with the
recommendation of this report.

CONTACT PERSON
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900

Attachments
1: Voting Delegate Information

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 99
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
sbunting
Typewritten Text
05


Page 2 of 5 Attachment 1

Council Action Advised by August 31, 2021

June 16, 2021
TO: City Managers and City Clerks

RE: DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES
League of California Cities Annual Conference & Expo — September 22-24, 2021

Cal Cities 2021 Annual Conference & Expo is scheduled for September 22-24, 2021 in
Sacramento. An important part of the Annual Conference is the Annual Business Meeting (during
General Assembly) on Friday, September 24. At this meeting, Cal Cities membership considers
and acts on resolutions that establish Cal Cities policy.

In order to vote at the Annual Business Meeting, your city council must designate a voting
delegate. Your city may also appoint up to two alternate voting delegates, one of whom may
vote if the designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that capacity.

Please complete the attached Voting Delegate form and return it to Cal Cities office
no later than Wednesday, September 15. This will allow us time to establish voting
delegate/alternate records prior to the conference.

Please note: Our number one priority will continue to be the health and safety of participants.
We are working closely with the Sacramento Convention Center to ensure that important
protocols and cleaning procedures continue, and if necessary, are strengthened. Attendees can
anticipate updates as the conference approaches.

e Action by Council Required. Consistent with Cal Cities bylaws, a city’s voting
delegate and up to two alternates must be designated by the city council. When
completing the attached Voting Delegate form, please attach either a copy of the council
resolution that reflects the council action taken, or have your city clerk or mayor sign the
form affirming that the names provided are those selected by the city council. Please
note that designating the voting delegate and alternates must be done by city council
action and cannot be accomplished by individual action of the mayor or city manager
alone.

¢ Conference Registration Required. The voting delegate and alternates must be
registered to attend the conference. They need not register for the entire conference;
they may register for Friday only. Conference registration will open mid-June at
www.cacities.org. In order to cast a vote, at least one voter must be present at the
Business Meeting and in possession of the voting delegate card. Voting delegates and
alternates need to pick up their conference badges before signing in and picking up the
voting delegate card at the Voting Delegate Desk. This will enable them to receive the
special sticker on their name badges that will admit them into the voting area during the
Business Meeting.

o Transferring Voting Card to Non-Designated Individuals Not Allowed. The voting
delegate card may be transferred freely between the voting delegate and alternates, but

1400 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814-3916 | www.cacities.org | (916) 658-8200



http://www.cacities.org/
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1


Page 3 of 5

only between the voting delegate and alternates. If the voting delegate and alternates
find themselves unable to attend the Business Meeting, they may not transfer the voting
card to another city official.

¢ Seating Protocol during General Assembly. Atthe Business Meeting, individuals with
the voting card will sit in a separate area. Admission to this area will be limited to those
individuals with a special sticker on their name badge identifying them as a voting delegate
or alternate. If the voting delegate and alternates wish to sit together, they must sign in at
the Voting Delegate Desk and obtain the special sticker on their badges.

The Voting Delegate Desk, located in the conference registration area of the Sacramento
Convention Center, will be open at the following times: Wednesday, September 22, 8:00 a.m. —
6:00 p.m.; Thursday, September 23, 7:00 a.m. — 4:00 p.m.; and Friday, September 24, 7:30 a.m.—
11:30 a.m. The Voting Delegate Desk will also be open at the Business Meeting on Friday, but
will be closed during roll calls and voting.

The voting procedures that will be used at the conference are attached to this memo. Please
share these procedures and this memo with your council and especially with the individuals that
your council designates as your city’s voting delegate and alternates.

Once again, thank you for completing the voting delegate and alternate form and returning it to
the League’s office by Wednesday, September 15. If you have questions, please call Darla
Yacub at (916) 658-8254.

Attachments:
¢ Annual Conference Voting Procedures
¢ Voting Delegate/Alternate Form

1400 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814-3916 | www.cacities.org | (916) 658-8200




Page 4 of 5

CITY.

2021 ANNUAL CONFERENCE
VOTING DELEGATE/ALTERNATE FORM

Please complete this form and return it to Cal Cities office by Wednesday, September 15, 2021.
Forms not sent by this deadline may be submitted to the Voting Delegate Desk located in the
Annual Conference Registration Area. Your city council may designate one voting delegate and up
to two alternates.

To vote at the Annual Business Meeting (General Assembly), voting delegates and alternates must be
designated by your city council. Please attach the council resolution as proof of designation. As an alternative,
the Mayor or City Clerk may sign this form, affirming that the designation reflects the action taken by the
council.

Please note: Voting delegates and alternates will be seated in a separate area at the Annual Business Meeting.
Admission to this designated area will be limited to individuals (voting delegates and alternates) who are
identified with a special sticker on their conference badge. This sticker can be obtained only at the Voting
Delegate Desk.

1. VOTING DELEGATE

Name:

Title:

2. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE 3. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE
Name: Name:

Title: Title:

PLEASE ATTACH COUNCIL RESOLUTION DESIGNATING VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATES OR

ATTEST: | affirm that the information provided reflects action by the city council to designate the
voting delegate and alternate(s).

Name: Email
Mayor or City Clerk Date Phone
(circle one) (signature)

Please complete and return by Wednesday, September 15, 2021 to:
Darla Yacub, Assistant to the Administrative Services Director

E-mail: dyacub@cacities.org

Phone: (916) 658-8254

1400 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814-3916 | www.cacities.org | (916) 658-8200



Page 5 of 5

Annual Conference Voting Procedures

1. One City One Vote. Each member city has a right to cast one vote on matters pertaining to
Cal Cities policy.

2. Designating a City Voting Representative. Prior to the Annual Conference, each city
council may designate a voting delegate and up to two alternates; these individuals are
identified on the Voting Delegate Form provided to the Cal Cities Credentials Committee.

3. Registering with the Credentials Committee. The voting delegate, or alternates, may
pick up the city's voting card at the Voting Delegate Desk in the conference registration
area. Voting delegates and alternates must sign in at the Voting Delegate Desk. Here they
will receive a special sticker on their name badge and thus be admitted to the voting area at
the Business Meeting.

4. Signing Initiated Resolution Petitions. Only those individuals who are voting delegates
(or alternates), and who have picked up their city’s voting card by providing a signature to
the Credentials Committee at the Voting Delegate Desk, may sign petitions to initiate a
resolution.

5. Voting. To cast the city's vote, a city official must have in their possession the city's voting
card and be registered with the Credentials Committee. The voting card may be transferred
freely between the voting delegate and alternates, but may not be transferred to another city
official who is neither a voting delegate or alternate.

6. Voting Area at Business Meeting. At the Business Meeting, individuals with a voting card
will sit in a designated area. Admission will be limited to those individuals with a special
sticker on their name badge identifying them as a voting delegate or alternate.

7. Resolving Disputes. In case of dispute, the Credentials Committee will determine the
validity of signatures on petitioned resolutions and the right of a city official to vote at the
Business Meeting.

1400 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814-3916 | www.cacities.org | (916) 658-8200




104



Page 1 of 3

06

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Abraham Roman, Interim Fire Chief

Subject: Contract: Citygate for Fire Department Standards of Coverage Study

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any
amendments with Citygate Associates, LLC (Contractor) to provide a Standards of
Response Coverage study for the Berkeley Fire Department (Department) from August
1, 2021 to September 30, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $125,000 with an option to
extend for an additional two years, for a total contract amount not to exceed $200,000.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

These services will be funded by FY 2022 Measure FF for $125,000 with an option to
extend for an additional two years, for a total contract amount not to exceed $200,000.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The Fire Department requires a Standards of Response Coverage (SOC) study that will
include but is not limited to, an evaluation of Berkeley’s community (fire, ems and
rescue) risk profile, optimum fire station locations, crew/apparatus staffing and
deployment, employee work schedules, and appropriate response time standards.

The SOC study is an essential tool to help the department guide planning and decision
making as it embarks on implementing a department re-design over the next five+
years. This will be the first Standards of Coverage study performed for the City of
Berkeley.

BACKGROUND

Berkeley voters approved Measure FF in November of 2020. This measure,
supplemented by internal budget neutral plans, will result in a substantial change and

105


sbunting
Typewritten Text
06


Page 2 of 3

Contract: Citygate for Fire Department Consent Calendar
Standards of Coverage Study July 27, 2021

improvement to the way that fire, emergency medical, rescue, disaster preparedness
and fire prevention services are delivered to the community.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

Services delivered by the fire Department will be optimized over the next five years to
ensure that deployed resources meet the community risk profile, which includes the
changing climate and the impacts to wildfire in our urban interface.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

While the Department has many skilled and experienced employees, it needs external
assistance and expertise to conduct a study of this magnitude.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Abraham Roman, Interim Fire Chief, (510) 981-3473

Attachments:
1: Resolution

106



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ## ###-N.S.
Contract: Citygate for Fire Department Standards of Coverage Study

WHEREAS, Berkeley voters approved Measure FF in November of 2020; and

WHEREAS, this measure, supplemented by internal budget neutral plans will result in a
substantial change and improvement to the way that fire, emergency medical, rescue,
disaster preparedness and fire prevention services are delivered to the community, and

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Fire Department requires external expert assistance to
conduct a study of this magnitude; and

WHEREAS, the completed study will guide the changes and improvements to services
provided to the Community by the Berkeley Fire Department.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to execute a contract and any amendments with Citygate
Associates, LLC (Contractor) to provide the following services for the Berkeley Fire
Department (Department) from August 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022, in an amount
not to exceed $125,000 with an option to extend for an additional two years, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $200,000 with Measure FF funds.

A Standards of Response Coverage (SOC) study, to include but not limited to an
evaluation of Berkeley’s community (fire, ems and rescue) risk profile, optimum fire
station locations, crew/apparatus staffing and deployment, employee work schedules,
and appropriate response time standards

107



108



Page 1 of 3

07

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing and Community Services

Subject: Contract: East Bay Sanctuary Covenant — Trauma Support Services for
Latinx/Latinas/Latinos

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to execute and amend
a contract with the East Bay Sanctuary Covenant, funded through State of California
Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) monies, for
Trauma Support Services for Latinx/Latinas/Latinos, for an initial contract not to exceed
$100,000 through June 30, 2022.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funds for the Scope of Work in the amount of $100,000 will be provided from the State
of California Mental Health Services Act. The funding is available in the Fiscal Year
2022 budget.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

On January 19, 2021 City Council approved that the Mental Health Division issue a
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Prevention and
Early Intervention (PEI) funded trauma support services for the Latinx/Latina/Latino
population. In March 2021, per Bid Specification 21-11433-C, an RFP was released.
Following proposal review and rating from a panel of reviewers including a community
member, the East Bay Sanctuary Covenant was selected as the vendor to implement
these services.

BACKGROUND

The State of California provides MHSA funding for local mental health services and
supports. One of the annually recurring MHSA funding components is Prevention and
Early Intervention (PEI). MHSA PEI funds are to be utilized on strategies to recognize
the early signs of mental iliness; to improve early access to services and programs,
including the reduction of stigma and discrimination; and for strategies to prevent mental
illness from becoming severe and disabling.

In order to utilize MHSA funds, stakeholder-informed Three Year Plans and Annual
Updates that outline how funds will be utilized are required to be developed and locally

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 109
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
07


Page 2 of 3

Contract: East Bay Sanctuary Covenant CONSENT CALENDAR
Trauma Support Services for Latinx/Latinas/Latinos July 27, 2021

approved. Since the very first PEI plan, a portion of MHSA PEI funds have been utilized
to provide Trauma Support Services to unserved, underserved and inappropriately
served populations through community partners. Latinx/Latinas/Latinos is one of the
underserved populations that has received Trauma Support Services through these
funds. MHSA PEI funds were previously allocated to the Albany Unified School District
in the amount of $64,092 to provide Trauma Support Services for Latino/Latina/Latinx
children, youth, and adults, and for African American and Asian Pacific Islander children
and youth. However, beginning in FY21, delivery of MHSA services in the City of Albany
transitioned from City of Berkeley to Alameda County Behavioral Health Care.

On December 1, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,620-N.S., the Berkeley City Council
approved the MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan,
which continued the allocation of PEI funds for Trauma Support Services for the
Latino/Latina/Latinx population. In response to public input received through MHSA
Community Program Planning around the need for increased mental health supports for
this population, the Three-Year Plan increased the annual funding to $100,000 for these
services.

An RFP process for Trauma Support Services for the Latino/Latina/Latinx population
was included in the approved Three-Year Plan. On January 19, 2021, City Council
approved that the Mental Health Division release an RFP and the RFP was released in
March 2021 per Bid Specification 21-11433-C. Following proposal review and rating
from a panel of reviewers, which included a community member, East Bay Sanctuary
Covenant was selected as the vendor to implement these services.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or opportunities
associated with the subject of this project.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The execution of this contract will ensure that Trauma Support Services for the
Latinx/Latina/Latino population can be provided in the community.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
In order for MHSA-funded mental health services and supports in the community to
continue, no other alternative actions were considered.

CONTACT PERSON
Karen Klatt, Community Services Specialist Ill, HHCS, (510) 981-7644

Attachments:1: Resolution

Page 2

110



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT: EAST BAY SANCTUARY COVENANT FOR TRAUMA SUPPORT
SERVICES FOR LATINX/LATINAS/LATINOS

WHEREAS, the City’s Department of Health, Housing and Community Services, Mental
Health Division, currently receives Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Prevention and
Early Intervention (PEI) funds on an annual basis to improve early access to services and
programs, including the reduction of stigma and discrimination, and for strategies to
prevent mental iliness from becoming severe and disabling; and

WHEREAS, in order to utilize MHSA funds, stakeholder informed Three Year Plans and
Annual Updates that outline how funds will be utilized are required to be developed and
locally approved; and

WHEREAS, the Mental Health Division works in partnership with community-based
agencies in the provision of such services and supports; and

WHEREAS, since the initial MHSA PEI Plan, funds have been allocated for Trauma
Support Services for the Latinx/Latina/Latino population; and

WHEREAS, these Trauma Support Services for Latinx/Latinas/Latinos have been
implemented by the same community partner over a period of time; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,620-N.S., the City Council
approved the MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan, which
continued and increased the allocation of PEI funds for Trauma Support Services for the
Latinx/Latina/Latino population; and

WHEREAS, per the City Council approved MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program
and Expenditure Plan a Request for Proposal (RFP) process was included to be executed
for these Trauma Support Services for Latinx/Latinas/Latinos, which have been provided
by the same community partner over a period of time; and

WHEREAS, in March 2021 per Bid Specification number 21-11433-C, an RFP was issued
and East Bay Covenant Sanctuary submitted a proposal and was determined to be the
chosen bidder; and

WHEREAS, funds for the Scope of Work in the amount of $100,000 are available in the
FY22 budget in the Mental Health Services Act Fund.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to execute and amend a Contract with
East Bay Sanctuary Covenant to provide Trauma Support Services for
Latinx/Latinas/Latinos, for an amount not to exceed $100,000 through June 30, 2022. A
record signature copy of said contract and any amendments to be on file in the Office of
the City Clerk.

111



112



Page 1 of 5

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing and Community Services

Subject: Contract No. 052129-1 Amendment: Pacific Center for Human Growth

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to execute an
amendment for Contract No. 052129-1 with the Pacific Center for Human Growth for
trauma support services for the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender,
Queer/Questioning, Intersex, Agender, Plus (LGBTQIA+) population, to increase the
amount by $100,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $415,150, and to extend
the contract through June 30, 2022.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funds for the Scope of Work in the amount of $100,000 will be provided from the State
of California Mental Health Services Act (Fund 315). The funding is available in the
Fiscal Year 2022 budget.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The Pacific Center for Human Growth currently provides Trauma Support Services for
the LGBTQIA+ population, through Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Prevention and
Early Intervention (PEI) funds. On January 19, 2021 the City Council approved that the
Mental Health Division issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for these services for the
LGBTQIA+ population. In March 2021, per Bid Specification 21-11430-C, an RFP was
released. Following proposal review and rating from a panel of reviewers, which
included a community member, the Pacific Center for Human Growth was selected as
the vendor to continue implementing these services in Berkeley.

BACKGROUND

The State of California provides MHSA funding for local mental health services and
supports. One of the annually recurring MHSA funding components is Prevention and
Early Intervention (PEI). MHSA PEI funds are to be utilized on strategies to recognize
the early signs of mental illness; to improve early access to services and programs,
including the reduction of stigma and discrimination; and for strategies to prevent mental
illness from becoming severe and disabling.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

08

113


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
08


Page 2 of 5

Contract 052129-1 Amendment: CONSENT CALENDAR
Pacific Center for Human Growth July 27, 2021

In order to utilize MHSA funds, stakeholder-informed Three Year Plans and Annual
Updates that outline how funds will be utilized are required to be developed and locally
approved. Since the very first PEI plan, a portion of MHSA PEI funds have been utilized
to provide Trauma Support Services to unserved, underserved, and inappropriately
served populations through community partners. LGBTQIA+ is one of the underserved
populations that has received Trauma Support Services through these funds.

On December 1, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,620-N.S., the City Council approved the
MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan, which continued the
allocation of PEI funds for Trauma Support Services for the LGBTQIA+ population. In
response to public input received through MHSA Community Program Planning around
the need for increased mental health supports for the LGBTQIA+ population, the Three
Year Plan provided an increase in annual funding from $32,046 to $100,000 for these
services.

A Request for Proposal (RFP) process for these Trauma Support Services for the
LGBTQIA+ population was also included in the approved Three-Year Plan. On January
19, 2021 City Council approved that the Mental Health Division issue a Request for
Proposal (RFP) and in March 2021, per Bid Specification 21-11430-C, an RFP was
released. Following proposal review and rating from a panel of reviewers, which
included a community member, the Pacific Center for Human Growth was the vendor
selected to continue implementing these services in Berkeley.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability
opportunities associated with the subject of this project.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The execution of this amendment will ensure Trauma Support Services for the
LGBTQIA+ population are able to continue to be provided in the community.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
In order for MHSA funded mental health services and supports in the community to
continue, no other alternative actions were considered.

CONTACT PERSON
Karen Klatt, Community Services Specialist Ill, HHCS, (510) 981-7644

Attachments:
1. Resolution

Page 2

114



Page 3 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
CONTRACT NO. 052129-1 AMENDMENT: PACIFIC CENTER FOR HUMAN GROWTH

WHEREAS, the City’s Department of Health, Housing & Community Services, Mental
Health Division, currently receives Mental Health Services Act Prevention and Early
Intervention funds on an annual basis to provide services and supports to children, youth,
transition age youth, adults, and older adults; and

WHEREAS, the Mental Health Division works in partnership with community-based
agencies and school districts in the provision of such services and supports; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the City of Berkeley’s Mental Health Services Act State approved
Prevention and Early Intervention Plan, funds are to be allocated to support the
successful implementation of trauma supports for underserved populations; and

WHEREAS, one of the underserved populations in Berkeley are individuals who identify
as Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer/Questioning, Intersexed, Agender, Plus
(LGBTQIA+); and

WHEREAS, in April 2010, bid Specification No. 10-10508-C was issued for proposals
targeting trauma exposed individuals in underserved populations and Pacific Center for
Human Growth who provides services to the LGBTQIA+ population was determined to
be the best responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, on December 6, 2010, City Council authorized Contract No. 8516 with Pacific
Center for Human Growth to provide mental health services and supports to low-income
LGBTQIA+ individuals who are suffering from the impact of oppression, trauma, and other
life stressors in an amount not to exceed $26,520 for the period November 1, 2010
through June 30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2011 by Resolution No. 65,347-N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to Contract No. 8516A with Pacific Center for Human Growth to increase the
amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $53,040, and to extend the
term to June 30, 2012; and

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2012 by Resolution No. 65,762-N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to Contract No. 8516B with Pacific Center for Human Growth to increase the
amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $79,560 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2013; and

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2013 by Resolution No. 66,112-N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to Contract No. 8516C with Pacific Center for Human Growth to increase the
amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $106,080 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2014; and

115



Page 4 of 5

WHEREAS, on June 24, 2014 by Resolution No. 66,675 -N.S., City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8516D with Pacific Center for Human Growth to increase
the amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $132,600 and to extend
the term to June 30, 2015; and

WHEREAS, on June 30, 2015 by Resolution No. 66,120 -N.S., City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8516E with Pacific Center for Human Growth to increase
the amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $159,120 and to extend
the term to June 30, 2016; and

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016 by Resolution No. 67,559 -N.S., City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8516F with Pacific Center for Human Growth to increase
the amount by $27,846 for a total contract amount not to exceed $186,966 and to extend
the term to June 30, 2017; and

WHEREAS, on July 25, 2017 by Resolution No. 68,104 -N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to Contract No. 8516G with Pacific Center for Human Growth to increase the
amount by $32,046 for a total contract amount not to exceed $219,012 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS, on October 30, 2018 by Resolution No. 68,644-N.S., City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8516H with Pacific Center for Human Growth to increase
the amount by $32,046 for a total contract amount not to exceed $251,058 and to extend
the term to June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, on July 23, 2019 by Resolution No. 69,038-N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to ERMA Contract No. 052129-1 (85161) with Pacific Center for Human
Growth to increase the amount by $32,046 for a total amount not to exceed $283,104 and
to extend the term to June 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on June 30, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,469-N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to ERMA Contract No. 052129-1 (8516l) with Pacific Center for Human
Growth to increase the amount by $24,035 for a total amount not to exceed $307,139 and
to extend the term to March 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,620-N.S., the City Council
approved the MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan, which
continued and increased the allocation of PEI funds for Trauma Support Services for the
LGBTQIA+ population; and

WHEREAS, per the City Council approved MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program
and Expenditure Plan a Request for Proposal (RFP) process was included to be executed
for these Trauma Support Services for LGBTQIA+ individuals, which have been provided
by the Pacific Center for Human Growth over a period of time; and

Page 2

116



Page 5 of 5

WHEREAS, on March 30, 2021 by Resolution No. 69,769-N.S., City Council authorized
an amendment to ERMA Contract No. 052129-1 with Pacific Center for Human Growth
to increase the amount by $8,011 for a total amount not to exceed $315,150 and to extend
the term to June 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the additional funding and extension of the current contract to June 30, 2021,
was to enable the time to execute the RFP and contracting processes and to provide
service coverage for individual participants, in the event there was a change in contractors
following the RFP process; and

WHEREAS, in March 2021 per Bid Specification number 21-11430-C, an RFP was issued
and Pacific Center for Human Growth submitted a proposal; and

WHEREAS, following proposal review and rating from a panel of reviewers which
included a community member, the Pacific Center for Human Growth was the chosen
vendor to continue implementing these services in Berkeley; and

WHEREAS, funds for the Scope of Work in the amount of $100,000 are available in the
FY22 budget in the Mental Health Services Act Fund (Fund 315).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to execute an amendment to Contract
No. 052129-1 with Pacific Center for Human Growth to provide mental services and
supports to LGBTQIA+ individuals who are suffering from the impact of oppression,
trauma, and other life stressors, to increase the amount by $100,000 for a total contract
amount not to exceed $415,150, and to extend the term to June 30, 2022. A record
signature copy of said contract and any amendments to be on file in the Office of the City
Clerk.

Page 3

117



118



Page 1 of 5

09

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing and Community Services
Department

Subject: Contract No. 088999-1 Amendment: Center for Independent Living

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to execute an
amendment for Contract No. 088999-1 with the Center for Independent Living for
trauma support services for older adults, to increase the amount by $31,846 for a total
contract amount not to exceed $320,676, and to extend the contract through June 30,
2022.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funds for the Scope of Work in the amount of $31,846 will be provided from the State of
California Mental Health Services Act Fund #: 315-51-503-526-2016-000-451-636110.
The funding is available in the Fiscal Year 2022 budget.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The Center for Independent Living currently provides Trauma Support Services for the
Older Adult population, through Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Prevention and
Early Intervention (PEI) funds. To ensure fair City Contracting practices, on January 19,
2021 the City Council approved that the Mental Health Division issue a Request for
Proposal (RFP) for these services for the Older Adult population. In March 2021, per Bid
Specification 21-11432, an RFP was released. Following proposal review and rating
from a panel of reviewers, which included a community member, the Center for
Independent Living was the vendor selected to continue implementing these services in
Berkeley.

BACKGROUND

The State of California provides MHSA funding for local mental health services and
supports. One of the annually recurring MHSA funding components is Prevention and
Early Intervention (PEI). MHSA PEI funds are to be utilized on strategies to recognize
the early signs of mental illness; to improve early access to services and programs,
including the reduction of stigma and discrimination; and for strategies to prevent mental
illness from becoming severe and disabling.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 119
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
09


Page 2 of 5

Contract No. 088999-1 Amendment: CONSENT CALENDAR
Center for Independent Living July 27, 2021

In order to utilize MHSA funds, stakeholder informed Three Year Plans and Annual
Updates that outline how funds will be utilized are required to be developed and locally
approved. Since the very first PEI plan, a portion of MHSA PEI funds have been utilized
to provide to provide Trauma Support Services to unserved, underserved and
inappropriately served populations through community partners. Older Adults is one of
the underserved populations that has received Trauma Support Services through these
funds.

On December 1, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,620-N.S., City Council approved the
MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan, which continued the
allocation of PEI funds for Trauma Support Services for the Older Adult population.

The approved Three-Year Plan also included a Request for Proposal (RFP) process to
be executed for these Trauma Support Services for Older Adults, which have been
provided by the Center for Independent Living over a period of time. In March 2021, per
Bid Specification 21-11432, an RFP was released and the Center for Independent Living
was the selected bidder.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability
opportunities associated with the subject of this project.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The execution of this amendment will ensure Trauma Support Services for the Older
Adult population are able to continue to be provided in the community.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
In order for MHSA-funded mental health services and supports in the community to
continue, no other alternative actions were considered.

CONTACT PERSON
Karen Klatt, Community Services Specialist Ill, Health, Housing & Community Services,
(510) 981-7644

Attachments:
Resolution

Page 2

120



Page 3 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT NO. 088999-1 AMENDMENT: CENTER FOR INDEPENDENT LIVING
FOR TRAUMA SUPPORT SERVICES FOR OLDER ADULTS

WHEREAS, the City’s Department of Health, Housing and Community Services, Mental
Health Division, currently receives Mental Health Services Act Prevention and Early
Intervention funds on an annual basis to provide services and supports to children, youth,
transition age youth, adults, and older adults; and

WHEREAS, the Mental Health Division works in partnership with community-based
agencies and school districts in the provision of such services and supports; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the City of Berkeley’s Mental Health Services Act State Approved
Prevention and Early Intervention Plan, funds are to be allocated to support the
successful implementation of trauma supports for underserved populations; and

WHEREAS, in April 2010, bid Specification No. 10-10508-C was issued for proposals
targeting trauma exposed senior citizens and/or those in need of coping strategies for
stress related issues and Center for Independent Living was determined to be the chosen
bidder; and

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2011 by Resolution No. 65,237-N.S., City Council authorized
Contract No. 8648 with Center for Independent Living to provide mental health services
and supports to senior citizens in an amount not to exceed $26,520 for the period
February 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2011 by Resolution No. 65,395-N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to Contract No. 8648 with Center for Independent Living to increase the
amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $53,040, and to extend the
term to June 30, 2012; and

WHEREAS, Contract No. 8648 expired before the approved amendment was executed,
and a new Contract No. 8801 was executed by the City Manager with Center for
Independent Living for the amount of $26, 520 for the term July 1, 2011 through June 30,
2012; and

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2012 by Resolution No. 65,760-N.S., the City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8801A with Center for Independent Living to increase the
amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $53,040 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2013; and

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2013 by Resolution No. 66,110-N.S., the City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8801B with Center for Independent Living to increase the

121



Page 4 of 5

amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $79,560 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2014; and

WHEREAS, on June 24, 2014 by Resolution No. 66,673-N.S., the City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8801C with Center for Independent Living to increase the
amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $106,080 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2015; and

WHEREAS, on June 30, 2015 by Resolution No. 67,118-N.S., the City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8801D with Center for Independent Living to increase the
amount by $26,520 for a total contract amount not to exceed $132,600 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2016; and

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016 by Resolution No. 67,557-N.S., the City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8801E with Center for Independent Living to increase the
amount by $27,846 for a total contract amount not to exceed $160,446 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2017; and

WHEREAS, on July 25, 2017 by Resolution No. 68,102-N.S., the City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8801F with Center for Independent Living to increase the
amount by $32,046 for a total contract amount not to exceed $192,492 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS, on October 30, 2018 by Resolution No. 68,642-N.S., City Council authorized
an amendment to Contract No. 8801G with Center for Independent Living to increase the
amount by $32,046 for a total contract amount not to exceed $224,538 and to extend the
term to June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, on July 23, 2019 by Resolution No. 69,036-N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to ERMA Contract No. 088999-1 with Center for Independent Living to
increase the amount by $32,046 for a total amount not to exceed $256,584 and to extend
the term to June 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on June 30, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,468-N.S., City Council authorized an
amendment to ERMA Contract No. 088999-1 with Center for Independent Living to
increase the amount by $24,035 for a total amount not to exceed $280,619 and to extend
the term to March 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,620-N.S., the City Council
approved the MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan, which
continued the allocation of PEI funds for Trauma Support Services for the Older Adult
population; and

WHEREAS, per the City Council approved MHSA FY20/21 — 22/23 Three Year Program
and Expenditure Plan a Request for Proposal (RFP) process was included to be executed

Page 2

122



Page 5 of 5

for these Trauma Support Services for Older Adults, which have been provided by the
Center for Independent Living over a period of time; and

WHEREAS, on March 30, 2021 by Resolution No. 69,768-N.S., City Council authorized
an amendment to ERMA Contract No. 088999-1 with Center for Independent Living to
increase the amount by $8,011 for a total amount not to exceed $288,830 and to extend
the term to June 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the additional funding and extension of the current contract to June 30, 2021,
was to enable the time to execute the RFP and contracting processes and to provide
service coverage for individual participants, in the event there was a change in contractors
following the RFP process; and

WHEREAS, in March 2021 per Bid Specification number 21-11432, an RFP was issued
and the Center for Independent Living submitted a proposal; and

WHEREAS, following proposal review and rating from a panel of reviewers which
included a community member, the Center for Independent Living was the chosen vendor
to continue implementing these services in Berkeley; and

WHEREAS, funds for the Scope of Work in the amount of $31,846 are available in the
FY22 budget in the Mental Health Services Act Fund.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to execute an amendment to Contract
No. 088999-1 with Center for Independent Living to provide mental health services and
supports to senior citizens, to increase the amount by $31,846 for a total contract amount
not to exceed $320,676 and to extend the term to June 30, 2022. A record signature
copy of said contract and any amendments to be on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

Page 3

123



124



Page 1 of 4

10

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: LaTanya Bellow, Director, Human Resources
Subject: Contract No. 8392B Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions (ICS) for claims

administration of the City’s Workers’ Compensation Program

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an amendment to Contract
No. 8392B with Innovative Claim Solutions (ICS) to provide third-party claims
administrative services, Medicare, Medicaid, and SCHIP Extension Act (MMSEA) Section
111 Mandatory Reporting to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), to
increase the amount by an additional $616,819, for a total contract amount of $7,440,430,
and extending the period through June 30, 2022.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The contract amendment with Innovative Claim Solutions will add $616,819 to the existing
contract through the end of Fiscal Year 2022. Funding for the proposed contract
amendment is available in the Fiscal Year 2022 Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance
Fund (676-99-900-900-0000-000-472-612240).

As a result of the proposed one-year contact amendment, Innovative Claim Solutions
(ICS) has agreed to lower their administrative fees from $685,254 to $616,819. The
decrease in fees will net the City of Berkeley a savings $68,435.00 for Fiscal Year 2022.

Original Contract Amount (7/1/2016 — 6/30/2021) | $6,823,611

Current Contract Amount (FY 7/1/2020 — $685,254
6/30/2021)

Proposed Increase (FY 7/1/2021 — 6/30/2022) $616,819

Savings (decrease in fees) $68,435
Total New Contract Amount $7,440,430
2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 125

E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
10


Page 2 of 4

Contract No. 8392B Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The City of Berkeley is permissibly Self-Insured by the State of California, Department of
Industrial Relations, to provide statutorily required workers’ compensation benefits to
injured employees.

On April 26, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 67,436, authorizing the City
Manager to execute and implement a contract including amendment for workers’
compensation third-party administration services with ICS. This contract amendment was
approved from July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2021. The increase for this contractual period
was $3,247,413 for a total not to exceed $6,823,611.

The current contract with ICS is set to expire on June 30, 2021. As such, a contract
amendment is needed to continue claims administrative and management of the City’s
self-funded workers’ compensation program. The Human Resources Department is
planning to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) in Fall 2021 for workers’ compensation
third-party administrative services. It has been several years since the City of Berkeley
has solicitated an RFP for these services. As such, during the RFP process it is
imperative that the operation of critical claim management services is maintained until a
third-party administrator is selected. Additionally, retaining claim management services
with ICS until the RFP selection process is completed ensures the City remains in
compliance with all applicable workers’ compensation laws and regulations.

BACKGROUND

Innovative Claim Solutions, has been providing claims management services for over 20
years. The third-party claim management services for a workers’ compensation program
consist of responsibility for claims management including, but not limited to, approval of
claims based upon whether an injury arose out of the course and scope of employment;
denial of claims that did not arise out of the course and scope of employment; or delay of
claim decisions in order to obtain additional information or evidence before a
determination can be on a claim. The third-party administrator procures services and
pays bills incurred by claims for the provision of benefits to injured employees. These
expenses include, but are not limited to, medical; legal; temporary and permanent
disability payments; and future medical needs of injured employees.

A contract extension with ICS will maintain continuous service delivery including several
performance standards that require ICS to evaluate old claims for closure and close new
claims as soon as feasible.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

Page 2

126



Page 3 of 4

Contract No. 8392B Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Innovative Claim Solutions has provided high quality claim management services
throughout the terms of the contract. ICS consistently applies professionalism, expertise,
and superior customer service in their claim management practices.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Issue a Request for Proposal to seek bids from firms including ICS to provide third party
administrative services for the City’s workers’ compensation program.

CONTACT PERSON
LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources, 510-981-6807

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 3

127



Page 4 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
CONTRACT NO. 8392B AMENDMENT: INNOVATIVE CLAIM SOLUTIONS

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is certified by the State of California Department of
Industrial Relations under Labor Code Sections 3700 and 3705 to self-insure for providing
statutorily required workers’ compensation benefits to its employees; and

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 67,436 that
authorized the City Manager to amend the contract with ICS for third-party administrative
services for the City’s workers’ compensation program by extending the term through
June 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, amending the existing contract with ICS to provide both administration of the
City’s workers’ compensation program and Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP Extension Act
(MMSEA) Section 111 mandatory reporting to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CMS) on behalf of the City to maintain continuous service delivery; and

WHEREAS, the City has found that the services performed by ICS have been satisfactory
during the term of the contract and both parties desire to extend the term of the contract
for one (1) additional year.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to amend Contract No. 8392B with Innovative Claim Solutions
for third-party administrative services for both the City’s workers’ compensation program
and MMSEA Reporting to the CMS, by extending the period through June 30, 2022 and
increase the amount by an additional $616,819, for a total contract amount of $7,440,430.
All expenses are to be paid by the Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Fund (676-99-
900-900-0000-000-472-612240). A record signature copy of said contract and any
amendments are to be on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

128



Page 1 of 5

{ CITY °F u
3
-
—
-
Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources

Subject: Contract No. 090741-1 Amendment: Bartel Associates, LLC for Actuarial
Consulting Services

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an amendment to Contract
No. 090741-1with Bartel Associates, LLC for Actuarial Consulting Services, increasing
contract amount by $95,000 for a revised total contract amount not to exceed $270,000
effective September 30, 2011 through December 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The contract amendment with Bartel Associates, LLC for Actuarial Consulting Services
will add $95,000 to the existing contract through December 31, 2023. Funding for the
proposed amendment is available in FY 2022 in the following funding sources: General
Fund budget code 011-99-900-900-0000-000-412-612990 (for CalPERS actuarial
services); various Retiree Medical Trust Funds (Funds 941 through 951); the Payroll
Deduction Trust Fund (Fund 930 for the Supplementary Retirement and Income Plan);
and the Safety Members Pension Fund Trust Fund (Fund 905 for the Safety Members
Pension Fund).

Current Contract Amount $175,000
Proposed Increase (this amendment) $95,000
Total New Contract Amount $270,000

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Under the direction of the City Council and the City Manager, the Human Resources
Department is responsible for labor relations activities including actuarial projections to
determine the fiscal impacts of the City’s various post-employment benefits related to
pension, medical, and disability. The City pre-funds all of the post-employment benefit
plans and contracts for periodic actuarial studies to ensure the plans are meeting the
financial assumptions to be able to pay the benefits in future years and to comply with the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 (Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Employers for Post-employment Benefits other than Pension);
GASB Statement No. 27 (Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: hr@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www .CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

11

129


sbunting
Typewritten Text
11


Page 2 of 5

Amendment: Bartel Associates, LLC for Professional Actuarial, CONSENT CALENDAR
Consulting Services July 27, 2021

Employers); GASB Statement No. 67 (Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — An
Amendment of GASB 25); and GASB Statement No. 68 (Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions-An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27) reporting
requirements. Moreover, in creating these post-employment benefit plans, one of the
stipulations stated in the various Union agreements requires the City to complete periodic
actuarial evaluations of the plans to ensure adequate funding. Lastly, City management,
at the direction of City Council, has applied this same requirement to any proposed
modifications to the negotiated benefit which may arise as a result of contract
negotiations. Fundamentally, the intent is to provide a thorough overview of the City’s
long-term retirement expenditure obligations in a format that is easily understandable,
and provide an efficient and financially-healthy City government.

BACKGROUND

Bartel Associates, LLC specializes in providing GASB compliant actuarial services to
public agencies including retiree medical and pension GASB valuations, actuarial audits,
and CalPERS retirement consulting. Over the past several years, the City has contracted
with Bartel Associates, LLC to complete actuarial services which are used for periodic
actuarial evaluation, and to determine the fiscal impacts of the City’s various post-
employment benefits related to pension, medical, and disability.

The City’s retirement pension benefits are provided through its participation in CalPERS.
The benefits are funded by a combination of employee contributions that are set by statute
and by employer contributions which fluctuate from year to year based on an annual
actuarial valuation performed by CalPERS.

The City contributes to the following plans in the CalPERS system:

City CalPERS Groups Pencs:?ciiEBziefit
Miscellaneous Classic Members 2.7% at age 55
Miscellaneous New Members (as defined by PEPRA) | 2.0% at age 62
Safety Fire Classic Members 3.0% at age 50

Safety Fire New Members (as defined by PEPRA) 2.7% at age 57
Safety Police Classic Members Tier | (closed group) | 3.0% at age 50
Safety Police Classic Members Tier Il 3.0% at age 55
Safety Police New Members (as defined by PEPRA) | 2.7% at age 57

Each of the plans has different rates for the City’s annual employer contribution which are
generally based on the demographics of the plan participants and the value of investment
returns of the City’s assets in the CalPERS system.

In addition to CalPERS, the City provides pension benefits to a closed group of former
firefighters and police officers who elected to not transfer to CalPERS and retired prior to
March 1973 under the Safety Members Pension Fund (SMPF). This single employer
defined benefit pension plan is administered by the Safety Members Pension Board.

Page 2

130



Page 3 of 5

Amendment: Bartel Associates, LLC for Professional Actuarial, CONSENT CALENDAR
Consulting Services July 27, 2021

Annual actuarial valuations are required of this plan as stated in GASB Statement No. 27;
GASB Statement No. 67; and GASB Statement No. 68.

The City also provides retiree medical benefits and disability retirement benefits to a
closed group of Supplementary Retirement and Income Plan | (SRIP [) participants who
were hired prior to July 22, 1988, who have not elected to transfer to SRIP I, and are
permanently or indefinitely disabled.

On November 16, 2010, the City Council received the City Auditor’s report on “Employee
Benefits: Tough Decisions Ahead” that included a recommendation that the City Manager
determine which employee benefits are the highest risk to the City and, if appropriate,
perform actuarial valuations annually, rather than biennially. The City’s objective is to
recognize current and future liabilities and to establish a funding policy so that assets are
available to pay the premium costs as employees retire and not place an undue one-time
strain on the City’s budget.

The actuarial analyses conducted by Bartel allows the City to comply with the various
GASB Statement requirements and to meet the City’s objectives in recognizing current
and future liabilities, and assists the City in its continuing efforts to foster a funding policy
that ensures assets are available to pay the benefits as employees retire and not place
an undue strain on the City’s budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Bartel Associates, LLC offers the City a professional and cost-effective solution to the
City’s actuarial analysis requirements. In addition, the firm has institutional knowledge of
the City’s post-employment benefit plans, as well as those of many comparable agencies
in the region, which assures the City remains competitive in the labor market.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The type of actuarial work is specialized and staff is unable to undertake such an
endeavor.

CONTACT PERSON
LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources, 510-981-6807

Attachment:
1: Resolution

Page 3

131



Page 4 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT NO. 090741-1 AMENDMENT: BARTEL ASSOCIATES, LLC FOR
ACTUARIAL SERVICES

WHEREAS, there is a need for actuarial services for determining future liabilities for the
City’s pension plans with the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS); and

WHEREAS, this type of actuarial work is specialized within the professional accounting
field and is done by persons who are familiar with professional accounting and actuarial
standards and reporting requirements; and

WHEREAS, Bartel Associates, LLC was selected for actuarial services as part of a
continuing engagement extending back several years; and

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2011, the City entered into a contract with Bartel
Associates, LLC (hereinafter “Bartel”) (Contract No. 8958) for an amount not to exceed
$15,000 to provide actuarial services pertaining to the City’s CalPERS pension plan; and

WHEREAS, on November 9, 2012, the City Manager authorized an amendment to
increase the contract amount by $15,000 for a revised contract amount not to exceed
$30,000; and

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2014, the City Manager authorized an amendment to increase the
contract amount by $19,999 for a revised contract amount not to exceed $49,999; and

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2016 by Resolution No. 67,779-N.S., Council authorized
the City Manager to execute an amendment to Contract No. 8958C with Bartel, increasing
the contract amount by $30,001, for a revised contract amount not to exceed $80,000;
and

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2015, by Resolution No. 67,181-N.S., Council authorized
the City Manager to enter into Contract No. 10152 with Bartel for a contract amount not
to exceed $150,000 for other non-CalPERS post-employment benefits; and

WHEREAS, funding for this contract amendment is available in FY 2022 and will be from
various funds: General Fund budget code 010-9701-410-3035 (for CalPERS Actuarial
services); various Retiree Medical Trust Funds (Funds 914 through 951); The Payroll
Deduction Trust Fund (Fund 930 for Supplementary Retirement and Income Plan); and
the Safety Members Pension Fund Trust Fund (Fund 905 for the Safety Members
Pension Fund);

PAGE 3

132



Page 5 of 5

Amendment: Bartel Associates, LLC for Professional Actuarial, CONSENT CALENDAR
Consulting Services July 27, 2021

WHEREAS, the City is close to reaching its contract limit of $175,000 and unless the
contract amount is increased, the City would be without professional actuarial consulting
services.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to execute any amendments to Contract No. 090741-1 with
Bartel Associates, LLC for actuarial consulting services, increasing the contract amount
by $95,000 for a revised total contract amount not to exceed $270,000 effective
September 30, 2011 through December 31, 2023. A record signature copy of said
contract and any amendments to be on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

Page 5

133



134



Page 1 of 5

12

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Contract: OBS Engineering, Inc. for John Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area
Improvements Project

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution:

1. Approving the plans and specifications for the John Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area
Improvements Project, Specification No. 21-11426-C,;

2. Accepting the bid of the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, OBS
Engineering, Inc.; and

3. Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any amendments,
extensions or other change orders until completion of the project in accordance with
the approved plans and specifications, with OBS Engineering, Inc. for the John
Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area Renovations Project at 41 San Diego Road, in an
amount not to exceed $1,119,580 which includes a contract amount of $1,017,800
and a 10% contingency in the amount of $101,780.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funding is available in the Parks Tax Fund, and will be included in the First Amendment to
the FY 2022 Annual Appropriations Ordinance. No other funding is required, and no other
projects will be delayed due to this expenditure.

Construction

OBS Engineering, Inc.(lowest bid) ..o, $1,017,800
10% Contingency $101,780
Total construction cost $1,119,580
Funding
MeEasUre T FUNG. ... e e, $400,000
(511-52-545-000-0000-000-461-663110-PRWPK19004)
Parks TaxX FUNG. ... e e e, $719,580
(138-52-545-000-0000-000-461-663110-PRWPK19004)
Total funding $1,119,580

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 o Fax: (510) 981-7099 135

E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
12


Page 2 of 5

Contract: OBS Engineering, Inc. for CONSENT CALENDAR
John Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area Improvements Project July 27, 2021

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The existing playground at John Hinkel Park at 41 San Diego Road, Berkeley, CA
94704 is in need of replacement. The project includes a new ages 5-12 play area,
picnic area, and repairs and restoration of the existing masonry work and amphitheater
and improvements to other site feature in conformance with current ADA standards.
John Hinkel Park was designated as a historic landmark by the Landmarks Preservation
Commission in April 2001 and work will be done in compliance with Structural Alteration
Permit LMSAP2020-0002.

BACKGROUND

The project was advertised for bids on Monday, June 7, 2021, and bids were opened on
June 22, 2021. The City received 5 bids, from a low base bid of $1,007,100 to a high
base bid of $1,667,500, and from a low of $1,017,800 to a high of $1,700,800 for the
base bid plus Additive Bid Alternate No. 2. The determination of the lowest responsive
and responsible bidder was based on the price for base bid work, as indicated in the bid
documents.

OBS Engineering, Inc. was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Staff
conducted references checks and received satisfactory feedback. Staff recommends
that a contract for this project be awarded to OBS Engineering, Inc.

The Living Wage Ordinance does not apply to this project since construction contracts
are, pursuant to City policy, subject to State prevailing wage laws. The contractor will
need to submit a Certification of Compliance for the Equal Benefits Ordinance. The
contract will be subject to the Community Workforce Agreement.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The construction contract includes requirements to comply with the City’s
Environmentally Preferable Purchasing Policy and Construction and Demolition Waste
Diversion program of at least 50%. The project is a renovation of an existing
playground area and will not negatively affect natural habitat.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The new ages 5-12 playground and picnic area are needed as part of the City’s ongoing
program to repair, renovate and improve accessibility at non-compliant or aging Parks
facilities. The City does not have in-house labor or equipment resources to complete
this renovation project.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront, 981-6700
Evelyn Chan, Supervising Civil Engineer, Parks Recreation & Waterfront, 981-6430

Page 2

136



Page 3 of 5

Contract: OBS Engineering, Inc. for CONSENT CALENDAR
John Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area Improvements Project July 27, 2021
Attachments:

1: Resolution

2: Bid Results

Page 3 137



Page 4 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT: OBS ENGINEERING, INC. FOR THE JOHN HINKEL PARK
AMPHITHEATER AREA IMRPOVEMENTS PROJECT

WHEREAS, the playground at John Hinkel Park is in need of renovation; and

WHEREAS, the City has neither the in-house labor nor the equipment necessary to
undertake this project; and

WHEREAS, an invitation for bids was duly advertised on June 7, 2021, bids were opened
on June 22, 2021, and the City received 5 bids; and

WHEREAS, OBS Engineering, Inc. was determined to be the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder, and references for OBS Engineering, Inc. were provided and
checked out satisfactorily; and

WHEREAS, funding is available in the Parks Tax Fund (Fund 138) and Measure T1 (Fund
511).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
Plans and Specifications for Specification No. 21-11426-C for the John Hinkel Park
Amphitheater Area Improvements Project are approved; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the construction contract is awarded to OBS
Engineering, Inc. as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for a total contract
amount of $1,017,800, which includes the base bid plus bid alternate number 2; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley authorizes the City
Manager to execute a contract and any amendments, extensions, or change orders until
completion of the project in accordance with the approved plans and specifications with
OBS Engineering, Inc. for the John Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area Improvements Project
in an amount not to exceed $1,119,580, which includes a contract amount of $1,017,800
and a 10% contingency in the amount of $101,780 for unforeseen circumstances. A
record signature copy of the agreement and any amendments to be on file in the Office
of the City Clerk.

138



_ Page 5 of 5
ATTACHMENT 2

City of Berkeley
Abstract of Bid Worksheet

Finance Department

General Services Division

Spec. # Bid Date: 6/22/2021

FOR: John Hinkel Park Amphitheater 21-11426-C
: required w/ bid
Bidders Base Bid Alternate 1 | Alternate 2 | Bid Bond | Addenda (1)] Reg/Exp Sub-List | Non-Coll| Certs

! Angotti & Reilly, Inc. $ 1,435,266.00 | $ 20,000.00 | $ 19,000.00 X X X X X X
2 CF Contracting $ 1,667,500.00 | $34,700.00 | $ 33,300.00 X X X X X X
3 Kerex Engineering $ 1,275,000.00 | $ 50,000.00 | $ 30,000.00 X X ‘x X X X
4 Bay Congtruction Co. $ 1,135,400.00 | $ 90,000.00 | $ 20,000.00 X X x _ X X X
s OBS Engineering $ 1,007,100.00 | $ 68,700.00 | $ 10,700.00 X X X X X X
6 ‘ l .

7

8

9

Bid Recorder: 4 / (ﬂ Darryl Sweet
Bid Opener: / % Josh Roben
Project Manager: // 2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510.981.7320 TDD: 510.981.6903 Fax: 510.981.7390

E-mail: finance@ci.berkeley.ca.us

139



140



Page 1 of 3

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Contract No. 31900178 Amendment: Siegel & Strain Architects for Design
and Construction Administration Services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen
Dormitory Replacement Project

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend Contract No. 31900178 with
Siegel & Strain Architects for Design and Construction Support Services for the
Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Project, increasing the contract by
$120,000 for a total amount not to exceed $278,000.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funds for the contract are available in the Camps Fund. The amendment amount of
$120,000 will be included in the First Amendment to the FY 2022 Annual Appropriations
Ordinance and budgeted in the Camps Fund budget code 125-52-543-581-0000-000-
461-612310 PRWEM16004. The cost of this this contract is anticipated to be entirely
covered by insurance payments (partially received).

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The City of Berkeley has owned Cazadero Camp in Sonoma County since 1927. In
April of 2016, a landslide occurred at Cazadero Camp causing irreparable damage to
the existing Jensen Dorm structure, Austin Creek Road and multiple trees. The
hazardous trees were removed, Jensen Dormitory demolished and the debris removed,
and the permanent landslide repair work (including repair of Austin Creek Road)
completed. The replacement Jensen Dormitory has been designed and is in the final
permitting and bidding phase. Construction is anticipated to begin in August, 2021 and
take approximately 10-months to complete. Additional construction support services
from the designer are necessary in order to complete the project.

BACKGROUND
The total cost estimate for the Cazadero Landslide Repair Project is $2.5M. Project
costs are anticipated to be covered by insurance.

On November 13, 2018 the City issued a request for proposals for architectural and
engineering design services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

13

141


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
13


Page 2 of 3

Contract: Siegel & Strain Architects for Architectural and CONSENT CALENDAR
Engineering Services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory July 27, 2021
Replacement Design Project

Design Project (Spec No. 18-11209-C). The City determined that Siegel & Strain
Architects are well suited to meet the City’s needs for this Project, and awarded the
contract on January 22, 2019 (Resolution No. 68,733-N.S.) The original scope of work
anticipated that construction would be complete by 2020. The Project schedule was
extended due to COVID. Additionally, the scope requires amending to reflect changes to
the design approach, the need to add sprinklers to an existing structure, and expansion of
the Construction Administration task to include on-site meetings and a more
comprehensive review of submittals and requests for information from the contractor.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE

This Project replaces a destroyed building. The replacement building will be designed
to meet modern code, representing a significant improvement in energy and water
efficiency compared to the prior structure. The new Jensen Dormitory will include all-
electric equipment, systems and appliances. Solar is not feasible in this heavily
forested location, however the design incorporates passive heating and cooling, and
requires the use of low-carbon concrete. The Project does not include any irrigation,
and ultra-low-flow fixtures are used throughout the building.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The replacement of Jensen Dormitory is necessary to restore the capacity of Cazadero
Camp, and the Project is insurance-funded. The City does not have the in-house
resources to complete design of the replacement structure.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
Scott Ferris, Director, PRW, 981-6700
Liza McNulty, Project Manager, PRW, 981-6437

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2

142



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ## ###-N.S.

CONTRACT NO. 31900178 AMENDMENT: SIEGEL & STRAIN ARCHITECTS FOR
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR THE
CAZADERO CAMP JENSEN DORMITORY REPLACEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City has owned the Cazadero Camp since 1927; and
WHEREAS, in April, 2016 a landslide destroyed the Jensen Dormitory; and

WHEREAS, on November 13, 2018 the City issued a Request for Proposals for design
services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Design Project (Spec
No. 18-11209-C) and identified Siegel & Strain Architects as well-suited for the City’s
needs; and

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2019, Council authorized the City Manager to enter into a
contract with Siegel & Strain Architects for Design Services for the Cazadero Camp

Jensen Dormitory Replacement Project in the amount of $158,000 (Resolution No.
68,733-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, Siegel & Strain Architects and their sub-consultants has the requisite
knowledge and background to provide design and construction support services which
are necessary in order for the City to efficiently manage the construction of the Project;
and

WHEREAS, funding is available in the FY 2019 budget in the Camps Fund (Fund 125)
and will be included in the First Amendment to FY 2022 Annual Appropriations and
Ordinance and budgeted in the Camps Fund (budget code 125-52-543-581-0000-000-
461-612310 PRWEM16004).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an amendment to Contract No. 31900178
with Siegel & Strain Architects for Design and Construction Support Services for the
Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Project, increasing the contract by
$120,000 for a total not to exceed $278,000.

143



144



Page 1 of 3

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council Dee Williams

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Contract No. 32100146 Amendment: Bellingham Inc. for Additional Dock
Repairs at the Berkeley Marina

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend Contract No. 32100146 with
Bellingham Inc. to repair additional docks at the Berkeley Marina by increasing the
construction contract amount by $40,000 for a not-to-exceed amount of $280,000.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Funding for the construction contract amendment in the amount of $40,000 will be in the
FY 2022 Waterfront Minor Maintenance (PRWWF22003) budget as follows:

Construction contract

CUITENt AMOUNT ... e e $240,000
Proposed amendment.............oooiiiii e, $40,000
Total construction contract CoSt .........oovviiiniiiiiii e $280,000

Marina Fund
608-52-545-000-0000-000-473-663110- PRWWF22003........eeeiieiannnenne. $40,000
e 2= | P $40,000

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The City has a current construction contract with Bellingham Inc. to construct, remove
and replace six (6) and repair twenty-one (21) damaged finger docks at the Berkeley
Marina. There is a current critical need to repair dock float sections at D/E dock.
Amending the construction contract provides the City with a cost-effective way to repair
additional docks at the Berkeley Marina.

BACKGROUND

On December 9, 2020 the City issued an Invitation For Bid (IFB) for the fabrication and
construction work to remove and replace six (6) damaged finger docks at the Berkeley
Marina (Spec No. 21-11427). The City received three (3) bids, and Bellingham was the

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7010
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info Website: http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us

14

145


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
sbunting
Typewritten Text
14


Page 2 of 3

Contract No. 32100146 Amendment: Bellingham Inc. CONSENT CALENDAR
for Additional Dock Repairs at the Berkeley Marina July 27, 2021

lowest responsive and responsible bidder. On April 13, 2021, the City Manager
authorized construction contract no. 32100146 in the amount of $140,000.

On April 27, 2021, the City Council authorized an amendment (Resolution 69,815-N.S.)
to the increase the contract amount by $110,000 to fund the replacement of additional
damaged finger docks at the Berkeley Marina, for an amount not-to-exceed $240,000.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The construction contract includes requirements to comply with the City's
Environmentally Preferable Purchasing Policy. The project involves the repair and
replacement of existing docks and therefore will not negatively affect natural habitat.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The FY2022 budget will include an allocation of Marina Fund to replace additional
damaged finger docks at the Berkeley Marina. Bellingham is currently under contract to
replace six (6) and repair twenty-one (21) damaged finger docks. Amending the current
contract will provide the City a cost-effective way to have this work performed. The City
does not have the in-house labor or equipment resources to repair additional damaged
docks.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
Ali Endress, Waterfront Manager, 981-6737
Sean Crothers, Waterfront Supervisor, 981-6744

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2

146



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##-###

AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT NO. 32100146 WITH BELLINGHAM INC. TO PROVIDE
ADDITONAL DOCK REPAIR AT THE BERKELEY MARINA

WHEREAS, on December 9, 2020, the City issued an Invitation For Bid (IFB) for the
construction work to remove and replace six (6) damaged finger docks at the Berkeley
Marina (Spec No. 21-11427);

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2021, the City Manager authorized construction contract no.
32100146 in the amount of $140,000; and

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2021, the City Council authorized a contract amendment
(Resolution 69,815- N.S.) to the increase the contract amount by $110,000 to fund the
replacement of additional damaged finger docks at the Berkeley Marina, for an amount
not-to-exceed $240,000; and

WHEREAS, funding for the construction contract amendment in the amount of $40,000
will be included in the FY2022 Marina Fund budget (Fund 608).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to execute an amendment to the construction contract with
Bellingham Inc. by increasing the construction contract amount by $40,000 for a total not
to exceed of $280,000 to repair additional finger docks at the Berkeley Marina.

147



148



Page 1 of 4

15

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Liam Garland, Director, Department of Public Works

Subject: Contract No. 32100102 Amendment: DMR Builders for the 125/127
University Avenue Tenant Improvement Project

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend Contract No. 32100102 with
DMR Builders to complete renovation and facility upgrade work at the 125/127
University Avenue building, increasing the amount of the contract by $146,000, for a
new amount not to exceed of $439,000.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funding for this contract amendment is available in the FY 2022 Parking Meter Fund
(631) budget pending the approval of the First Amendment to the FY 2022 Annual
Appropriations Ordinance.

Original Contract:
Capital Improvement Fund (501-54-623-677-0000-000-444-662110-)........ $117,200

Parking Meter Fund (631-54-623-677-0000-000-444-662110-).................. $175,800
Total Original Contract.............oouiuiiiiiii e, $293,000
This Amendment:

Parking Meter Fund (631-54-623-677-0000-000-444-662110-)................. $146,000
Amended Contract Amount $439,000

This project will enable the Berkeley Police Department’s Traffic Bureau, including its
Parking Enforcement Unit, to move from privately-owned office space on Folger Street
to City-owned office space at the Waterfront. This move will reduce the Traffic Bureau’s
office space rental costs by $30,000/year and bring in $175,000/year in lease revenue
to the Marina Fund.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The existing Traffic Bureau office space provides fully equipped functionality for both
Parking Enforcement personnel and sworn personnel to efficiently carry out their daily
work tasks. Relocating facilities requires improvements to prevent a significant negative
change in employee working conditions. The additional improvements include locker
rooms, security cameras, data cabling, blinds and window treatments, carpet tiles, and
painting. It also addresses some visible water leaks. The additional upgrades are critical

149


sbunting
Typewritten Text
15


Page 2 of 4

Contract No. 32100102 Amendment: DMR Builders for the CONSENT CALENDAR
125/127 University Avenue Tenant Improvement Project July 27, 2021

for the operation of this facility and will provide a safe, efficient, and inviting work
environment. The provided services will support the Strategic Plan goals of creating a
resilient, safe, connected, and prepared city and providing state-of-the-art, well-
maintained facilities.

BACKGROUND

At the October 27, 2020 Berkeley City Council meeting, the City Council adopted a
resolution approving plans and specifications for the Berkeley Police Department (BPD)
to relocate its Parking Enforcement Unit and sworn Traffic Officers from the current
location on Folger Street to City-owned lease space at 125/127 University Avenue.
Additionally, City Council authorized a contract with DMR Builders to complete necessary
tenant improvements. That work has been underway and some additional changes are
required to complete the project.

The current location is leased out of a privately owned facility. Utilizing the University
Avenue property will bring in $175,000/year of lease revenue to the Marina Fund, and
reduce rental costs by about $30,000/year relative to its current location.

There are a number of community benefits to moving the Traffic Bureau to the Marina.
The benefits have been identified as providing a central location for community members
and staff, investment in a City building rather than a private entity, and supporting Parks,
Waterfront and Recreation with a public safety presence in the Marina. This move will
likely have a deterrent effect on crime and provide a positive impact on perceptions of
security in the Marina.

Prior to the relocation, some tenant improvements are necessary to accommodate the
basic inhabitation needs of all Traffic Bureau personnel. Some of the major proposed
improvements include a new entryway, lobby, locker rooms, and security system. The
improvements also ensure compliance with current life safety codes such as
modifications to the sprinkler system and emergency exits. These architectural upgrades
are similar to the original scope of the project, and the contractor has demonstrated
through prior change orders to be delivering good value to the City.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The improvements will incorporate energy efficiency upgrades such as high efficiency
LED light fixtures, energy efficient windows, and a new high-efficiency electric hot water
heater.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Contracted services are required for this project as the City does not have the in-house
expertise to complete this specialized work.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Do not relocate the Traffic Bureau and continue paying rent to a private entity.

150



Page 3 of 4

Contract No. 32100102 Amendment: DMR Builders for the CONSENT CALENDAR
125/127 University Avenue Tenant Improvement Project July 27, 2021
CONTACT PERSON

Andrew Brozyna, Deputy Director of Public works, (510) 981-6396
Joe Enke, Acting City Engineer, Department of Public Works, (510) 981-6411
Elmar Kapfer, Supervising Civil Engineer, Department of Public Works (510) 981-3654

Attachments:
1: Resolution

151



Page 4 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. #####-N.S.

CONTRACT NO.32100102 AMENDMENT DMR BUILDERS FOR THE 125/127
UNIVERSITY AVENUE TENANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the project consists of improvements of the first-floor office space at 125/127
University Avenue; and

WHEREAS, The City has neither the labor nor the equipment necessary to undertake this
renovation project; and

WHEREAS, an invitation for bids (Plans and Specifications No. 19-11267-C) was duly
advertised, and DMR Builders was determined to be the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No 69,593-N.S. authorized the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments, extensions or change orders, until completion of the
project in accordance with the approved plans and specifications with DMR Builders for
the 125/127 University Avenue Tenant Improvement Project, in an amount not to exceed
$293,000; and

WHEREAS, initial contract funds in the amount of $293,000 were appropriated in First
Amendment to the FY 2021 Annual Appropriations Ordinance in FY 2021 Capital
Improvement Fund (501) and Parking Meter Fund (631) budgets. Funding for the contract
amendment is available in the FY 2022 Parking Meter Fund via the approval of the First
Amendment to the FY 2022 Annual Appropriations ordinance; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to execute an amendment to Contract No. 32100102 with
DMR Builders for tenant improvements at 125/127 University Avenue, increasing the
current contract amount by $146,000 for a total contract not-to-exceed amount of
$439,000. A record signature copy of the agreement and any amendments will be on file
in the Office of the City Clerk.

152



Page 1 of 9

16

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Liam Garland, Director, Public Works

Subject: Dana Complete Street Pilot Project by AC Transit

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a resolution: 1) approving the Dana Complete Street Pilot Project, including a
conceptual design repurposing an existing traffic lane to install a two-way cycle track,
construction of a boarding island for bus passengers, and specified changes to parking
and loading zones, as necessary, and directing the City Manager to direct staff to work
with Alameda-Contra Costa County Transit District (AC Transit) in developing the
detailed engineering design of the project; 2) authorizing the City Manager to direct staff
to grant permits for construction activities within City Right-of-Way, contingent on Public
Works staff approval of final construction drawings and specifications from AC Transit,
and directing the City Manager to direct staff to work with AC Transit on the evaluation
phase of the project following construction.

SUMMARY

AC Transit has proposed a Dana Complete Street Pilot Project to improve transit
operations and bicycle safety on Dana Street between Bancroft Way and Dwight Way.
AC Transit’'s Dana Complete Street Pilot Project is consistent with the City’s 2017
Bicycle Plan, General Plan Transportation Element Policy T-4 “Transit First”, September
27, 2016 City Council support of Southside pilot projects, and an incremental approach
to implementing Southside Plan Policy T-C2 as described in a July 14, 2015 City
Manager referral. The pilot project complements the City’s Southside Complete Streets
Project. AC Transit will construct and evaluate the pilot in order to recommend possible
changes to the design for the City’s Southside project for Dana Street. AC Transit, in
partnership with Public Works staff, has developed a conceptual design, conducted
public engagement, and refined that design based on input from the public and
technical staff from various City Divisions and Departments. AC Transit seeks the
approval of the Berkeley City Council for the pilot project, including the conceptual
design, and authorization to proceed with detailed engineering design, application for
construction permits, construction activities in the City right-of-way, and post-
construction evaluation of the pilot project. A detailed project timeline is found later in
this report.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 153
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
16


Page 2 of 9

Dana Complete Street Pilot Project CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The project is funded and managed by AC Transit. There are no direct fiscal impacts to
the City, and it is anticipated that the contribution of Public Works staff time would be no
more than a few hours a month for project review and internal coordination. AC Transit
is utilizing various federal, state, and local funds for design, construction, and evaluation
of the Dana Complete Street Pilot Project, which includes installation of a two-way cycle
track and a bus boarding island within the project limits. Fiscal impacts of the City’s
Southside Complete Streets project, which will construct permanent improvements
based on the AC Transit pilot project, will be addressed in a future report.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

AC Transit, in partnership with Public Works staff, has developed a conceptual design,
conducted public engagement, and refined that design based on input from the public
and technical staff from various City Divisions and Departments.

Traffic, Parking and Commercial and Passenger Loading Zones

As shown in Attachment 2: the Dana Complete Street Pilot Project would reduce the
two existing traffic lanes to one remaining traffic lane to make space for a continuous
protected bi-directional cycle track on the west side of the street. Dana Street is one-
way southbound for drivers in the project area — no change in directionality of vehicle
traffic is proposed. The traffic operations analysis conducted for the Dana Street/Haste
Street intersection where the new bus boarding island would be constructed has
confirmed that the intersection would continue to operate without significant delays with
the proposed project.

In order to reduce potential conflicts between bicyclists and buses as well as meeting
access requirements for fire apparatus, on-street parking spaces and commercial and
passenger loading zones, except for one blue zone disabled parking space, are
proposed to be moved from the west side of the street to the east side of the street.
Overall, paid parking supply on Dana Street would be reduced, while Residential
Parking Permit (RPP) and passenger loading zones would be increased. The proposed
project would remove approximately ten of the 20 existing paid parking spaces along
Dana Street. The proposed project would also result in an increase of two new
residential permit parking spaces. The project adds a total of four new passenger
loading zone spaces (white curb), converts one existing commercial loading zone
(yellow curb) to paid parking, and adds two new commercial loading zones (yellow
curb). The project proposes to relocate one blue zone disabled parking space from
Dana Street to Haste Street, around the corner from the existing location. AC Transit
staff have worked closely with City staff to develop a conceptual design that ensures
continued parking accessibility as part of the new bikeway design. Details regarding
changes to parking and ADA accessibility as a result of public input are described in the
next section.

Page 2

154



Page 3 of 9

Dana Complete Street Pilot Project CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

AC Transit is the responsible agency for environmental clearance of the Project.
Following changes to CEQA resulting from Senate Bill (SB) 288, the Project qualifies for
pedestrian, bicycle, and transit facility categorical exemptions from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and is categorically excluded from National
Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) requirements as an improvement to existing
street facilities.

Public Engagement

On April 15, 2021, AC Transit staff presented the conceptual design to the Berkeley
Transportation Commission, which marked the start of Public Comment Period and start
of community stakeholder engagement meetings. In mid-May, AC Transit sent letters to
54 property owners, 47 business owners and 266 residents along Dana Street between
Dwight Way and Bancroft Way in announcing a virtual community meeting in late May.
In addition, details of the meeting were announced on AC Transit's website
(www.actransit.org) and via email to eNews subscribers. AC Transit and City staff met
virtually and in person with major stakeholders and important institutions along the
corridor, such as the Telegraph Business Improvement District and the University of
California, Berkeley as well as reaching out to transit riders, walking, and bicycling
advocacy groups, and community-based organizations such as the First Congregational
Church of Berkeley and the Church in Berkeley. The Dana Street Project virtual
community meeting was held on May 27th, 6pm to 7:30pm and was attended by over
30 people. The virtual community meeting recording is available on the AC Transit
website.

The public comment period closed on June 7, and as of June 8, AC Transit had
recorded 55 individual comments via email and online virtual community meeting Q&A.
Public comments received included support for the project, concerns for changes to
parking and loading spaces, need for parking and loading spaces on Dana Street in
front of their properties, need for clear signage, lane marking and bicycle detection for
people riding bicycles, need for a roadway design that accommodates buses,
emergency vehicles and large trucks, and concerns about the location of consolidated
bus stops and the proposed bus boarding island.

Based on comments received, the City and AC Transit have refined the conceptual
design as shown in Attachment 2. In response to comments from UC Berkeley, AC
Transit has modified the parking along two student residential properties, Blackwell
(Bancroft Way to Durant St) and Unit 3 (Durant St to Channing Way). Parking along the
frontage of these UC properties has been modified to ensure adequate maintenance,
solid waste, and freight access for UC Berkeley facilities operations. Based in part on
comments received from and a field meeting with First Congregational Church (Durant
St to Channing Way), the existing bus stop on Durant St at Dana St would be
consolidated with the nearby existing bus stop on Durant St at Ellsworth St, and this
former bus stop location on Durant St at Dana St would be converted to a passenger

Page 3 155



Page 4 of 9

Dana Complete Street Pilot Project CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

loading zone (white curb) to serve the church and the East Bay School for Boys which is
co-located on the property. To serve this loading zone, AC Transit is proposing to make
spot accessibility improvements to the sidewalks on the accessible path of travel to/from
this new passenger loading zone to the church’s disability access ramp on Dana St.
Based in part on comments received from a field meeting with the Church in Berkeley
(Haste St at Dana St), three existing two-hour time-limited unpriced parking spaces on
Haste St would be converted into a passenger loading zone adjacent to the church’s
disabled access ramp. Because these new passenger loading spaces would require
access to the passenger side of vehicles from the street, AC Transit would slightly
modify the roadway striping in this area, utilizing surplus roadway space to create a
painted buffer passenger-side loading area. The intent of this area is to allow
passengers additional space to load, away from passing vehicles. The City's final
approval of the Project and granting of construction permits will be contingent on receipt
of acceptable final construction drawings and specifications from AC Transit.

On June 17, 2021, AC Transit staff provided project updates and summary of the public
outreach activities to the Berkeley Transportation Commission, which voted
unanimously (Ayes: Ghosh, Gosselin, Greene, Leung, Lutzker, Parolek, Zander. Noes:
None, Abstain: None, Absent: None, Motion carried 7-0-0-0) to recommend approval of
the pilot project by the Berkeley City Council.

Dana Complete Street Pilot Project Timeline

e Conceptual Design, Preliminary Engineering,
Public Outreach, and Environmental Review June 2018 to July 2021

e Detailed Engineering Design Summer 2021 to Fall 2021
e Advertise project & award construction Winter 2021/2022
contract
e Construction Spring 2022 — Fall 2022
e Evaluation Fall 2022
BACKGROUND

The Dana Complete Street Pilot Project would improve safety and access for people
walking, biking, riding transit, and driving on Dana Street between Bancroft Way and
Dwight Way. Project objectives are to improve safety for everyone traveling along Dana
Street; provide a more comfortable bicycling and walking experience for people of all
ages and abilities; and improve connectivity and accessibility to encourage transit,
bicycling and walking trips.

AC Transit’'s Dana Complete Street Pilot Project is consistent with the City’s 2017
Bicycle Plan, which recommends evaluation of a protected bikeway cycle track on Dana
Street between Dwight Way and Bancroft Way. As a transit operations improvement

Page 4 156



Page 5 of 9

Dana Complete Street Pilot Project CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

pilot, it is also consistent with General Plan Transportation Element Policy T-4 “Transit
First”. On September 27, 2016 City Council expressed support for Southside pilot
projects, which included a Dana Complete Street Pilot Project as one of three
anticipated pilot projects on Bancroft Way, Telegraph Ave, and Dana St. The pilot is
consistent with an incremental approach to implementing Southside Plan Policy T-C2 as
described in a July 14, 2015 City Manager referral to “convert Dana Street between
Dwight to Bancroft from a one-way street to a two-way street...to improve its safety and
functionality as a bike route”.

As a pilot of the Southside Complete Streets Project, the Dana Complete Street Project
is a Strategic Plan Priority Project, advancing the City’s goals to provide state-of-the-art,
well-maintained infrastructure, amenities, and facilities.

AC Transit’s Dana Complete Street Pilot Project complements the City’s Southside
Complete Streets Project. Construction of the Dana pilot project is expected to be
complete in 2022, followed immediately by an evaluation of the pilot project’s
performance. AC Transit’s evaluation consultant will recommend additional design
changes, if any are needed, for integration into the City’s Southside Complete Streets
Project’s detailed engineering design process. At a minimum, the City’s Southside
project would repave the entire street and would seek to make temporary elements of
the Dana pilot project permanent.

AC Transit operates Line 6, serving 5,700 passengers on an average weekday (pre-
COVID). Line 6 connects downtown Berkeley and downtown Oakland via Telegraph
Avenue, one of AC Transit’s Major Corridors,. The Line 6 bus stop on the near side of
Dana Street at Haste Street has no rider amenities except for a single bus stop sign. In
addition, it is located along an ADA-inaccessible landscaped planting strip. The
proposed far-side bus stop relocation and the construction of a new bus boarding island
would provide improved rider amenities, an ADA-accessible bus stop, and improved
transit operations. Together with other bus stop and signal improvements along
Telegraph Avenue, the Pilot Project will improve operations of Line 6.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The Project would result in more efficient transit operations overall, and would
encourage more people to use public transportation and engage in active modes of
transportation instead of driving. Installation of a two-way bikeway on Dana Street is
anticipated to increase the number of bicyclists, which is consistent with the 2009
Berkeley Climate Action Plan Policy 5.a. that calls for expanding and improving
Berkeley’s bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure. The Plan sets targets of reducing
transportation emissions 80% below year 2000 levels by 2050. The Plan further states
that transportation modes such as public transit, walking, and bicycling must become
the primary means of fulfilling the City’s mobility needs to meet these targets.

Page 5

157



Page 6 of 9

Dana Complete Street Pilot Project CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Dana Street Project implements the City of Berkeley Transit-first policy by

giving priority to alternative transportation and transit over single-occupant vehicles on
Transit Routes; evaluates a two-way cycle track as recommended in the 2017 Berkeley
Bicycle Plan; incrementally implements Southside Plan Policy T-C2; and is consistent
with past Berkeley City Council support of Southside pilot projects, including Dana
Street.

As a pilot project, AC Transit will evaluate the pilot’s effectiveness once it is
constructed. Evaluation may identify additional design changes, if any are needed, for
integration into the City’s Southside Complete Street Project. The City’s Southside
Project is planned to repave Dana Street and make the Pilot project’s temporary
elements permanent.

Approval of the pilot project will keep the project on schedule for detailed engineering
design and advertising for construction bids in late 2021, followed by construction of the
project in 2022. Evaluation of the constructed project in 2022 complements and helps
avoid delays to the City’s Southside Complete Streets design phase, which is
anticipated to be ongoing throughout 2022.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

Council could opt not to approve the pilot project at this time, and instead defer the item
to a future Council agenda. This decision would delay the subsequent detailed
engineering design and construction phases of the project. Delays in the AC Transit
pilot project could result in delays to the City’s Southside Complete Streets project,
which has grant funding deadlines.

CONTACT PERSON

Farid Javandel, Transportation Manager, Public Works, 981-7061
Eric Anderson, Senior Planner, Public Works, 981-7062

Dianne Yee, Associate Planner, Public Works, 981-7068

Attachments:
1: Resolution
2: Dana Complete Street Pilot Project Conceptual Design

Page 6

158



Page 7 of 9

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
DANA COMPLETE STREET PILOT PROJECT

WHEREAS, there is a gap in the City of Berkeley low-stress bikeway network on Dana
Street between Bancroft Way and Dwight Way and the City of Berkeley Bicycle Plan
recommends installation of a two-way cycle track on the segment of Dana Street between
Bancroft Way and Dwight Way; and

WHEREAS, promoting environmentally beneficial alternatives to driving, including
bicycling, walking, and taking transit, supports the goals of the Berkeley Climate Action
Plan and Berkeley Strategic Plan and may also lead to improved public health outcomes;
and

WHEREAS, improvements to transit service is supported by the City's General Plan
Transportation Element Policy T-4 “Transit-First Policy” Transit First Policy, and
improvements in efficiency and reliability of transit in the Southside neighborhood should
encourage more people to use public transportation instead of driving, with this mode
shift resulting in overall decreases in pollutants and greenhouse gas emissions; and

WHEREAS, AC Transit, in partnership with Public Works staff, has developed a
conceptual design, conducted public engagement, and refined that design based on
input from the public and technical staff from various City Divisions and Departments,
and will continue to engage and seek the approval of City staff during the completion of
detailed engineering design; and

WHEREAS, the proposed improvements for the Dana Complete Street Pilot Project
(Project) will begin construction in mid-2022 and the construction project will be
managed by AC Transit who will retain a construction management (CM) team,
consisting of engineers and inspectors, during the construction of these improvements;
and

WHEREAS, the City will grant permits for construction activities within City Right-of-
Way, contingent on Public Works staff approval of final construction drawings and
specifications from AC Transit, and City engineering staff and inspectors will provide
assistance as typical for construction engineering permit activities in the City Right-of-
Way.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
Council of the City of Berkeley approves the Dana Complete Street Pilot Project, including
a conceptual design repurposing an existing traffic lane to install a two-way cycle track, a
boarding island for bus passengers, and specified changes to parking and loading zones,
as necessary, and directs the City Manager to direct staff to work with Alameda-Contra

159



Page 8 of 9

July 27, 2021

Costa County Transit District (AC Transit) in developing the detailed engineering design
of the project.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley authorizes the
City Manager to direct staff to grant permits for construction activities within City Right-
of-Way, contingent on Public Works staff approval of final construction drawings and
specifications from AC Transit; and directs the City Manager to direct staff to work with
AC Transit on the evaluation phase of the project following construction.

Page 2 160



Page 9 of 9
DANA COMPLETE STREET PILOT PROJECT ELEMENTS

Sidewalk improvements 1 accessible parking space and 3 passenger
along entire church frontage 4—loading spaces along Haste St.
F 1

ATTACHMENT 2

Sidewalk improvements along Dana St. and Relocated bus stop replaced with
along passenger loading zone on Haste St. — o 2 Passenger Loading Zone spaces
\ . = " X Vel X
<
= % 2 - %«% <
9 Z “&%
'S
Z B s DANA STREET H S
2 : l a [ ) I % S
T
(9] O A ® A m g
[ Pay Parking I Residential Permit Parking I Accessible Parking Space (Blue Zone) Commercial Loading Zone 2772 Sidewalk Accessibility Spot Improvements
Bus Boarding Island ‘%’ Bus Stop Removal B Traffic Signal Improvement ® Pay Parking Station Cycling Infrastructure @ =
I
<ting S Secti Proposed Proposed
Existing Street Section A Typical Street Section g Section at Bus Boarding Island

161


eande
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2


162



Page 1 of 23

17

- [ CITY °F

-

o
m
2
m
—

m

Energy Commission

CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Energy Commission
Submitted by: Janet Stromberg, Chairperson, Energy Commission

Subject: Creation of Climate Equity Action Fund

RECOMMENDATION

The Energy Commission recommends that City Council create a Climate Equity Action
Fund, designate a process for making funding decisions, and appropriate $600,000 to
create a pilot test.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The Commission recommends funding of $500,000 for the current fiscal year, with an
additional $100,000 to pay for staff costs associated with the Finance Department and
Office of Energy and Sustainable Development administering applications and
disbursing funds.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

On May 26, 2021, the Berkeley Energy Commission voted to send these
recommendations to create a Climate Equity Action Fund, designate a process for
making funding decisions, and appropriate $600,000 to create a pilot test. Moved by
Commissioner Leger, second by Commissioner Guliasi, motion carried by vote 7-0-0-0;
Ayes: Stromberg, Moore, Gil, Guliasi, Leger, Paulos, Zuckerman. Noes: None. Abstain:
None. Absent: None.

The Fund would be a repository of grant and municipal funds that would be used to pay
for equitable climate-related pilot programs for low-income households at or below 50%
of Area Median Income, or as otherwise designated by Council.

The Fund would support the goals of the Climate Action Plan, and specifically the
Electric Mobility Roadmap and the Existing Building Electrification Strategy. It would
provide financial incentives and support for low-income households to reduce carbon
emissions from transportation and natural gas use in buildings, while lowering costs and
improving quality of life. Some examples for transportation may include transit, electric
mobility, and walking and biking. For buildings, some examples are improved energy
efficiency, rooftop solar, and efficient electric appliances.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 163
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
17


Page 2 of 23

Creation of Climate Equity Action Fund ACTION CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

Council would request the Energy Commission (or successor) and the Facilities,
Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment & Sustainability Policy Committee (FITES),
in consultation with the public and community groups, to provide input to staff and
Council about eligible categories of fund expenditures (e.g., transportation modal shift or
building electrification) and processes to maximize emissions reductions and equitable
impacts for eligible households.

BACKGROUND

In response to the Council’s Fossil Fuel Free Berkeley proclamation and Declaration of
a Climate Emergency, and as a means of pursuing the City’s Climate Action Plan, the
Council put Measure HH on the November 2020 ballot to create the Climate Equity
Action Fund.

Measure HH would have reformed the Utility User Tax (UUT) by a) eliminating it for
households on the CARE and FERA rate discount plans, and b) raising it for other
customers from 7.5% to 10%. This would have raised about $2.3 million per year for the
City, to fund the Climate Equity Action Fund.

The Fund would have been used to support actions by residents and businesses to cut
greenhouse gas emissions, with an emphasis on assisting low-income residents,
remediating past environmental injustices, and promoting equity.

The Climate Equity Action Fund fits into the Strategic Plan, advancing our goals to:

o foster a dynamic, sustainable, and locally-based economy.

e create affordable housing and housing support service for our most vulnerable
community members.

e create a resilient, safe, connected, and prepared city.

e champion and demonstrate social and racial equity.

e be a global leader in addressing climate change, advancing environmental
justice, and protecting the environment.

Unfortunately Measure HH did not pass. Subsequent research on voter attitudes
showed strong support for taking action on climate change, but disagreement on how to
fund it and a lack of understanding on how the Fund would work.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

Climate change is the challenge and threat of our modern society. The United States is
the largest cumulative contributor of carbon emissions in the atmosphere and has one
of the highest rates of emissions per capita. Berkeley’s emissions come largely from
transportation and from natural gas used in buildings.

Berkeley also sees very wide disparities in income and wealth, compounded by a long
history of social and racial inequity. This inequity is reflected in the environmental

164



Page 3 of 23

Creation of Climate Equity Action Fund ACTION CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

burdens of vulnerable communities, barriers to clean transportation, and disparities in
the quality of housing.

By supporting local climate action with an emphasis on low-income households and
vulnerable communities, we would be taking action on both of these problems, working
to solve climate change while creating a more equitable society.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

As mentioned, research into voter attitudes on Measure HH showed that while there
was broad support for local climate action, many voters were not clear on what the
Climate Equity Action Fund would do. By creating the Fund, establishing its structure
and process, and making a round of grants, the Council would be able to show voters
the Fund in action, creating a better understanding and broader support for the Fund.
This could lead to increased voter for future ballot measures or other funding strategies.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

Voters could be asked again in 2022 to support the Fund, but the Commission believes
it would be more likely to succeed if we address the concerns that some voters
expressed after the 2020 vote.

CITY MANAGER

The City Manager takes no position on the content and recommendations of the
Commission’s report. In its budget adoption action on June 29, 2021, the City Council
allocated $600,000 for the creation of a Climate Equity Action Fund.

CONTACT PERSON
Billi Romain, Secretary, Energy Commission, 510-981-7432

Attachments:
1: Campaign Report for Berkeley Measure HH

165



Page 4 of 23
ATTACHMENT 1

Campaign Report for Berkeley Measure HH

Prepared by Bentham Paulos, March 3, 2021

This is a summary of the 2020 campaign for the Climate Equity Action Fund (Measure HH), an
analysis of why it failed, and recommendations for next steps.

Measure HH would have raised about $2.4 million per year to fund actions that reduce carbon
emissions. To raise the funds, it would have increased the utility users tax (UUT) from 7.5% to
10%, while eliminating the tax for low-income households. The funds would have been spent
with a focus on equity, seeking to cut pollution in disadvantaged communities, lower energy
and transportation costs for low-income households, and create jobs.

The timing of the measure seemed good, coming on the heels of catastrophic wildfires, large
public #climatestrike events in favor of climate action, and four years of Trump. The strong
emphasis on equity positioned it well after the Black Lives Matter protests.

The operation of the campaign seemed like a success —

e |t was endorsed by 27 organizations, including some very prominent ones, along with a
majority of the city council and notable residents

e It raised over $16,000, so was able to support multiple mailings and lit drops, online and
social media ads, and text banking

e |t got some national news coverage, and favorable op-eds in the local press

e |t had very little organized opposition

166


https://paulosanalysis.com/

Page 5 of 23

Nonetheless, HH failed by a margin of 53 to 47, even as all other city measures were approved.

To find out why, the campaign analyzed election results, ran a small online survey of voters, and
collected anecdotes. The campaign is summarized in section 1 of this report, followed by
research on voting results. Section 3 analyzes the survey and anecdotes, while section 4 goes
into greater depth on possible conclusions. The report ends by discussing next steps.

In short, it seems the most likely reasons that HH failed were a combination of the following:

o Voters did not understand how the funds would be spent, and a sufficient number did
not seem to trust the City to spend them well. It was not clear whether the Fund would
be used by the City or whether it would pay for incentives given out to residents and
businesses. This was exacerbated by the measure being crafted as a general tax to avoid
a 2/3 threshold, rather than a “special tax” with the funds dedicated to a specific use.

o The measure was not presented well on the official ballot statement. The one-sentence
title emphasized the tax increase more than the benefits that would come from a fund.
The ballot statement was by far the main source of information to voters.

o A number of voters opposed any tax increase, or preferred to tax others rather than
themselves. Revenue measures GG and FF did not fall on all voters, while HH did. (On the
other hand, Alameda County Measure W raised the sales tax, which also affects all
voters; it passed by a very narrow margin.)

o The campaign did not communicate the equity aspects well enough. Despite explicit
efforts to get the message out, there was low awareness that HH would have cut taxes
for low-income households and focused spending on disadvantaged communities.

o The campaign communications were positive rather than negative, so there was no “bad
guy” to motivate voters, but instead a vision of positive collective action.

The good news is that Berkeley voters are in fact concerned about global warming and most
think that local action is warranted, even if they voted against HH. This suggests that they did
not reject the idea of a Climate Equity Action Fund or the kinds of things the Fund was intended
to support, but instead need more specifics about what it would do before supporting it.

To test this theory, the campaign believes the City should create the Fund by Council action,
ask a city commission to establish a process and guidelines, and seed it with a modest amount
of funding. The Fund would then be able to run through a round of grants by early 2022,
showing voters what Measure HH intended to accomplish. Then the Fund could be presented to
voters again to ask for an ongoing source of revenues.

One way to expand this pilot effort would be for the City to request donations to the Fund from
prominent donors, such as large businesses or developers. If the City were to appropriate
$500,000, and raise matching funds from others, the Fund could make, for example, 10 grants
of $100,000 to local climate equity organizations and businesses.

167



Page 6 of 23

Contents
Campaign Report for Berkeley Measure HH 1
A) Campaign Analysis 5
1. Leadership 5
2. Fundraising and spending 5
3. Coalition support 6
4. Opposition 6
5. Volunteers 7
6. Promotion 7
B) Results 10
1. Election results 10
2. Interpretation of election results 11
C) Survey results 12
D) Conclusions 18
E) Next Steps 19
3

168



A) Campaign Analysis

1. Leadership

Page 7 of 23

The campaign was led by a leadership committee, which participated in regular planning calls

and organized actions.

Bentham Paulos, Berkeley Energy Commission
Kate Harrison, Berkeley City Council
Martin Bourque and Denaya Shorter, Ecology Center

Kathy Dervin, 350 Bay Area

Elyce Klein, Citizen’s Climate Lobby

Igor Tregub, Sierra Club

Mary Ann Furda, volunteer coordinator

Linda Currie, Transition Berkeley
Harry Chomsky, Treasurer

2. Fundraising and spending

The campaign raised $16,584.38 from 63 donors. Major donors included the SEIU ($5000), the

Green Advocacy Project (54000), Nick Josefowitz ($2500), and Dave Margulius ($1000).

All of the funds were expended, with the bulk of the money going for printing and mailing
(511,050), online ads ($1,648), the campaign treasurer ($1,260), and text banking (5492).

Who What Amount $
Autumn Press Printing 10,300.85
Harry Chomsky Campaign Treasurer 1,260
Cityside Berkeleyside ads 1,000
Facebook Ads 648.59
Sierra Club, SF Bay Chapter Campaigns SMO Slate mailer 500
Albany Cares About Climate, Yes on Measure DD, controlled by Donation of remaining 467.21
Preston Jordan funds to Albany campaign

Stephanie Perez Design 400
Twilio Text banking 392.82
WDRG 2020 Slate mailing 250
Amazon.com Gifts 187.14
PayPal Fee 146.02
Ben Paulos Reimbursements 135.38
Tony Kay Stipend 100
Validito Text banking 100
Mary Ann Furda Reimbursements 88.37
California Secretary of State Fee 50
Internal Revenue Service Fee 50

169



Page 8 of 23

3. Coalition support

The campaign got formal endorsements from 27 organizations, many elected officials, and a
number of prominent individuals.

Endorsing organizations included:

1. League of Conservation Voters of the East Bay 15. Berkeley Citizens Action
2. SEIU 1021 - Service Employees International Union 16. Environmental Health Working Group of the Berkeley
3. Alameda Labor Council Climate Action Coalition
4 Sierra Club 17. Sunrise Movement Bay Area
5. League of Women Voters: Berkeley, Emeryville, 18. Berkeley Progressive Alliance
Albany 19. Elders Climate Action (ECA) NorCal Chapter
6. East Bay Working Families 20. Alameda County Democratic Party
7. Wellstone Democratic Renewal Club 21. McGee-Spaulding Neighbors in Action
8. Greenpeace USA 22. Walk Bike Berkeley
9. Berkeley Tenants Union 23. 350 Berkeley Hub
10. California Interfaith Power & Light 24. 350 East Bay
11. Climate Reality Project Bay Area Chapter, Alameda 25. The Ecology Center

County Policy Squad
ounty Folicy >qua 26. Green the Church

12. Green Party of California
¥ : ! 27. Transition Berkeley
13. Citizens’ Climate Lobby, Alameda County Chapter

14. United Nations Association — East Bay Chapter

Elected officials included Mayor Arreguin and five members of the City Council.

Some notable individual endorsers were Alice Waters of Chez Panisse; Daniel Kammen,
Professor at UC-Berkeley; Annie Leonard, Executive Director of Greenpeace USA; David
Hochschild, Chair of the California Energy Commission; Kate Gordon, Director of Governor
Newsom's Office of Planning and Research; and Jon Wellinghoff, Past Chair of the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

4. Opposition

The measure had little organized opposition. The Alameda County Taxpayers Association wrote
the opposition statement for the ballot book, and an op-ed was published in Berkeleyside

170


https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Elections/HH%20-%20Primary%20Against%20-%20FINAL.pdf
https://www.berkeleyside.com/2020/10/15/opinion-no-on-measure-hh-berkeley-ca-election-2020-climate-change

Page 9 of 23

against it." A group called Berkeleyans Against Measure HH filed campaign papers, with Isabelle
Gaston as the treasurer, but they reported raising no money.

The opposition statement and the op-ed attacked the measure as “well-intentioned, but badly
flawed,” and charged that the money would not be spent well, or even on climate action
measures, but instead on pensions and potholes.

5. Volunteers

The Citizens Climate Lobby provided significant volunteer assistance to the campaign, with Tony
Kay donating design services for mailings and materials, and Tony Surdna managing online ads
and text banking software. The Ecology Center and 350 Bay Area also did significant work to
mobilize volunteers and do online outreach.

There was a sufficient, but not overwhelming, number of volunteers for in-person work such as
literature drops, sign distribution, tabling and public events (no canvassing was done). This was
probably due to the impact of the pandemic and shelter-in-place order. Nonetheless,
volunteers did distribute tens of thousands of pieces of literature to doors, often in combination
with other campaigns. Given the huge turnout for recent climate marches and “the Greta
Effect” we hoped there would be a larger response, especially among young people. But efforts
to contact high school and college students were disrupted by school closures.

6. Promotion

Canvassing: The campaign did not canvas, due to the pandemic. Ben Paulos ran an informal
poll on Nextdoor that suggested about half of residents may have been antagonized by being
visited by a canvasser. (The canvassing done by the campaign for mayoral candidate Wayne
Hsiung was the subject of much hostile discussion on Nextdoor.)

Instead we relied more on direct mail, text banking, online ads, and yard signs.

Mail: We did two major mailings, one directed at apartment dwellers and the other at
homeowners. We distributed our own literature, and participated in literature drops with other

campaigns, focusing especially on districts 2, 3, and 4.

Op-Eds: There were three op-eds published in support of the measure, in Berkeleyside and the
Daily Cal.

Opinion: Climate equity now — vote ves on Measure HH

! Authors: John Stephen Kromer is an energy efficiency program evaluator. Eric Friedman is a 20-year Berkeley
resident. Isabelle Gaston is a medical and regulatory document writer and former city council candidate, president
of the North East Berkeley Association and member of the Citizens Budget Committee. Barbara Gilbert is a
longtime Berkeley resident and former officer in northeast Berkeley and citywide civic associations, labor
commissioner, mayoral aide and city council candidate.

171


https://public.netfile.com/Pub2/RequestPDF.aspx?id=193768150
https://www.berkeleyside.com/2020/10/20/berkeley-elections-ballotmeasures-climate-equity-measure-hh

Page 10 of 23

By Kate Harrison, Oct. 20, 2020, Berkeleyside

Opinion: Vote ‘yves’ on Berkeley’s Measure HH to support action on climate change
By Carl Anthony, Martin Bourque, Rev. Ambrose Carroll, Kathy Dervin, Dan Kammen,
Annie Leonard, Bentham Paulos, Karma Smart, and Igor Tregub, Oct. 15, 2020,
Berkeleyside

Vote ves on local ballot measures to support equitable climate action
By Andy Kelley, September 15, 2020, Daily Cal

Press: Press coverage was limited, especially in the local press. While the Ecology Center
organized an online press briefing event, only one reporter attended, from the Berkeley Times.
The Times does not post articles online so it is unknown if they reported on the measure. The
Berkeley High and UC papers ran columns in favor:

Measure HH Is Necessary to Lower Berkeley’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Ariel
Spagnolo, BHS Jacket, October 31, 2020,

Here’s how vou should vote on Berkeley’s 8 city measures, Daily Cal editorial, October
20, 2020

Virtually all of the press coverage was due to a press release Paulos sent to selected out-of-town
media, with assistance from Climate Nexus.

Berkeley Puts Equitable Climate Action on the Ballot — Episode 115 of Local Energy
Rules, podcast from the Institute for Local Self Reliance, October 21, 2020.

This innovative tax plan is designed to help cities pay for climate action, Fast Company,
October 21, 2020.

The Most Important Climate Ballot Initiatives to Watch on Election Day, Dharna Noor,
Gizmodo, Oct. 23, 2020

Online ads: Sirna, with help from Denaya Shorter and Kathy Dervin, set up an advertising
account with Facebook, with ads targeted toward Berkeley residents. The ads included banners
and videos. An additional round of ads was run in Berkeleyside in the few weeks before
election day.

Videos: Two videos were used for the campaign. The first featured Mayor Arreguin giving a
short speech on the Measure. The full 4 minute video was posted on the campaign website,
while a 30 second clip was used for social media ads. The other video was a short clip of a
woman (Libby Lee-Egan) riding her child in a cargo bike with HH signs on the side, used for the
Berkeleyside ad and social media.

172


https://www.berkeleyside.com/2020/10/15/berkeley-ca-election-2020-measure-hh-climate-change-equity
https://www.dailycal.org/2020/09/15/vote-yes-on-local-ballot-measures-to-support-equitable-climate-action/
https://berkeleyhighjacket.com/2020/opinion/measure-hh-is-necessary-to-lower-berkeleys-greenhouse-gas-emissions/
https://www.dailycal.org/2020/10/20/heres-how-you-should-vote-on-berkeleys-eight-city-measures/
https://ilsr.org/berkeley-measurehh-ben-paulos-ler-115/
https://ilsr.org/berkeley-measurehh-ben-paulos-ler-115/
https://www.fastcompany.com/90566250/this-innovative-tax-plan-is-designed-to-help-cities-pay-for-climate-action
https://earther.gizmodo.com/the-most-important-climate-ballot-initiatives-to-watch-1845432720

Page 11 of 23

Social Media: Accounts were created on Twitter and Facebook, and posts were placed on
Nextdoor. The Facebook and Twitter accounts attracted 88 and 68 followers, respectively, with
messages amplified by campaign participants and organizations.

Yard signs: The campaign printed and distributed about 400 yard signs, via Autumn Press.

Web site: BerkeleyClimate.org was built by BHS student Jerome Paulos, with pages on
fundraising, endorsements, an FAQ, and social media links. The site was able to handle
donations and to collect endorsements from individuals and organizations.

173


http://berkeleyclimate.org/

Page 12 of 23

Text banking: Tony Sirna from the Citizens Climate Lobby set up a text-banking effort, with tens
of thousands of text messages sent to registered voters.

Virtual house party: Due to the pandemic there were no house parties or rallies. Instead,

Ecology Center organized a virtual house party with presentations by Dan Kammen, Karma
Smart, Dr. Ashley McClure, and others.

174



Page 13 of 23

B) Election Results

Voter turnout in Berkeley this year was 81.5% of registered voters, up from 78.1% in the 2016
presidential election. The pandemic reduced the pool of potential voters as the UC student
population was smaller than normal. The number of registered voters fell from 83,778 in 2016
to 79,072 this year, but interest in the election was so strong that the number of votes cast
dropped by only 980 votes.

The number of votes cast and turnout both reached record levels in districts 1, 2, 3 and 5,
exceeding 2008, when Obama was first elected, the year with the highest number of votes ever
cast in Berkeley. The number of votes cast in the other districts, which include student
neighborhoods, fell even though turnout was higher due to the reduced number of student
voters. In District 7, the student supermajority district, only 3126 votes were cast, down from an
already relatively low 4898 votes in 2016. The number of voters was two or three times higher
in other districts.

Measure HH failed by a margin of 3437 votes. 89% of ballots cast included a vote on HH. HH
won narrowly in districts 7, 4 and 8. The losing vote margins were largest in districts 6, 2, and 5.
Districts 5 and 6 tend to be more affluent, with more homeowners. District 2 is the least
affluent, with more renters.

Votes Percentage
No 30,612 52.97 %
Yes 27,175 47.03 %

10

175



Page 14 of 23

A number of guesses were put forward about why HH failed with voters.

Too many taxes: Coming at a time of economic disruption, voters may have thought this was a
bad time to raise taxes at all. But other tax measures did pass.

Daily Planet: “Measure HH’s failure may be related to the presence of multiple tax measures on the
ballot. Voters did easily pass Measure FF, the firefighting/emergency response tax, (now leading 75%
to 25%) and Measure GG, the Uber/Lyft rider tax (now leading 60% to 40%).”

“Taxing me not thee”: HH raised the utility tax for all residents and businesses except
low-income households on CARE/FERA rates, so voters were asked to tax themselves rather
than “somebody else,” as in the case with measure GG (taxing Uber/Lyft riders) or FF, the fire
safety measure (taxing property owners). However, county measure W, a sales tax increase, did
pass.

Daily Planet: “Berkeley voters approved Measure FF, the parcel tax to fund Berkeley emergency
services by an almost 3-1 margin, and approved Measure GG that taxes rides on Uber and Lyft.
Berkeley voters also favored Alameda County’s Measure W. However, Berkeley voters

rejected Measure HH which would have increased the city’s Utility Users Tax, which appears on
everyone’s PG&E bill.”

Ballot title and language: The title and description of the measure both emphasized the tax
more than the climate equity action fund, the cost more than the benefit. The short title of the
measure was “Utility Users Tax” while the official description was:

“Shall an ordinance increasing the Utility Users Tax on electricity and gas from 7.5% to 10%, with
exemptions for low-income users, for general municipal services, including programs to equitably
reduce local greenhouse gas emissions, and authorizing the City Council to increase the gas users tax
by an additional 2.5%, with the total tax estimated to generate $2.4 million annually, until repealed
by the voters, be adopted?”

11

176


https://www.berkeleydailyplanet.com/issue/2020-12-11/article/48899?headline=How-Berkeley-Voted-Biden-93.3-Trump-4.0-br-Trump-Vote-Second-Lowest-in-Nation---Rob-Wrenn

Page 15 of 23

Berkeleyside: “It’s hard to know why any particular measure fails, but Martin Bourque hypothesized
that the abundance of new taxes on the ballot this year contributed to Measure HH’s rejection. The
language describing Measure HH also focused on the tax rather than how it would combat climate
change and support renters, low-income residents and Black, brown and indigenous communities,
Bourque said.”

Lack of student turnout: As mentioned, the student population in Berkeley was lowered by the
pandemic, as UC moved to online classes. However, student turnout is often low for local
measures, as students are often registered to vote elsewhere.

General and personal anxiety about the economy: Many voters may have either lost their jobs
or felt insecure about the economy, making them less likely to vote to raise their own taxes.
However, they did approve other taxes.

Berkeleyside: Mayor Jesse Arreguin said he thought Measure HH may have lost because it had a direct
impact on people’s pocketbooks, particularly now while people are at home a lot. While there was a
carve-out for low-income residents, others would have seen their utility rates on gas and electricity go
from 7.5% to 10%. The measure would have generated about $2.3 million a year. “We’re in a pandemic
and people are facing economic challenges,” said Arreguin.

C) Survey results

To test the theories of why HH failed, the campaign ran an online survey about a month after
the election. To get a reasonably random set of respondents, the campaign texted registered
voters used the same list of phone numbers used for text banking, supplemented by posts on
Nextdoor.

In total, the survey got 97 respondents. While this is not a large enough sample to draw
scientific conclusions, it does point to some voter attitudes. For one, HH seemed to do poorly
with higher income homeowners, as shown by poor results in districts 5 and 6 and the
responses shown in the following bar charts. HH won handily among the renters in the survey,
and lost among homeowners. By income, the largest block of No voters were in the highest
income category. This is backed up by district voting results, where the largest margin of failure
was in the high-affluence District 6.

Younger voters tended to be more supportive, though many respondents did not indicate their
age.

12

177



Page 16 of 23

The voter guide, mailed to all registered voters by the City, was by far the largest source of
information on HH, with three out of four respondents reporting it as their source. A quarter of
voters reported Berkeleyside, either the op-eds for and against or the ads placed by the
campaign. None of the campaign activities — mailers, social media, texting, etc. — broke 10% as
an information source.

How did you hear about measure HH (check all that apply)
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Voter Guide

Berkeleyside

Word of mouth

Other (Please specify)

Mailers

BerkeleyClimate.org, the campaign website
Text message

I didn't hear anything about it

Social media (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram)

Yard signs

13

178



Page 17 of 23

Voters were very aware that HH affected the utility users tax (UUT), and generally aware that it
aimed to fight global warming. But only half of voters said they knew that HH would eliminate
the UUT for low-income households or be used for equity programs. This largely reflects the
official short description of the measure in the voter guide.

Which things about HH were you aware of when you voted?
(check all that apply)
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

It raised the utility tax for most residential customers and all
business customers

The money raised would pay for incentives to cut global
warming pollution

It eliminated the utility tax for low-income househol ds

Funds would be spent with a focus on equity and
environmental justice

Other (Please specify)

None ofthe above

For voters who supported HH, it was largely due to concern about climate change. There was
significant but less support for the equity and tax-cutting aspects of HH.

If you voted for HH, why did you? (check all that apply)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

I'm concerned about climate change

|liked that it put an emphasis on equity and
environmental justice

| wanted Berkeley to be aleader on climate change

| liked that it cut taxes for low-income households

Other (Please specify)

| wanted to get incentives myself

14

179



Page 18 of 23

We then tested attitudes for people who voted against HH. Their attitudes seemed to closely
reflect the anti-HH arguments in the voter guide and the Berkeleyside oped. No respondents
thought climate change was not a problem.

If you did not vote for Measure HH, why not? (check all that apply)
Percent

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

| didn’t want to pay a higher utility tax

| think the money would be misspent

There were too many tax measures on the ballot
Other (Please specify)

It was the wrong time, due to the pandemic

I didn't know enoughabout it

I didn't know measure HH was about dimate change
| don’t think climate change is a problem
| don't think local action onclimate change isimportant

Some respondents volunteered other answers:

Other priorities
e Berkeley needs to first spending crime and streets under control before delving into national
Issues

Taxing electricity is counterproductive
® | am against regressive taxation and taxing electricity is exactly the wrong thing to do if the goal
is to electrify energy systems.

e Taxing electricity bills seems like the wrong approach if we want to electrify power use to deal
with climate change

e '"soda taxes" should tax things where people have reasonable alternatives. tax gasoline, not
having electricity in your house

Regressive tax
® Regressive, lack of clarity on how it would be spent, unclear oversight

e | thought a utility tax was regressive and costs would fall more on low-income residents than
those more able to bear the costs.

Lack of oversight
e wentinto general fund

e Berkeley has a lack of accountability. | don’t want to pay yet more taxes for something | don’t
think Berkeley can impact and with limited governance and oversight

Other
e |[f Berkeley does something for climate change that is a very small impact when the rest of the
world needs to be involved to make a worthwhile difference, not just Berkeley. Why punish
taxpayers any further?

15

180



Page 19 of 23

e |t was way too permanent for my liking and | feel that something like this should be passed
through the legislature. By having it be permanent until repealed by the voters there's very little
chance for review.

e [f you want to solve climate change, go after wealthy energy hogs, rather than ineffective feel
good measures to help working class people. It was a bad proposal.

We asked No voters if they would have voted differently if something were changed in how the
money was raised. Most said no, while some pointed to taxing gasoline or pollution.

If it were put on the ballot again, would any of these
changes in how the money was raised make you support
it? (check all that apply)

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45%

None ofthe above
If it taxed only gasoline use
Other (Please specify)
If it were for a limited time, say five years, and had...
If it were a property tax

If it taxed only natural gas use, not electricity

If it were a sales tax

Anti-tax
e am not voting for anything that will increase my residential utility costs

e When are our taxes going to actually go down?

e If city taxes were reduced by 10%, | would be fine with 5% going to this purpose. City taxes are
too high and need to be spent on general purpose things from which all benefit.

e We of course see climate change as a problem but are barely making it in this incredibly
expensive city that is only getting more expensive daily. So | cannot support new tax increases.

Tax pollution or tax more progressively
e If it was progressive tax or focused on activities we want to curtail. We should be taxing cars and
parking and gas consumption .

o Tax fossil fuel use

e Cost should have been allocated to those more able to pay/responsible for emissions. Not sure
exactly how.

Accountability (* these are more appropriate to next question)
® More clarity on use of funds and mechanism of accountability

e put in dedicated fund/budget

16

181



Page 20 of 23

We asked if they would have voted differently if the money was spent differently. While most

said no, a significant number may have voted differently if they knew up front exactly how the
money would be spent. Importantly, it looks like voters were not opposed to the city pursuing
the activities HH was meant to fund. They just wanted more specifics.

If it were put on the ballot again, would any of these changes in
how the money was spent make you support it?
(check all that apply)
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50%
None ofthe above
If the funds were dedicated only to specificthings that were...
Other (Please specify)

If it were a community foundation, independent from the...

If it guaranteed no funds would pay for city government...

If all of the funds were used for dty government activities

Anti-tax
e | am tired of endless tax increases

e | would not vote for this measure period

e |t's sort of fake funding if city council wants to take this out of the general fund then fine but the
way the special tax is done is not going to gain my support

e |If this replaced a different city tax | would consider it.

Specific actions
e |[f the specific actions are reasonably well supported by evidence that they will be effective and
constructive, eg building electrification for poor residents, but not recycling

e Dedicated to energy efficiency measure

Other
e | didn’t have an issue with how money would have been spent.

e Knowing it was for climate change would've changed my vote to a yes!

Finally, to see if voters liked the idea of a Climate Fund separately from their attitudes toward a
tax increase, we asked whether voters would want the City Council to create the Climate Fund

17

182



Page 21 of 23

with existing revenues rather than a new tax. Most respondents were not sure, but of those
that offered an opinion, there was 2-1 support.

D) Conclusions

The good news is that Berkeley voters are concerned about global warming and think that local
action is warranted, even if they voted against HH. The timing seemed to be fortuitous: with
wildfires ravaging California, Greta Thunberg and climate strikes in the news, and the
pro-pollution President Trump on the ballot, this could have been a referendum on climate
change.

But despite broad support for action on climate change, a number of factors contributed to
Measure HH’s defeat.

COVID: The pandemic certainly played a role, creating health and economic anxiety among
voters, driving down turnout among college students, limiting volunteer activity, and cutting off
grassroots outreach. Public events could have been a major part of the campaign, given recent
#climatestrike marches and rallies. It’s also possible that climate change had to compete with
COVID as the most important crisis to prioritize.

WILDFIRES: The California wildfires did not seem to have as big an effect as anticipated. While
September 9 was “the day without sunshine” due to wildfire smoke, voters may not have linked
it to climate change, or it may have slipped in their memory.

TAXES: The thesis that HH lost due to dislike of taxes was partly borne out. For many, HH
seemed to be a vote on taxes more than a vote on local climate action or equity. A number of
No voters cited tax increases for their opposition, especially the more affluent voters that we
surveyed. On the other hand, other tax measures were approved, perhaps because they
targeted other funding sources or had more specific spending plans.

18

183



Page 22 of 23

One fundamental problem is that voters expect climate change to be solved by someone else,
by “big polluters” or “the government.” They do not think of themselves as the problem. Some
communities that have approved local climate funds did it by attacking a bad guy, as in Portland
and Seattle taxing big business. Berkeley has no major polluters, or even many big businesses.
HH campaign messages did not dwell on this, instead creating positive messages of taking
action for equity and for the future.

A clear failure of the campaign was to convey to voters what the funds would be used for and
how they would be spent. Many voters were guided by very little information on Measure HH,
with most looking only at the summary in the voter guide, which focused on the mechanism for
collecting the tax rather than on the benefits of the fund. There was very little awareness of the
fact that HH would have cut taxes for low-income households, which was featured in campaign
materials and was a core part of the equity pitch.

Opponents and at least some voters were skeptical of the process proposed by HH, to have an
“expert panel” make funding decisions in response to proposals. Voters may have been more
comfortable if the measure spelled out exactly what the funds would be used for rather than
creating a flexible fund. It would have been an easier message to convey, certainly.

E) Next Steps
Voter approval was not needed to create the Climate Equity Action Fund, only to finance it.

Measure GG, which will raise maybe $1 million per year through a new tax on Uber and Lyft
rides is intended to promote transportation alternatives. This could be done through
infrastructure improvements and incentives for behavior change by Berkeley residents. The
Fund could manage the latter, giving incentives to promote low-carbon transportation choices,
especially for low-income residents.

Whatever the funding source, the Council should create the Fund and appropriate perhaps
$500,000 as a seed fund. At the same time, city leaders should invite donations to the fund,
especially from large entities that have their own sustainability goals and that would benefit
from a better low-carbon transportation system, like UC Berkeley, Bayer Pharmaceuticals, and
large real estate projects like 600 Addison.

The City should then set goals and parameters for the fund, appoint a board (or adapt a current
city commission) to reflect the twin goals of climate action and equity, and initiate a single
round of grants by early 2022. The Fund should be explicitly aimed at providing incentives for
action by residents and businesses, rather than used to fund City infrastructure. While
infrastructure is critical to cutting carbon emissions, such as building Complete Streets that
encourage non-car transportation, we believe a bond is a better way to pay for long-lasting
infrastructure. A bond will better be able to raise the large amounts required for infrastructure
development, rather than the relatively modest amounts that the Climate Fund would handle.

19

184



Page 23 of 23

If we can show voters how the Fund can work and create benefits, perhaps we can seek
approval to expand funding on the 2022 ballot. Berkeley residents support action on climate
change in a general sense but need help to understand how elements of our daily lives
contribute to climate change (i.e., we are the ones buying and consuming the products sold by
the evil corporations). As some No voters commented, they might have supported HH if we
“taxed fossil fuel use” or “activities we want to curtail,” and if we taxed those “responsible for
emissions.” All of which HH did.

The best way to increase this understanding is not through speeches or op-eds, but a
demonstration of how the Fund would work, through a pilot.

We can also prepare for a successful ballot measure in 2022, with a number of strategies.

One possible strategy is to put it on the ballot by voter initiative rather than by local
government action. Recent court rulings suggest that voter initiatives are not subject to the
“special tax” limitation that Proposition 218 (1996) applied to government-led initiatives.? This
would allow a future measure to be specific about how the funds would be used without
triggering the 2/3 vote threshold.

Another strategy is to make it easier to split the tax rates for electricity and natural gas in the
Utility Users Tax, so we can increase the tax just on gas. This would support the electrification
agenda, seeking to shift buildings from gas to renewable electricity. Because of PG&E’s outdated
software, measure HH could not tax only natural gas. Working with electrification advocates and
cities to solve this problem would help Berkeley, along with many other California cities that
followed Berkeley’s lead in fighting natural gas pollution.

A related strategy is to sync up with the messaging that electrification advocates are using to
attack gas on grounds of health and safety, in addition to environmental harm, and the
pushback from the gas industry.? This could provide the kind of “bad guy” messaging that
helped boost the soda tax campaign, which attacked “big soda.”

Lastly, other California cities have expressed an interest in creating climate action funds. Voters
in Albany and Long Beach did pass their measures (as did Denver) on election day. Working in
Oakland, Alameda and other towns could help create a sense of movement for the issue that
can help here in Berkeley.

So while the immediate battle was lost, we think the idea of funding local climate action is still
valid, and worth pursuing in the future. It will just take City leadership to convince voters to
follow.

2 Courthouse News, California High Court Lets San Francisco’s Disputed Homeless Tax Stand, September 9, 2020.
® For example: NPR, As Cities Grapple With Climate Change, Gas Utilities Fight To Stay In Business, February 22,
2021.

20

185


https://www.npr.org/2021/02/22/967439914/as-cities-grapple-with-climate-change-gas-utilities-fight-to-stay-in-business
https://www.courthousenews.com/california-high-court-lets-san-franciscos-disputed-homeless-tax-stand/

186



Page 1 of 2

18

( CITY °F

-

o
o
7
)
AL

=

Homeless Services Panel of Experts

CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Homeless Services Panel of Experts

Submitted by: Carole Marasovic, Chairperson, Homeless Services Panel of Experts
Subject: Request for Two Additional Meetings for the Commission
RECOMMENDATION

That Council grant the Homeless Services Panel of Experts two additional meetings for
the calendar year, 2021.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Staff time and commissioner stipends, if any, would be the only cost factors.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The Homeless Services Panel of Experts (herein referred to as HSPE) met two
additional times in April, 2021 to make budget recommendations for Measure P
monies. HSPE needs to continue to hold their regular meetings to develop plans for
reviewing programs and to plan for future funding cycles. In addition, HSPE will be
merging with the Homeless Commission which will involve taking on extensive policy-
making review and recommendations and making recommendations for the community
agency allocation process.

HSPE needs to meet to conduct its regular work including expanding its program review
in preparation for future funding cycles. In addition, HC will be taking on an extensively
higher workload with the Homeless Commission merger and that advisory policy
commission focus and their recommendations made during the community agency
funding process which includes funding proposals review and site visits.

BACKGROUND
On March 22, 2021, the HSPE voted as follows:

Action: M/S/C Bookstein/Marasovic move to request additional meetings to discuss and
make recommendations for Measure P allocations.

Vote: Ayes: Marasovic, Wehrman, Bookstein, Scheider.

Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Sherman.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 187
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
18


Page 2 of 2

Request for two additional meetings for Commission CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
HSPE needs to conduct its work and cannot do so thoroughly without two additional
meetings.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
HSPE did not consider any alternative to not fulfilling its work.

CITY MANAGER

The City Manager appreciates the work that the Homeless Services Panel of Experts is
doing to make informed budget recommendations for general fund Measure P

monies. The Commission reorganizations require ordinance amendments that the city
will be working through in the coming months and it is too early to know what the
specific needs of the newly combined Homeless Services Panel of Experts and
Homeless Commission will be. Rather than adding two additional meetings to the 2021
calendar year at this time, it is recommended that the meeting schedule is considered
as part of finalizing the reorganization process.

CONTACT PERSON
Joshua Jacobs, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5435

Page 2

188



Page 1 of 3

19

( CITY °F

-

o
o
7
)
AL

=

Office of the Mayor
CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

To: Members of the City Council
From: Mayor Jesse Arreguin

Subject: Contract No. 32000196 Amendment: Szabo & Associates for Communications
Consulting Services

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend Contract No. 32000196 with
Szabo & Associates for communications consulting services for the Mayor’s Office, in
the amount of $78,000, extending the contract to June 30, 2022.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This amendment will add $78,000 to extend the Mayor’s Office’s existing contract for
communications consulting services. The term of the contract will be extended by one
year to June 30, 2022. Funds for this contract amendment are available from the
Mayor’s Office budget.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Under Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 7.18.010A, “expenditures...which exceed the
amount of $50,000 shall require Council approval”, as adopted under Ordinance 7566
and mandated under Article XI, Section 67.5 of the City Charter.

Contract No. 32000196 was entered into on March 16, 2020, originally at $35,000.
Since then, amendments have been made to extend the term of the contract. A new
extension is needed to continue these services, which will increase the cumulative
amount of the contract beyond the $50,000 threshold, thus requiring Council approval.

BACKGROUND

Under Article VI, Section 21 of the City Charter, the Mayor is the ceremonial head of the
City. As such, the Mayor serves as a spokesperson for the City, and should provide
consistent information to residents and businesses on the operations and policies of the
City. Providing open and transparent lines of communication is a cornerstone of
democracy and good governance. Relaying critical information, such as
communications during the ongoing local state of emergency in response to COVID-19,
PG&E Power Safety Shutoff events, other critical events, and City policies and
programs, are important to the health, safety and operation of the City.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7100 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7199 189
E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info


sbunting
Typewritten Text
19


Page 2 of 3

Contract Amendment: Szabo & Associates CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

Services provided by Szabo & Associates include development of press releases and
media advisories on issues of importance to the Berkeley community, maintaining social
media accounts, press coordination, graphic design, and other support services relating
to the communications from the Mayor’s Office.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no environmental impacts associated with the recommendations in this
report.

CONTACT PERSON
Mayor Jesse Arreguin 510-981-7100

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2

190



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT: SZABO & ASSOCIATES FOR COMMUNICATIONS CONSULTING
SERVICES FOR THE MAYOR’S OFFICE

WHEREAS, as the ceremonial head of the city under the City Charter, the Mayor must
serve as a city spokesperson and provide consistent information to residents and
businesses on the operations and policies of the City; and

WHEREAS, Szabo & Associates is a communications consult firm whose services
include development of press releases and media advisories on issues of importance to
the Berkeley community, maintaining social media accounts, press coordination, and
other support services relating to the communications; and

WHEREAS, Providing open and transparent lines of communication is a cornerstone of
democracy and good governance. Relaying critical information, such as
communications during the ongoing local state of emergency in response to COVID-19,
PG&E Power Safety Shutoff events, other critical events, and City policies and
programs, are important to the health, safety and operation of the City; and

WHEREAS, under Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 7.18.010A, “expenditures...which
exceed the amount of $50,000 shall require Council approval’, as adopted under
Ordinance 7566 and mandated under Article Xl, Section 67.5 of the City Charter; and

WHEREAS, Contract No. 32000196 was entered into on March 16, 2020, originally at
$35,000, with additional amendments having been made, and requires Council approval
by passing the $50,000 threshold; and

WHEREAS, funding for this amendment to extend the contract by one year is available
in the Mayor’s Office budget.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to execute an amendment to Contract No. 32000196 with
Szabo & Associates for communications consulting services for the Mayor’s Office,
increasing the contract by $78,000, and extending the contract to June 30, 2022.

191



192



Page 1 of 12

20

CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Taplin

Subject: Letter of Support for Senate Bill 379

RECOMMENDATION

Send a letter of support for Senate Bill 379 to State Senator Scott Wiener (D-SF), State

Senator Nancy Skinner (D-Berkeley), Asm. Buffy Wicks (D-Oakland) and Senate
President Pro Tempore Toni Atkins (D-San Diego).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The state of California requires both public and private healthcare plans to cover
contraception and abortion services and prohibits all healthcare providers from
discriminating based on sexual orientation and gender identity, including in the provision
of gender-affirming care. However, the University of California has entered into
contracts with hospitals that limit the reproductive and gender-affirming services UC
providers and students can provide. These restrictions are not based on any clinical
criteria or logistical limitations, only on the policies of the UC contractors, which can
result in discriminatory and substandard patient care. In June of 2021, the UC Board of
Regents voted to phase out its partnerships with some Catholic hospitals by the end of
2023.1

According to a letter from health equity advocates to the UC Regents, “Patients of color,
low-income patients and others who experiencing systemic barriers to health care
access are most in need of quality, comprehensive care, including comprehensive
reproductive health care and bias-free care for LGBTQ people.”? Dignity Health, the
largest Catholic hospital network in California, recently argued before States Supreme

" Swartz, K. (2021, June 24). UC regents vote to restrict hospital partnerships with Catholic health care
providers. Sacramento Bee. Retrieved from https://www.sacbee.com/news/politics-government/capitol-
alert/article252319893.html

2 Letter from health equity advocates, p.3 (March 16, 2020), available at:
https://www.aclunc.org/sites/default/files/2020.03.16%20UC%20affiliations%20guidelines%20health%20e
quity%20letter.pdf

193


sbunting
Typewritten Text
20


Page 2 of 12

Letter of Support for Senate Bill 379 CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021

Court for its constitutional right to refuse to allow a transgender patient in Sacramento to
undergo a hysterectomy.3

BACKGROUND

SB 379 would prohibit the University of California from entering into any contract with a
health facility contractor or subcontractor that limits UC healthcare employees or
trainees from providing patients with information or services due to non-clinical,
discriminatory restrictions. If such restrictions are violated, the bill would also require
that any contract between the University of California and a health facility be terminated.
Despite the UC Regents’ voting to phase out some restrictive contracts, its contracts
with restrictive health providers have only been found through responses to Public
Records Act requests (see Attachment 3).

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Terry Taplin Council District 2  510-981-7120

Attachments:

1: Letter

2: SB 379 bill text
3: SB 379 FAQ

3 Pet. for Writ of Cert., p. 1 (March 13, 2020), available at:
https://www.supremecourt.gov/DocketPDF/19/19-
1135/138108/20200313135600983_Dignity%20Health%20Petition.pdf

194



Page 3 of 12

( CITY °F

-

The Honorable Scott Wiener
State Capitol

Room 5100

Sacramento, CA 95814-4900

July 27,2021
Senator Wiener:

The City Council of the City of Berkeley is proud to declare its support for your Bill, SB 379. As the
hometown of the University of California’s flagship campus, we believe it is critically important to
guarantee basic medical care through the UC Health system.

Reproductive care, including abortion, and LGBTQ-inclusive care must be considered basic healthcare by
all public agencies. Despite public outcry, the UC Board of Regents has been reluctant to affirm human
rights for women and the LGBTQ community through its healthcare contracting practices. The Board’s
recent vote to phase out some contracts with restrictive healthcare providers by the end of 2023 was a
much-welcome change in its policies, but it is not fast or comprehensive enough to guarantee equitable
medical care for UC patients.

As your office correctly notes, there is no evidence that contracting with restrictive healthcare entities
increases the availability or quality of care for communities with limited healthcare resources. To the
contrary, restrictive care would impose a disproportionate burden on low-income communities and people
of color.

We thank you for your leadership on this important issue and look forward to your bill’s passage.
Kind Regards,

The Berkeley City Council

2180 Milvia St

Berkeley, CA 94704

cc:

Senator Nancy Skinner

Assembly member Buffy Wicks
Senator Toni Atkins

195



Page 4 of 12

AMENDED IN SENATE MAY 4, 2021
AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 8, 2021
AMENDED IN SENATE MARCH 7, 2021

SENATE BILL No. 379

Introduced by Senator Wiener
(Principa coauthors: Assembly Members Cristina Garcia and Low)
(Coauthors: Senators Gonzalez, Hurtado, Laird, and L eyva)
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Friedman and Wicks)

February 10, 2021

An act to add Chapter 3.95 (commencing with Section 12148) to Part
2 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code, relating to public contracts.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL’S DIGEST

SB 379, as amended, Wiener. University of California: contracts:
health facilities.

Existing provisions of the California Constitution provide that the
University of California constitutes a public trust and require the
university to be administered by the Regents of the University of
California, a corporation in the form of a board, with full powers of
organization and government, subject to legidative control only for
specified purposes, including such competitive bidding procedures as
may be applicable to the university by statute for the letting of
construction contracts, sales of real property, and purchasing of
materials, goods, and services.

Existing law governs competitive bidding by the University of
Cdlifornia and also establishes specific restrictions on University of
California contracts relating to work performed by workers outside of
the United States.

96

196



Page 5 of 12

SB 379 —2—

This bill would prohibit the University of California, on and after
January 1, 2022, from entering into, amending, or renewing any contract
with any health facility contractor or subcontractor in which a health
care practitioner employed by the University of Californiaor atrainee
of the University of Californiaproviding carein the health facility under
that contract would be limited in the practitioner’s or trainee's ability
to provide patients with medical information or medical services due
to policy-based restrictions on care in the health facility. The bill would
require any contract between the University of Californiaand a health
facility pursuant to which a University of California-employed health
care practitioner or trainee of the University of Californiaprovidescare
in the health facility to include a provision restating the substance of
that prohibition. The bill would require any contract between the
University of California and a health facility pursuant to which a
University of California-employed health care practitioner or trainee
of the University of California provides care in the health facility to
providethat, in the event the health facility contractor or subcontractor
violates the prohibition, the contract shall be terminated for
noncompliance, and the contractor or subcontractor snall forfeit penalties
to the University of California, as appropriate, in an amount equal to
the amount paid by the university for the percentage of work that was
performed. Thebill would exempt from its provisions contracts between
the University of California and prescribed health facility contractors
or subcontractors. The bill would require the University of California
to ensure that a health care practitioner or trainee of the University of
Californiaisableto completetheir training. The bill would prohibit the
University of California from extending or delaying a hedth
practitioner’straining due to the loss of aclinical training rotation. The
bill would requirethe University of California, before January 1, 2025,
to find alternative facilities for trainees to complete their training. The
bill would exempt from these provisions contracts in existence before
January 1, 2022, that pertain to at least one health care practitioner
who isatrainee of a University of California campusthat does not own
or operate its own health facility, until the earlier of January 1, 2028,
or the date the University of California campus acquires ownership of,
or begins operating, a health facility. The bill would define terms for
these purposes.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes.
State-mandated local program: no.

96

197



Page 6 of 12

—3— SB 379
The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. The Legidature finds and declares all of the
following:

(@ The University of Californiais a public university system
in the State of California and receives a sizable amount of public
fundsto conduct itsmission. The University of California's portion
of the California state budget in—2020-202% 2020-21 was $9
billion, $3.5 billion of which is from the General Fund.

(b) UC Hedth is the fourth largest heath care system in
Californiaand it trains more than one-half of the medical students
and residentsin California

(c) Existing law recognizes that all reproductive health care,
including abortion, is basic hedth care. Existing law further
recognizes that public entities in California may not preference
one pregnancy outcome over another.

(d) Existing law recognizes that denying transgender patients
gender-affirming care is discrimination based on gender identity.

(e) Existing law recognizes that adults have a range of health
care options for the end of life, including continuing measures to
sustain life, withhol ding or withdrawing life-sustaining treatments,
voluntarily forgoing food or drink, palliative treatments that may
advance the time of death, hospice care, and medical aid in dying.
These are persona decisions individuals make about their own
lives and loved ones. Public entities should not favor one
preference over the other.

(f) Existing law recognizesthe need to protect patient accessto
comprehensive health care services free from bias and
discrimination, as evidenced through the state Medi-Cal program,
which prohibits any participating provider from discriminating
against any beneficiary on the basis of race, color, age, sex,
religion, ancestry, national origin, or physical or mental disability.

(g) TheUniversity of Californiahas entered into contracts with
health facility contractors in  which University of
California-employed health care practitioners and trainees of the
University of California have been subjected to policy-based
restrictions on carein the health facility that prevent the University
of California practitioners and trainees from providing patients
with medical information and servicesthat are medically necessary
and appropriate.

96

198



Page 7 of 12

SB 379 —4—

(h) Policy-based restrictions on care have serious implications
for patients of color, particularly Black and Latinx low-income
patients, whose unequal access to care has been largely dictated
by the legacy of structural racism and socioeconomic inequities
deeply embedded throughout the health care system.

(i) Policy-based restrictions on care undermine the University
of California’s values of prioritizing patient-centered care,
delivering evidence-based high-quality care, providing access to
comprehensive reproductive health care, and ensuring access to
nondiscriminatory care.

SEC. 2. Chapter 3.95 (commencing with Section 12148) is
added to Part 2 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code, to read:

CHAPTER 3.95. UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AND HEALTH
FaciLity CONTRACTS

12148. (a) (1) Notwithstanding any other law, on and after
January 1, 2022, the University of California shall not enter into,
amend, or renew any contract with any health facility contractor
or subcontractor in which a health care practitioner employed by
the University of California or a trainee of the University of
California providing care in the health facility under that contract
would belimited in the practitioner’s or trainee' s ability to provide
patients with medical information or medical services due to
policy-based restrictions on care in the health facility.

(2) (A) Except as provided in subparagraph (B), this section
shall not apply to contracts described in paragraph (1), if they
meet both of the following criteria:

(i) The contract was in existence before January 1, 2022.

(it) Thecontract pertainsto at least one health care practitioner
who is a trainee of a University of California campus that, as of
January 1, 2022, does not own or operate its own health facility.

(B) Contractsexempt fromthissection under subparagraph (A)
shall comply with this section no later than the earlier of the
following dates: January 1, 2028, or the date the University of
California campus acquires ownership of, or begins operating, a
health facility.

(b) Any contract between the University of California and a
health facility pursuant to which a University of
California-employed health care practitioner or trainee of the

96

199



OCO~NOUITPA,WNE

Page 8 of 12

—5— SB 379

University of California provides care in the health facility shall
include a provision restating the substance of subdivision (a).

(c) Any contract between the University of California and a
health facility pursuant to which a University of
California-employed health care practitioner or trainee of the
University of California provides care in the health facility shall
provide that, in the event the health facility contractor or
subcontractor violates subdivision (a), the contract shall be
terminated for noncompliance, and the contractor or subcontractor
shall forfeit penaltiesto the University of California, asappropriate,
in an amount equal to the amount paid by the university for the
percentage of work that was performed.

(d) This section shall not apply to a contract between the
University of California and a health facility contractor or
subcontractor that is any of the following:

(1) Located and operated in aforeign country.

(2) Operated by the United States Department of Veterans
Affairs.

(3 AnlIndian Health Service facility.

(e) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the University of Cdifornia
shall ensure that a health care practitioner or trainee of the
University of California is able to complete their training. The
University of California shall not extend or delay a health
practitioner’ straining dueto theloss of aclinical training rotation.
The University of California, before January 1, 2025, shall find
alternative facilities for trainees to complete their training.

(f) For purposes of this section:

(1) “Hedthfacility” shall have the same meaning asin Section
1250 of the Health and Safety Code.

(2) “Health care practitioner” has the same meaning as defined
in subdivision (c) of Section 680 of the Business and Professions
Code.

(3) “Medica services’ meansmedical treatments, referrals, and
procedures.

(4) “Policy-based restrictions on care” means any nonclinical
criteria, rules, or policies, whether written or unwritten, that restrict
health care practitioners at that health facility from providing any
procedures or benefits that are considered covered benefits under
the Medi-Cal program or any Medi-Cal speciaty programs that

96

200



Page 9 of 12

SB 379 —6—

the health care practitioners are licensed to provide and that the
health facility has the equipment and facilitiesto provide.

(5) “Trainee of the University of California’ means a resident
or fellow employed by the University of California or a student
enrolled inthe University of Californiain ahealth care practitioner
discipline.

OUThWNE

96

201



Page 10 of 12

SB 379 - Equitable and Inclusive UC Healthcare Act
Frequently Asked Questions

Q: Does this bill prohibit the University of California from contracting with other health systems? What if
the health system is religiously-affiliated?

A: No. This bill does not prohibit the UC from contracting with any other health system, including
religiously-affiliated health systems. Rather, SB 379 ensures that UC healthcare providers practicing in
non-UC facilities are able to provide the critical care patients need, including reproductive and
LGBTQ-inclusive care. UC Health is welcome to contract with any hospital system—including
religiously-affiliated health systems—as long as those hospital systems don’t restrict UC personnel and
trainees from providing comprehensive services and information to patients. The UC health system is
renowned for its quality of care; this bill ensures that patients have access to the same level of care in
every facility they are treated by a UC provider.

Q: What are some ways that the University of California can contract with other health systems under
this bill?

A: There are many ways that the UC can contract with other health systems under this bill. For example:
(1) The UC can contract with health systems that do not restrict reproductive and LGBTQ-inclusive
healthcare; (2) If contracting with health systems that do restrict reproductive and LGBTQ-inclusive care,
contract only in ways that do not require UC providers to treat patients in restrictive facilities—for
example, contract to send patients from the restrictive health system to UC facilities; or (3) If contracting
with health systems that restrict reproductive and LGBTQ-inclusive care, carve out areas in restrictive
facilities in which UC personnel and trainees could provide the full range of care.

Q: Would this bill restrict access to care for rural Californians and people with low incomes?

A: No. Underserved communities need access to comprehensive care, not restricted care. To say that
“any care is better than no care at all” is both to ignore our state’s nondiscrimination and healthcare
access laws and is a serious disservice to patients. The UC is welcome to contract with any hospital
system, as long as that system allows UC personnel and trainees to provide the full range of care, subject
only to capacity and equipment limitation. As health equity advocates informed the UC Regents

regarding these contracts: “Patients of color, low-income patients and others who experience systemic
barriers to healthcare access are most in need of quality, comprehensive care, including comprehensive
reproductive health care and bias-free care for LGBTQ people.”

There is also no evidence that contracts with restrictive health systems are necessary to increase
access to care. Many of the problematic contracts UC Health has entered into are in urban areas—like

202


https://www.aclunc.org/sites/default/files/2020.03.16%20UC%20affiliations%20guidelines%20health%20equity%20letter.pdf

Page 11 of 12

San Francisco—where there are other options: non-restrictive health systems UC Health could contract
with. But even in a non-urban part of California, the Inland Empire, hospitals that impose non-medical
restrictions on care make up less than a quarter of hospitals serving low-income and underserved
patients. Health equity advocates have pointed out a range of alternatives that would provide significant
care to underserved patients that do not place restrictions on care, including evidence-based strategies
like mobile and pop-up clinics and expanding community health centers.

Q: No hospital provides all services, and transferring patients to another hospital is a normal part of
healthcare. Why is it a problem for UC providers to transfer patients when the hospital they’re practicing
in has restrictions on care?

A: The problem is UC—a public institution—denying patients routine and essential healthcare, solely
based on non-medical restrictions of non-UC facilities. Transferring patients because a hospital
doesn’t have the equipment or specialization to provide the service is entirely different from
transferring a patient because the hospital has a policy-based restriction on reproductive and LGBTQ
care—this second type of transfer unnecessarily puts patient health at risk and is a form of
discrimination. For example, some policy-based restrictions prohibit hysterectomies for trans men even
at hospitals that regularly provide them to cisgender women; transferring patients under these
circumstances is akin to putting a sign on the door that says “we don’t treat trans people”. Other
policy-based restrictions on care—like those that define treatment for miscarriage and ectopic
pregnancy as “abortion” —are time-sensitive care, for which a delay can be life-threatening. Finally,
forcing patients to transfer to receive routine procedures like tubal ligation adds additional, non-clinical
barriers to medically necessary care. Tubal ligation is a quick procedure typically performed after giving
birth, but if a patient is denied a desired tubal ligation after giving birth and is instead referred
elsewhere, that patient will have to undergo an additional surgery. In all of the above scenarios, the
transfer can cause patients emotional as well as physical harm. The bottom line is: healthcare delayed is
healthcare denied.

Q: The University of California says that this bill is no longer necessary because its contracts do not
restrict care. Why is this bill necessary? Isn’t the issue solved?

A: No. Unfortunately, UC Health continues to contract to place its medical providers in health facilities
where they are required to restrict patient care. Despite public outcry from the UC community,
reproductive, LGBTQ, and health equity advocates, and both state and federal elected officials (see
stakeholder letters to the UC Regents here), UC has withdrawn from any public process: a UC Regents

vote that was scheduled on this issue has been cancelled, and an internal working group’s
recommendations have been publicly ignored. Meanwhile, UC Health quietly amended its contracts with
restrictive health systems. The amended contracts maintain the status quo and do not solve the

203


https://www.aclunc.org/take-action/get-involved/religious-restrictions-uc-health-care#:~:text=As%20a%20public%20institution%2C%20UC,is%20free%20of%20religious%20influence.&text=These%20affiliations%20would%20place%20UC,reproductive%20and%20LGBTQ%2Dinclusive%20care
https://www.aclunc.org/take-action/get-involved/religious-restrictions-uc-health-care#:~:text=As%20a%20public%20institution%2C%20UC,is%20free%20of%20religious%20influence.&text=These%20affiliations%20would%20place%20UC,reproductive%20and%20LGBTQ%2Dinclusive%20care

Page 12 of 12

problem in that they permit the restrictive health systems to decide which services UC providers may
perform in their hospitals.

All of UC’s Health’s contracting with restrictive health systems has been uncovered only through UC
Health’s responses to Public Record Act requests. The public and the UC community should not have to
submit a Public Records Act request to find out about restrictions on essential care that impact the
health outcomes of UC patients. The updated language in the contracts is still far from the solution that
faculty, students, advocates, and elected officials have demanded.

Q: Do you have examples of patients who have been denied care due to these restrictions?

A: Yes. We have many stories of patients who have been denied care by hospitals that restrict services
for non-medical reasons. In particular Evan Minton, a UC alum, suffered discrimination in the denial of
gender affirming care at a hospital that UC Davis currently contracts with. And as many UC providers,
professors, and students shared in written and oral testimony before the UC Regents Health Services
Committee, the restrictions themselves are harmful because they impact the care UC providers can offer
and the training they receive.

UC Health has attempted to assure UC providers—and the public—that the UC personnel and trainees
placed in restrictive facilities won’t be limited in the care they can offer patients. But the experiences of
other entities that have entered into contracts with restrictive health systems prove otherwise. Just last
year, the University of Maryland St. Joseph Medical Center denied a hysterectomy to a transgender man
citing the restrictions of the facility. The California Attorney General is also currently investigating

whether a restrictive health system has violated its legal commitments by enforcing non-medical
restrictions on care at a hospital in Orange County, after committing that it would not enforce them.

Q: Are you concerned this bill limits hospital capacity?

A: The bill does not limit hospital beds. The bill simply prevents UC from contracting to place UC
providers in scenarios where the care they provide will be restricted. If patients in health systems
need specialty care that only UC can provide, then UC can contract to have them transferred to UC

facilities. UC can also contract to share its general expertise.

Q: Would this bill affect partnerships with entities like Veterans Affairs and Native American Health
Service Facilities?

A: No. The bill is being amended to exclude contracts between UC Health and Veterans Affairs and
Indian Health Service facilities.

204


https://www.allcareeverywhere.com/blog/category/stories/
https://www.allcareeverywhere.com/blog/evan-minton/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/dc-md-va/2020/07/17/transgender-hysterectomy-lawsuit-maryland/
https://www.latimes.com/business/story/2021-03-03/becerra-providence-hoag

Page 1 of 3

21

CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Ben Bartlett (author), Mayor Jesse Arreguin & Councilmember Rashi
Kesarwani (co-sponsors)
Subject: Proclamation: Partition Remembrance Day
RECOMMENDATION:

That the Berkeley City Council adopts the Partition Remembrance Day Proclamation.

BACKGROUND:
On July 27, 2021, the Berkeley City Council will be honoring the Berkeley-based ‘The 1947
Partition Archive,” along with Partition survivors and their families from the Bay Area.

The 1947 Partition of the Indian subcontinent into the independent nations of India and Pakistan
was accompanied by the largest human migration in history and enormous scale of mass violence.
As many as 3 million people, or more, lost their lives and at least 14 million were displaced from
their homes.

Over the last decade, the 'people's history' of Partition has been documented through crowdsourced oral
histories by The 1947 Partition Archive. The 1947 Partition Archive has preserved over 9,500 memories
from this time including witnesses from all ethnic, religious, and other communities and across all socio-
economic levels affected by the Partition of British India in 1947. Today, Partition is no longer a forgotten
memory, and its witnesses' plight is being heard globally through the sharing of thousands of witness
accounts.

Today, we remember and honor this history to create a more empathetic and just world, to ensure history is
not forgotten, and to recognize the intergenerational trauma families have experienced due to mass
communal violence and political polarization in the wake of the end of British colonialism. These
important lessons can help us understand other catastrophic events in history, as well as the impacts of
political divides and extreme polarization in our own communities, so that we may prevent such violence
in the future. With an increase in communal or ideological intolerance and zealotry felt globally, ongoing
threats of climate change and political instability, it has never been a more important time to honor this
work and those who have borne witness to this part of our human history.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

NONE

CONTACT PERSON:

Councilmember Ben Bartlett 510-981-7130
James Chang 510-981-7131

2180 Milvia Street, Floor 5, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7130 e E-Mail: bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
1

205


mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
sbunting
Typewritten Text
21


Page 2 of 3

1947 PARTITION REMEMBRANCE DAY

Let us make this day, a day of remembrance of the 1947 Partition of India:

WHEREAS, We remember that what should have been a moment of crowning triumph after years of anti-
colonial struggle in South Asia was indelibly marred by unimaginable violence and bloodshed with up to
two million people losing their lives in the most horrific of manners; and

WHEREAS, We remember that the 1947 Partition of the Indian subcontinent into the independent nations
of Hindu-majority India and Muslim-majority Pakistan was accompanied by one of the largest mass
migrations in human history and communal as well as political violence on a scale that had seldom been
seen before; and

WHEREAS, We remember the 1947 Partition as a world-historical event and a life-shaping experience for
14 million people who were displaced, many directly into poverty as they left their homes in the middle of
the night never to return to them again, and victims of unprecedented sectarian and communal violence;
and

WHEREAS, We remember that the divided landscape bore silent witness to trains laden with dead,
decapitated bodies, limbs strewn along the sides of roads, and wanton rape and pillaging; and

WHEREAS, We remember that there was nothing that could have prepared the approximately 14 million
refugees for this nightmare and a sudden, complete breakdown of governance; and

WHEREAS, We recognize that the Berkeley-based 1947 Partition Archive is devoting its work to serving
these refugee witnesses and others, some of whom are Berkeley residents along with their families; and

WHEREAS, We remember the millions who died or were displaced for who they were, how they may
have worshiped, what they believed, and who they loved. Victims included Muslims, Hindus, Sikhs, Jains,
Christians, Parsis, Jews, Dalits, Buddhists and others; and

WHEREAS, We remember, to preserve this shared history of anguish, to keep it vivid and real, so that
hatred, persecution, and prejudice can be combated and contained; and

WHEREAS, We remember the Partition survivors and their families who live in Berkeley, the Bay Area
and the United States, so that we can educate others on the history of Partition and create a more
empathetic and historically informed world; and

WHEREAS, We remember those who survived immeasurable, atrocious acts, and today are living
witnesses for younger generations who may not know their history; and

WHEREAS, We remember this is the 74th Anniversary of Partition, and by memorializing the past we help
give ourselves the resolve we need to prepare for tomorrow’s challenges including displacement and
migration brought on by ongoing threats of climate change and political instability.

2180 Milvia Street, Floor 5, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7130 e E-Mail: bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
2

206


mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info

Page 3 of 3

THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY PROCLAIMED, that we the people of Berkeley will
always remember the suffering victims, their families, and always treasure the survivors who
are still with us in Berkeley. We join in the worldwide chorus of hope and activism to say

never again and to proclaim:
June 3, 2021 AS PARTITION REMEMBRANCE DAY IN BERKELEY

2180 Milvia Street, Floor 5, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7130 e E-Mail: bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
3

207


mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info

208



Page 1 of 127

- [ CITY °F

-

o
m
2
m
—

m

Sophie Hahn
Councilmember District 5
CONSENT CALENDAR
July 27, 2021
To: Honorable Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Sophie Hahn and Mayor Jesse Arreguin (Authors)

Subject: Accelerating the City of Berkeley’s transition to Plant-Based Foods

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a resolution establishing a goal to achieve a 50% decrease in animal-based food
products served by the City of Berkeley by 2024, and refer to the City Manager to report
to the City Council on progress towards reaching this goal by January 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Staff time to research and manage a transition to alternative food purveyors and/or
menus across several departments and regulatory landscapes. Potential change in
costs reflecting a decrease in meat and dairy purchases and/or for plant-based menus
that meet mandated nutritional standards.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Streamlining the City of Berkeley’s transition to plant-forward' and plant-based? meals

advances the City’s Strategic Plan Priority of being a global leader in addressing climate
change, advancing environmental justice, and protecting the environment and supports
the Climate Action Plan goal that a majority of food consumed in Berkeley be produced
locally (i.e; within a few hundred miles).

Municipalities across the country are using their economic clout, political power and
cultural influence to fight climate change. Like Berkeley, they are establishing ambitious
greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction targets and pursuing aggressive strategies
such as the purchase of 100 percent renewable energy, fuel efficient vehicles, and
energy-efficient computers and lighting. Berkeley has been a leader in addressing
climate change, passing and implementing numerous measures that reduce our GHG
emissions and improve the environmental quality of our community, region and world.

1 Plant-forward’ refers to a style of cooking and eating that emphasizes plant-based foods and fewer animal products.

2 “plant-based” refers to a diet or food that is wholly derived from plants, including fruits and vegetables; whole
grains; beans, other legumes (pulses), and soy foods; nuts and seeds; plant oils and herbs and spices.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7150 e TDD: (510) 981-6903
E-Mail: shahn@cityofberkeley.info

22

209


sbunting
Typewritten Text
22


Page 2 of 127

Accelerating the City of Berkeley’s transition to Plant-Based Foods CONSENT
July 13, 2021

One critically important sector that accounts for about 25% of global greenhouse gas
emissions and significant emissions here in Berkeley is our food.

A diet higher in plant-based foods such as vegetables, fruits, whole grains, legumes,
nuts, and seeds, and lower in calories and animal-based foods is more health promoting
and is associated with less environmental impact than the current U.S. diet. A wealth of
scientific research underscores the urgency of substantially reducing meat and dairy
consumption, which accounts for more than half of all food-related GHG emissions. It is
clear that the world cannot meet global greenhouse gas reduction targets without
significantly curbing consumption of animal products. High-meat-eating nations like the
United States, which consumes 2.6 times more meat than the global per capita
average, must help shoulder this responsibility.

Cities have a critical role to play in helping shift consumption towards foods that
generate fewer greenhouse gas emissions. Berkeley, which has a long history of
vegetarian and vegan eating and both farmer’s- and fixed- markets rich in local,
seasonal, plant-based foods is well positioned to take leadership to increase plant-
based and plant-forward eating. By reducing the amount of animal products purchased
with City funds and serving more plant-based and plant-forward options, we can cut
GHG emissions and our water footprint, and provide important leadership for the rest of
the community.

Hundreds of U.S. cities, including the City of Berkeley, have pledged to help achieve the
Paris Climate Accord goal of lowering greenhouse gas emissions enough to keep
average global temperatures at no more than two degrees Celsius above pre-industrial
levels.2 Projected global emissions from food production alone — largely driven by
consumption of animal products — could nearly exceed the 2°C limit established in the
Paris Agreement. Compared to other climate mitigation strategies, increasing plant-
based food is a relatively simple, cost-effective strategy that can downsize the City’s
carbon footprint while improving the health of residents.*

BACKGROUND

This item consolidates and restates previous Council direction to facilitate
implementation of the City’s efforts to reduce the purchase and serving of animal-based
products and increase plant-forward and plant-based options. The resolution highlights
the simple but bold goal of reducing by 50% the amount of animal-based products

3 Reaffirming Support for the Paris Climate Agreement and Other Efforts to Combat Climate Change:
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City Council/2017/06 June/Documents/2017-06-
27 ltem_ 31 Reaffirming Support for the Paris.aspx

4 MEAT OF THE MATTER: A MUNICIPAL GUIDE TO CLIMATE-FRIENDLY FOOD PURCHASING

Page 2

210


https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2017/06_June/Documents/2017-06-27_Item_31_Reaffirming_Support_for_the_Paris.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2017/06_June/Documents/2017-06-27_Item_31_Reaffirming_Support_for_the_Paris.aspx
https://1bps6437gg8c169i0y1drtgz-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/MunicipalReport_AppendixA-B.pdf

Page 3 of 127

Accelerating the City of Berkeley’s transition to Plant-Based Foods CONSENT

July 13, 2021

served in city-provided meals by 2024. All of the already-adopted resolutions, items and
frameworks still remain in effect and can serve as important resources to guide the
City’s efforts to reduce the amount of animal-based products served by the City of
Berkeley.

The City Council has passed a number of items to encourage reduction in purchasing
and consumption of animal-based products, both for the City as an organization and in
the broader community, including:

February 24, 2015 - Councilmember Max Anderson’s item in support of
“‘Meatless Monday.” The Council declared all Mondays as “Meatless Mondays” in
support of comprehensive sustainability efforts as well as to further encourage
residents to eat a more varied plant-based diet.

September 13, 2018 - Councilmember Harrison’s resolution “Establishing Green
Monday” declared the city would coordinate with Green Monday US to 1) Have
City owned and operated institutions serve plant-based food on Mondays (or
another day); and 2) Educate residents on the impacts of food choices on climate
change.

April 30, 2019 - Councilmember Hahn’s Good Food Purchasing Program
resolution adopted a resolution in support of GFPP’s core values of supporting
local economies, improving nutrition, and valuing our workforce and referred to
the City Manager to incorporate the vision and standards into City of Berkeley
Food purchasing practices.

March 9, 2021 - Councilmember Davila’s item to Support Vision 2025 for
Sustainable Food Policies:
o Adopted a resolution supporting Vision 2025 for Sustainable Food Policies
o Joined the Milan Urban Food Policy Pact
o Supported adoption of Friends of the Earth’s Climate-Friendly Food
Purchasing Policy;
o Referred to the City Manager to track animal-based food that is replaced
with plant-based food; and
o Referred to the City Manager to use Friend of the Earth’s Municipal Guide
to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing to purchase plant-based food.

The four already-passed items and the numerous organizations, declarations, and
resolutions they encompass are evidence of the City Council’s desire to address the
impacts of animal-product consumption on health, the environment, working conditions,

Page 3

211



Page 4 of 127

Accelerating the City of Berkeley’s transition to Plant-Based Foods CONSENT
July 13, 2021

and animal wellbeing. Programs and policies of numerous organizations that support
transitioning institutions such as the City of Berkeley, and entire communities, away
from consumption of animal-based food products are referenced or incorporated in
these items, including

e Green Monday USA

e Good Food Purchasing Policy

e Milan Urban Food Pact

e Friends of the Earth Climate Friendly Food Purchasing Policy

e Friend of the Earth Municipal Guide to Climate Friendly Food Purchasing

All of these excellent resources have significant overlap in their goals and approaches.
But referring to the City Manager to integrate the many policies and recommendations
included across all of these resources ultimately provides direction that is too diffuse to
be effectively implemented. These resources do, however, provide excellent
background, strategies and information to guide efforts to transition towards plant-
forward and plant-based diets.

Berkeley does not purchase a large amount of food, but does supply meals at senior
centers, summer camps, and the jail, as well as in other limited settings. It is important
to note that much of the food procured by the City of Berkeley is subject to nutritional
regulations, including state and federal criteria, that will need to be reviewed and
considered in planning a 50% reduction in animal-based products and a transition to
plant-forward and plant-based meals.

While nutritional standards typically promote more fruits and vegetables, less fat and
sugar and smaller portion sizes, Berkeley can work within and build on these standards
to reflect the emerging scientific consensus that a healthy diet also requires consuming
fewer animal products. Berkeley’s efforts will thus generate direct benefits for
community wellness, local economies, workers, farmers and the environment.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The food sector is a significant contributor to global greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions,
with livestock production accounting for 14.5% of global GHG emissions, and the United
Nations recognizing that “Livestock are one of the most significant contributors to
today’s most serious environmental problems.” The City of Berkeley can reduce its
greenhouse gas emissions and improve health and wellbeing by purchasing and
serving less meat and more plant-based meals.

CONTACT PERSON

Page 4

212


https://greenmondayus.org/
https://goodfoodpurchasing.org/
https://www.milanurbanfoodpolicypact.org/
https://foe.org/resources/meat-of-the-matter/
https://1bps6437gg8c169i0y1drtgz-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/MunicipalReport_ko_120117_v2-1.pdf

Page 5 of 127

Accelerating the City of Berkeley’s transition to Plant-Based Foods CONSENT
July 13, 2021

Councilmember Sophie Hahn Council District 5 510-981-7150

Attachments:

1: Resolution

2: Meat of the Matter: A municipal guide to climate friendly food purchasing, Executive
Summary.

3: Green Monday USA

4: Good Food Purchasing Policy

5: Milan Urban Food Pact

6: Friends of the Earth Climate Friendly Food Purchasing Policy

Page 5

213



Page 6 of 127

Accelerating the City of Berkeley’s transition to Plant-Based Foods CONSENT
July 13, 2021

RESOLUTION NO. ## ###-N.S.
To Accelerate the City of Berkeley’s transition to Plant-Based Foods

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has a Strategic Plan Priority of being a global leader in
addressing climate change, advancing environmental justice, and protecting the
environment; and

WHEREAS, Berkeley’s Climate Action Plan includes the goal that a majority of food
consumed in Berkeley be produced locally (i.e; within a few hundred miles); and

WHEREAS, scientific analyses have shown that one of the most effective ways to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions is to transition to plant-forward or plant-based diets
to reduce or eliminate the consumption of animal-based foods; and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has previously adopted policies in support of reducing
our carbon footprint by decreasing consumption of animal-based foods including
resolutions in support of Green Monday USA, the Good Food Purchasing Policy, the
Milan Urban Food Pact, and Friends of the Earth’s Climate Friendly Food Purchasing
Policy;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley
establishes an official goal to accelerate the City’s transition to plant-based diets by

implementing a 50% decrease in animal-based food served by the City of Berkeley by
2024.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley refers to the City

Manager to report to the Council on progress towards reaching this goal by January 31,
2022.

Page 6

214



MEAT OF THE MATTER:

A MUNICIPAL GUIDE TO CLIMATE-FRIENDLY
FOOD PURCHASING




iy
(-
?' R

- -
"
(F%1

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This report was written by Kari Hamerschlag, Friends of the Earth U.S.; Alicia Culver, Responsible
Purchasing Network; Chloé Waterman, Friends of the Earth U.S.; and Becca Bartholomew, Senior
Consultant to Friends of the Earth U.S

We gratefully acknowledge the following individuals for providing thoughtful review of the guide:

Lisa Archer, Friends of the Earth U.S.; JuliAnna Arnett, County of San Diego (formerly); Sarah Church,
County of Alameda; Stacia Clinton and Sarah Spengeman, Ph.D, Health Care Without Harm:; Steve
Cohen, City of Portland; Dr. Kendra Klein, Friends of the Earth, U.S.; Colleen McKinney, Center for Good
Food Purchasing; Aysha Pamukcu, Changelab Solutions; Raychel Santo and Becky Ramsing, Johns
Hopkins Center for a Livable Future; and Richard Waite, World Resources Institute. We also thank

the following people for providing feedback on the model climate-friendly food purchasing policy:
Stacia Clinton and Hillary Greenwood, Health Care Without Harm; Stephanie Feldstein, Center for
Biological Diversity; Claire Fitch, Farm Forward; Katy Mamen; Colleen McKinney, Center for Good Food
Purchasing; Michele Simon, Plant Based Foods Association; Richard Waite, World Resources Institute;
and Hannah Weinronk, Real Food Challenge. We also thank Keiko Okisada, Friends of the Earth’s
graphic designer for her beautiful design contributions to this report. Robert Schooler and Chris Cook
provided valuable editing support. Finally, we thank all of the municipalities who provided us with their
food purchasing policies and standards that appear as examples throughout the report.

About Friends of the Earth:

Friends of the Earth U.S., founded by David Brower in 1969, is the U.S. voice of the world’s largest
federation of grassroots environmental groups, with a presence in 74 countries. Friends of the Earth
works to defend the environment and champion a more healthy and just world. Our current campaigns
focus on promoting clean energy and solutions to climate change, ensuring the food we eat and
products we use are safe and sustainable and protecting marine ecosystems and the people who live
and work near them. www.foe.org

Any errors or omissions in this report are the responsibility of Friends of the Earth U.S.

216



Page 9 of 127

CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...ttt te e et e e e e e aseeseesesseesessessensessestessesaessenseseessnnens 4
INTRODUGTION ...ttt sttt b e b £ h e s e e aeseeae e et ebeae e bt seeaeseeneseenesbe e eaeseebeseeneseenas 8
PART I: The case for more plant-based foods, less meat and dairy .....ccccoceevveeieecicec e, N
Eating more plant-based foods is essential to meeting climate goals ..., n
Beyond climate protection, plant-based foods deliver health and environmental benefits ........ 13
PART lI: A step-by-step guide to climate-friendly food procurement......c.ccoceeeeeeeeiececeennene, 17
PHASE I: Pass a climate-friendly food procurement policy and/or standards ........ccccevevereeeene. 17
STEP 1: Establish @ WOIKING GFOUD ..ottt sttt st s besaesnstesaennarens 17

STEP 2: Enact a climate-friendly food procurement POLICY ...ccceoeveiiiciiicccce e 18

STEP 3: Develop climate-friendly food standards ... 30

PHASE 2: Implement the policy and/or StANAArAS.. ...ttt 33
STEP 4: Develop a plan for communications and staff training ... 33

STEP 5: Update bid solicitation and contract 1anguage .......cceciveeee e 35

STEP 6: Track and repOrt PrOGIESS ...ttt sttt st seebssbe s bt eebesbensebesreneeseseen 39
APPENDIX A: Model climate-friendly food purchasing policy and standards .......cccvevvivevnescennne. 42
APPENDIX B: Additional considerations for a broader sustainable food procurement policy............ 46
APPENDIX C: Meaningful third-party certifications for animal products........cccccevvevrsecniicvceseceenne 49
APPENDIX D: RESOUICTES ..ottt ettt s e et e s e s e bt s e Rt ne e e e e bt enr b e e e n e e 50
APPENDIX E: Chart: Greenhouse gas emissions of select foods by weight ... 52
APPENDIX F1: Good Food Purchasing Program Environmental Sustainability Standards .................. 53
APPENDIX F2: San Francisco’s Healthy and Sustainable FOOd POIlICY ... 60
APPENDIX F3: San Diego County’s Eat Well PraCtiCes ...ttt 65
APPENDIX F4: Healthy People | Healthy Planet: City of Portland food purchasing guidelines ......... 67
APPENDIX F5: An RFP template for sustainable food services from the federal government .......... 69
ENDINOTES ...ttt s et h bbb £ 21284288 E b £ bbbt b bbb bbbt ses 72

217



Page 10 of 127

\EXECUTI\/E SUMMARY

Municipalities across the country are using their economic clout, political power and cultural influence to
fight climate change. They are establishing ambitious greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reduction targets
and pursuing aggressive strategies, such as requiring the purchase of 100 percent renewable energy and
fuel-efficient vehicles. But one critically important sector that accounts for about one fourth of global
greenhouse gas emissions has largely been ignored: food.

A wealth of scientific research underscores the urgency of substantially reducing meat and dairy consumption,
which accounts for more than half of all food-related GHG emissions. It is clear that the world cannot meet
global greenhouse gas reduction targets without curbing consumption of animal products. High-meat-
eating nations like the United States, which consumes 2.6 times more meat than the global per capita average,
must help shoulder this responsibility.

As large population centers with vast purchasing power, cities and counties have a critical role to play. By
reducing the amount of animal products purchased with municipal funds and serving more plant-forward
options on city or county property, municipalities can cut their GHG emissions and water footprints, all while
saving money and offering healthier food. Beyond leveraging their own purchasing power, municipalities

can inspire school districts, private institutions, restaurants and community residents to shift their purchases
towards climate-friendly food. Compared to other climate mitigation strategies, plant-forward institutional
food purchasing is a relatively simple, cost-effective approach that will downsize our nation’s carbon footprint
while improving the health of the public.

This guide presents a menu of tools, approaches and examples, including a model climate-friendly food
purchasing policy and standards, acknowledging the many ways that cities and counties can advance climate-
friendly and healthy food procurement.

Part | summarizes the compelling environmental and health reasons for transitioning institutional
food purchases towards more plant-based foods. Key findings include:

* The production of meat and dairy generally has much higher greenhouse gas emissions than plant-based
foods.

e In order to fully account for their climate impacts, municipalities should consider upstream emissions — that
is, the embedded emissions associated with the production of food purchased and served by the city or
county.

e Americans are overconsuming meat, which is contributing to heart disease, diabetes, some cancers and
billions of dollars in health care costs associated with these maladies. The federal government’s Dietary
Guidelines for Americans recommend a maximum of 3.7 ounces of meat, poultry and eggs a day, which is
significantly less than average U.S. consumption rates.

e Water resources are at risk in our warming world hit by increasingly frequent and catastrophic natural
disasters. Meat and dairy production has a harmful impact on water quality and uses substantially more
water resources than plant-based foods.

* As demonstrated by the Oakland Unified School District case study, shifting to plant-forward options can
save valuable tax dollars since plant-based proteins are generally less expensive than meat.

e Food waste is a substantial contributor to food-related greenhouse gas emissions. Serving more plant-
based foods and smaller portions of meat and dairy will help cut waste from animal products, which
account for an outsized portion of total emissions associated with food waste.

e Buying less conventionally produced meat can make it easier to afford third-party certified, sustainably

e A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing




Page 11 of 127

produced food. Local and organic food, in particular, can have climate benefits. An array of third-party
certifications has been endorsed by leading public interest groups.

Part Il provides practical policy guidance for municipalities, broken down into six steps:

Phase I: Pass a climate-friendly food procurement policy and/or standards

A 2016 U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) study found that fewer than five percent of
municipalities have established healthy food service guidelines or food and nutrition standards. There is
a compelling opportunity for municipalities to fill this gap by adopting purchasing policies that yield the
complementary benefits of climate-friendly and healthy food.

Step 1: Establish a working group

» Build a team across agencies that includes decision-makers, advocates and other stakeholders,
including public health, procurement and sustainability agency staff and a nutritionist.

» Research the municipality’s procurement practices and identify food venues under municipal control,
especially those that could most easily adopt climate-friendly food purchasing (e.g., concessions).

» Solicit input from employees and customers.
Step 2: Enact a climate-friendly food procurement policy

» Determine a vehicle for enactment, which could include:

» A standalone sustainable food procurement policy, such as the model climate-friendly food
purchasing policy created for this guide, the Good Food Purchasing Policy or a policy modeled off of
examples in San Francisco, CA, Woodbury County, IA, Cleveland, OH, Austin, TX or Malmd, Sweden;

* An environmentally preferable or green procurement policy that addresses sustainable food, such as
in San Jose, CA or Washington, DC;

* A climate action plan that includes climate-friendly procurement strategies such as in Multnomah
County, OR, Santa Monica, CA, Eugene, OR or Carrboro, NC and recognizes the role of reducing
meat and dairy consumption in combatting climate change such as in the case of at least 17
municipalities.

* A food action plan, such as in King County, WA, Seattle, WA or Multnomah County, OR; a wellness
policy, such as in Brentwood, CA, San Mateo County, CA or Kansas City, MO; or a comprehensive
municipal plan such as in Austin, TX; and

* A green business program that incentivizes climate-friendly food in the private sector.
» Determine a mechanism for enacting the policy, which can include:

* Legally-binding local ordinances and executive orders;

* Integrating climate-friendly procurement in an existing policy; and

* Non-binding resolutions, such as “Meatless Monday” proclamations, which can be a key step towards
binding action in the future.

Step 3: Develop climate-friendly food standards

» Food procurement policies typically establish a broad framework for purchasing certain categories of
food, such as climate-friendly, local and healthy food. Standards, such as the model climate-friendly
food standards created for this guide, provide detail about how to interpret and implement the policy in
terms of what is served. Developing standards may happen in concert with creating a food procurement
policy or separately, sometimes even without a formal policy.

» Many municipalities, such as New York City, NY, have adopted healthy food and nutrition standards that
provide an opportunity for adding climate-friendly standards, recognizing that reducing meat and dairy
is an important element of both a healthy diet and a healthy planet.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @



Page 12 of 127

» Municipalities such as Santa Clara County, CA, Philadelphia, PA and San Diego County, CA have healthy
food standards in place that promote climate-friendly food.

» Counties, including Portland, OR, Lakewood, CO, Boulder County, CO and Philadelphia, PA, have plant-
forward food guidelines that apply to caterers, government meetings and events.

Phase II: Implement the policy and/or standards

Once the policy has been created, develop an implementation plan. San Diego County, CA and Santa Clara
County, CA have comprehensive plans for implementing their food standards that can serve as models.

Step 4: Develop a plan for communications and staff training

» Communicate the new policy and/or standards to all relevant internal staff and, where appropriate,
external stakeholders.

» Conduct staff trainings on the new policy and/or standards.

» Offer implementation tips and tools such as creative menus, customer surveys and behavioral design,
marketing and educational strategies.

» Make the business case for climate-friendly food.
Step 5: Update bid solicitation and contract language

» Determine which contracts are top priorities and when they are up for renewal. Consider starting with
the low-hanging fruit (often concessions) or launching a pilot project as an incremental step towards a
municipality-wide policy.

» Ensure that climate-friendly standards are referenced in upcoming bid solicitations for commodity
contracts, food service agreements and concessions contracts. Draw from bid solicitation language
from Alameda County, CA, the federal government and San Francisco Airport (SFO).

» Make sure the climate-friendly purchasing standards are considered when bids are evaluated.
» Finalize contract awards and monitor compliance.
Step 6: Track and report progress

» Tracking food purchases — and their embedded GHG emissions — is essential to understanding and
communicating the benefits of a municipality’s climate-friendly food purchasing policy

» Choose a method for tracking purchases by weight and cost, with a focus on animal products. A menu-
based approach is a simple and meaningful way to measure carbon footprint and cost-savings by meal.

» Include tracking requirements in contract language to ensure that vendors provide the necessary
information in a usable format.

» Consider utilizing low-cost tracking resources.
» Communicate the results of climate-friendly food procurement actions to facilitate future success.

In conclusion, cities and counties can make a meaningful impact — both locally and globally — by shifting their
food purchases towards plant-based and plant-forward options. Whether these changes are made for health,
environmental or cost-saving reasons, municipalities that serve less meat in their food service operations will
experience a triple win for community well-being, local budgets and the planet.

Beyond the information and resources provided within this guide, Friends of the Earth and the Responsible
Purchasing Network stand ready to support municipalities to adopt and implement climate-friendly
purchasing practices.

@ A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



A Step-by-Step Municipal Guide to

Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

STEP 1: Establish a working group

Health Department

Nutritionist

Food Policy
Council

Research and Identify potential food venues

Stadiums Municipal Airports
meetings

Park
vendors

BN ES

Municipal Correctional Hospitals
events

Sustainability
Department

Advisory
Council

Purchasing
Department

facilities

STEP 2: Enact a climate-friendly food
procurement policy

Find A Vehicle + Find a Mechanism

Standalone
food
procurement
policy

Green
purchasing
policy

Climate
action plan

Food or
wellness
policy

Executive order or ordinance
e S, 2
o 0 a9

vy, |

%5828,
Integrate
into
existing
policy

Non-binding l \
resolution

STEP 4: Develop a communications & training plan

Creative
menus

STEP 5:
Update bid
solicitations
&contracts

Identify top priority
commodity, food

contracts

Integrate
climate-friendly

food standards
—Gﬂ

Blended
burgers

70% meat
30% mushrooms

dllnll
02020
P Y

Marketing &

. . Education
service, and concession

— —
»”

Customer
surveys

$$

Make the
business case

STEP 3: Develop climate-friendly
food standards

More
plant-based
protein options

Non-dairy
drinks

Smaller meat
portions

S

Reduced-size
main dishes

STEP 6: Track and report progress

Reduced purchases of ™

. 45,000 lbs
Beef

A 30,000 Ibs

m Cheese

v 15,000 lbs
Pork

: 35,000 Ibs
Chicken

J

Increased purchases of

Lentils &

beans Whole

Veggies

e
1.7 million Ibs
of CO: avoided

100 million
gals of water
saved

2 million
fewer miles
driven )

— Fewer Resources ﬁ

$$9%

Sayed!

HEALTHY
PEOPLE
&
PLANET

Nuts & grams
seeds

e:&

n BENS

emissions

More $$ for
sustainable food

Less land & watej

purchasing




Page 14 of 127

S INTRODUCTION

Municipalities across the country are using their
economic clout, political power and cultural influence
to fight climate change. They are establishing ambitious
greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction targets
and pursuing aggressive strategies, such as requiring
the purchase of 100 percent renewable energy, fuel-
efficient vehicles and energy-efficient computers

and lighting. But one critically important sector that
accounts for about one fourth of global greenhouse
gas emissions has largely been ignored: food.'

A wealth of scientific research underscores the
urgency of substantially reducing meat and dairy
consumption, which accounts for more than half

of all food-related GHG emissions.>34>°¢ It is clear
that the world cannot meet global greenhouse gas
reduction targets without significantly curbing
consumption of animal products.” High-meat-eating
nations like the United States, which consumes 2.6
times more meat than the global per capita average,
must help shoulder this responsibility.t

As large population centers with vast purchasing
power, cities and counties have a critical role to
play in helping shift consumption towards foods
that generate fewer greenhouse gas emissions. By
reducing the amount of animal products purchased
with municipal funds and serving more plant-
based’ and plant-forward options on city or county
property, municipalities can significantly cut their
GHG emissions and water footprints, all while
offering healthier food and saving valuable tax
dollars.>™© Ounce for ounce, plant-based proteins
are typically less expensive than equivalent animal
proteins.”

Beyond leveraging their own purchasing power

to increase healthy food options and measurably
reduce their carbon footprint, municipalities can
amplify this impact by inspiring and supporting
school districts, restaurants, large private institutions
and residents to also shift their purchases towards
climate-friendly food. With nearly 50 percent of
Americans’ food dollars spent outside of the home,
food service operators — especially those in the
public sector — must make it easier for people to
choose plant-forward meals that are better for their
health and the planet.?

“The single most significant
contribution the foodservice industry
can make toward environmental
sustainability is to reduce red meat on
menus, as part of a larger shift toward
more plant-based and healthy dishes.”

—Menus of Change, an initiative of The Culinary
Institute of America and Harvard University’s School

of Public Health!?

Plant-based food purchasing can build on nutrition
standards (see page 30) that have already been
adopted by several cities and counties. While
nutrition standards typically promote more fruits and
vegetables, less fat and sugar and smaller portion
sizes, municipalities have an opportunity to update
these standards or adopt new standards that reflect
the emerging scientific consensus that a healthy diet
also requires consuming fewer animal products.™

“Plant-based” refers to a diet or food that is wholly derived from plants, including fruits and vegetables; whole grains; beans, other legumes (pulses), and soy

foods; nuts and seeds; plant oils and herbs and spices.

i “Plant-forward’ refers to a style of cooking and eating that emphasizes plant-based foods and fewer animal products.

i This guide uses “carbon footprint” to mean the climate impact associated with carbon dioxide emissions as well as other greenhouse gases, including meth-
ane and nitrous oxide. These emissions may occur anywhere during the lifecycle of a product including production, transportation, use and disposal.

iv. The Dietary Guidelines Advisory Committee represented a widespread scientific consensus in its statement that, “A diet higher in plant-based foods, such as
vegetables, fruits, whole grains, legumes, nuts, and seeds, and lower in calories and animal-based foods is more health promoting and is associated with less

environmental impact than is the current U.S. diet.”

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing




Page 15 of 127

Climate-friendly food purchasing can also be
integrated into existing sustainable food purchasing
initiatives and green purchasing policies. Many cities
and counties are harnessing the power of public
purchasing to establish preferences for products that
reflect their values, such as energy-efficient
equipment or locally produced and organic food.”
These initiatives can generate direct benefits for
community wellness, local economies, workers,
farmers and the environment, and should be
expanded to include climate-friendly food.

“Globally, up to 32% of GHG
emissions are related to food
system activities including
production, transportation, processing,
and storage... Significant opportunities
to reduce GHG emissions associated
with the food system exist in decreasing
consumption of meat and food
grown with intensive use of
manufactured fertilizers.”

-0akland, CA's Energy and Climate Action Plan'®

Hundreds of U.S. cities and counties have pledged
to help achieve the Paris Climate Accord goal of
lowering greenhouse gas emissions enough to keep
average global temperatures at no more than two
degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels. Many
jurisdictions are implementing innovative public
transportation systems, building solar-powered
buildings and transitioning away from carbon-
intensive energy sources, among other things. Yet,
even if all U.S. cities dramatically reduced their GHG
emissions through these actions, projected global
emissions from food production alone - largely
driven by consumption of animal products - could
nearly exceed the 2°C limit established in the Paris
Agreement. (see Figure 1, page 11).” Compared to
other climate mitigation strategies, institutional
plant-based food purchasing is a relatively simple,
cost-effective strategy that will downsize our nation’s
carbon footprint while improving the health of our
citizens.®

Using this guide

This document lays out compelling scientific
arguments for shifting institutional food procurement
towards plant-based options. It provides practical,
step-by-step guidance for how municipalities can
successfully implement climate-friendly and health-
promoting policies and practices for food purchased
by public institutions (e.g., hospitals, schools,
childcare centers and correctional facilities) and
served on municipal property (e.g., in airports, sports
stadiums, parks, museums and office buildings).

The guide includes numerous examples of cities

and counties that are supporting climate-friendly
purchasing through standalone food procurement
policies, climate action plans, food or wellness
policies or as part of their nutrition standards.

This guide is primarily intended to help municipal
staff — particularly those whose roles relate to
sustainability, food and health — and municipal
leaders who are in a position to influence food
purchasing policies and practices. Changes in food
purchasing can happen at a comprehensive level
through the adoption of a new policy across all
agencies, but meaningful changes can also occur
within a single agency or office, in a single municipal
building or with a single concessions contract. This
guide provides a variety of tools and approaches,
including a model climate-friendly purchasing policy
and standards (see Appendix A), acknowledging
the many ways that municipalities can achieve

the benefits of climate-friendly and healthy food
procurement.

Finally, this guide recognizes that climate-friendly
and healthy food is an issue in which the entire
community has a stake. To that end, it can also serve
as an important resource for advocates who want

to see their local government make an impact in
reducing greenhouse gas emissions, for parents who
want their children to have access to healthy food,
for local farmers who want to provide consumers
with nutritious food and for businesses that want to
lead by example with climate-friendly menus.

o
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @


http://www2.oaklandnet.com/oakca1/groups/pwa/documents/report/oak039056.pdf
https://www.wearestillin.com/us-action-climate-change-irreversible

Page 16 of 127

Food shifts matter: the power of municipal procurement

To show the power of public sector procurement, Shrinking the Carbon and Water Footprint of School
Food, a 2017 case study published by Friends of the Earth, documents how one of California’s largest
school districts generated significant climate and water benefits by changing its food purchasing
practices and menu design.”® Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) slashed the carbon footprint of
its food service 14 percent by reducing its purchases of animal products by 30 percent and replacing
them with plant-based proteins and more fruits and vegetables.’ This single procurement action saved
the equivalent of roughly 600,000 Kg of CO, per year — akin to driving 1.5 million fewer miles a year
or covering all of OUSD’s roofs with solar panels. Oakland’s initiative also cut the district’s food service
water footprint by nearly 6 percent — saving 7 gallons per meal, totaling 42 million gallons of water per
year. This is equivalent to filling 840,000 bathtubs or taking 2.3 million fewer showers each year. While
generating these huge environmental gains, OUSD increased its purchases of protein-rich legumes,
fruits, vegetables and better-quality meat — improving students’ diets and saving the district $42,000
annually by trimming costs one percent per meal.

9

FOOD
SHIFTS
MATTER

S

Over 2 years, SAVED 42nmillion 14% REDUCTION COST
Oakland Unified GALLONS OF IN THE SAVINGS
School District WATER CARBON FOOTPRINT

reshaped its menu OF ITS ENTIRE FOOD PURCHASES

with fewer animal
TR 42,000
foods and more N (@ $42,
15,000

protein-rich legumes TREES PLANTED

and vegetables.

This shift generated 63 1.5 million C@{?Q
- OLYMPIC SIZED s
con5|d_erable water S Ce FEWER MILES DRIVEN
and climate @
benefits, and 87 soLAR SYSTEMS INSTALLED

. ON THE SCHOOL DISTRICTS’ ROOVES
cost savings:

v The school district could have achieved even greater reductions in GHGs if it had focused on reducing beef purchases, which account for
the highest carbon and water footprints on its menu. Most of its GHG reductions came from reduced chicken and cheese purchases.

. /

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


http://1bps6437gg8c169i0y1drtgz-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/webiva_fs_2/FOE_FoodPrintReport_7F.pdf
http://1bps6437gg8c169i0y1drtgz-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/webiva_fs_2/FOE_FoodPrintReport_7F.pdf

Page 17 of 127

W PART I

The case for more plant-based foods, less
meat and dairy

Part | provides an overview of compelling scientific evidence that promoting diets higher in plant-based foods and
lower in animal products is critical to addressing global climate change and achieving better health outcomes.

FIGURE 1: GHG emissions from food production alone are projected to nearly exceed
all-sector 2050 climate mitigation thresholds

All sectors combined, 2010 RElRELRVELS

Increased agricultural yields ‘

industry, buildings, transport, energy

50% food waste reduction ‘

|
‘ 2050 emissions
|
|

Healthy, low-meat diet* ‘ threshold for
. . . all sectors, 66%
Higher yields + waste reduction probability of

+ healthy diet

......... avoiding wariming > 2°C

Note: The black dotted line represents the 2050 emissions threshold (21+ 3Gt CO2e) for at least a 66% chance of keeping global warming below 2
degrees C; the black bar shows 2010 emissions from all sectors (49 Gt). Red shows emissions in 2050 from the business as usual scenario; orange bars
show various 2050 mitigation scenarios; and the gray bars represent the potential emission reductions associated with each mitigation scenario.

*The “healthy diet” limits intake of red meat (max of two 85 g/ 3 oz. portions per week), poultry (max of one 85 g/ 3 oz. portion per day), dairy, eggs,
sugars, and oils to levels recommended by health organizations (e.g., WHO, FAO, American Heart Association, Harvard Medical School), and sets a
minimum for fruit and vegetable intake.

Source: Reprinted from Kim, B., et al. (2015). The importance of reducing animal product consumption and wasted food in mitigating catastrophic climate
change. Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future Report prepared for United Nations Conference of the Parties 21 (COP21)., using data from Bajzelj B,
et al. (2014) Importance of food-demand management for climate mitigation. Nature Climate Change 4(10):924-929. doi:10.1038/nclimate2353

effects on the climate and other aspects of our
environment.??

A. Eating more plant-based foods is
essential to meeting climate goals

While improved agricultural production methods
have been the primary focus for mitigating

Moreover, replacing a significant amount of the
meat and dairy in our diets with plant-based foods

agriculture’s impact on climate change, there is an
emerging consensus that supply-side mitigation
strategies alone cannot contain the increasing GHG
emissions associated with the projected rise in
meat consumption.?®? An effective solution must go
beyond production and address consumption. The
United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) found that reducing consumption

of animal products* is one of the highest-impact
strategies for mitigating agriculture’s harmful

is essential for the world to meet the historic 2016
Paris Climate Accord goals of lowering greenhouse
gas (GHG) emissions enough to keep average global
temperatures at no more than two degrees Celsius
above pre-industrial levels.? 24

vi  This guide will use “animal products” to refer to meat, poultry, dairy, eggs and seafood. Certain animal products such as beef, lamb, farmed salmon
and cheese will have higher GHG emissions than others, such as eggs, milk and certain types of fish. See Appendix E for a chart comparing GHG

emissions by specific food type.

2D
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @



Page 18 of 127

1. Animal products generate higher emissions
than plant-based foods

Food production generates about one fourth of all
global GHGs, with livestock responsible for more
than half of those emissions.?> 2 When including
the additional emissions related to processing,
transporting, storage and managing waste, the
food system contributes up to 30 percent of global
GHG emissions.? 2 In total, livestock production
accounts for about 14.5 percent of global GHG
emissions, which is more than the tailpipe emissions
from all of the cars, trucks, trains, buses, boats and
planes across the globe.?

Meat and dairy products generally emit significantly
higher emissions than plant-based alternatives. This
is primarily due to nitrous oxide (N,0) emissions
from feed production as well as methane (CH,)
emissions from enteric fermentation and waste
management. Nitrous oxide and methane are up to
298 and 36 times more potent gases than carbon
dioxide, respectively.>® As shown in Figure 2 below,
beef, cheese and pork have the highest emissions per
gram of protein. Pound for pound, beef is roughly 13
times as carbon-intensive as tofu and 25 to 34 times

Figure 2: Greenhouse gas
impact of select foods by

as carbon-intensive as beans and lentils.® For a table
of relative greenhouse gas emissions of protein foods
by weight, see Appendix E.

The West Coast Climate and Materials Management
Forum — an initiative comprised of government
agencies at the federal, state and local levels —
promotes the procurement of low-carbon food
products as a priority climate protection strategy in
its Climate-Friendly Purchasing Toolkit.*? Specifically,
it recommends the purchase of “fewer high-carbon
foods, based on the general life cycle information
that is available” and suggests that “taking a look
at options for non-animal protein is a good place to
start.”*3

2. Accounting for embedded emissions from
food is critical to addressing community
climate impacts

A municipality’s influence on the environmental
impacts of food production extends far beyond its
borders. When calculating its full climate impact,
a municipality must account for direct emissions
from food production occurring within the city as

IMPACT COST
(GHG emissions per gram of protein) (Retail price per
gram of protein)

! Wheat | $
gram of protein — 0 $
Beans, chickpeas, lentils [J] $
: : sss
—
Soy | $
Nuts [ $$$
Eggs H $$
Poultry | $$
E Pork | $$
Dairy(milk, cheese) |1 $$
Beef ] $$$
World Resources Insitute. Retrieved flom wwwnr E Lamb&goat NG  $5$

org/resources/data-visualizations/protein-scorecard

® A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



https://westcoastclimateforum.com/cfpt/food/introduction
http://www.wri.org/resources/data-visualizations/protein-scorecard
http://www.wri.org/resources/data-visualizations/protein-scorecard

Page 19 of 127

well as embedded — or “scope 3"V — emissions
associated with the production of the food and
other goods that are consumed in the municipality,
even if they are not produced there. These are also
known as “upstream emissions.” While there are
several innovative initiatives underway to better
account for indirect GHG emissions in cities such as
Vancouver, BC, Portland, OR, San Francisco, CA and
Austin, TX, embedded emissions are not commonly
accounted for in reporting systems and thus typically
have not yet been integrated into municipalities’
plans for reducing their GHG emissions. Reducing
the consumption of high-carbon foods in large
population centers will translate into lower
production of GHG-intensive foods and lower overall
emissions across the world.

“Residents of Multnomah County
can reduce the impact of food
choices on climate change — and
improve personal, environmental and
economic health — by choosing ‘low-
carbon’ foods, such as fresh fruits and
vegetables. Lifecycle analysis shows
that beef, cheese, pork and farmed
salmon generate the most carbon
emissions per ounce.”

—Portland and Multnomah County, OR’s

Climate Action Plan?®

3. Fewer purchases of animal foods means
fewer GHG emissions from wasted animal
products

A new book, Project Drawdown, evaluates 100
strategies to combat climate change and ranks
reducing food waste as the third most important
strategy.’® While meat is wasted at lower rates than
plant-based products by volume (15 percent of total
global food waste), meat accounts for about one
third of food waste-related GHG emissions due to
its higher embedded emissions from production.’”
Fewer purchases of animal foods and smaller meat
portion sizes will help to reduce waste from these

GHG-intensive foods.*® The West Coast Climate
and Materials Management Forum’s Climate Action
Toolkit highlights effective ways municipalities can
reduce GHG emissions from food waste, including
through purchasing practices. While food waste
reduction strategies are outside the scope of this
report, ReFed takes a data-driven approach to
identifying solutions for reducing food waste for
businesses and governments. The Environmental
Protection Agency has an extensive list of food waste
reduction resources for K-12 schools that could be
applied to other institutional settings.

B. Beyond climate protection, plant-based
foods deliver health and environmental
benefits

Municipal governments are charged with protecting
natural resources as well as promoting the health and
safety of the public. Fortunately, promoting a plant-
forward diet is aligned with both of these objectives.

1. Plant-based menus are a triple win for food
security, health and environment

The U.S. Dietary Guidelines Advisory Committee
(DGAC) — experts appointed by the federal
government to review the latest nutrition science and
make recommendations for the 2075-2020 Dietary
Guidelines for Americans (DGAs) — recognized the
connection between food security and environmental
protection in its federal dietary guidance document:
“Linking health, dietary guidance, and the
environment will promote human health and ensure
current and long-term food security.”*°

In 2015, the U.S. Conference of Mayors adopted a
resolution supporting the DGAC’s recommendations,
urging “the creation of dietary guidelines that
encourage Americans to adopt dietary patterns

that are higher in plant-based foods and lower in
animal-based foods than current average American
diets [emphasis added], as such patterns have been
found in systematic reviews to be the most health-
promoting and sustainable...”4°

vii Scope 3 emissions are defined by the Greenhouse Gas Protocol as indirect emissions, other than from the consumption of purchased electricity,
heat or steam, such as the extraction and production of purchased materials and fuels, transport-related activities in vehicles not owned or con-
trolled by the reporting entity, outsourced activities, waste disposal, etc. Scope 3 emissions include emissions associated with the production of

food consumed within the reporting organization or jurisdiction.

2
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @


https://www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/article/531984
http://www.westcoastclimateforum.com/toolkit/homepage
http://www.westcoastclimateforum.com/toolkit/homepage
http://www.refed.com
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-06/documents/guide-for-k-12-schools-food-recovery.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-06/documents/guide-for-k-12-schools-food-recovery.pdf
http://www.baltimoresustainability.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/BFPI-2015-Reader.pdf

Page 20 of 127

FIGURE 3: People are eating more protein than they need.

US & CANADA

Average daily protein requirement

o 10 20 30

40 50 60 70 80 90

g protein consumed/capita/day

100

. Plant-based protein - Animal-based protein

Source: Adapted from People Are Eating More Protein than They Need - Especially in Wealthy Regions. (2016). World Resources Institute. Retrieved

from www.wri.org/resources/data-visualizations/protein-scorecard

2. Eating more plant-based foods and less
meat is better for our health

On average, Americans consume approximately 4.4
to 5.5 ounces of meat and poultry each day, which

is significantly more than is recommended in the
Dietary Guidelines for Americans (DGAS).* 4

At the same time, fewer than 20 percent of
Americans eat the recommended amounts of fruits
and vegetables.** The 2010 DGAs recommended
limiting red meat (pork, beef and lamb) consumption
to 1.8 ounces per person per day.** The 2015 DGAs
recommend a maximum of 26 ounces of meat,
poultry or eggs a week for a typical 2000 calorie
diet, which amounts to 3.7 ounces per day*> — about
the same as a small burger or chicken breast at one
meal per day for adults, less for children and youth.
The DGAs explicitly recommend that teenage boys
and men reduce their overall intake of meat.*® The
DGAs specifically identify low-meat, Mediterranean-
style and no-meat, vegetarian diets as viable options
for a healthy nutritious diet.

People’s protein needs can easily be met by
replacing some meat with the large variety of widely
available plant-based proteins and by reducing
protein consumption overall. On average, American
adults consume approximately 66 percent more
protein per day than necessary.*® Considering the
DGAs’ recommendation of 5.5 ounces of total protein
foods per day for a 2,000 calorie diet, at least one
third of those protein foods should be coming from
sources other than meat, poultry or eggs.*

Ample scientific evidence shows that high
consumption of red and processed meats is
associated with increased risks of heart disease,
diabetes and some cancers, while plant-based diets

can help decrease the risks of all three.>°5"5 The
American Cancer Society has long recommended

“a diet that limits processed meat and red meat,
and that is high in vegetables, fruits, and whole
grains.”**>* In 2015, the World Health Organization’s
International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC)
classified processed meat as a known human
carcinogen and red meat, including beef and lamb,
as a probable human carcinogen.>® In addition to
saving lives, eating more plant-based foods can save
the nation hundreds of billions of dollars in health
care costs each year.%®

3. Plant-based foods conserve water and
protect water quality

Municipalities can conserve water and protect water
quality by reducing meat consumption. Nearly one
third of the total water footprint of agriculture in

the world is related to the production of animal
products.”” Dietary shifts are crucial to conserve water
resources, which are at risk in a warming world hit
by increasingly frequent and catastrophic climate
disasters such as prolonged droughts.>® Producing
plant-based proteins requires less water per unit of
protein than animal products. For example, it takes
4-6 times as much water to produce a gram of beef
protein than to produce a gram of lentil protein (see
Figure 4 on page 15).5% % Qverall, meat contributes
37 percent of the food-related water footprint of the
average American citizen.® Given the vast amount
of water used in meat and dairy production, food
service operators can cut their water footprint by
adopting a plant-forward menu.%? Replacing some
meat and dairy with plant-forward options can also
reduce nitrate and phosphate runoff, eutrophication/
dead zones and groundwater contamination
associated with meat and dairy production.5® 46

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


https://www.cancer.org/latest-news/world-health-organization-says-processed-meat-causes-cancer.html
http://www.wri.org/resources/data-visualizations/protein-scorecard

Page 21 of 127

500 ™ 46178 FIGURE 4: Gallons of water required to

OO0 produce 4 oz servings of various foods
400 ™ Q00
OOO 305.55
300 — QOO 440 27149
060 G0 6bb
200 — OO0 (o0 OO0 1sss
000 oo 000 OO0 wess .,
wo — OO0 00O OO 00O OO0 oY 97.80
000 660 6L 6oL 06O 00 G .

28.81 9.64

Gallons
of Water Beef Cheese* Nuts Pork Chicken Beans/ Eggs Milk Fruit Vegetables
Lentils

Note: These numbers include both the blue (surface and ground) and green (rain) water used to grow 4 ounces of food.

Source: Adapted from Mekonnen, M. M., & Hoekstra, A. Y. (2010). The green, blue and grey water footprint of farm animals and animal products. Value
of Water Research Report Series, 1(48), 33. Retrieved from http://waterfootprint.org/media/downloads/Report-48-WaterFootprint-AnimalProducts-
Voll_1.pdf

4 )
Buying less conventional meat and dairy can make it easier to afford sustainably-
produced, third-party certified food

Municipalities can use money they save purchasing less meat and dairy to buy organic, grass-fed and
other third-party certified products that can deliver broader health, fair trade, animal welfare and
environmental sustainability benefits. While this guide is focused on plant-forward purchasing as the
core measurable strategy for mitigating climate change, see Appendix B for suggested language for
integrating sustainable food considerations into a climate-friendly food purchasing policy. Wading
through certifications can be confusing. See Appendix C for an overview of the benefits of the top
credible, most widely available or rapidly growing third-party certifications for animal products

that have been endorsed by leading non-profit organizations working to promote sustainable food
procurement.

A
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @




Page 22 of 127

Local and organic food can have climate benefits

Shifting purchases of industrial meat and dairy products towards more plant-based foods should

be the primary focus of quantifiable and trackable climate-friendly institutional food procurement.
However, local, regional and organic food production can also have climate benefits because they
support a more climate-resilient food system and, in some cases, reduce carbon emissions. Whenever
possible, municipalities should prioritize purchases of local, regional and organic food. See Appendix
B for model policy language to support local and organic food procurement.

A. Organic farming has climate resiliency and carbon sequestration benefits

Numerous studies show that, on average, organic diversified farming systems—including some that
raise animals on pasture—generate lower GHG emissions than conventional chemical-intensive farm-
ing systems, largely because they use fewer energy-intensive fertilizer and pesticide inputs and have
higher carbon sequestration rates."ii %6.67.68.69 Qne United Kingdom government study found that
farms using regenerative practices (e.g., cover cropping, crop rotation, mulching, etc.) emit between
one half and two thirds less carbon dioxide per acre of production than large industrial farms.”® A
2017 study that compared over 600 organic and conventional soil samples in the U.S. found that, on
average, soils from organic farms had 13 percent higher soil organic matter and 26 percent greater
potential for long-term carbon storage.”” Meanwhile, by boosting soil organic matter and improving
topsoil health, organic practices such as cover cropping and mulching improve water capture, infil-
tration and storage thus creating greater resiliency and yield reliability than industrial farming in the
face of extreme climate change events like prolonged drought conditions.”>7® Not all organic farms
will deliver these benefits, but support for diversified farms that implement regenerative practices
will generally provide these important carbon sequestration and resiliency benefits.

2. Local and regional food improves climate resiliency, protects farmland and bolsters area
economies

Buying food from local farmers and ranchers supports a municipality’s local economy, increases
healthy food access and builds resiliency and food security in the face of climate change.”»”> While
reducing purchases of meat and dairy will result in @ much more substantial reduction of GHG emis-
sions than focusing solely on local food production, both are important and not mutually exclusive.”®
For instance, local foods can curb climate impacts by protecting farmland from carbon-intensive
spraw! and shortening the distance that food is transported.”” Especially in the case of produce,
sourcing locally can reduce the overall carbon footprint significantly (by as much as 20 percent for
broccoli and 25 percent for tomatoes). The transportation-related GHG reductions from sourcing
meat locally are more limited, accounting for a reduction of only 1to 3 percent.”’”® The benefits are
greatest when local food replaces air-freighted produce, fish and other refrigerated foods.

“For most foods, transportation emissions make up only a small fraction
of the carbon footprint of food. For the average US diet, only 4% of
farm-to-retail GHG emissions are associated with transport of food from
the final producer through wholesale and retail channels. By contrast,
83% of emissions are associated with growing and manufacturing food.

— West Coast Climate and Waste Management Forum, Climate-Friendly Purchasing Toolkit’®

viii When considering carbon sequestration in soils, several studies have found that some U.S. pasture-based and cattle grazing systems pro-
duce a smaller carbon footprint than industrial confinement systems. For more information on the environmental and health benefits of
well-managed grass-fed livestock, see: Less and Better Meat is Key to a Healthier Planet.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


https://westcoastclimateforum.com/toolkit/homepage
https://foodtank.com/news/2017/10/less-better-meat-healthier-planet/

Page 23 of 127

N PART II;

A step-by-step guide to climate-friendly
food procurement

Part Il of the guide lays out strategies for implementing climate-friendly and healthy food procurement
practices including step-by-step guidance, examples of food purchasing initiatives undertaken by
municipalities across the country and other helpful resources.

Step-by-step guide to climate-friendly food procurement
Phase I: Pass a climate-friendly food procurement policy and/or standards
Step 1: Establish a working group
Step 2: Enact a climate-friendly food procurement policy
Step3: Develop climate-friendly food standards

Phase II: Implement the policy and/or standards
Step 4: Develop a plan for communications and staff training
Step 5: Update bid solicitation and contract language

Step 6: Track and report progress
Y P port prog )

Phase I: Pass a climate-friendly
food procurement policy and/or
standards

Most municipalities have been slow to adopt
nutrition or sustainability guidelines for their

food service operations and concessions. A 2016
U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) study found that fewer than 5 percent of
municipalities have established healthy food service
guidelines or food and nutrition standards that
govern the sale or provision of foods and beverages
in food venues such as cafeterias and leased
buildings.” Even fewer municipalities have adopted
broader sustainable food procurement policies.
There is a compelling opportunity for municipalities
to fill this gap by adopting purchasing policies that
will realize the complementary benefits of climate-

friendly and health-promoting food presented in Part

| of this guide.

Step 1: Establish a working group

Forming an internal food procurement working
group is a critical first step to developing policies,
plans and procedures that shift a jurisdiction’s

procurement practices. Relationships are key to this
effort, whether across agencies or jurisdictions, or
among food service providers, municipal staff and
constituents.

A) Build a team across agencies and engage
experts

Start by identifying the key decision-makers,
including elected officials, advocates and
community stakeholders, agency staff from the
departments of health, sustainability/environment
and procurement, as well as members of the local
food policy council, if one exists.® If possible,

a nutritionist with expertise in environmental
nutrition should be on the team. It can also help
to create an independent advisory group that
can provide expert guidance to the working
group and build consensus and political support.
For example, San Diego County, CA created an
Expert External Advisory Council of nutritionists,
environmental experts, procurement specialists
and public health professionals to help craft its
Eat Well Practices (see page 31-32) that provide

food guidance to the county’s dining services and
agency meetings and events.®’

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

J

17



Page 24 of 127

While it may be more effective to involve several
departments in order to take a comprehensive
approach, individual departments may decide
to move forward with a climate-friendly food
purchasing policy or initiative on their own.

B) Research current policies and areas of municipal
authority over food

Researching your local government’s current food

procurement policies and where food is served

by municipalities or on government property will

guide next steps. Here are some questions to

consider:

v Does the city or county have in place any healthy,

local or sustainable food procurement policies or
standards? What about nearby cities or counties?

v" Does the municipality have a climate action plan,
green purchasing, food or wellness policies? Is food
procurement mentioned?

v If so, how broadly is the existing policy applied
within your jurisdiction? Which local government
offices, agencies, concessions or other food
venues are covered? Are health and sustainability
standards in place for food served during meetings
and events on municipal property?

v" Which buildings and other public sites have food
service operations that are under the city’s or
county’s control (see Table 1)? Which of these is
most ripe for making menu modifications?

Cities and counties vary in the scope of their ability
to influence food purchases. City governments often
do not purchase as much food as counties but can
lead by example and influence their diners’ food
purchases by modifying the menu offerings of
concessions, cafeterias, caterers and other food
companies doing business on city property. Cities
also can collaborate with local school systems,
universities, community colleges, surrounding
counties, local restaurants and other businesses to
promote dietary changes and climate-friendly food
procurement.

TIP: Use lessons learned from
other jurisdictions

Consider reaching out to jurisdictions that have
already adopted a food procurement policy and/or
standards. They may be able to share research and

provide lessons learned from their experiences.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

( \

Table 1: Areas of municipal authority
over food

Municipality-controlled spending:

* Public hospitals, senior centers, nursing homes
and health clinics

« Jails, juvenile homes and other correctional
facilities

e Caterers that service municipal events

» Staff meetings

Municipality-controlled food venues:

+ Cafeterias, concessions, restaurants and vending
machines in municipal office buildings

« Airports and convention centers

* Parks, sports stadiums and recreational facilities
* Museums, zoos and aquariums

* Sponsored events

+ Food trucks

Spheres of municipal influence:

*  Pre-K-12 public schools
«  Community colleges

* Restaurants and food businesses (e.g., members
of a green or sustainable business program)

. J

C) Solicit input from employees and customers

Depending on the scope and nature of the
procurement policy or initiative that a municipality
pursues, municipal employees and members of the
public who dine at municipal establishments can

be important stakeholders in this process. Ensuring
employee and public buy-in and involvement

from the beginning can help support efforts to

pass a strong procurement policy and successfully
implement it. Consider inviting employees and
other stakeholders who would be impacted by

the procurement policy to the working group and
develop a plan to gather input, perhaps by hosting
listening sessions, sending out employee surveys or
holding hearings where members of the public have
the opportunity to weigh in on procurement policies
and/or purchasing standards.

Step 2: Enact a climate-friendly food
procurement policy

Once there is a strong working group in place,
the next step is to enact a policy that establishes
a community’s broad commitment to purchasing




Page 25 of 127

climate-friendly and healthy food. This policy should,
whenever possible, mandate the creation of specific
climate-friendly and healthy food standards (see
Step 3 on page 29) as well as enforceable, trackable
targets for emissions reductions from food. Food
procurement policies should provide guidance as

to which municipal entities are covered — such as
public hospitals or senior programs, food venues

on properties owned or leased by the municipality
or caterers that serve government events and staff
meetings. It may be prudent to begin with a pilot
project or a policy that initially applies only to a few
entities that are more willing or able to comply, such
as concession stands. A successful pilot project or

a phase-in can set the stage for the adoption of a
municipality-wide policy. Food purchasing policies
— and corresponding standards — provide the basis
for food specifications that can be incorporated into
bid solicitation documents (see Step 5 on page 34)
for upcoming food commodity contracts and food
service agreements.

Depending on the jurisdiction, food procurement
policies can be implemented through a number of
avenues, including through a standalone climate-
friendly food procurement policy or as part of a
green procurement policy, a climate action plan or a
food or wellness policy. Similarly, food procurement
policies can be enacted through a range of policy
mechanisms including an ordinance, an executive
order, a non-binding resolution, an agency regulation
or informal agency guidance. Food procurement
policies may include specific purchasing standards,
as is the case with the Good Food Purchasing Policy
described below, but oftentimes standards are
created separately. The remainder of this section will
lay out a menu of vehicles and mechanisms, stocked
with examples from across the country, for enacting
a climate-friendly and healthy food procurement policy.

A. Vehicles for enactment

1) Standalone food procurement policies

Most of the existing municipal food procurement
policies are focused on health. At least 15 of the
largest 40 cities surveyed by CityHealth, an initiative
tracking municipal public health efforts, have created
standalone healthy food procurement policies.®
Thirteen mandate nutrition standards, eight of which
apply the standards to all city contracts. Most do

not encompass all food service activities of the
municipality and instead focus on promoting healthy
foods and beverages in vending machines, which is

Model climate-friendly food
purchasing policy

See Appendix A for a model climate-friendly
food purchasing policy. The policy includes
ordinance or executive order language,
corresponding definitions, food standards
and contract language pertaining to tracking
and reporting. The model policy includes

a justification for climate-friendly food
purchasing and describes the process for
implementation. It specifies which municipal
entities are subject to the policy, designates
an overseeing agency, establishes timeframes
for the creation of food standards and requires
systems for implementation as well as for
tracking and reporting on progress.

a more limited aspect of food service. These policies
and nutrition standards provide a template for
incorporating considerations like climate protection
into food procurement policies.

The Good Food Purchasing Program, discussed
below, is one of the most comprehensive standalone
food procurement policies, addressing environmental
sustainability, animal welfare, health, worker justice
and local economies. Other jurisdictions have
adopted standalone procurement policies aimed

to increase purchases of sustainable, local and/or
organic food. See page 22 for additional examples of
food procurement policies enacted as part of cities’
or counties’ climate action plans.

a. The Good Food Purchasing Program

Adopted by the cities of Los Angeles,

CA and Chicago, IL as well as the

public school systems in Los Angeles,

CA, Oakland, CA, San Francisco,

CA and Chicago, IL, the Good Food

Purchasing Program (GFPP) is
one of the most comprehensive sustainable food
procurement policy models available.®®* The Program
includes both a policy framework as well as specific
Good Food Purchasing Standards that promote local,
healthy, sustainable, fair and humanely produced
foods and point to third-party certifications to define
these values. After consultation with dozens of
stakeholders, these standards were updated in 2017.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

J

19


http://www.cityhealth.org/policy/40-cities-nutritional-standards-for-city-procurement-1475439271
http://goodfoodpurchasing.org/program-overview/
http://goodfoodpurchasing.org/program-overview/

Page 26 of 127

The new standards include three levels of attainment
(similar to the U.S. Green Building Council’s LEED
standards) for five “value categories:” Local
Economies, Environmental Sustainability, Valued
Workforce, Animal Welfare and Nutrition.

The GFPP’s animal welfare and environmental
sustainability standards encourage the reduction

in purchases of animal products. For example,
reducing the carbon and water footprint of animal
products by 20 percent over five years is one option
for meeting the minimum environmental standard.
To meet the highest standard, 25 percent of annual
spending on food should come from a defined list
of “environmentally sustainable sources” within
five years, or as an alternative, the average carbon
and water footprint of meat, poultry and cheese
purchases per meal served must be reduced by 30
percent.?* See Appendix F1 for the full standards
related to environmental sustainability.

The GFPP was initially developed and adopted in Los
Angeles, CA. In 2012, Los Angeles Mayor Antonio
Villaraigosa issued an executive directive directing
city agencies with annual food purchases above
$10,000 to adopt GFPP and implement the City’s

Good Food Purchasing Guidelines.®> The Los Angeles
Unified School District adopted the policy that same year.

“By leveraging its purchasing power,
the City has the opportunity not
only to enact our Good Food for All
Agenda, which promotes Good Food
(food that is healthy, affordable, fair
and sustainable), but we also have the
ability to incentivize and encourage our
regional food system as a whole to make
Good Food more widely available to all
Angelenos. Directing our food purchases
can encourage greater production of
sustainably produced food, healthy
eating habits, respect for worker’s rights,
and support for the local business
economy by providing new opportunities
for small and mid-sized farmers and job
creation along the food supply chain.”

—Los Angeles executive directive establishing
the Good Food Purchasing Policy®¢

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

The Los Angeles Food Policy Council developed
the GFPP and ensured buy-in for its adoption

in several ways. It sought departmental support
for the policy by briefing executive staff in City
departments about the policy to respond to any
concerns. It also engaged departmental staff who
would be directly involved in the implementation of
the program to better understand what they were

-
Good Food Purchasing

Program’s Good Food Values

Improving equity, affordability, accessibility,
and consumption of high quality, culturally rel-
evant Good Food in all communities is central
to advancing Good Food purchasing practices.

Local Economies: Support diverse, family and
cooperatively owned, small and mid-sized
agricultural and food processing operations
within the local area or region.

Environmental Sustainability: Source from
producers that employ sustainable production
systems to reduce or eliminate synthetic
pesticides and fertilizers; avoid the use of
hormones, routine antibiotics and genetic
engineering; conserve and regenerate soil and
water; protect and enhance wildlife habitats and
biodiversity; and reduce on-farm energy and
water consumption, food waste and greenhouse
gas emissions. Reduce menu items that have
high carbon and water footprints, using
strategies such as plant-forward menus that
feature smaller portions of animal proteins in a
supporting role.

Valued Workforce: Source from producers and
vendors that provide safe and healthy working
conditions and fair compensation for all food
chain workers and producers from production to
consumption.

Animal Welfare: Source from producers that
provide healthy and humane conditions for farm
animals.

Nutrition: Promote health and well-being by
offering generous portions of vegetables, fruit,
whole grains, and minimally processed foods,
while reducing salt, added sugars, saturated
fats, and red meat consumption and eliminating
artificial additives.



https://goodfoodcities.org/portfolio/city-of-los-angeles-executive-directive-24-villaraigosa-good-food-procurement-2012/?portfolioCats=60%2C61%2C63%2C62

Page 27 of 127

already doing around food procurement and discuss
how their department would be affected and could
benefit through participation. The Council also held
numerous stakeholder focus groups to ensure that
there would be no industry pushback (for example,
from distributors) to the City adopting the policy.
This due diligence cleared the way for the executive
directive and city council motion that were both
adopted in October 2012.

“The Good Food Purchasing Policy sets
a gold standard framework for what
‘Good Food’ is and provides guidelines
for large food purchasers such as
hospitals, universities and government
programs to work with food industry
partners to source food that is healthy,
affordable, fair and sustainable...[It has]
been instrumental in driving ‘Good Food’
goals in Los Angeles County.”

— Michelle Wood, Program Manager, Food
Procurement & Policy, Department of Public Health,
Los Angeles County, CA

b. Sample sustainable food procurement
policies

These cities and counties have enacted food
procurement policies that address various aspects
of sustainability and could be amended to include
climate-friendly food.

San Francisco, CA

In 2009, then-Mayor Gavin Newsom issued an
executive directive declaring the cities and counties
“commitment to increasing the amount of healthy
and sustainable food” and “ensuring city funds are
spent in a manner consistent with [San Francisco’s]
social, environmental and economic values.”® The
directive included a set of principles related to
healthy and sustainable food that should guide city
purchasing practices, established a Food Policy
Council to monitor and advance the directive and
established specific requirements and deadlines
for City departments to implement the policy.

See Appendix F2 for the full text of the executive
directive.

Woodbury County, IA

In 2005, Woodbury County passed a resolution
enacting the Woodbury County Policy for Rural
Economic Revitalization.® This policy states that

Building on the success in Los Angeles, the Center
for Good Food Purchasing was established in 2015
as a national non-profit organization that provides
fee-based technical assistance and implementation
support to public institutions across the country —
including cities, counties and school districts — that
are interested in adopting the GFPP. At the time

of publication, there are active initiatives to adopt
the GFPP in a dozen cities across the country, with
about 25 institutions being supported by the Center
for Good Food Purchasing.?” Examples include:
Austin, TX (Austin Independent School District,
Universty of Texas at Austin, Austin Convention
Center); Minneapolis/St. Paul, MN (Minneapolis
Public Schools); San Francisco, CA (Zuckerberg San
Francisco General Hospital, Laguna Honda Hospital);
and Washington, DC (DC Public Schools).

the County “shall purchase, by or through its

food service contractor, locally produced organic
food when a department of Woodbury County
serves food in the usual course of business,” which
includes its jail, work release center and juvenile
detention facilities. The policy specifies guidelines
for negotiating prices with the contractor and
procedures for monitoring and reporting on the
effects of the program.

Cleveland, OH

In 2010, the Cleveland Mayor and City Council
enacted a local ordinance requiring that 10 percent
of food must be obtained from within 150 miles.*°
The ordinance also provides a 2 percent bid discount
on buying from local providers and/or providers that
purchase 20 percent of their food locally.

Austin, TX

In 2013, the Austin City Council adopted a resolution
directing the City Manager to develop a local and
healthy food purchasing policy for City spending and
a healthy vending machine policy for City facilities.”

J

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

21


http://goodfoodpurchasing.org/
http://goodfoodpurchasing.org/
http://sfgov.org/sffood/sites/default/files/Documents/sffood/MayorNewsomExecutiveDirectiveonHealthySustainableFood.pdf
http://sfgov.org/sffood/sites/default/files/Documents/sffood/MayorNewsomExecutiveDirectiveonHealthySustainableFood.pdf
https://icma.org/sites/default/files/7247_.pdf
https://icma.org/sites/default/files/7247_.pdf
http://cccfoodpolicy.org/sites/default/files/resources/Cleveland%20Ordinance%20No.%201660-A-09.pdf
http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Health/SustainableFood/Local%20and%20Healthy%20Food%20Procurement%20Resolution%2020130228-038.pdf

Page 28 of 127

( N\

Sweden produces a
visionary policy: Eat S.M.A.R.T

The City of Malmd, Sweden has a visionary
sustainable food procurement policy.?? The
City has been a leader on food issues for
years, including by advancing fair trade and
other sustainability goals. The city’s policy
“aims to deliver good food of high quality
in all public canteens and has targets for

all food served in the city to be certified
organic by 2020, with greenhouse gas
emissions (GHG) related to food cut by

40 percent by 2020, compared to 2002
levels.”®* At the end of 2012, 40 percent

of the food budget (about nine million
Euros) was spent on organic food.** Malmo
has taken impressive steps including the
adoption of Eat S.M.A.R.T. standards stating,
“To ensure that the procurement of food is
better for our health, the economy, and the
environment, the S.M.A.R.T. model should be
followed as much as possible.”?

Eat S.M.A.R.T. standards are a model
developed by the Institute for Public Health
in the Stockholm Region with input from
the National Board for Consumer Policies
and the National Food Administration. Eat
S.M.A.R.T. is based off of Sweden’s nutrition
recommendations and its environmental
goals. S.M.A.R.T. stand's for:

P Smaller amount of meat

P Minimise intake of junk food/empty
calories

P An increase in organic
P Right sort of meat and vegetables

P Transport efficient
\_ J

For additional guidance on developing a sustainable
procurement policy, see The Buck Starts Here: A
Sustainable Procurement Playbook for Cities, which
the Responsible Purchasing Network developed for
the Urban Sustainability Directors Network. Johns
Hopkins Center for a Livable Future and the Center
for Health Law & Policy Innovation at Harvard Law
School partnered to create the Good Laws Good
Food Toolkit, which includes a new section on
institutional food procurement policies. Finally, the
Real Food Challenge, a campaign that seeks to shift

food procurement policies at universities towards
locally and community based, ecologically sound,
humane and fair, has developed a guide outlining its
targets in each of those categories that may prove
useful.

2) Environmentally preferable or green
procurement policy

Some municipalities with green purchasing policies
have incorporated sustainable food purchasing
policy language into these broader sustainable
procurement policies. In such cases, the language is
typically more limited than in a procurement policy
dedicated solely to sustainable food.

San Jose, CA: The City of San Jose’s Environmentally
Preferable Purchasing Policy (EP3) directs City
agencies to “Ensure that at least 30% of direct
purchases of food served in City facilities is locally
grown and organic.”%

“By incorporating environmental
considerations into public purchasing,
the City intends to reduce impacts to

human health and the environment,
reduce its carbon footprint...

and improve the environmental

quality of the region.”

- City of San Jose, CA's EP3

Washington, DC: As part of its Sustainable
Purchasing Program, the District of Columbia created
the Environmental Specification Guidance for Food
Services, which states that “20% of food purchases,
by cost, shall be locally sourced, reducing emissions
and GHGs from food transportation.” This guidance
also directs municipal food service providers to
ensure that “80% of the District’s seafood purchases
meet sustainable sourcing requirements.”?’

3) Integrating food procurement into
climate action plans

Many cities and counties have developed climate
action plans (CAPs) that lay out concrete steps
and mitigation strategies to reduce a municipality’s
climate impacts. Some of the most innovative
CAPs are beginning to address the climate impacts
resulting from the consumption of goods and

@ A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


http://malmo.se/download/18.d8bc6b31373089f7d9800018573/Foodpolicy_Malmo.pdf
http://malmo.se/download/18.d8bc6b31373089f7d9800018573/Foodpolicy_Malmo.pdf
http://realfoodchallenge.org/sites/default/files/TheRealFoodStandardsPackage.pdf
http://www.sanjoseca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/3862
http://www.sanjoseca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/3862
https://ocp.dc.gov/sites/default/files/dc/sites/ocp/page_content/attachments/fs_guidance.pdf
https://ocp.dc.gov/sites/default/files/dc/sites/ocp/page_content/attachments/fs_guidance.pdf
http://responsiblepurchasing.org/purchasing_guides/playbook_for_cities/rpn_usdn_playbook_for_cities.pdf
http://responsiblepurchasing.org/purchasing_guides/playbook_for_cities/rpn_usdn_playbook_for_cities.pdf
https://www.chlpi.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/good-food-good-laws_toolkit-10.23.2017.pdf
https://www.chlpi.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/good-food-good-laws_toolkit-10.23.2017.pdf

Page 29 of 127

services in their jurisdiction, including food. It commits to developing climate action metrics in
Consumption, including food purchased directly the areas of consumption, including food and
by municipalities or sold on municipal property, agriculture from its consumption-based greenhouse
represents a significant portion of a municipality’s gas emissions inventory. Portland has since
embedded greenhouse gas emissions and is a developed specific climate-friendly meeting
critical piece of any comprehensive CAP. guidelines (see Appendix F4).
Of dozens of municipal CAPs surveyed by the Santa Monica, CA’s Climate
authors of this guide, eight promote actions related Action Plan commits the
to municipal food procurement, and at least 17 municipality to reducing meat
highlight the role of dietary shifts — particularly and dairy purchases by 15
meat and dairy reduction — in combatting climate percent and encourages large institutions to
change. Many of these CAPs encourage strategies participate.’®®
to educate and activate the community and its
businesses around climate-friendly eating, such as Eugene, OR’s Community
Meatless Monday (see page 28). A few go further Climate Energy and Action
by recommending action to reduce embedded Plan calls for implementing
emissions associated with food purchases of large a “Buy climate-friendly first”
institutions in their jurisdiction — particularly those food purchasing policy for public institutions,
that operate on public property. including city and county governments, schools and
hospitals.””’
“Because most emissions Carrboro, NC’s Community.

Climate Action Plan includes a
target of reducing community-

are emitted during

production, our best wide emissions from animal
opportunity to reduce consumption by 50 percent by 2025 and proposes
our carbon footprint increasing plant-based options at town functions,
through food choices is local restaurants and schools.”®?

by eating more fruits and
vegetables and less meat and dairy.”

4 N
Climate action plans that
recognize the essential role of

— Seattle, WAs Climate Action Plan®® B . .
reducing meat and dairy consumption

o Albany, CA ¢ King County, WA
a. Climate action plans that include climate- + Ann Arbor, Ml + Multnomah County, OR
friendly procurement strategies . Austin. TX . Oakland. CA
Several municipalities have made commitments to + Berkeley, CA * Pittsburgh, PA
cIirr_late-friendIy food procurement in their climate . Carrboro. NC « Portland. OR
action plans. - T

e Cincinnati, OH ¢ Santa Monica, CA

Multnomah County, OR « Cupertino, CA  + Seattle, WA
and the City of Portland,

ioi « Davis, CA * Shoreline, WA
OR adopted a joint avis. C Shoreline
Climate Action Plan in 2015 that commits » Eugene, OR

to increasing institutional purchases of \

healthy, low-carbon and minimally

processed food at public meetings, at
events and in government facilities as well as
“leveraging the purchasing power of private
institutions to source low-carbon and local foods.”?

J

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 23


http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/OSE/2013_CAP_20130612.pdf
https://www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/article/531984
https://www.smgov.net/uploadedFiles/Departments/OSE/Home_Page_Item_with_Image/CAP_Final.pdf
https://www.smgov.net/uploadedFiles/Departments/OSE/Home_Page_Item_with_Image/CAP_Final.pdf
https://www.eugene-or.gov/Archive/ViewFile/Item/80
https://www.eugene-or.gov/Archive/ViewFile/Item/80
https://www.eugene-or.gov/Archive/ViewFile/Item/80
http://www.townofcarrboro.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/4116
http://www.townofcarrboro.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/4116
http://www.albanyca.org/home/showdocument?id=11490
http://www.kingcounty.gov/services/environment/climate/strategies/strategic-climate-action-plan.aspx
https://www.a2gov.org/departments/systems-planning/planning-areas/energy/Documents/CityofAnnArborClimateActionPlan_low%20res_12_17_12.pdf
https://multco.us/sustainability/2015-climate-action-plan
http://austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Sustainability/OOS_AustinClimatePlan_032915_SinglePages.pdf
http://www2.oaklandnet.com/oakca1/groups/pwa/documents/report/oak039056.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_Energy_and_Sustainable_Development/Berkeley%20Climate%20Action%20Plan.pdf
http://pittsburghclimate.org/wp-content/uploads/2011/12/Pittsburgh-Climate-Action-Plan-Version-2-FINAL-Web.pdf
http://www.townofcarrboro.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/4116
https://www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/article/531984
http://www.cincinnati-oh.gov/oes/linkservid/6CE53223-9206-9F36-DB7FA3444F16A1A0/showMeta/0/
https://www.smgov.net/uploadedFiles/Departments/OSE/Home_Page_Item_with_Image/CAP_Final.pdf
http://www.cupertino.org/Home/ShowDocument?id=9605
http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/OSE/2013_CAP_20130612.pdf
http://cityofdavis.org/city-hall/community-development-and-sustainability/sustainability-program/climate-change
http://www.cityofshoreline.com/home/showdocument?id=14091
https://www.eugene-or.gov/Archive/ViewFile/Item/80

Page 30 of 127

“From a carbon perspective, not all food
is created equal, and what we choose
to eat is far more impactful than how
far that food has traveled. That’s why

Portland’s climate plan includes actions

to encourage plant-based diets and
create purchasing guidelines for low-
carbon and minimally processed foods
for public meetings and events.”

— Steve Cohen, Manager, Food Policy and Programs,
Bureau of Planning and Sustainability, Portland, OR

b. Climate action plans that address local or
healthy food procurement

These local and healthy food procurement policies
could be expanded to address the larger climate
impacts associated with food purchases:

Toronto, ON’s Climate Action Plan calls for a local
food procurement policy that was subsequently
enacted by the Toronto City Council®® The
procurement policy, established “in order to reduce
greenhouse gas and smog causing emissions
generated by the import of food from outside of
Ontario... progressively increases the percentage
of food being served at City-owned facilities or
purchased for City operations from local sources.”4
While local food purchasing is just one small tool

in combatting climate change, this plan lays the
framework for reducing the larger climate impact
associated with food purchasing.

King County, WA'’s Strategic Climate Action Plan
(SCAP) recognizes that,

Farming can result in GHG emissions associated
with managing soils, using manufactured
fertilizers, managing manure, operating farm
equipment, transporting products, and animal
digestive processes. Sustainable farming practices
can minimize these emissions. Additionally, some
crops, including many fruits and vegetables, result
in fewer GHG emissions compared to other foods.'%>

The SCAP reinforces recommendations by the
County’s Food Policy Council to “increase the
number of healthy food procurement policies in

King County institutions (schools, child care and
hospitals)” and in the County’s emergency food
system.!06

Alameda County, CA’s Climate Action Plan calls for
“serving locally produced, healthy foods that are not
heavily processed” at county meetings and events.!”’

( \

New accounting and reporting
frameworks are key to addressing
embedded food emissions

One challenge to incorporating consumption
in municipal CAPs is a lack of adequate
accounting and reporting frameworks related
to embedded emissions (see pages 12-13).
Fortunately, a promising new initiative, led by
the Urban Sustainability Directors Network’s
(USDN) Sustainable Consumption in Cities
initiative and managed by Portland, OR’s
Bureau of Planning and Sustainability, is
seeking to develop harmonized standards
and protocols for consumption-based GHG
emissions accounting. This framework will
help guide the creation of new tools and
strategies for better integrating consumption
impacts into CAPs.®® While not explicitly
mentioned in the initiative’s goals, climate-
friendly food procurement is one important,
trackable emissions reduction strategy that
municipalities can immediately take to reduce
their consumption based emissions.

With this USDN project, more local government
leaders will have the ability to specifically
address food consumption-related GHG
emissions. Austin, TX is one such leader
beginning to address embedded food
emissions. The Austin-Travis County Food
Policy Board has created a food and climate
working group, which will augment Austin’s
Community Climate Plan to show how the food
system contributes to global GHG emissions.
The working group will calculate Austin’s
carbon footprint from its food consumption
using a consumption-based model.?®

The City and County of Denver, CO estimated
consumption-based emissions from food in
their Climate Action Plan. They found that
“upstream emissions” from food accounted for
14% of their total emissions, about on par with
residential energy use and gasoline vehicles."™

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


https://www1.toronto.ca/wps/portal/contentonly?vgnextoid=4e4c295f69db1410VgnVCM10000071d60f89RCRD&vgnextchannel=a201fbfa98491410VgnVCM10000071d60f89RCRD
http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2008/cc/decisions/2008-10-29-cc25-dd.pdf
http://your.kingcounty.gov/dnrp/climate/documents/2015_King_County_SCAP-Full_Plan.pdf
http://www.acgov.org/sustain/documents/climateactionplan.pdf
http://sustainableconsumption.usdn.org/
http://austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Sustainability/OOS_AustinClimatePlan_032915_SinglePages.pdf
https://www.denvergov.org/content/dam/denvergov/Portals/771/documents/EQ/Climate1/CAP%20-%20FINAL%20WEB.pdf

Page 31 of 127

4) Integrating climate-friendly
procurement into food and wellness
policies

In addition to green purchasing policies and climate
action plans, food action plans and wellness policies

can serve as entry points to promote climate-friendly
and healthy food procurement.

a. Food action plans

Over the past decade, food policy councils and

local governments have created food policies or
system-wide plans for addressing food access, health
and sustainability issues.™ Many municipalities are
integrating food-related measures that reduce GHG
emissions and enhance the climate resiliency of their
food systems, including support for local and organic
urban food production, food waste reduction and
composting programs. Atlanta, GA, for instance, has
launched AGlanta, a new initiative to dramatically
scale up local food production to increase resiliency
and address climate issues. Some cities, such as

San Francisco, CA, have adopted comprehensive
composting strategies to reduce food waste
emissions, while others are working to increase
access to healthy food.™ While these strategies

are important for building resiliency and, in some
cases, reducing emissions, local governments can
generate even larger climate benefits by reducing
upstream food-based GHG emissions associated with
municipal purchasing. Several local government food
initiatives can serve as models of how to integrate
climate friendly food procurement into municipal
food action plans:

“By supporting greater production
of local, sustainable, nutritious and
accessible food through our AGLanta
program, we are building a healthier
and more prosperous city, while also
mitigating our negative impact on
climate and the environment. We
are also promoting healthier diets
with a smaller carbon footprint,
such as local-grown plant-based
foods, to make our citizens and
communities healthier and happier”

— Jairo H. Garcia, Director, Climate Policies, Atlanta, GA

“The City invests over three million
dollars in food-related contracts each
year. We can use those dollars to
support food that is healthy, local, and
sustainably produced, ensuring that
our purchasing and contracting dollars
support food production that preserves
our health and our environment.”

— Seattle, WAs Food Action Plan

King County, WA’s | ocal Food Initiative 2016 Annual

Report highlights food procurement policies as a key
vehicle for influencing its food system and promotes
the consumption of healthy, low-carbon foods
through “nutrition standards, procurement practices
[emphasis added], and behavioral economic
strategies to increase the consumption of fruits and
vegetables.”™

Seattle, WA’s Food Action Plan emphasizes food
procurement as a strategy, calling on the City to use
its purchasing and contracting power to support
healthy, local and sustainably produced food.™

Multnomah County, OR’s Food Action Plan
encourages less meat consumption and supports
third-party certified food by calling on residents

to “Minimize your climate impacts by reducing the
upstream food-based emissions by purchasing local
food to reduce transportation miles and reducing
meat consumption, which is more carbon intensive
to produce than vegetables.” It also urges purchases
of “third-party certified food such as USDA organic,
Food Alliance, Salmon Safe, and Certified Humane.”

b. Wellness policies

Wellness policies represent another vehicle for
promoting consumption of healthy, climate-friendly
food within municipal facilities and on municipal
property.

Brentwood, CA has a wellness policy to ensure that
City staff and residents have healthy choices that
meet specific nutritional standards for items sold at
public facilities.™

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

J

25



https://www.aglanta.org
https://sfenvironment.org/zero-waste-in-SF-is-recycling-composting-and-reuse
https://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/OSE/Seattle_Food_Action_Plan_10-24-12.pdf
http://www.kingcounty.gov/~/media/elected/executive/constantine/initiatives/local-food/documents/2017-LocalFoodReport.ashx?la=en
http://www.kingcounty.gov/~/media/elected/executive/constantine/initiatives/local-food/documents/2017-LocalFoodReport.ashx?la=en
https://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/OSE/Seattle_Food_Action_Plan_10-24-12.pdf
https://multco.us/file/36863/download
http://www.brentwoodca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=24360

Page 32 of 127

San Mateo County, CA has adopted an expansive
wellness policy to “Provide access to healthy food
and beverages for employees and the public during
the workday and to make the ‘Healthy Choice’

the County’s preferred and default choice.”™ To
accomplish this, the County sets nutrition standards;
sponsors food and nutrition programs that increase
access to healthier food at work (e.g., farmers
markets, onsite produce delivery and Community
Supported Agriculture); serves appropriate portion
sizes; and contracts with food services operations
that “purchase local and sustainable food products.”

Kansas City, MO has adopted healthy vending
standards that apply to the sale of food and
beverages in its parks. Park vendors that sell healthy
food receive discounts on the price of a park permit
or are allowed to sell at multiple parks with a single
permit.”” While most of these wellness policies do
not specifically highlight meat and dairy reduction,
they do encourage more plant-based foods and
smaller portion sizes of animal products, critical
features in a healthy, climate-friendly diet.

c. Comprehensive municipal plans

Some cities have developed plans that aim to
comprehensively address health, sustainability

and economic prosperity, which offer another
opportunity for highlighting procurement as a
strategy to increase consumption of climate-friendly
and healthy food.

Austin, TX’s Imagine Austin Comprehensive Plan,
adopted with significant community input in 2012,
recommends new procurement policies and other
actions to promote healthier, more sustainable
food in its local institutions in order to protect

public health. The plan calls for new programs,
policies and coordination to “Reduce obesity and
other diet-related diseases by establishing local
fresh food initiatives in institutions such as schools,
colleges, universities, hospitals, nursing homes,
city and county departments and facilities, and by
implementing and encouraging purchasing policies
that support local and sustainable foods.”™®

“Eating less meat... can significantly
impact greenhouse gas emissions. If
10% of Cincinnatians ate meat one less
day per week, CO. emissions would be
reduced by 75,000 tons per year.”

—Cincinnati, OH’s Green Cincinnati Plan'*®

B. Mechanisms for advancing climate-
friendly and healthy food procurement
policies

The mechanism by which a food procurement policy
is enacted will vary depending on the municipality’s
approach and its political and legal landscape.
Ideally, food procurement policies will be legally
binding, but there are a variety of non-binding
mechanisms that can achieve the same goals or act
as an incremental step towards institutionalizing
climate-friendly procurement policies. In some
cases, no official policy is needed to integrate
climate-friendly language into procurement bidding
documents or food service contracts so long

as procurement strategies have been generally
identified in the context of a green purchasing policy,
climate action plan or food or wellness plan.

Improving Food Procurement Policies in King County

Large institutions like cities, schools, hospitals and
large employers can have significant impact onthe

food system with how they purchase food. The scale
of their procurements creats or stifles opporunities
for the local food economy. Procurement decisions

also determine what food is available within that

NINUNNORE

institution. Shifting food procurement policies can

gretly increase access to healthy food as well as
support the local food economy.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

2088
EEARE

$$eeeg

BUSINESS
PURCHASERS

e
B
=

:|

(L]

sl 0

@M
il l_l [ii]

T o
Source: King County Local Food Initiative, 2016 Annual Report

240



http://hr.smcgov.org/sites/hr.smcgov.org/files/documents/files/Wellness%20Policy%20v11.pdf
http://kcparks.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/03/KCPR_Parks_ParksEvent-Permits_Vending.pdf
http://kcparks.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/03/KCPR_Parks_ParksEvent-Permits_Vending.pdf
ftp://ftp.ci.austin.tx.us/npzd/IACP_amended2016_web_sm.pdf
http://www.cincinnati-oh.gov/oes/linkservid/6CE53223-9206-9F36-DB7FA3444F16A1A0/showMeta/0
http://www.kingcounty.gov/~/media/elected/executive/constantine/initiatives/local-food/documents/2017-LocalFoodReport.ashx?la=en

Page 33 of 127

4 N\

Cities can promote climate-friendly
menus in the private sector
through green business programs

Beyond influencing food offerings on
municipal property, local governments can
also help reduce consumption-related GHG

emissions by encouraging more climate-
friendly food items to be offered by local
restaurants, catering companies and private
hospitals, schools and colleges in the
community. A local green business program,
for example, can encourage the adoption of
municipal food standards or the purchase
of climate-friendly food as one of its
certification criteria. It can also give visibility
to restaurants that offer more plant-based
entrées and third-party certified meat
choices or that are certified by programs
like Zero Foodprint or Eat REAL X

. J

1) Local ordinances and executive orders

If a municipality is enacting a new standalone food
procurement policy, it likely will need to pass the
policy via a local ordinance or an executive order.
Oftentimes, an executive order and a local ordinance
represent alternative paths to the same goal.
Generally, ordinances have the advantage of more
permanently codifying a policy, but they can be
difficult to pass and harder to update with necessary
changes. Executive orders or directives can often be
accomplished more easily and quickly but run the
risk of being reversed when a new administration
takes office. These strategies can be used in tandem
whereby a mayor or county executive will issue a
directive requiring the council to pass legislation,
giving the council authority to define the scope and
nature of the policy. This way there is buy-in from
both the legislative and executive branch. Similarly,
an executive order or local ordinance can set out the
broader policy objectives and designate authority

to an appropriate municipal department or agency,
such as a health department or food policy task

force, to determine the specifics of the policy and the

process for implementation.

2) Integrating procurement in existing
policy

As discussed above, a climate-friendly food
procurement policy can also be incorporated into

a broader green purchasing policy, a climate action
plan or a food and wellness policy. In these instances,
a municipality may need to amend the existing policy
via regulations or a guidance document created by
the agency or office administering the program.
Alternatively, the existing policy may need to be
amended through an ordinance or executive order.

A municipality’s legal department may be a good
resource for determining the options for including
sustainable food procurement in a pre-existing
related policy.

3) Non-binding resolutions

Mayors and municipal leaders can also utilize non-
binding resolutions, proclamations, pledges and
pacts to establish their government’s commitment
to purchasing healthy, climate-friendly food. These
approaches can be a key first step on the path to
more impactful action. Issuing a proclamation or
signing a pact shows leadership and can inspire
important changes in municipal purchasing and
access to plant-based foods. It also raises awareness
among residents and brings media attention to the
underreported role of food’s — particularly animal
products’ — impact on health and climate change.®°

For example, the Milan Urban Food Policy Pact,
signed by cities across the globe, encourages meat
reduction for health reasons and calls for using
public procurement to link cities to healthy food
and support sustainable food production. Numerous
U.S. cities — Austin, TX, Baltimore, MD, Chicago,

IL, Miami, FL, New York, NY, Pittsburgh, PA, San
Francisco, CA and West Sacramento, CA — are
among the 148 signatories worldwide.

x  The Eat REAL standards are a point-based system, similar to the LEED green building certification, that address health and sustainability for food
service businesses. Zero Foodprint assesses carbon impacts of restaurants and certifies restaurants that mitigate their emissions and offset their

foodprints with investments in food-based carbon projects.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @


http://www.milanurbanfoodpolicypact.org/
http://www.milanurbanfoodpolicypact.org/signatory-cities/
http://www.zerofoodprint.org/
https://eatreal.org/

Page 34 of 127

Municipalities embrace Meatless Monday through
proclamations, resolutions and pledges

In recognition of the health and environmental benefits of reducing meat
consumption, more than a dozen municipalities have passed resolutions
in support of “Meatless Monday,” and hundreds of K-12 school districts,
hospitals, food banks, workplaces and restaurants have committed to going meatless

or offering more plant-based options one day a week since the program launched in 2003."? For
example, in 2013, the City of Philadelphia, PA passed a resolution that declared all Mondays as Meatless
Mondays and urged residents to participate in recognition of “the benefits of a diet high in fruits and
vegetables.”™? This proclamation set the stage for health and sustainability leaders inside and outside
of local government to urge the city to follow its own advice when it comes to its food purchasing and
consumption. The following year, Philadelphia Public Schools implemented Meatless Monday, impacting
more than 85,000 meals served to students each week.”® Meatless Monday has been implemented

in school systems across the country, from Los Angeles, CA to Baltimore, MD to Sarasota, FL.** In
October 2017, New York City, NY the largest public school system in the country, announced the launch
of a Meatless Monday pilot in 15 Brooklyn schools.”?>

These cities have promoted Meatless Monday through public education and outreach, including by
highlighting restaurants and events promoting plant-based food, hosting pledge drives where citizens
can commit to going meatless on Monday, generating media coverage about the health and climate
benefits of reducing meat consumption and supporting policies that encourage Meatless Monday:

» Berkeley, CA » Philadelphia, PA * South Miami, FL
» Boca Raton, FL » Pittsburgh, PA » Takoma Park, MD
» Long Beach, CA » Sacramento, CA * Tempe, AZ

» Los Angeles, CA » Santa Cruz, CA » Washington, DC
» Minneapolis, MN » San Francisco, CA »  Wilmington, DE
» QOakland, CA » San Jose, CA

The Meatless Monday campaign demonstrates the power of institutions to shift diets and highlights

the potential for municipalities to make an even greater difference by systematically replacing meat
with plant-based alternatives at public institutions and on municipal property. Meatless Monday, as a
platform to educate the public about the importance of eating plant-based foods, can generate support
for broader institutional commitments to serve more plant-based foods, reduce meat portions and
serve blended options on a regular basis.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



https://phila.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=1494578&GUID=FFC10031-9238-4714-9B19-55828F327683&Options=ID%7CText%7C&Search=meatless
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762356-Berkeley-2015-02-24-Item-15-Declaring-Mondays.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762493-Philadelphia-Meatless-Mondays.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762562-South-Miami-MM-Res.pdf
https://www.scribd.com/document/361761603/Boca-Raton-Meatless-Monday-Proclamation
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361873047-Pittsburgh-Meatless.pdf
http://cok.net/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/MontCo-Proclamation-web.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762393-Long-Beach-MM-Resolution-Draft.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762507-Sacramento-Final-Reso-2016-09-28-10-25.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762594-tempe-az.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762412-Los-Angeles-Meatless-Monday.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762437-MeatlessMondayProclamationSignedSanta-Cruz-Countysupervisors.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762609-Washington-DC.pdf
https://www.scribd.com/document/361762480/Minneapolis-Meatless-Monday-Proclamation
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762266-San-Francisco-Vegetarian-Day-Resolution.pdf
https://www.scribd.com/document/361762623/Wilmington-Meatless-Monday
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762093-Oakland-City-Resolution.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361762283-San-Jose-Proclamation-Scan.pdf
http://www.meatlessmonday.com/

Page 35 of 127

STEP 3: Develop climate-friendly
food standards

Unlike food procurement policies — which typically
establish a broad framework for purchasing healthy
and environmentally preferable food — food
procurement standards or guidelines provide more
detail about how to interpret and implement the
policy. Food standards typically establish specific
guidance about what can and cannot be served in a
range of food environments within the municipality’s
purview. See Table 1 (page 18) for a list of these

potential areas of municipal control over food service.

In practice, developing standards may happen in
concert with developing a food procurement policy,
but this guide will treat the creation of standards
separately, outlining multiple paths for establishing
these food standards. They can come hand-in-hand
with a food procurement policy (as is the case

with the Good Food Purchasing Program on page
19), flow out of a food procurement policy or be
created at the direction of a health or environmental
department leader, even without a formal policy.
Standards can also be promoted through broader
policies that encompass green procurement more
generally (e.g., LED lighting or energy-efficient cars),
or included with broader healthy food policies, such
as healthy food zones, urban gardens or other local
food initiatives. Even without a specific policy, it is
possible to integrate climate-friendly food standards
into bid solicitation documents for food service and
concession contracts or to guide purchases of food
served at public meetings and events.

Model climate-friendly food standards

Since there are few existing comprehensive
climate-friendly food standards, we have
created model standards (see Appendix A)
designed to encourage consumption of more
plant-based foods and less meat wherever
food is served in local public institutions
(e.g., hospitals, senior care facilities, etc.)

and on government property (e.g., meetings,
festivals, concession stands, etc.). The model
offers slightly revised standards for approved
caterers or concessions on government
property since these entities may have more
flexibility than large public institutions to carry
more climate-friendly food products.

7

Federal government purchasing
guidelines provide a model for
municipalities

The U.S. Centers for Disease Control

and Prevention (CDC) recommends that
government agencies improve public

health and reduce environmental impacts

by establishing healthy and sustainable
guidelines for foods and beverages offered for
sale in government buildings and on public
property.? In 2012, the CDC helped craft

the first Health and Sustainability Guidelines
for Federal Concessions and Vending
Operations.? In addition to promoting local
agriculture, animal welfare and organic
farming, these guidelines reinforced health
advice from the 2070 Dietary Guidelines

for Americans (DGAs).?® The Food Service
Guidelines for Federal Facilities were updated
in 2017 to reflect the new 2015-2020 DGAs.”?°
These new guidelines are designed to ensure
that healthier foods and beverages are
available and encouraged at federal facilities,
that “environmentally responsible practices
are conducted in federal food service venues,”
and that “communities are economically
supported through local food sourcing.”™°

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @


https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/downloads/guidelines_for_federal_concessions_and_vending_operations-2012.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/downloads/guidelines_for_federal_concessions_and_vending_operations-2012.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/downloads/guidelines_for_federal_concessions_and_vending_operations-2012.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/downloads/guidelines_for_federal_concessions_and_vending_operations.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/downloads/guidelines_for_federal_concessions_and_vending_operations.pdf

Page 36 of 127

A. Healthy food and nutrition standards

Healthy food and nutrition standards are aimed

at increasing the availability of healthful food in
institutions that sell or serve food to employees,

the general public or other populations served by
municipalities. According to a survey conducted by
the Institute of Medicine and Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention, 13 percent of mid- and large-
size cities have nutrition standards in place, many of
which reflect some of the recommendations of the
U.S. Dietary Guidelines for Americans (see page 13).™
Most of these jurisdictions’ nutrition standards are
focused on food served to employees or the general
public on municipal property and do not apply to
food served to institutionalized populations, such

as people in municipal-run correctional facilities

or nursing homes. These healthy food standards
provide a template for the creation of climate-
friendly food standards—either as standalone
standards—or included as a component of existing
nutrition standards.

According to research conducted by the non-profit
CityHealth, eight of the forty major cities or counties
it surveyed have created healthy food standards.

e Boston, MA e San Francisco, CA

e | ong Beach, CA e Santa Clara County,
CA

e Washington, DC

* | 0s Angeles, CA
e New York, NY
¢ Philadelphia, PA

For these cities and others for which healthy food
standards are already in place, they can be revised
to include more plant-based proteins and less meat,
simultaneously addressing a municipality’s health
and climate concerns. For example, updating the
New York City, NY food standards could produce
huge gains for health and the environment.

In 2008, the Mayor of New York issued an executive
order requiring all city agencies to follow the New
York City Food Standards.®?”®® These standards,
which apply to all foods purchased, prepared and/or
served by the agency and agency contractors, affect
nearly 250 million meals and snacks served every
year at day care centers, correctional facilities, senior
centers and other City institutions and properties.
While the standards focus primarily on nutritional
concerns such as limiting sodium and fat and serving
more fruits and vegetables, they also include a

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

commitment to environmental sustainability, creating
an opening and rationale for incorporating climate
considerations in alignment with these goals.

“New York City also recognizes the
importance of promoting an economically
and environmentally sustainable food
system that supports local and regional
economies and conserves natural
resources, in alignment with long
term public health goals. Agencies are
encouraged to consider, when practical
and cost effective, procurement practices
that prioritize local and regional food
producers and manufacturers, and
support reductions to the overall
environmental impact of the food system.”

—New York City, NY Food Standards***

B. Climate-friendly food standards

Healthy food standards overlap with climate-friendly
food standards in that reducing meat and dairy

is conducive to both a healthy diet and a healthy
planet. Santa Clara County, CA and Philadelphia,

PA, as part of their healthy food standards, include
specific recommendations on expanding plant-based
and plant-forward food options, serving non-dairy
milk and serving smaller portions. San Diego County,
CA adopted comprehensive health and sustainable
food guidance that includes climate-friendly food
recommendations.

Santa Clara County, CA (San Jose) adopted
nutrition standards that apply to meals served in their
institutional food service operations. These standards
require:

» A vegetarian option for all meals provided, and a
vegan option whenever possible;

» Healthier foods to be placed prominently;

» Plant-based milk (e.g., soy, rice and almond) with
less than 130 calories per 8-ounce serving

» Smaller portion sizes; and

» Healthier food options that incorporate more
fruits, vegetables, whole grains, low-fat and



http://www.cityhealth.org/
http://www.cityofboston.gov/news/uploads/5742_40_7_25.pdf
http://www.longbeach.gov/globalassets/health/media-library/documents/planning-and-research/plans/healthy-food-and-beverage-policy/healthy-snack-food-and-beverage-policy
http://lacity.cityofla.acsitefactory.com/sites/g/files/wph281/f/mayorvillaraigosa331283141_10242012.pdf
http://www.nyc.gov/html/om/pdf/eo/eo_122.pdf
http://www.phila.gov/ExecutiveOrders/Executive%20Orders/eo%204-14.pdf
http://www.sfbos.org/ftp/uploadedfiles/bdsupvrs/ordinances16/o0091-16.pdf
http://vmcfoundation.org/vmc/wp-content/uploads/2011/09/SCC-Nutrition-Standards.pdf
http://vmcfoundation.org/vmc/wp-content/uploads/2011/09/SCC-Nutrition-Standards.pdf
https://beta.code.dccouncil.us/dc/council/code/sections/1-541.02.html
http://www.nyc.gov/html/om/pdf/eo/eo_122.pdf
http://www.nyc.gov/html/om/pdf/eo/eo_122.pdf
https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/doh/downloads/pdf/cardio/cardio-meals-snacks-standards.pdf
https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/doh/downloads/pdf/cardio/cardio-meals-snacks-standards.pdf
https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/doh/downloads/pdf/cardio/cardio-meals-snacks-standards.pdf
http://vmcfoundation.org/vmc/wp-content/uploads/2011/09/SCC-Nutrition-Standards.pdf

Page 37 of 127

low-calorie foods (low-fat dairy, lean protein and
lower-fat condiments).”®®

Philadelphia, PA adopted nutrition standards that
require luncheon/deli meats to be served no more
than two times per week and at least one vegetarian
or bean-based entrée to be served for lunch and
dinner per week.®®

San Diego County, CA’s Board of Supervisors
adopted the Eat Well Practices in 2016.%” The
standards are aimed at:

» Building better health by offering more healthy
options, including fruits, vegetables, and whole
grains among the County’s congregate and
custodial populations, employees, and the public;

» Supporting a thriving economy by capitalizing
on the wealth of agricultural resources in San
Diego County, as well as California, and increasing
opportunities for local farms, ranches, and
fishermen; and

» Fostering a resilient environment by promoting
sustainable foods and practices.

The Eat Well Practices support meat reduction
and other sustainability goals with the following
standards:

» Prioritize organic and sustainable products

» Prioritize plant-based foods, including protein and
dairy alternatives; offer plant-based foods and
dishes and vegetarian meals.

» Consider offering protein foods from plants such
as legumes (beans and peas), and nuts, seeds,
and soy products.

» Consider offering a vegetarian entrée option when
more than one entrée option is provided.

» Consider offering alternatives to red meat and
avoid processed meats (e.g., hot dogs, bacon,
sausage, deli meats); if offered, serve infrequently
and in small portions.

» Consider purchasing meats and poultry raised
without the routine use of antibiotics and/or
growth hormones.

These aspirational food standards, backed by a
strong implementation plan (see Phase Il below),
can positively impact the seven million meals served
by San Diego (the nation’s seventh largest county)
each year. See Appendix F3 for more of the Eat Well
Practices that relate to sustainability.

C. Food guidelines for caterers,
government meetings and events

Several municipalities have adopted policies,
developed guidelines and resources and negotiated
contracts to improve the health and sustainability of
food and beverages that are offered at city meetings
and catered events. For example:

¢ Portland, OR has created Healthy People, Healthy
Planet food purchasing guidelines that encourage
city employees “to make healthy and sustainable
choices for City-sponsored meetings, trainings,
and events when using public dollars,” with
an aim to “reduce the negative environmental
and climate impacts of catering by addressing
food type and sustainability principles.”s8
The guidelines specifically urge purchasers to
emphasize vegetarian and vegan options and to
minimize or eliminate meat and dairy offerings.
See Appendix F4 for the full guidelines.

¢ Philadelphia, PA’s Good Food Caterer
Guide highlights vegetarian and vegan as part
of its sustainability criteria for caterers: “The
business is proactively working in at least three
of the five sustainability areas: animal welfare
(including being vegan or vegetarian), organic
ingredients, fair trade, local sourcing, and other
green activities.”™

¢ Lakewood, CO has created a Healthy and
Sustainable Food Providers Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) to identify caterers for
city meetings and events.”® The RFQ includes a
requirement for caterers to provide vegetarian
options and have half-portion menu items
available. It also includes preferences for caterers
that provide entirely plant-based or organic menu
options.

Boulder County, CO established a policy for Zero
Waste and Healthy Menu Meetings and Events and
provides tips for healthy meetings and events that
include:

» Select healthy proteins and at least one plant-
based vegetarian option;

» Serve small portions; and
> Offer a variety of fresh vegetables." 42

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @


http://www.phila.gov/ExecutiveOrders/Executive%20Orders/eo%204-14.pdf
http://bosagenda.sdcounty.ca.gov/agendadocs/doc?id=0901127e804f6533
https://phillyfpac.files.wordpress.com/2016/12/gfcg-2016-final3.pdf
https://phillyfpac.files.wordpress.com/2016/12/gfcg-2016-final3.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/362511276-Healthy-and-Sustainable-Food-Providers-Request-for-Qualifications.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/362511276-Healthy-and-Sustainable-Food-Providers-Request-for-Qualifications.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/362511276-Healthy-and-Sustainable-Food-Providers-Request-for-Qualifications.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361874776-Zero-Waste-Catering-RFI-3694.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/361874776-Zero-Waste-Catering-RFI-3694.pdf
http://foe.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/362511620-Healthy-Meeting-Guidelines.pdf

Page 38 of 127

Phase II: Implement the policy
and/or standards

Once a municipality has created its climate-friendly
food procurement policy and/or standards (or is
ready to include standards into its bid solicitation
documents contracts without a policy), it is time

to do the nitty-gritty work of implementation.
Implementation will vary by jurisdiction but generally
will include developing a plan for communication,
training and sharing tools; updating bid solicitation
and contract language; and tracking and reporting
progress.

Since a municipality’s climate-friendly food
procurement policy may impact a wide array

of purchasing activities and involve several
departments, creating an implementation plan is
a useful way to engage staff and ensure that the
program is rolled out smoothly. The plan should
establish short-term goals and milestones, identify
upcoming high-impact opportunities and set
priorities.

Sample implementation plans

San Diego County, CA developed a comprehensive
Live Well San Diego Food System Initiative
Implementation Plan to support its Eat Well Practices
(see Appendix F2) including short-, mid- and long-
term goals with specific deadlines for each goal. Key
elements include:

e Expanding the internal county committee
of food service providers to include broader
representation;

¢ Developing metrics tied to the goals of improving
health, supporting a thriving economy and
fostering a resilient environment;

e Establishing a baseline of food service operations
in congregate/custodial meal programs and
cafeterias/cafes with the assistance of all county
groups;

¢ Developing marketing/educational materials and
implementing a communication plan;

e Developing a framework for integrating Eat Well
Practices language into food-related Request
for Proposals (RFPs) and contracts, including
contracts for County custodial/congregate
meals, group homes/home-delivered meals and
cafeterias/cafés;

e Periodically surveying county food service
operations; and

¢ Developing a tracking system to measure food
practices.?

Santa Clara County, CA created an implementation
plan soon after adopting nutritional standards for its
food service operations. While focused specifically
on nutrition, the general implementation plan could
be applied to climate-friendly food standards. The
plan includes:

e Communications to department directors
announcing standards, implementation timelines
and departmental roles;

¢ Trainings provided to facility managers on how to
implement nutrition standards;

e A social marketing campaign designed to educate
employees, participants and the public on
nutrition standards;

* Procurement procedures updated to ensure that
solicitations for food and beverage contracts/
vendors comply with standards; and

* A requirement that one year after implementation,
the Nutrition Standards Committee will reconvene
and assist the evaluation process, identifying any
changes or additions needed."*

STEP 4: Develop a plan for
communications and staff training

The rationale, benefits and implications of a new
policy or standards should be communicated to

all relevant internal staff and, where appropriate,
external stakeholders. Keep in mind that the staff
charged with implementation may not have been
given an opportunity to understand the rationale or
have the time or training to ensure that products or
food service contractors are in compliance with the
policy and/or standards. Providing culinary trainings,
menu design templates and other educational
resources for food service staff and contractors can
facilitate a successful implementation. Offer easy-
to-use, accessible tools such as lists of approved
vendors, links to certified product sources, sample
recipes and resources for designing menus that
feature plant-based and lower-meat entrées. Involve
chefs and dieticians in the process and ensure that
culinary staff receive the training necessary to
understand and implement the changes.

@ A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


http://bosagenda.sdcounty.ca.gov/agendadocs/doc?id=0901127e804f6532
http://bosagenda.sdcounty.ca.gov/agendadocs/doc?id=0901127e804f6532

Page 39 of 127

A. Creative menus

Encouraging creative menu options, such as blended
burgers® or smaller meat portions coupled with
more vegetables, can reduce total meat and dairy
consumption while increasing consumption of
plant-based alternatives. Offering smaller portion
sizes on menus is an easy and cost-effective way

to reduce meat purchases, help avoid wasted food
and potentially save money. For example, Oakland
Unified School District was able to offer local
organic meat by reducing the total amount of meat
it served.*® Friends of the Earth has published a list
of blended burger sources made with higher quality,
third-party certified grass-fed and/or organic meats.
The Blend features numerous lower-carbon blended
meat recipes. A wide array of plant-forward and
lower meat recipes can also be found at The Culinary
Institute for America’s website. Delicious plant-based
recipes, menu templates and strategies can be found
at Forward Food, and the Humane Society of the U.S.
and Menus of Change provide inspiration for healthy,
plant-forward menus. See Appendix D for more
resources.

B. Behavioral design, marketing and
educational strategies

Special marketing and educational materials featured
in dining establishments can help diners make the
connection between food, climate and health. Some
dining halls that practice Meatless Monday enhance
the educational aspects of the program with large
posters in the cafeteria that can be found in the
Meatless Monday toolkit. The Humane Society of

the U.S. also has a Meatless Monday toolkit, and
Menus of Change has case studies and insights on
marketing healthy and sustainable food.

Through product placement, description, incentives
and pricing, municipalities can encourage diners to
make healthier and more sustainable choices. When
climate-friendly foods are more accessible, appealing
and affordable, customers are more likely to choose
them. For example, using decadent-sounding
descriptions for vegetable dishes and integrating
plant-based offerings with other offerings into

the menu rather than creating a separate section
for them may increase consumers’ likelihood of
choosing plant-based options.*6™ USDA’s Smarter
Lunchrooms describes how simple changes in the
lunchroom can stimulate healthy eating.

xii Blended burgers blend meat with diced vegetables like mushrooms to
create a delicious, healthier, more climate-friendly burger. See Better
Burgers for more information.

C. Customer surveys

Customer surveys can be powerful tools that food
service directors can use to determine whether
changes are needed and if they are likely to succeed.
For instance, a survey conducted in Rhode Island
“revealed that employees wanted healthier options
and that they were not purchasing many items
because they were not healthy enough.”'*®

~ )
The business case for climate-friendly
and healthy food

Providing climate-friendly food will not only be
good for our health and the planet but also for
vendors’ bottom lines. Studies consistently show that
the public is looking for food service options that
promote health, animal welfare and environmental
sustainability.#® %" [n particular, consumer trends
and attitudes generally favor increasing availability
of plant-based and plant-forward menu items. While
one in ten millennials follow a vegetarian diet, it

is not just vegetarians who are seeking healthier
foods.”? Research suggests that 36 percent of U.S.
consumers prefer milk and meat alternatives and
that between 26 and 41 percent of Americans have
eaten less meat over the past year.*® A study by the
Hartman Group and Changing Tastes (2015) revealed
that “food culture and eating norms are changing

as dramatically and rapidly as the environmental

and public health imperatives that are reshaping

the nature of the food service industry” and that
“today’s diners prefer meals that are healthier for the
environment.” ®* Importantly, the study found that:

A large share also want to eat smaller
portions or smaller amounts of meat at
their meals, offering an opportunity for
restaurants and food service companies
to also better manage highly volatile food
costs; many are also willing to pay a little
more for such a meal, further enhancing
business benefits. 1%

Many food service providers are aware of these
trends and ready to provide such options. One
Datassentials (2015) study found that, “reducing
the portion size of animal protein on menus is
expected by nearly half of operators to increase the
healthfulness of the entrees, and by over a third to
increase the culinary innovation involved with the
dishes.”™ Consumers are ready for menu options
that are better for human and environmental health.
Public food service providers have an important role
to play in meeting this demand and continuing to
help drive consumers toward better choices.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

33



http://www.betterburgers.org/resources/food-service-resources/
http://blenditarian.com/resources/recipes/
https://enthusiasts.ciachef.edu/Maindishes/
https://enthusiasts.ciachef.edu/Maindishes/
http://www.forwardfood.org/
http://www.humanesociety.org/assets/pdfs/farm/meatless-monday-plant-based-recipes-for-schools.pdf
http://www.menusofchange.org/principles-resources/moc-principles/
http://www.meatlessmonday.com/free-resources/
http://m.humanesociety.org/issues/eating/facts/meatless_monday_toolkits.html
http://www.menusofchange.org/
https://healthymeals.fns.usda.gov/healthierus-school-challenge-resources/smarter-lunchrooms
https://healthymeals.fns.usda.gov/healthierus-school-challenge-resources/smarter-lunchrooms
http://www.betterburgers.org/resources/food-service-resources/
http://www.betterburgers.org/resources/food-service-resources/

Page 40 of 127

Step 5: Update bid solicitation and
contract language

Feedback from vendors can be used to create
specifications, including mandatory and desirable
criteria. It can also help inform the development

of a point system which will rate bidders based

on their ability to meet the jurisdiction’s new food
procurement policy goals or guidelines. It can also
focus on incorporating the new standards into bid
solicitations, such as invitations to bid (ITB), requests
for proposals (RFQs) and requests for quotations
and contracts. This process can take some time.

A. Decide which contracts and venues
are priorities for initial and longer-term
implementation

e Work with the procurement team to identify all
major food commodity contracts, food service
agreements, concessions contracts and approved
caterer lists that cover food served by the
municipality and on municipal-owned property.
See Table 1 on page 18 for a list of potential areas
of authority for municipal food.

e Assess the dollar amounts, as well as the types
and annual quantities of food commodities
purchased on each contract, to identify high-
impact opportunities.

e Assess contract usage, especially for larger
contracts, to determine the quantities of various
types of food commodities that have historically
been purchased. Remember that food service
agreements include labor costs, which may
make it difficult to calculate the amount spent
on food commodities separately. Consequently,
food service contractors may need to report their
purchases of animal- and plant-based products
separately. Note that it may be necessary to
include this reporting as a contract requirement.

¢ |dentify and review lease agreements that affect
food served on government property to see how
climate-friendly specification language could be
inserted into their lease agreements. When leasing
property to food businesses, for instance at sports
stadiums and airports, municipalities can include
a requirement in the lease agreement that the
vendor meet its climate-friendly and healthy food
standards — including details of the kinds of food
that is expected to be served. See an example
from the San Francisco Airport (SFO) on page 37.

e Determine which contracts will be up for renewal
soon in order to identify “ripe” opportunities,
and make a calendar of these dates. The best
opportunity to change contracts is during the
contract renewal process; however, it may be
possible to make changes with vendors when
optional contract extensions are negotiated.
Focusing on concessions (e.g., at local parks,
office buildings, airports or zoos) may be a good
place to start since these entities may have more
flexibility than large public institutions to modify
their menus and offer more plant-forward options.

¢ |dentify easy wins and consider running pilot
purchasing tests with individual concessions.
While the ultimate goal is to make climate-
friendly and healthy food procurement the default
for all applicable contracts, municipalities can
learn through test cases. This will help identify
and resolve potential problems that may occur
with any new procedures before they are rolled
out to all municipal departments and facilities.
Developing and disseminating approved lists
of vendors that can meet your municipality’s
climate-friendly food standards is one simple way
to make progress.

e Once the high-impact or pilot contracts are
identified, create a calendar of important bid
solicitation dates and activities (e.g., sourcing
team meetings, due dates for bid solicitations,
pre-bid meetings, etc.) for the next one to three
years.

B. Update bid solicitation documents to
reference climate-friendly food standards

For large contracts that are used by multiple
agencies, convene a sourcing team that is made

up of food purchasers from different agencies to
discuss how the climate-friendly food procurement
policy language will function in the bid solicitation
documents. Surveying sourcing team members on
their needs for the contract can help get the process
going and prevent pushback.

As a first step in their bid solicitation process,
municipalities can issue a formal Request for
Information (RFI) alerting existing suppliers and
vendors, including caterers for municipal events,
that the municipality wants to know more about
the availability of plant-based foods and, if included
in the policy, sustainably-sourced products.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



Page 41 of 127

Alternatively, purchasing agents can informally
survey their bidders about the availability of climate-
friendly food products. Feedback from vendors can
be used to create specifications, including mandatory
and desirable criteria. Feedback from vendors

can be used to create specifications, including
mandatory and desirable criteria. It can also help
inform the development of a point system which

will rate bidders based on their ability to meet the
jurisdiction’s new food procurement policy goals

or guidelines. It can also be very helpful to hold a
pre-bid meeting with prospective bidders to explain
the climate-friendly food specifications and contract
requirements, answer questions and make any
necessary revisions. This will increase the likelihood
of receiving multiple, competitive bids.

1. Creating a bid solicitation document

e Create boilerplate language that food buyers can
cut and paste into their bid solicitations — or tailor
to meet their needs — so they do not need to
create specifications and draft contract language
from scratch each time there is a new contract
opportunity.

e Reference the municipality’s food procurement
policy in the bid solicitation’s contract goals
section or requirements so that potential bidders
are clearly notified about your intention to
purchase climate-friendly food.

* Insert a specifications section into the bid
solicitation document to clarify the definition
of climate-friendly food and list specific food
procurement goals. If the climate-friendly
procurement policy also encourages purchases of
third-party certified food, include a list of those

certification programs or any other sustainable
food definitions in the bid solicitation document.

Include a section that explains how bids will be
evaluated, including benefits to bidders that offer
products that meet the municipality’s standards.
The sourcing team should ensure that the
solicitation’s climate-friendly purchasing criteria
are considered during the bid evaluation process
and that each evaluator understands how to verify
whether bidders meet contract requirements and
goals.

Bid solicitation documents can also require or
give preference to bidders that demonstrate
that they have some experience providing — and
promoting consumption of — plant-based foods
and beverages (and, if included in the policy,
other third-party certified food products such as
organic, local, higher animal welfare and grass-
fed meat and dairy) to similar jurisdictions or
institutions.

Ensure effective tracking by stating in the bid
solicitation document that, if awarded a contract,
contractors must report to the appropriate
municipal office the types and quantities of animal
products, plant-based food and/or sustainably
sourced food they provided to ensure they are
meeting the jurisdiction’s food procurement goals.
This must include, at a minimum, total pounds

of animal products by category (e.g., beef, pork,
chicken, etc.), as well as the number of meals

or individuals served. These reports should be
required at least annually but may be required
quarterly. See Appendix A for sample contract
language, and see Step 6 (page 38) for more
details about tracking and reporting.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @



Page 42 of 127

Bid solicitation language for food commodity contracts

If the contract is for food commodities, the bid solicitation document should list all plant-based food products
that should be offered in the contract. This may include widely used plant proteins such as soybeans, dried
beans, lentils, chickpeas, tofu, tempeh, seeds, nuts or seitan,X whole grains as well as prepared products such
as pre-made blended burgers, veggie burgers, veggie burritos and almond, soy or coconut milk. High-volume
items should be included in a market basket — or core list — of items for which the municipality is seeking deep
discounts. Notify bidders that they will be evaluated based on their ability to provide products on the bid list
(or equivalent products) and their pricing on products on the market basket list. Note that commodity contracts
often are solicited with an Invitation to Bid (ITB), which uses pass-fail criteria and pricing on high-volume
products to evaluate bids. Keep in mind that municipalities may also be able to obtain discounted products by
buying food off of contracts negotiated by other public entities in and around the jurisdiction, including the

state.

Bid solicitation language for food service agreements and concessions contracts

If the contract is for food services or concessions, the bid solicitation document is likely to be a Request for
Proposals (RFP), which uses a point-based system to determine which contractor offers the best overall

value or is best-aligned with your food procurement goals. The solicitation document can include mandatory
requirements that the vendor meet your climate-friendly food or nutrition standards —as well as desirable
criteria, which can earn bidders points toward winning the award. For example, the RFP can make it clear that
bidders will be rewarded in the bid evaluation process if they can demonstrate experience serving healthy and
climate-friendly foods or if they can present a plan showing how they will successfully transition to offering
climate-friendly food products and, if included in the jurisdiction’s policy, food with other sustainability benefits
(e.g., organic or locally sourced). RFPs should also require bidders to demonstrate that they can effectively
track and report on these changes. The food procurement working group (see Step 1 on page 17) should design
the point system to reflect the jurisdiction’s food procurement policy goals or guidelines. The model climate-
friendly food standards (see Appendix A) created for this guide could be inserted into an RFP for food service
contracts. For an example of how to craft a bid solicitation and scoring rubric to incorporate new sustainable

food criteria, see The Setting the Table for Success Toolkit.””

2. Examples of bid solicitation language

Alameda County, CA has incorporated language

into its bid solicitation for food services requiring
each contracted vendor to create a “Sustainable
Food Service Action Plan” that addresses the
environmental and social impacts of the products it
provides.*® Below are several key provisions of this
Request for Proposals (RFP), which awarded points
to bidders that did an exemplary job explaining how
they will address sustainability issues when providing
food services to the County. Among other things,
contractors are required to describe how they will
reduce the environmental impacts of their operations
and promote the consumption of climate-friendly
foods while providing food service to the County:

At a minimum, the Plan shall identify efforts the
Contractor will take to minimize the generation of
waste, divert waste that is generated from landfill,
and strategies to minimize the life cycle environ-

mental and social impacts associated with the
provision of food [emphasis added].”*®

Examples of efforts the contractor shall address
include: “food sourcing strategies to minimize
lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions intensity of food,
such as locally grown foods, moving toward protein
sources with lower emissions profiles and towards
food produced with no or low chemical inputs (e.g.,
fertilizers and pesticides).”1°

The RFP also notifies contractors that they will be
required to “develop and track metrics that measure
and evaluate achievement in meeting the goals of
the Plan” and report metrics quarterly.®

The federal government incorporated sustainable
food guidelines into its bid solicitation documents.'¢?
In 2012, the U.S. General Services Administration
(GSA) issued a bid solicitation for cafeteria services
referencing the Health and Sustainability Guidelines
for Federal Concessions and Vending:

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


http://www.acgov.org/sustain/documents/FoodServiceBid_Excerpt.pdf
https://www.farmtoinstitution.org/food-service-toolkit
https://sftool.gov/greenprocurement/green-services/9/cafeteria-food-services

Page 43 of 127

Menus: It shall be the responsibility of the
Contractor to provide a variety of quality
prepared foods that are a model for wellness

and sustainability and in accordance with latest
industry trends and standard practices and

the industry’s latest innovative concepts... The
Contractor shall offer food that provides wide
variety to customers, including vegetarian, vegan,
organic, healthy and light eater.

The federal government is working toward providing
healthier food at its cafeterias and concessions.

The GSA is implementing new wellness (and
sustainability) criteria for food services at the
properties it manages. The wellness criteria for
selecting food service operators include whether
concessionaires will use a registered dietitian or
nutritionist when preparing menus, use healthier
cooking techniques as much as possible, provide
nutrition information and use a pricing strategy that
promotes healthier choices.’

See Appendix F5 for specific model language from
the REP Template for Sustainable Food Service that
directs contractors to offer healthy and sustainable
food products.

The San Francisco Airport (SFO) actively seeks
locally-owned food businesses that serve local,
healthy and sustainable food via requirements in its
RFPs. Here is a sample lease that was posted in an
RFP for SFO, which could be adapted to incorporate
climate-friendly food:

In compliance with Executive Directive 09-03
issued by the Office of the Mayor on July 9, 2009,
Tenant is required to provide good, clean, and
fair food which has been responsibly sourced and
deliciously prepared. Tenant is encouraged to
ensure that at least 25% of the meals offered on
the menu meet the nutritional guidelines set forth
in San Francisco Administrative Code section 4.9-
1(e), as may be amended. The following must be
adhered to throughout the term of the Lease.

Tenant must feature:

1. Displays that promote healthy eating and
good environmental stewardship

Visible food preparation areas
Portion sizes which support good health
4. Portion-appropriate menu items for children

Tenant must use:
5. Low- or non-phosphate detergents

6. Un-bleached paper products and compostable
To Go containers and utensils.

To the very greatest extent possible, Tenants must
use:

7. Organic agricultural products from the
Northern California region

8. Agricultural products that have not been
genetically modified

9. Organic or all-natural meat from animals
treated humanely and without hormones or
antibiotics

10. rBST-free cheese, milk, yogurt and butter
1. Cage-free, antibiotic-free eggs

12. Sustainable seafood

13. Fairly Traded Organic Coffee

14. Products free of hydrogenated oils

15. Products free of artificial colors, flavors and
additives'™*

C. Award contract(s) and monitor
compliance

Food procurement goals, standards and
requirements should be included in the contract that
the municipality awards to one or more vendors

of food commodities or services. For example,
municipalities can include a requirement in the lease
agreement that the vendor meet their climate-
friendly food standards, including details of the kinds
of food that is expected to be served.

e Consider making the climate-friendly food
contract available to other nearby jurisdictions.
Cooperative purchasing is a strategy that can
help secure lower prices for sustainable food
and other environmentally preferable products
(EPPs) by aggregating demand. Adding “piggy-
backing” language to a contract also can prevent
other municipalities from having to go through
the time-consuming process of soliciting EPPs on
their own.

e Beyond working with other jurisdictions to
develop cooperative agreements around
plant-based food (or food that meets other

Xil

Friends of the Earth opposes the use of ingredients derived from
genetic engineering in plant-based foods due to lack of adequate
assessments and regulatory frameworks.

J
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 37


https://sftool.gov/greenprocurement/green-services/9/cafeteria-food-services

Page 44 of 127

sustainability criteria included in the policy),
municipalities can may be able to gain access

to lower-cost products by utilizing existing
cooperative agreements that have been
negotiated by the state. One example is the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ grocery
contract, which can be utilized by local
governments as well as other public and non-
profit entities in the state.® It offers organic food
on its central grocery contract. It may take several
municipalities working together to get the state
to add climate-friendly staple foods to its grocery
contract.

* Monitor contractor compliance early and often.
Meet with vendors shortly after the contract
is awarded to discuss their plans to promote
the climate-friendly products in their offering,
meet the minimum contract goals, and achieve
continuous improvement over time. As noted on
page 36, Alameda County, CA works with vendors
to develop an annual “Sustainability Plan,” which
explains how the contractor is going to implement
the contract to meet the County’s sustainability
goals. This Plan, which is updated annually,
includes benchmarks and is used throughout the
year.

e To ensure consistent reporting among multiple
vendors, municipalities can include a reporting
template in the contract award package.

“Sustainability plans are key. While the
contract language confirms that all
parties are committed to sustainability
in the services provided, the plan
further defines how sustainability will
be applied in practice. It also provides
an opportunity for all parties to be
brought in on the details and timetable
of implementation, which is crucial for
complex environments like food service.”

— Sarah Church, Sustainability Project Manager,
County of Alameda, CA

Step 6: Track and report progress

To understand if a food purchasing policy is
successful, its impacts must be measured. By
establishing a system for tracking and reporting
on purchases, a municipality can assess whether
it is on track to meet its policy target for reducing
the carbon footprint of food served on municipal
property.

A. Choose a method for tracking purchases

To effectively track the carbon footprint and costs of
municipal food procurement practices, it is important
to collect baseline data on the volume and costs of
food purchased in different food categories before
any changes take place, as well as the number of
customers or meals served. Using this baseline data,
a municipality can compare environmental impacts
and expenditures before and after implementing
climate-friendly food policies and practices. It is
important to measure changes per meal, as well as

in aggregate, because meal-level analysis accounts
for the fact that the number of meals served may
change over time. This information will help staff
illustrate environmental benefits and potential cost-
savings of climate-friendly initiatives, which can be
used to justify additional climate-friendly and healthy
food procurement practices.

While tracking the embedded emissions of all major
food groups is ideal, it may be more feasible to
initially focus on tracking animal product purchases
by weight and by cost. Since animal products are
responsible for the vast majority of the greenhouse
gas emissions associated with the food served,
tracking GHGs associated with just the purchase of
animal products can provide a good approximation
of the avoided GHG reductions. If a municipality
take this approach, calculations should be based on
assumptions about the average GHG footprint of
replacement foods. As seen in Figure 5 (page 39),
before implementing its meat reduction program,
76 percent of Oakland Unified School District’s
embedded carbon emissions came from animal
products.’®®

A menu-based approach can be an alternative,
simpler and effective way to compare carbon
footprints and cost-savings. One can fairly quickly
measure the benefits of switching two or three

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


http://www.mass.gov/anf/docs/osd/uguide/gro30.pdf
http://www.mass.gov/anf/docs/osd/uguide/gro30.pdf
http://www.mass.gov/anf/docs/osd/uguide/gro30.pdf

Page 45 of 127

high-meat recipes with low-meat or plant-based
alternatives. By estimating the number of meals
served and the number of times the low-meat or
plant-based recipe was served in a year, this method
can quickly generate valuable data on consumption-
related GHG reduction benefits.

Universities may be able to help with data analysis.
For example, the Center for Public Health Nutrition at
the University of Washington School of Public Health
has provided valuable program evaluations for the
State of Washington.

Data sources for carbon footprint

There are various peer reviewed data sets
that municipalities can use to track their
avoided emissions from food purchasing
shifts. Friends of the Earth’s Oakland Unified
School District footprint analysis used the
lifecycle analysis conversion factors based

on peer-reviewed data contained in a 2014
report authored by Heller & Keoleian.'®® The
Heller & Keoleian (2014) data are from a large
meta-study that produced global averages

of lifecycle assessments (LCA) of the carbon
dioxide equivalent emitted per kilogram of
food product produced from each stage of
production from the farm to the retail level
(kg CO2-eq * kg-1). The data presented in this
report are similar to another comprehensive
LCA data set from Clune, Crossin & Verghese
(2016).7° See Appendix E for a chart with Heller
& Keoleian’s lifecycle assessment conversion
factors for common foods.

Figure 5. Oakland Unified School District
carbon footprint by food group
(2012-13 school food purchases)

2%
\

Animal Products Fruits Vegetables

Legumes Other Foods

Source: Hamerschlag, K. & Kraus-Polk, J. (2017). Shrinking the carbon and
water footprint of school food: A recipe for combating climate change: A
pilot analysis of Oakland unified school district’s food programs. Friends
of the Earth.

“Partnering with the University of
Washington Center for Public Health
Nutrition (CPHN) for evaluation is a huge
asset to WA DOH’s Healthy Nutrition
Guidelines work. CPHN’s unbiased
perspective provides consistent and
valuable information, and we use the
evaluation results to inform program
planning and monitor implementation of
the Healthy Nutrition Guidelines.”

—Alyssa Auvinen, Healthy Eating Coordinator
(formerly), Washington State Department of Health

J
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 39


http://depts.washington.edu/uwcphn/
https://foe.org/projects/food-and-technology/good-food-healthy-planet/school-food-footprint/
https://foe.org/projects/food-and-technology/good-food-healthy-planet/school-food-footprint/
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0959652616303584?via%3Dihub

Page 46 of 127

B. Develop tracking and reporting
procedures

In order to ensure access to the necessary data,
contracts should specify that food service providers
and/or suppliers consistently track the weight and
dollar amount of animal products, along with the
number of meals or people served, and report

the data to the appropriate person, such as a
procurement or food service director. Information
should flow from contractors and vendors through
agencies subject to the policy to the agency
overseeing the broader implementation of the
policy. Reporting should happen at least annually,

if not more frequently. The procurement specialist
or food service director will typically be charged
with compiling all of this information from its
contractors and reporting to the agency overseeing
the implementation of the broader food procurement
policy. See Appendix A for model contract language
to ensure good tracking practices adapted from Los
Angeles County, CA’s food service RFP.

7 \
Low-cost tracking resources

Tracking the climate impacts of meat and dairy
purchases is a relatively new field, but there
are resources available that can make this task
easier. IntoFood provides a fee-based software
that conducts sustainability data analysis of
recipes and food purchasing activities.”’ It
analyzes the embedded carbon emissions of
all major food items, identifies which food
categories emit the most GHGs, and maps
trends over time to demonstrate the overall
carbon footprint of a food service operation,
including the impacts of animal products versus
plant-based foods. Municipalities can purchase
IntoFood’s services, which includes generating
reports on a monthly, quarterly or annual basis,
reducing workload.

The University of New Hampshire’s
Sustainability Indicator Management and
Analysis Platform (SIMAP) is another online tool
for institutions to measure, report and manage
carbon footprints.”® It is primarily intended for
university dining service but can be adapted for
municipal food service settings.

Friends of the Earth can also provide technical
assistance and link municipalities with other
useful resources.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


http://www.intofood.no
https://sustainableunh.unh.edu/calculator
https://sustainableunh.unh.edu/calculator

Page 47 of 127

S . CONCLUSION

Communities across the U.S. are contending with
the major human and economic costs of climate
change and diet-related diseases. Fortunately, cities
and counties have the power to make a meaningful
impact by shifting municipal food purchases
towards plant-based and plant-forward options.
This approach delivers crucial benefits not only

for municipal employees and other consumers of
municipal food but for everyone who stands to
prosper from a healthier planet. Adopting healthy
and climate-friendly procurement policies and
practices that emphasize less meat and more
plant-based foods takes time, collaboration and
patience. This guide is offered in the spirit of helping
communities devise locally appropriate solutions

taking into account that each municipality’s needs
and resources will be different.

To this end, Friends of the Earth and the Responsible
Purchasing Network hope that the technical
resources, tools and strategies offered in this guide
are helpful for municipalities that want to increase
healthy and climate-friendly food offerings—both
within their own food service operations and in
venues that are operating on municipal property or
at municipal events. Whether these shifts are made
for health, environmental or cost-saving reasons,
municipalities that promote plant-forward diets will
experience a unique triple win for community well-
being, local budgets and the planet.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

41




Page 48 of 127

N APPENDIX A

Model climate-friendly food purchasing

policy and standards

Background:

This model policy and corresponding standards are
geared toward reducing embedded greenhouse
gas emissions associated with municipal food
purchases or foods served on municipal property.i
The model climate-friendly food purchasing policy
includes several components: a model ordinance

or executive order, policy targets, definitions,

food standards and model tracking language for
contracts. Jurisdictions may choose to adopt all of
these components in one policy vehicle, though
most likely they will be adopted through distinct
processes. For instance, the standards, which address
which food is served as opposed to food purchased,
may be adopted by municipalities without a formal
purchasing policy. In some cases climate-friendly
provisions could be integrated into existing health
or nutritional standards.i This model policy and
standards are offered with the understanding that
municipalities face varying financial and political
limitations and may choose to pursue only certain
aspects of this policy or enact the policy through
an incremental approach that applies to a limited
number of entities purchasing or serving food. This
policy was developed by Friends of the Earth and
the Responsible Purchasing Network with feedback
from a range of knowledgeable individuals and
organizations (see the Acknowledgements). We
welcome feedback and look forward to seeing

how municipalities adapt this for their particular
circumstances.

1. Model ordinance or executive order

WHEREAS [city/county] recognizes the importance
of supporting the health and safety of its employees
and community, preserving and protecting our planet
for future generations, and promoting the vitality of
our economy;

WHEREAS the food sector is a significant contributor
to global greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, with
livestock production accounting for 14.5% of global
GHG emissions, and the United Nations recognizing
that “Livestock are one of the most significant
contributors to today’s most serious environmental
problems;”

WHEREAS food represents a significant portion of
a municipality’s consumption-based GHG emissions
but is not currently addressed in [city/county’s]
climate action planning;

WHEREAS greenhouse gas emissions from plant-
based protein foods such as beans, lentils, peas and
tofu are considerably lower than those from beef,
pork, cheese and other animal products;

WHEREAS a diet high in plant-based foods and low
in meat is recognized by leading experts to reduce
risks of cardiovascular disease, obesity, hypertension
and diabetes, and more than two thirds of adults and
nearly a third of children and teens are overweight
and obese in the United States, and obesity is
associated with a higher risk of various health
ailments including heart disease and type-2 diabetes;

WHEREAS Americans eat, on average, significantly
more meat and significantly less plant-based food
than is recommended by the Dietary Guidelines for
Americans jointly developed by the United States
Department of Agriculture and the Department of
Health and Human Services;

WHEREAS [city/county] can reduce its greenhouse
gas emissions and improve the health and well-
being of its employees and community residents

by purchasing and serving less meat and more
plant-based food in facilities operating on municipal
property; now, therefore

i See page 12 for an explanation of embedded GHG emissions.

i See page 29 for an explanation of when a municipality may be able to enact standards in lieu of a formal purchasing policy.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



Page 49 of 127

BE IT ENACTED that [city/county] shall substantially
reduce its greenhouse gas emissions associated
with its food purchases and food sold on municipal
property by its vendors.iiiv

Within one year of enactment, [overseeing agency,
department, or office] shall establish:

a. atime-bound target for reducing the greenhouse
gas emissions associated with the consumption

[City/county] departments shall provide
documentation of implementation to the [entity
overseeing implementation] within 2 years after

the issuance of the standards. Every year thereafter,
departments shall provide an annual report to
[overseeing agency] showing progress meeting GHG
emissions reduction and purchasing targets. Staff
from [relevant departments, such as department of
health and/or department of the environment] will
provide guidance and technical support.

of animal products;

2. Model policy target

b. climate-friendly food standards and purchasing

targets;” Covered entities shall reduce the carbon footprint of

c. alist of departments, facilities and other entities animal product purchases by:

covered by the policy;* and o ]
e 8 percent within two years of adoption of the

policy;
25 percent within five years; and

d. aplan for tracking the greenhouse gas emissions
associated with the implementation of the o

standards that includes tracking animal product S b
30 percent within eight years. . x.xi

Within 60 days of the establishment of the
standards, the standards shall be distributed to
[city/county] covered entities implementing the
policy. Within 150 days of receiving the standards,
each covered entity shall provide to the [overseeing
agency] a plan to incorporate the standards into all
[city/county] food commodity contracts, food service
agreements, leases that cover food concessions

and restaurants on municipal property, and agency
meetings and events where food is served.

[City/county] departments permitting mobile food
vendors shall either apply food standards, issue
percentage targets for the sale of plant-based foods
or give preferences to businesses that sell such food.

iii A reduction in water usage could be added to this goal depending on the jurisdiction’s preferences.

iv._ In order to simplify baseline data gathering, municipalities could focus solely on animal products because those typically represent 70-80% of total
GHGs associated with food and are much easier to track. See Step 6 (page 38) on tracking and reporting progress.

v See “Model Policy Targets”. These could be included directly in the policy or be part of the standards.

vi  This could include municipal-run facilities (e.g., hospitals) and food served on municipal properties (e.g., stadiums). For a full list of potential enti-
ties that could be subject to the policy, see Table 1, page 18. This model ordinance could also specify which entities are covered directly as opposed
to establishing the scope of the policy through the implementation process.

vii  Implementation periods will vary depending on the jurisdiction, but the policy should lay out a specific timeframe for various stages of implemen-
tation in order to create accountability.

viii  The plan for tracking GHG emissions will necessitate a baseline assessment of the embedded emissions associated with a municipality’s food pur-
chases or food purchased on municipal property; or at a minimum the amount of animal products being purchased. See Step 6 (page 38) for sug-
gestions on tracking and reporting progress.

ix  The 5 year target mirrors the Good Food Purchasing Program’s target and focuses specifically on animal products since these are easier to track
than the entire amount of food purchased and sold by municipal food operations or food venues on municipal property. Once tracking systems are
established, it is ideal to create a target that is aimed at reducing the carbon footprint of all food.

X Special calculations of carbon reductions for "grass-fed or oganic meat” that may have a lower carbon footprint than its conventional counterparts
could be considered in cases where a municipality is purchasing a significant amount of this kind of meat and dairy and there is a credible analysis
has been conducted to evaluate the carbon emissions associated with the production of that particular animal product.

xi  Reducing - and eventually eliminating - processed meat, which has been classified as a known carcinogen by the World Health Organization’s
International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC), should be a key strategy in meeting this target.

xii  For a table that lists CO,eq of major food groups, see Appendix E

J
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 43



http://www.who.int/features/qa/cancer-red-meat/en/

Page 50 of 127

3. Model policy definitions * Drinking water must be offered at no charge at
every meal.»i

Animal products shall include meat, poultry, dairy,

eggs and seafood. Additional requirements that apply only to

concessions, cafeterias and restaurants on local
Dairy shall include food produced from or containing government property include the following:
the milk of mammails.
¢ One entirely plant-based main dish option must
be on the menu at each meal, emphasizing
high-protein, plant-based foods such as
Plant-based shall mean food that is wholly derived chickpeas, lentils, soy and other beans.
from plants, including but not limited to vegetables,
legumes, grains, mushrooms, nuts, seeds and fruits.xi

Meat shall include lamb, beef, pork and goat
products.

¢ Make available reduced-size portions for at
least 25% of menu items offered — prioritizing

Seafood shall include freshwater and saltwater fish dishes that include animal products.xx

and shellfish. Reduced-size dishes should be priced

proportionally to full-sized portions.**
4. Model standards .

These standards are meant to apply to concessions,
cafeterias and restaurants on local government
property as well as food served in all institutional
settings, including settings where there is typically
only one main dish available to customers at a time.

When offering multiple meat and/or poultry
options, include at least one main dish that
features less than less than 2 ounces of animal
protein, either by including meat and/or
poultry as a condiment, as part of a blended
option or as a mixed meat vegetable dish. i xi

o At least one entirely plant-based option must
be made available at every meal, emphasizing
high-protein, plant-based foods such as peas,
lentils, soy and other beans.x"

* Prioritize protein-rich plant-based foods and
ensure that at least 20 percent of main dishes
served per week are plant-based within 2 years
and at least 5 percent more main dishes are
plant-based each year after up until at least 40
percent of main dishes are plant-based.x"

e Meat, poultry and/or eggs must not exceed
3.7 ounces per meal (or 3.7 ounces per day if
serving several meals to the same people). i i

e |f serving dairy-based milk, offer at least one
unsweetened, non-dairy option.

xiii  Friends of the Earth strongly discourages the use of plant-based foods that are derived from genel Engineering due to lack of safety tes@ B and inade-
quate regulatory frameworks.

xiv  This guideline should be inclusive of op®@ B @o subsl [ €&l plant-based protein to a dish that otherwise contains animal products.

xv  Reducing —and eventually eliminal B — processed meat, which has been & a known carcinogen by the World Health Organizal [
Internal@ @ BEIAgency for Research on Cancer (IARC), should be a key strategy in meel@ @ this target.

xvi  Daily ounce limit is based on the Dietary Guidelines for Americans recommended servings of 26 ounces of meat, poultry and eggs per week for an average
2000 calorie diet.

Xvii Reducing Bizes of meat is a key strategy for reducing greenhouse gas emissions associated with food purchases while also adhering to the Dietary
Guidelines for Americans.

Xviii Water has the lowest carbon footprint of all beverages.

xix  As described in the Good Food Purchasing Standards, reduced-sized Bare at least one third smaller than the full-size item and are @ Bred in addi-
to the full-size versions.

xx  This guideline is intended to reduce GHGs and reduce food waste and is modeled on language from the Good Food Purchasing Standards. See page 13 for
more informal@ @ about the link between food waste, &I @ @ fdod waste associated with animal products, and GHG emissions.

xxi A condiment size Bhould be less than 1 ounce and ideally less than .5 ounces.

xXii A blended opl B is anything that has meat blended with a plant-based food. See page 33 for an example of a blended burger.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



http://www.who.int/features/qa/cancer-red-meat/en/

Page 51 of 127

5. Model tracking language for
contracts

Contractor shall comply with all climate-friendly,
[healthy and sustainable] food guidelines outlined
in this Agreement, as well as any future food
procurement policies approved by [governing
body]. [Overseeing entity] may periodically monitor
the Contractors’ compliance with the guidelines.
Contractor is required to submit quarterly to
[relevant staffperson] the following records: food
production records, product inventory, purchasing
lists, itemized monthly sales and a complete
nutrition analysis of all menu products/items
offered. Meat and dairy amounts shall be reported
in pounds broken down by general product type
(beef, chicken, pork, cheese, etc.). [Overseeing
entity] shall review records and communicate its
findings to [entity responsible for food purchasing
policy implementation]. Failure to comply with the
food guidelines may, in [overseeing entity]’s sole
discretion, constitute a breach of this Agreement.
Contractor may contact [relevant staffperson,
phone, and email] if Contractor has questions on
the climate-friendly [healthy and sustainable] food
guidelines and compliance. i

xXiii This tracking language is based B Bbf language in an RFP from Los Angeles County, CA.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

J

45




Page 52 of 127

N APPENDIX B

Additional considerations for a broader
sustainable food procurement policy

Reducing meat and dairy purchases is a core,
measurable strategy to mitigate consumption-
related climate impacts that also has clear benefits
to human health. At the same time, reducing meat
and dairy purchases may save money that can be
used to purchase more sustainable food that is
locally or regionally produced, organic’ or third-
party-certified grass-fed, fair trade or humane.
Given that some municipalities will want to address
climate-friendly food procurement in conjunction
with broader sustainability goals, we have included
suggested policy language, purchasing targets and
definitions for those other sustainability criteria.
The certifications included in this model policy
have been endorsed by The Center for Good Food
Purchasing and/or Real Food Challenge based on
a comprehensive community consultation process.
In Appendix C, we provide additional background
on several of the third-party certifications for
animal products that have been endorsed by
these organizations. The language below can be
incorporated into the climate-friendly purchasing
policy and standards (see Appendix A) depending
on a municipality’s goals and resources.

1. Sustainable food procurement
policy language

Additions to the model climate-friendly food
procurement policy above are italicized.

WHEREAS supporting local food production helps
protect farmland, build a prosperous local economy
and can reduce transportation- and urban-sprawi-
related greenhouse gas emissions;

WHEREAS organic agricultural practices and certified
organic products eliminate chemical pesticide

and fertilizer use and can have important climate
benefits, including reduced energy use and carbon
sequestration;

WHEREAS the overuse of antibiotics in livestock
contributes to antibiotic resistance in humans, a
public health crisis that kills at least 23,000 people
each year according to the U.S. Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention;

WHEREAS many species of fish are overfished or
caught or farmed in ways that harm marine life or the
environment;

WHEREAS third-party certified food products such as
American Grassfed Association Certified by A Greener
World 100% grassfed, Animal Welfare Approved,
Global Animal Partnership Steps 3-5+ and Certified
Humane Raised and Handled promote higher animal
welfare practices and do not allow for the routine use
of antibiotics;

WHEREAS ecological certifications such as Rainforest
Alliance, Protected Harvest, Food Alliance, Grasslands
Alliance and USDA Transitional Organic require
production practices that are beneficial to the
environment;

WHEREAS Fairtrade USA, Ecocert Fair Trade Certified,
Fairtrade America, Fair for Life, FairWild, Hand in
Hand, Equitable Food Initiative and Food Justice
Certified demonstrate a commitment to fair trade or
fair labor practices;

WHEREAS Seafood Watch has developed a set of
“best choice” recommendations for fish and seafood
that are well-managed and caught or farmed in ways
that cause minimal harm to habitats or other wildlife;
and

i Locally and regionally produced food can also have climat® B B B Benel Bl ket they are harder to measure. See page 16.

i Insome cases, organically produced food—including pasture-raised animal products-- can also have smaller climate impacts than their conven @ Ecounter-
parts, but vary by pr @ @ [ systems and are harder to measure. See page 16.for a discussion on the climate benel@ Fof regenerall &, organic agriculture.

iii When considering carbon sequestra® & in soils, several studies have found that some U.S. pasture-based and call Bgrazing systems produce a smaller car-
bon footprint than industrial con® @ & B systems. For more informaR & on the environmental and health benel Blof well-managed grass-fed livestock, see

Less and Beller Meat is Key to a Healthier Planet.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


https://foodtank.com/news/2017/10/less-better-meat-healthier-planet/

Page 53 of 127

WHEREAS [city/county] can improve the health

and well-being of its employees and residents as
well as animals, workers, farmers and the planet by
purchasing lower carbon-intensive food and food
that is certified organic, higher animal welfare, grass-
fed and fair trade; locally or regionally produced; or
produced without routine antibiotics.

BE IT ENACTED that [city/county], for all food
purchased by [city/county] and for all food sold on
municipal property by its vendors, shall substantially:

a. reduce its embedded greenhouse gas emissions;
and

b. increase the amount of food that is certified
organic, grass-fed, higher animal welfare,
ecological and fair trade; locally or regionally
produced; and produced without routine
antibiotics.

Within one year of enactment, [overseeing agency,
department, or office] shall establish:

a. atime-bound target for reducing greenhouse
gas emissions associated with animal food
purchases and for meeting purchasing targets for
food that is certified organic, grass-fed, higher
animal welfare, ecological and fair trade; locally
or regionally produced; produced without routine
antibiotics and;

b. sustainable and climate-friendly food standards
and purchasing targets;

c. alist of entities covered by the policy; and
d. a plan for tracking:

1) the amount of food that is certified organic,
grass-fed, higher animal welfare, ecological
and fair trade; locally or regionally produced;
produced without routine antibiotics; and

2) the greenhouse gas emissions associated with
the implementation of the standards that
includes tracking animal product purchases by
weight.

Within 60 days of the establishment of the
standards, the standards shall be distributed to [city/
county] departments and other municipal entities
implementing the policy. Within 150 days of receiving
the standards, each department shall provide to the
[overseeing agency] a plan to incorporate standards
into all [city/county] food contracts, leases that

cover food concessions and restaurants on municipal
property, agency meetings and events where food is
served.

[City/county] departments permitting mobile food
vendors shall:

a. apply food standards;

b. issue percentage targets for the sale of foods
that are plant-based, certified organic, higher
animal welfare, grass-fed and ecological; locally
or regionally produced; and produced without
routine antibiotics; or

C. give preferences to businesses that sell such
food.

[City/county] departments shall provide
documentation of implementation to the [entity
overseeing implementation] within 2 years after

the issuance of the standards. Every year thereafter,
departments shall provide an annual report to
[overseeing agency] showing progress on emissions
and purchasing targets. Staff from [relevant
departments, such as department of health and/

or department of the environment] shall provide
guidance and technical support.

2. Sustainable purchasing targets™

Within 2 years of implementation, at least 10 percent,
and within 5 years, at least 25 percent of all plant-
based food purchases must be certified organic or
ecological.

Within 2 years of implementation, at least 15 percent
of food and beverages purchases shall be locally

or regionally produced, of which at least 5 percent
should be locally produced; within 5 years, at least
25 percent of food and beverages purchases shall be
locally or regionally produced, 10 percent of which
should be locally produced.

Within 2 years of implementation at least 15 percent
and, within 5 years, at least 25 percent of animal
products must be certified as grass-fed, higher
animal welfare, organic, or ecological.

iv. Most of these targets mirror those established in the Good Food
Purchasing Standards level 2 and 3, which allow enf@ @ &o comply with
its environmental standard either by reducing greenhouse gas emissions
associated with animal products or by purchasing a percentage of its
food from environmentally sustainable sources. While GFPP establishes
most of the Bité#tgets for 1 year, we have provided 2 years to allow
more @ B to @ B adequate supply of third-party & B pfoducts.

U
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 47



Page 54 of 127

Within 2 years of implementation, at least 5 percent
of products and within 5 years at least 15 percent of
products must be from fair trade sources.

Within 2 years of implementation, at least 30 percent
and, within 5 years, at least 60 percent of animal
product purchases must be produced without the
routine use of antibiotics.

Within 2 years, at least 25 percent and, within 5
years, at least 50 percent of seafood purchased
should be listed as “Best Choice” and no seafood
purchased listed as “Avoid” in the Monterey Bay
Aquarium’s most recent Seafood Watch Guide.

Definitions

Higher animal welfare shall mean a product has
been certified as Animal Welfare Approved, Global
Animal Partnership (Steps 3 through 5+), Certified
Humane Raised and Handled or other certifications
deemed meaningful by the Center for Good Food
Purchasing at level 2.

Grass-fed shall mean animal products that are
certified as 100% Grass-fed, Certified Grassfed by A
Greener World, Certified Grassfed by Food Alliance
or certified by the American Grassfed Association or
other certifications deemed meaningful by Real Food
Challenge or the Center for Good Food Purchasing.

Locally produced food shall mean food that is:

1. produced by a privately or cooperatively owned
enterprise;

2. if the food is produce,

i. produced and processed at a facility located
within a 250-mile radius of the city/county;

ii.  (ii) procured from a farm that grosses $5
million/year or less; and

3. if the food is meat or poultry,

i. produced and processed at a facility located
within a 500 mile radius of the city;

ii. procured from a farm or a company that
grosses $50 million/year or less.

v Thisdel B B [ from the Real Food Challenge standards. See Appendix
D for more about the Real Food Challenge standards.

Certified Organic shall mean a product that has
been certified by the United States Department of
Agriculture’s National Organic Program established
pursuant to the federal Organic Foods Production
Act of 1990 (7 U.S.C. Sec. 6501 et seq.) and the
regulations adopted for implementation. Demeter
Certified Biodynamic products shall be considered
equivalent to Certified Organic for the purposes of
this section.

Ecological certified products refer to products that
require production practices that are beneficial to
the environment and have been endorsed by Center
for Good Food Purchasing (level 2) or Real Food
Challenge, including Rainforest Alliance, Protected
Harvest, Food Alliance, Grasslands Alliance and
USDA Transitional Organic or seafood products that
are considered “best choice” by Seafood Watch.

Fairtrade certified products refer to products that
have been certified by Fairtrade USA, Ecocert Fair
Trade Certified, Fairtrade America, Fair for Life,
FairWild, Hand in Hand, Equitable Food Initiative or
Food Justice Certified.

No routine antibiotics shall mean that use of
antibiotics is limited to treatment of animals
diagnosed with an illness or controlling a verified
disease outbreak.

Regionally produced food shall mean a food
product that is raised, produced, and distributed in
() the locality or region in which the final product is
marketed, so that the total distance that the product
is transported is less than 400 miles from the origin
of the product; or (b) the State in which the product
is produced, except that if the food product is meat
or poultry, regionally produced food shall also
include a food product that is raised, produced and
distributed in the locality or region in which the final
product is marketed, so that the total distance that
the product is transported is less than 600 miles
from the origin of the product.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



Page 55 of 127

N APPENDIX C

Meaningful third-party certifications for

animal products

Municipalities can use money that is saved from
purchasing fewer conventional meat and dairy
products to buy third-party certified products
that can deliver broader health, fair labor,
animal welfare and environmental sustainability
benefits. The third-party certifications listed
below include the top credible, most widely
available and rapidly growing third-party
certifications for animal products that have been
endorsed by either the Real Food Challenge

or the Center for Good Food Purchasing.

Both of these organizations have vetted

these certifications through a comprehensive
community consultation process. Local
governments can request third-party certified
products from their existing distributors or
secure new vendors that offer a greater supply
of these products.

Organic

USDA ORGANIC: No GMOs, synthetic
pesticides or fertilizer used to grow the
feed. No antibiotics or hormones added.
Animals have access to outdoors. Sheep,
cows and lambs must have access to pasture, though
there are no meaningful animal welfare standards.

Animal welfare

ANIMAL WELFARE APPROVED:

Continuous access to pasture or

range. No feedlots. Cage confinement,
hormones, growth promoters and routine antibiotics
prohibited. Standards extend to breeding animals,
transport and slaughter.

CERTIFIED HUMANE RAISED AND

HANDLED: Continuous outdoor access for

ruminants. Cage confinement, hormones
and routine antibiotics prohibited. Outdoor access
not required for birds and pigs, but minimum
space allowance and bedding required for indoor

environments. Feedlots permitted with better
than conventional standards. Standards extend to
breeding animals, transport and slaughter.

GLOBAL ANIMAL PARTNERSHIP

(Steps 3 and above): Applies to

animals raised for meat (not eggs or
milk) and applies to transport but not breeding or
slaughter. No hormones or routine antibiotics. Step
3: No cages and crates. Outdoor access required but
not pasture. Step 4: Access to pasture required. Step
5: Feedlots prohibited. Step 5+: Animals must spend
entire lives on one farm.

Grass-fed

AMERICAN GRASSFED ASSOCIATION:

Allows cows, sheep and goats continuous

access to pasture. 100% of the feed must

be grass/forage, no feedlots. Use of
hormones and antibiotics prohibited.

CERTIFIED GRASSFED by AGW: Animal
Welfare Approved and cows, sheep and
goats continuously have access to pasture

throughout their entire lives.

Multi-category

RAINFOREST ALLIANCE: Applies to
crops and cows only. No mistreatment
of workers. Must meet a certain number
of a range of targets in the areas of
biodiversity conservation, natural
resource conservation, employment conditions
and wages and occupational health and safety. For
cows, destruction of forests, protected areas or
other natural ecosystems is prohibited. Hormones
and routine antibiotics prohibited. Must meet a
certain number of a range of targets in the areas of
sanitation, animal welfare, land degradation and herd
genetics.

U
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 49




Page 56 of 127

S\ APPENDIX D

Resources

Guides and toolkits for healthy and
sustainable food purchasing

e Association for the Advancement of
Sustainability in Higher Education published
A Guide to Developing a Sustainable Food
Purchasing Policy, which offers resources
for establishing goals, creating action
plans, communicating accomplishments
and understanding food-related claims and
certifications.

e Changelab Solutions published this
simple, user-friendly Guide to Healthy Food
Procurement.

e The Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future

Playbook for Cities, explains how cities across
the U.S. and Canada have implemented
sustainable procurement policies and practices
that have yielded measurable environmental,
health and economic benefits. The RPN also
published a report on Local and Sustainable
Food Procurement by New England State
Governments: Barriers and Recommendations.

The Sustainable Purchasing Leadership
Council has a section on food procurement
in its Guidance for Leadership in Sustainable
Purchasing available to members.

Technical Assistance, Culinary
Training and Recipes

has a useful report called /nstituting Change:
An Overview of Institutional Food Procurement
and Recommendations for Improvement.

e Harvard and the Johns Hopkins Center for a
Livable Future have created a toolkit called
Good Laws, Good Food: Putting Local Food
Policy to Work for Our Communities, which
has a chapter specifically addressing food
procurement policy.

e The Food Literacy Center has a short blueprint
for Local Food Procurement Policies that
summarizes different purchasing policy
strategies around local food, which could be
adapted to apply to climate-friendly food.

e Kaiser Permanente has a Healthy Eating at
Work Food Policy Toolkit, which includes a
step-by-step guide for employers to implement
a healthy eating policy in the workplace.

e PolicylLink offers a Local Food Procurement
Toolkit.

e The Responsible Purchasing Network
(RPN) created a comprehensive guide
highlighting green purchasing best practices
in collaboration with the Urban Sustainability
Directors Network (USDN). This resource, The
Buck Starts Here: A Sustainable Procurement

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

Friends of the Earth provides technical
assistance for climate-friendly and sustainable
food purchasing, tracking and reporting.
Contact: cwaterman@foe.org

The Responsible Purchasing Network (RPN)
provides hands-on technical assistance to
local governments and other public entities
that want to design an effective sustainable
procurement program.

The Center for Good Food Purchasing

provides technical assistance and support to
municipalities or institutions that are interested
in adopting the Good Food Purchasing
Program (see Appendix F1), including
assistance with tracking and reporting.

Health Care Without Harm provides technical
assistance to hospitals and has a wealth of
resources to support purchasing in hospitals
as well as other institutions. Health Care
Without Harm gives specific purchasing
guidance for protein foods in its Redefining
Protein report and for meat in this resource
created with Practice Greenhealth. Health Care
without Harm’s Balanced Menus Initiative, is
a two-tiered approach for hospitals to reduce
their meat and poultry purchases, and invest



http://www.aashe.org/
http://www.aashe.org/
http://realfoodchallenge.org/sites/default/files/food_policy_guide.pdf
http://realfoodchallenge.org/sites/default/files/food_policy_guide.pdf
http://www.changelabsolutions.org/
http://www.changelabsolutions.org/sites/default/files/Understanding%20Healthy%20Procurement%202011_20120717.pdf
http://www.changelabsolutions.org/sites/default/files/Understanding%20Healthy%20Procurement%202011_20120717.pdf
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/index.html
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/_pdf/research/Instituting-change.pdf
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/_pdf/research/Instituting-change.pdf
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/_pdf/research/Instituting-change.pdf
https://www.chlpi.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/good-food-good-laws_toolkit-10.23.2017.pdf
https://www.chlpi.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/good-food-good-laws_toolkit-10.23.2017.pdf
https://www.foodliteracycenter.org/
http://www.foodliteracycenter.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/procurement.pdf
https://business.kaiserpermanente.org/thrive/resource-center/healthy-eating-at-work-food-policy-toolkit
https://business.kaiserpermanente.org/thrive/resource-center/healthy-eating-at-work-food-policy-toolkit
http://www.policylink.org/
http://www.policylink.org/sites/default/files/edtk_local-food-procurement.pdf
http://www.policylink.org/sites/default/files/edtk_local-food-procurement.pdf
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/purchasing_guides/playbook_for_cities/rpn_usdn_playbook_for_cities.pdf
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/purchasing_guides/playbook_for_cities/rpn_usdn_playbook_for_cities.pdf
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/purchasing_guides/playbook_for_cities/rpn_usdn_playbook_for_cities.pdf
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/purchasing_guides/food/local_food_new_england.pdf
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/purchasing_guides/food/local_food_new_england.pdf
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/purchasing_guides/food/local_food_new_england.pdf
https://www.sustainablepurchasing.org/guidance/
https://www.sustainablepurchasing.org/guidance/
https://www.sustainablepurchasing.org/guidance/
https://www.sustainablepurchasing.org/guidance/
https://foe.org/
http://www.responsiblepurchasing.org/
https://goodfoodpurchasing.org/
https://noharm.org/
https://noharm-uscanada.org/issues/us-canada/healthy-food-resources
https://noharm-uscanada.org/RedefiningProteinConsiderations
https://noharm-uscanada.org/RedefiningProteinConsiderations
https://noharm-uscanada.org/sites/default/files/documents-files/904/Suggested_Environmental_Considerations_for_Meat.pdf
https://noharm-uscanada.org/issues/us-canada/balanced-menus-initiative

Page 57 of 127

their cost savings in more sustainable meat
options. The organization offers the following
resources: Balanced Menus Booklet, Brochure
for Dietitians, Customizable Educational Poster,
Table Tent Display and Marketing Guidance for
Promoting Antibiotic Stewardship.

The Humane Society of the U.S. works with

a range of institutions to promote delicious,
healthy, plant-based meals. The organization
offers comprehensive plant-based culinary
trainings. Its Forward Food website

features toolkits for plant-based food
programs as well as plant-based recipes for
institutions. It also provides useful a Meatless
Monday toolkit. Contact: meatlessmonday@
humanesociety.org

Meatless Monday provides a wide array of
useful resources and recipes for organizations
and municipalities that want to participate in
Meatless Monday.

IntoFood provides technical assistance and a
fee-based software that conducts sustainability
data analysis of recipes and food purchasing
activities. It analyzes the embedded carbon
emissions of all major food items, identifies
which food categories emit the most GHGs

and maps trends over time to demonstrate

the overall carbon footprint of a food service
operation, including the impacts of animal
products compared with plant-based foods.

Chef Ann Foundation provides recipes

and support for K-12 schools that want to
implement healthier, plant forward menus.
Friends of the Earth has compiled a list of their
low-meat recipes and other low-meat recipes.

Additional resources

The Food Service Guidelines Collaborative
(FSGCQ) is a multidisciplinary group of health,
nutrition, environment and consumer advocacy
NGOs and government staff from the local,
state and federal level. The group works
throughout the food system to support the
implementation of the Federal Food Service
Guidelines by sharing and tracking best
practices and model policy with the aim of
leveraging institutional food service purchases
to support eating patterns that are aligned
with the Dietary Guidelines for Americans.

This group seeks to promote healthy diets

that are part of a food system that conserves
and renews natural resources, advances social
justice and animal welfare, builds community
wealth and fulfills the food and nutrition
needs of all eaters now and into the future.
Any municipality or organization interested in
working on food procurement that aligns with
these objectives is welcomed to join.

Menus of Change is at the forefront of
supporting chefs in shifting toward menus that
support human and environmental health. In
addition to its principles for food service, the
initiative also provides insights on delicious
ways to reduce meat servings and change
consumer behaviors and attitudes.

Real Food Challenge provides numerous

resources that are helpful for food service
professionals, including guides related to
sustainable food purchasing on university
campuses.

The Plant Based Foods Association is a

trade association representing more than

90 of the nation’s leading plant-based food
companies, advocating for a level playing
field, and working to expand markets for

this fast-growing sector of the food industry.
PBFA offers an online directory of high-quality
sources of plant-based foods and ingredients.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

51


https://noharm-uscanada.org/documents/balanced-menus-brochure
https://noharm-uscanada.org/documents/food-climate-relationship-registered-dietitians%E2%80%99-balanced-approach-positive-change
https://noharm-uscanada.org/documents/food-climate-relationship-registered-dietitians%E2%80%99-balanced-approach-positive-change
https://noharm-uscanada.org/documents/balanced-menus-display-poster-customization
https://noharm-uscanada.org/documents/balanced-menus-table-tent
https://noharm-uscanada.org/documents/promoting-and-marketing-antibiotic-stewardship-through-food-services
https://noharm-uscanada.org/documents/promoting-and-marketing-antibiotic-stewardship-through-food-services
http://www.bringfoodforward.org/
http://www.bringfoodforward.org/resources/
http://www.humanesociety.org/issues/eating/facts/meatless_monday_toolkits.html?referrer=https://www.google.com/
http://www.humanesociety.org/issues/eating/facts/meatless_monday_toolkits.html?referrer=https://www.google.com/
http://www.meatlessmonday.com/free-resources/
http://www.intofood.no/about-us-1/
http://www.chefannfoundation.org/
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/pVMqBxCxZREU5?domain=foodserviceguidelines.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/pVMqBxCxZREU5?domain=foodserviceguidelines.org
https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/downloads/guidelines_for_federal_concessions_and_vending_operations.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/downloads/guidelines_for_federal_concessions_and_vending_operations.pdf
http://www.menusofchange.org/
http://www.menusofchange.org/principles-resources/moc-principles/
http://www.menusofchange.org/principles-resources/case-studies/
http://www.realfoodchallenge.org/
http://www.realfoodchallenge.org/resources
http://plantbasedfoods.org

Page 58 of 127

N APPENDIX E

Greenhouse gas emissions of select foods
by weight

30

25

kg CO2-eq/kg edible*
— N
wn (@)

—h
o

Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Select Foods

(kg CO.-eq/kg edible*)

Beef 26.4 Eggs 3.5 Canned beans 1.2
Shellfish (shrimp) n.7 Tofu 2.2 Rice 11

Cheese 9.8 Yogurt 2.0 Soy milk 0.8
Pork 6.9 Peanuts 1.9 Legumes 0.8
Tuna (canned) 5.6 Dairy milk 1.3 Tomatoes 0.7
Poultry 51 Bananas 1.3 Broccoli 0.4
Fish (fresh & frozen) 3.8 Nuts 1.2 Potatoes 0.2

*Data are based on global average emissions from production to retail

Source: Heller, M. C. and Keoleian, G. A. (2015), Greenhouse Gas Emission Estimates of U.S. Dietary Choices and Food Loss. Journal of Industrial Ecology,
19: 391-401. doi:10.1111/jiec.12174_, Supporting Information (3)

@ A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing




Page 59 of 127

S APPENDIX F1

Good Food Purchasing Program
Environmental Sustainability Standards

ENVIRONMENTAL
SUSTAINABILITY

Source from producers that employ sustainable production systems to reduce or
eliminate synthetic pesticides and fertilizers; avoid the use of hormones, routine
antibiotics and genetic engineering; conserve and regenerate soil and water; protect
and enhance wildlife habitats and biodiversity; and reduce on-farm energy and water
consumption, food waste and greenhouse gas emissions. Reduce menu items that
have high carbon and water footprints, using strategies such as plant forward
menus, which feature smaller portions of animal proteins in a supporting role.

@,
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 53




Page 60 of 127

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing




Page 61 of 127

@,
A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 55



Page 62 of 127

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing




Page 63 of 127

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @




Page 64 of 127

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing




Page 65 of 127

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @




Page 66 of 127

N APPENDIX F2

San Francisco’s Healthy and Sustainable
Food Policy

Office of the Mayor
City & County of San Francisco

Gavin Newsom

Executive Directive 09-03

Healthy and Sustainable Food for San Francisco
July 9, 2009

By virtue of the power and authority vested in me by Section 3.100 of the San Francisco Charter
to provide administration and oversight of all departments and governmental units in the
executive branch of the City and County of San Francisco, I do hereby issue this Executive
Directive to become effective immediately:

1. The City declares its commitment to increasing the amount of healthy and sustainable food.

Access to safe, nutritious, and culturally acceptable food is a basic human right and is
essential to both human health and ecological sustainability. The City and County of San
Francisco recognizes that hunger, food insecurity, and poor nutrition are pressing health
issues that require immediate action. Further we recognize that sustainable agricultural
ecosystems serve long-term economic prosperity and ability of future generations to be food
self-sufficient. In our vision, sustainable food systems ensure nutritious food for all people,
shorten the distance between food consumers and producers, protect workers health and
welfare, minimize environment impacts, and strengthen connections between urban and rural
communities. The long-term provision of sufficient nutritious, affordable, culturally
appropriate, and delicious food for all San Franciscans requires the City to consider the food
production, distribution, consumption and recycling system holistically and to take actions to
preserve and promote the health of the food system. This includes setting a high standard for
food quality and ensuring city funds are spent in a manner consistent with our social,
environmental and economic values.

2. The following principles guide this Directive on Healthy and Sustainable Food:

a. To ensure quality of life, as well as environmental and economic health in San
Francisco, the food system must promote public health, environmental sustainability
and social responsibility.

b. Eliminating hunger and ensuring access to healthy and nutritious food for all
residents, regardless of economic means, is a concern of all city departments.
Investments should be allocated to ensure no San Franciscan goes hungry.

c. San Francisco’s neighborhood food environments must allow residents the
opportunity to make healthy food choices and reduce environmental causes of diet
related illnesses.

d. To reduce the environmental impacts associated with food production, distribution,
consumption, and disposal, whenever possible, city resources will be used to purchase
and promote regionally produced and sustainably certified food.

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 200, San Francisco, California 94102-4641
gavin.newsom@sfgov.org * (415) 554-6141

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing




Page 67 of 127

e. Food production and horticulture education will be encouraged within the City and, to
the extent feasible, on City owned land, through urban agriculture including
community, backyard, rooftop, and school gardens; edible landscaping, and
agricultural incubator projects.

f. The City and County shall promote economic opportunities in the food sector that
create green jobs and local food businesses.

g. The ability of the City and County to reduce the environmental impacts of the food
system depends on the region’s fertile farmland. The City and County shall support
policies that conserve the region’s prime agricultural land.

h. The City and County shall promote regional agriculture through increasing marketing
opportunities for regionally grown agricultural products in San Francisco.

i. The City and County shall recycle all organic residuals, eliminate chemical use in
agriculture and landscaping and use sustainable practices that enhance natural
biological systems throughout the City.

j- The City and County shall promote innovative programs that educate food system
stakeholders and the general public on the value of healthy food, and an equitable and
sustainable food system.

k. The City and County shall advocate for federal and state policies that support the
principles of this Food Policy.

3. The Healthy and Sustainable Food Directive will be monitored and advanced by a
newly created Food Policy Council consisting of both public and private members.

a. The following departments will participate in the Food Policy Council:
¢ Mayor’s Office
DPH Office of Food Systems
Shape Up Program representative
Department of Recreation and Parks Director or designee
San Francisco Redevelopment Agency Director or designee
Human Service Agency Director or designee
Director of Department of Aging and Adult Services
Director of Department of Children Youth and Their Families or designee

b. A representative from the following stakeholder groups will be invited to participate
in the Food Policy Council:
¢ Urban Agriculture
Nutrition expert
Food Retail
Restaurants
Distributor
Food Security Task Force
Southeast Food Access Working Group
Tenderloin Hunger Task Force

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @




Page 68 of 127

¢ San Francisco Unified School District, Student Nutrition Services

¢. The Food Policy Council will begin meeting immediately and will meet bi-
monthly.
¢ The immediate goal of the Food Policy Council will be to integrate the
principles of this Directive on Healthy and Sustainable Food as well as
existing recommendations and plans for food policy into the municipal
code, General Plan, and other relevant planning and policy documents.
¢ The Food Policy Council will also monitor progress of this Executive
Directive on Healthy and Sustainable Food and provide an annual report
on departmental efforts to implement this directive. This report will
include at minimum:
1. Evaluation of current activities prescribed by this directive; and
2. Review of any food system related recommendations from other
task forces, and a prioritized list of recommendations for future
research, policies and initiatives that advance the Directive.

4. Departments shall advance the Healthy and Sustainable Food Directive by taking the
following actions:

a. All departments having jurisdiction over property will conduct an audit of their
land suitable for or actively used for food producing gardens or other agricultural
purposes and prepare a report with the findings to my office and a copy to the
Office of Food Systems within 180 days of the signing of this directive.

b. All departments having jurisdiction over nutrition assistance programs including
federally funded programs will ensure adequate staffing to maximize the City’s
use of federal funding.

¢. The Human Service Agency shall maximize food stamp enrollment by launching
a public-facing internet application for online eligibility screening and enrollment
of Food Stamps, Medi-Cal benefits; seek to add additional programs including
WIC, National School Lunch Program, Working Families Credit and other
benefits. HSA shall also contract with ten community-based partners to become
Food Stamp Remote Sites.

d. City departments entering into lease agreements or permitting mobile food
vendors shall either issue requirements for the sale of healthy and sustainably
produced foods or give preferences to businesses who sell such food. City
departments shall provide documentation of requirements and preferences to the
Food Policy Council and must begin to institute these requirements or preferences
within 6 months after the issuance of this Directive. Staff from the Department of
the Environment and Department of Public Health will provide guidance and
technical support.

e. Mayor’s Office of Economic and Workforce Development and the Real Estate
Division shall work with the San Francisco Wholesale Produce Market to finalize
plans for new and expanded facilities that provide long-term stability for the
market past its current 2013 lease expiration so that it may continue to play an

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing




Page 69 of 127

essential role in the distribution of quality food from its source to San Francisco
restaurants, groceries and dining tables.

f. City funding for food purchases or food programs shall meet nutritional
guidelines developed by the City of San Francisco. DPH, DAAS and DCY F will
develop nutritional criteria for any food purchased or any food program funded
using city funds, and will deliver these criteria to my office within 120 days of the
signing of this directive. Within 150 days, these guidelines shall be distributed to
all city departments and shall be incorporated into all city contracts for programs
which serve food.

g. Beginning immediately, all city departments and agencies purchasing food for
events or meetings using city funds will utilize guidelines for “healthy meetings”
and purchase healthy, locally produced and/or sustainably certified foods to the
maximum extent possible. (See www.sffood.org: Healthy Meeting Guidelines
and Guidelines To Increase The Use Of Local Foods At Meetings/Conferences.)

h. Coordinators of the Shape Up At Work program will develop nutrition standards
for all vending machines on city property within 60 days of the signing of this
directive and prepare recommendations for implementing these nutrition
standards in all vending machines on city property.

1. San Francisco Planning Department, with support from the Department of Public
Health and the Department of the Environment shall, to the greatest extent
feasible, integrate policies and implementing actions to support San Francisco’s
food policy goals into elements of the City and County of San Francisco’s
General Plan, whenever such elements are updated.

J- The Department of Public Health will work with local food retailers to create a
Sustainable Food Business Recognition Program to encourage and support locally
owned food businesses that incorporate more healthy and sustainable food and
business practices.

k. San Francisco Redevelopment Agency will develop a Food Business Action Plan
to identify strategies, such as enterprise zones, permit expediting, tax incentives,
regulatory streamlining or other policies to recruit and incubate new food
businesses, and ensure existing food businesses are fully utilizing economic
incentives and technical support to advance the goals of this Directive. This Plan
will be delivered to my office and the DPH Office of Food Systems within 180
days of the signing of this Directive.

I.  The Department of Recreation and Parks with support from the Department of the
Environment will coordinate urban agriculture including facilitating access to
gardening materials and tools, with emphasis on composts, mulches, and other
materials produced as byproducts of other city programs; organizing community
events and outreach efforts related to urban agriculture; connecting volunteer and
educational programs to urban agriculture programs; seek funding to support
urban agriculture; and generally serve as an advocate to increase the production of
food within the City of San Francisco

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @




Page 70 of 127

m. The Department of the Environment will draft a local and sustainable food
procurement ordinance aimed at City government food purchases and prepare
recommendations within 60 days of the signing of this Directive.

n. The San Francisco Agricultural Commissioner will develop rules and regulations
for local farmers markets that support healthy neighborhoods, regional farmers,
and ensure equitable access to local food. These rules will be due to my office
within 180 days of the signing of this Directive.

0. The Department of Children, Youth and their Families and the Department of
Public Health will collaborate with the Food Policy Council and the Food
Security Task Force to host a hearing to explore ways to increase funding to the
school meals program and prepare a report on alternative mechanisms to increase
funding to the program.

p. All departments will designate a contact for advancing the food policy principles
of this Directive and submit the contact information to my office and the DPH
Office of Food Systems within 30 days. All departments are responsible for
developing preliminary plans to execute this directive. These plans are due to the
DPH Office of Food Systems and my office within 60 days of the signing of this
directive.

For questions concerning this Executive Directive and its implementation, please contact: Paula
Jones, Director of Food Systems, Department of Public Health (paula.jones@sfdph.org, 415-
252-3853.)

)

Gavin Newsom
MAYOR

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



Page 71 of 127

S APPENDIX F3

San Diego County’s Eat Well Practices

As described on page 31 of the guide, San Diego County enacted the Eat Well Practices, comprehensive health
and sustainable food guidance that includes climate-friendly food recommendations. Below are some excerpts
from the standards.

l. Guidance for Congregate/Custodial Meal Programs

SUSTAINABILITY

e Prioritize local products, including produce, meat, poultry, eggs, dairy, and seafood as California grown,
raised, or caught with a focus on products coming from San Diego County and the Region.

e Encourage the development of on-site gardens for culinary purposes, where applicable
®  Prioritize organic and sustainable products.

* Prioritize plant-based foods, including protein and dairy alternatives; offer plant-based foods and dishes
and vegetarian meals.

*  When seafood is offered, consider seeking out opportunities to use product procured from responsibly
managed, sustainable, healthy fisheries.

e Prioritize food and beverage products with no or minimal packaging.

e Prioritize reusable food and beverage serviceware (e.g., cups, plates, silverware) whenever feasible and
appropriate.

*  Promote clean, tap or filtered water and reusable containers over bottled water.
e Consider developing and implementing a food donation plan, where applicable.

PRODUCT PLACEMENT
¢ Place plant-based options and other healthy options at the front of service line or other highly visible
locations.

I. Guidance for Cafeterias/Cafés

ANIMAL & PLANT-BASED PROTEIN:

o Consider offering a diverse variety of protein foods, such as seafood (e.g., fish and shellfish), lean meats
and poultry, eggs, legumes (e.g., beans and peas), and nuts, seeds, and soy products, daily.

o Consider offering protein foods from plants such as legumes (beans and peas), and nuts, seeds, and soy
products.

¢ Consider offering a vegetarian entrée option when more than one entrée option is provided.

e Consider offering alternatives to red meat and avoid processed meats (e.g., hot dogs, bacon, sausage, deli
meats); if offered, serve infrequently and in small portions.

¢ Consider offering seafood (e.g., fish and shellfish) as frequently as possible.

¢ Consider purchasing meats and poultry raised without the routine use of antibiotics and/or growth
hormones.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing @


http://bosagenda.sdcounty.ca.gov/agendadocs/doc?id=0901127e804f6533

Page 72 of 127

DAIRY AND PLANT-BASED ALTERNATIVES:

If yogurt is offered, prioritize offering yogurts with no added sweeteners (and offer fresh fruit).

SUSTAINABILITY

Prioritize local products; strive to offer local produce, meat, poultry, eggs, dairy, and seafood that is
California grown, raised, or caught with a focus on foods coming from San Diego County and the Region.

Prioritize organic and sustainable products.

Prioritize plant-based foods, including proteins and dairy alternatives; offer protein foods from plants
such as legumes, nuts, seeds, and soy (i.e., a vegetarian entrée), daily.

When seafood is offered, provide product procured from responsibly managed, sustainable, healthy
fisheries.

Prioritize food and beverage products with no or minimal packaging.

Consider offering reusable serviceware for food and beverage purchased for onsite consumption
whenever feasible and appropriate; promote and incentivize the use of reusable containers for beverages
and foods purchased for offsite consumption.

Strive to minimize non-reusable, single-use beverage containers.
Consider developing and implementing a food donation plan.

PRODUCT PLACEMENT

When feasible, place plant-based options at the front of service line or other highly visible locations;
place first on menus.

When feasible, place in highest selling or other prominent positions unprocessed and minimally
processed foods and beverages.

When feasible, display foods and beverage options that meet the unprocessed, minimally processed, and
moderately processed categories within three feet of register; place fruit within reach of register, when
possible.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



Page 73 of 127

S APPENDIX F4

Healthy People | Healthy Planet: City of
Portland food purchasing guidelines

The Healthy People, Healthy Planet food purchasing guidelines were developed to encourage City of Portland
employees to make healthy and sustainable choices when using public dollars for City-sponsored meetings,
trainings, and events. The guidelines meet sustainability goals, particularly those outlined in the City’s Climate
Action Plan, promote equity, and support personal and environmental health.

Food choice is a key factor in addressing sustainability and reducing carbon emissions. From a carbon per-
spective the type of food we choose is a more significant factor than where it comes from. In particular, meat,
dairy, and processed foods have a higher carbon footprint than plant-based proteins made from beans, nuts,
and soy. Lower-carbon foods are also better for our health.

Sustainable food purchases also provide opportunities to address social equity. These guidelines support local
and emerging businesses, particularly those owned by women and entrepreneurs of color.

Guiding Principles

¢ Reduce the negative environmental and climate impacts of catering by addressing food type and
sustainability principles.

e Support catering businesses that are local, sustainable, emerging, and owned by women and
entrepreneurs of color.

* Encourage and model healthful food choices at City-sponsored meetings and events to improve
community wellbeing.

Food Choices

* Emphasize plant-based meals that minimize or eliminate meat and dairy offerings.

* Include locally grown, seasonal, and organic ingredients when possible.

o Offer vegetables, fruit, and whole grains, and avoid processed foods with salt, added sugars, and fats.
e Provide options for those with dietary restrictions.

Social Equity

e Support emerging businesses and neighborhood vendors owned by women and entrepreneurs of color.
e Prioritize culturally appropriate food.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing 67



Page 74 of 127
Sustainability Measures

¢ Order the right amount of food to prevent leftovers.

e Serve smaller portions to prevent food waste, such as cutting sandwiches, pizza, and pastries into
smaller portions.

o Offer bite-sized foods that don’t require dishes or silverware.

e Use durable dishware when possible.

* Provide pitchers of water instead of bottled beverages.

o |f using disposable products, use those that contain recycled content.

¢ Order coffee from vendors using reusable carafes, bulk containers for condiments and creamers, and, if
possible, ask attendees to bring their own mug.

e Offer coffee and tea that is socially and environmentally responsible.
o Prefer caterers that use low-impact delivery systems such as bike delivery.

Applying the Guidelines

The food purchasing guidelines were created to make healthy and sustainable choices easier. A preferred pro-
vider list has been created to assist city employees with implementing the guidelines.

Choosing Vendors

Preferred City food vendors have been certified by the Bureau of Planning and Sustainability’s Sustainability
at Work program. In addition, the vendor list also includes a paragraph about each business that provides
additional background, highlights their sustainability measures, and alignment with the City’s food choice
guidelines.

Tracking

To assess compliance with the purchasing guidelines, City food purchases will be tracked as part of a
9-month pilot initiative. In order to improve the data, please be sure to use the correct GL number, 539100,
when using a p-card. And when the invoice is entered into Works, be sure to fill out the comment field with
a description of the event and the type of food that was served.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing


https://www.portlandoregon.gov/sustainabilityatwork/62171
https://www.portlandoregon.gov/sustainabilityatwork/62171

Page 75 of 127

S APPENDIX F5

An RFP template for sustainable food
services from the federal government

The federal government’s General Services Administration created this REP Template for Sustainable Food
Services for federal buyers to secure green contracts for cafeteria and food services. The following is an
excerpt from the section entitled “Sustainability Program and Practices,” beginning on page 19 of the RFP
template.

i. Background

The federal government recognizes the importance of promoting sustainable systems that protect our people,
our planet, and our economic vitality. The commitment to sustainability goals is demonstrated in the following
executive orders, USDA legislation, and USDA initiatives. These are a basis for the sustainability elements of
these guidelines:

1) Executive Order 13423, “Strengthening Federal Environmental, Energy, and Transportation Manage-
ment,” directs agencies within the federal government to practice environmentally, economically, and
fiscally sound, integrated, continuously improving, efficient, and sustainable methods of operation.

2) Executive Order 13514, “Federal Leadership in Environmental, Energy, and Economic Performance,”
provides the following general guidance for federal agencies:

* Increase energy efficiency; measure, report, and reduce greenhouse gas emissions from direct and
indirect activities.

e Conserve and protect water resources through efficiency, reuse, and storm water management.

e Eliminate waste, recycle, and prevent pollution.

e Leverage Agency acquisitions to foster markets for sustainable technologies and environmentally
preferable materials, products, and services.

e Design, construct, maintain, and operate high performance sustainable buildings in sustainable
locations.

e Strengthen the vitality and livability of the communities in which federal facilities are located.
e Inform federal employees about and involve them in the achievement of these goals.

3) USDA defines sustainable agriculture as Congress defined the term in 1990 (7 USC 3103), as an inte-
grated system of plant and animal production practices having a site-specific application that will over
the long-term accomplish the following:

e Satisfy human food and fiber needs.

e Enhance environmental quality and the natural resource base upon which the agriculture economy
depends.

* Make the most efficient use of nonrenewable resources and on-farm resources and integrate,
where appropriate, natural biological cycles and controls.

e Sustain the economic viability of farm operations.
e Enhance the quality of life for farmers and society as a whole.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing (:3:]


https://sftool.gov/greenprocurement/green-services/9/cafeteria-food-services
https://sftool.gov/greenprocurement/green-services/9/cafeteria-food-services

Page 76 of 127

4) USDA encourages stronger connections between farmers and consumers, and support for local and
regional food systems as a way to foster economic opportunity for farmers and ranchers, stimulate
community economic development, expand access to affordable fresh and local food, cultivate healthy
eating habits and educated, empowered consumers, and demonstrate the connection between food,
agriculture, community, and the environment (see http:/www.usda.gov/knowyourfarmer for more
information).

It is encouraged that the Contractor employ these practices in their daily operation of the cafeteria and
demonstrates their corporate capability by applying these standards.

ii. Sustainability Standards

1. General Operations
a. Standard Criteria:
i. Participate in waste reduction, recycling and composting programs, as available.
ii. Promote and incentivize the use of reusable beverage containers.
iii. Promote use of tap water over bottled water.
iv. Use green cleaning practices.

V. Use integrated pest management practices and green pest control alternatives to the
maximum extent feasible.

Vi. Provide materials for single-service items (e.g., trays, flatware, plates, and bowls) that
are compostable and made from bio-based products.
2. General Food
a. Standard Criteria:

i. Offer 25% of the product line to be organically, locally, or documented sustainably
grown (e.g., integrated pest management, pesticide free, other labeling programs).

ii. Offer seasonal varieties of fruits and vegetables.
b. Above Standards:
i.  Offer 35% of the product line to be organically or locally or documented sustainably
grown (e.g., integrated pest management, pesticide free, other labeling programs).
3. Sustainability Labeling
a. Standard Criteria:

i. Label Organic, local, or documented sustainably grown food items available in food
service at the point of choice.

b. Above Standard:

i. Educate about the value of agricultural best practices that are ecologically sound, eco-
nomically viable, and socially responsible in Agency concessions services with signage,
informational programs, or other means of communicating the benefits of the items
that are labeled organic, local, and/or sustainable.

ii.  Forlocally grown foods, include information that identifies the farms and sustainable
practices used.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



http://www.usda.gov/knowyourfarmer

Page 77 of 127

4. Animal Products
a. Standard Criteria:
i.  Offer fish/seafood that has been responsibly harvested. http:/www.fishwatch.gov

b. Above Standard:

i.  Offer Certified Organic or documented sustainably or locally produced milk and milk
products.

ii.  Offer Certified Organic or documented sustainably or locally produced eggs and meat
(e.g., grass fed, free-range, pasture raised, grass finished, humanely raised and han-

dled).
5. Beverages
a. Standard Criteria:
i. Offer drinking water, preferably chilled tap.
b. Above Standard: 21

i. If offering coffee or tea, include coffee or tea offerings that are Certified Organic, shade
grown, and/or bird friendly.

ii. If composting is available, bottled water must be offered in compostable bottles.

It is encouraged that the Contractor employ these practices in their daily operation of the cafeteria and
demonstrates their corporate capability by applying these standards.

A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing

Al


http://www.fishwatch.gov

Page 78 of 127

Endnotes

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
27

28
29

U.S. Environmental Prot@ Agency. (2017). Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions Data. Retrieved October 28, 2017, from https://www.epa.gov/ghgemis-
sions/global-greenhouse-gas-emissions-data

Aleksandrowicz, L., Green, R., Joy, E. J. M., Smith, P., & Haines, A. (2016). The Impacts of Dietary Change on Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Land Use, Water
Use, and Health: A Syst? Fleview. PLOS ONE, 11(11), e0165797. http://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0165797

United Nall @ Bystem Standing Blee on [@2017). Sustainable Diets for Healthy People and a Healthy Planet. Retrieved from https:/www.
unscn.org/uploads/web/news/document/Climate-Nutrition-Paper-EN-WEB.pdf

Hedenus, F., Wirsenius, S., & Johansson, D. J. A. (2014). The importance of reduced meat and dairy consumpll B @r mee® B Rringent climate change tar-
gets. Climall Ehange, 124(1-2), 79-91. http://doi.org/10.1007/s10584-014-1104-5

Tilman, D., & Clark, M. (2014). Global diets link environmental sustainability and human health. Nature, 515(7528), 518-522. http://doi.org/10.1038/na-
ture13959

Kim, B., Ne@@, R., Santo, R., Vigorito, J. (2015). The importance of reducing animal product consump@ ed fi Blafatrophic climate
change. Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future Report prepared for United Na@ B Eonference of the P@ @ @21 (COP21). Retrieved from https:/www.
jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/_pdf/research/clf_reports/2015-12-07e-role-of-diet-food-
waste-in-cc-targets.pdf

Ibid.

Food and Agriculture Organizal B of the United Nal B [(2013). Food Balance Sheets. Retrieved October 28, 2017, from http://www.fao.org/faostat
en/#data/FBS

Lagasse, L., & Nel, R. (2010). Balanced Menus: A Pilot d@r San Francisco Bay Area Hospitals. Johns Hopkins Center for a
Livable Future. Retrieved from https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/research/clf_publi-
cations/pub_rep_desc/balanced_menu.html

Hamerschlag, K. & Kraus-Polk, J. (2017). Shrinking the carbon and water footprint of school food: A recipe for Bldchange: A pilot analysis of
BitActls food programs. Friends of the Earth. Retrieved from https://foe.org/projects/food-and-technology/good-food-healthy-
planet/school-food-footprint

U.S. Department of Agriculture Food and Service. (2016). Processor Material Prices. Retrieved from https:/www.fns.usda.gov/fdd/proces-
sor-material-prices

U.S. Department of Agriculture Economic Research Service. (2017). Food-Away-from-Home. Retrieved from https://www.ers.usda.gov/topics/food-choic-
es-health/food-consumption-demand/food-away-from-home.aspx

Menus of Change. (2015). 2015 Annual Report. Retrieved from http://www.menusofchange.org/images/uploads/pdf/CIA-Harvard_MenusofChange
AnnualReport_2015al.pdf

United Nall @ Bystem Standing Blee on [@2017). Sustainable Diets for Healthy People and a Healthy Planet. Retrieved from https:/www.
unscn.org/uploads/web/news/document/Climate-Nutrition-Paper-EN-WEB.pdf

Wellesley, L., Happer, C., & Froggall @. (2015). Changing Climate, Changing Diets: Pathways to Lower Meat ConsumpBl Befbrt. Re-
trieved from https://www.chathamhouse.org/sites/files/chathamhouse/publications/research/CHHJ3820 Diet and climate change 18.1115_WEB
NEW.pdf

City of Oakland. (2012). Energy and Climat@ Retrieved from http:/www2.0aklandnet.com/oakcal/groups/pwa/documents/report
0ak039056.pdf

Kim, B., Ne@@, R., Santo, R., Vigorito, J. (2015). The importance of reducing animal product consump@ ed fi Blafatrophic climate
change. Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future Report prepared for United Na@ B Eonference of the P@ @ @21 (COP21). Retrieved from https:/www.
jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/ pdf/research/clf_reports/2015-12-07e-role-of-diet-food-
waste-in-cc-targets.pdf

Hallstrém, E., Gee, Q., Scarborough, P., & Cleveland, D. A. (2017). A healthier US diet could reduce greenhouse gas emissions from both the food and health
care systems. Climal @hange, 142(1-2), 199-212. http://doi.org/10.1007/510584-017-1912-5

Hamerschlag, K. & Kraus-Polk, J. (2017). Shrinking the carbon and water footprint of school food: A recipe for Bldthange: A pilot analysis of
BitfActls food programs. Friends of the Earth. Retrieved from https://foe.org/projects/food-and-technology/good-food-healthy-
planet/school-food-footprint

Wellesley, L., Happer, C., & Froggall @. (2015). Changing Climate, Changing Diets: Pathways to Lower Meat Consump B @hatham House Report. Re-
trieved from https://www.chathamhouse.org/sites/files/chathamhouse/publications/research/CHHJ3820 Diet and climate change 18.1115_WEB
NEW.pdf

Bailey, R., Froggall @., & Wellesley, L. (2014). Livestock — Climate Change’s Blen Sector: Global Public Opinion on Meat and Dairy Consumpl
Chatham House Report. Retrieved from https:/www.chathamhouse.org/sites/files/chathamhouse/field/field_document/20141203LivestockClimat-
eChangeForgottenSectorBaileyFroggattWellesleyFinal.pdf

Smith P., M. Bustamante, H. Ahammad, H. Clark, H. Dong, E.A. Elsiddig, H. Haberl, R. Harper, J. House, M. Jafari, O. Masera, C. Mbow, N.H. Ravindranath,
C.W. Rice, C. Robledo Abad, A. Romanovskaya, F. Sperling, and F. Tubiello. (2014). Agriculture, Forestry and Other Land Use (AFOLU). In: Climate Change:

of Climate Change. Con@ & Working Group Il to the BAssessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. Re-
trieved from http:/www.ipcc.ch/pdf/assessment-report/ar5/wg3/ipcc_wa3_ar5_chapterlil.pdf

Brent, K., Ne@@, R., Santo, R., Vigorito, J. (2015). The importance of reducing animal product consump@ ed fi Blafa&trophic climate
change. Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future Report prepared for United Na B Eonference of the P@ @ @21 (COP21). Retrieved from https:/www.
jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/ pdf/research/clf_reports/2015-12-07e-role-of-diet-food-
waste-in-cc-targets.pdf

Wellesley, L., Happer, C., & Froggall @. (2015). Changing Climate, Changing Diets: Pathways to Lower Meat Consump B @hatham House Report. Re-
trieved from https://www.chathamhouse.org/sites/files/chathamhouse/publications/research/CHHJ3820 Diet and climate change 18.1115_WEB
NEW.pdf

U.S. Environmental Prot@ Agency. (2017). Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions Data. Retrieved October 28, 2017, from https://www.epa.gov/ghgemis-
sions/global-greenhouse-gas-emissions-data

Vermeulen, S. J., Campbell, B. M., & Ingram, J. S. (2012). Climate change and food systems. Annual Review of Environment and Resources, 37.

Garnell @. (2011). Where are the best far reducing greenhouse gas emissions in the food system (including the food chain)?. Food policy, 36,
$23-S32.

Ibid.

Gerber, P. J., Steinfeld, H., Henderson, B., et, A., Opio, C., Dijkman, J., ... & Tempio, G. (2013). Tackling climate change through livestock: A global as-
sessmene Rof e Ifaly: Food and Agriculture Organizall B of the United Na@ @ HFAO)

@ A Municipal Guide to Climate-Friendly Food Purchasing



https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/global-greenhouse-gas-emissions-data
https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/global-greenhouse-gas-emissions-data
http://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0165797
https://www.unscn.org/uploads/web/news/document/Climate-Nutrition-Paper-EN-WEB.pdf
https://www.unscn.org/uploads/web/news/document/Climate-Nutrition-Paper-EN-WEB.pdf
http://doi.org/10.1007/s10584-014-1104-5
http://doi.org/10.1038/nature13959
http://doi.org/10.1038/nature13959
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/_pdf
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/_pdf
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/_pdf
http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/FBS
http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/FBS
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/rese
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/centers-and-institutes/johns-hopkins-center-for-a-livable-future/rese
https://foe.org/projects/food-and-technology/good-food-healthy-planet/school-food-footprint/
https://foe.org/projects/food-and-technology/good-food-healthy-planet/school-food-footprint/
https://www.fns.usda.gov/fdd/processor-material-prices
https://www.fns.usda.gov/fdd/processor-material-prices
https://www.ers.usda.gov/topics/food-choices-health/food-consumption-demand/food-away-from-home.aspx
https://www.ers.usda.gov/topics/food-choices-health/food-consumption-demand/food-away-from-home.aspx
http://www.menusofchange.org/images/uploads/pdf/CIA-Harvard_MenusofChange_AnnualReport_2015a1.pdf
http://www.menusofchange.org/images/uploads/pdf/CIA-Harvard_MenusofChange_AnnualReport_2015a1.pdf
https://www.unscn.org/uploads/web/news/document/Climate-Nutrition-Paper-EN-WEB.pdf
https://www.unscn.org/uploads/web/news/document/Climate-Nutrition-Paper-EN-WEB.pdf
https://www.chathamhouse.org/sites/files/chathamhouse/publications/research/CHHJ3820 Diet and climat
https://www.ch